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ead of the accounting department).

original copies of all documents and announcements of the Company which have been disclosed to the public
on the website designated by the CSRC during the Reporting Period.

(IV)  The English and Chinese versions of the 2022 Interim Report of the Company published on the website of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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financial indicators (RMB in millions)

1,426.39

[ Same Period
Last Year

M Reporting Period

-3.54%

1,371.17 1,322.57

Operating income

Net profit attributable
to shareholders of
the Company

Net profit after
extraordinary gains or
losses attributable to

shareholders of

the Company

-4.39% -4.39%

1.14 1.09 1.14

_of principal businesses (RMB in millions)

5.55%
346.04
7.86%
490.62
28.54%
Income of Principal 1,780.51
Businesses
27.72% Total
1,729.34
6,239.73
21.54%
1.45% 1,344.05
90.52
3.12% 4.23%
194.65 264.00

Net cash flow from
operating activities

Diluted earnings per share (RME

Total profit

[ same Period
Last Year

M Reporting Period

Chemical drug preparations

M Gastroenterology

I Gonadotropic hormones

M Psychiatry

M Anti-infection

M Other chemical drug
preparations

I APIs and intermediates
Traditional Chinese
medicine preparations

I Diagnostic reagents
and equipment
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SECTION | IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

IMPORTANT NOTICE

The Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group
Inc.* hereby warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of this interim report (the “Report”), and
that there are no false representations, misleading statements or material omissions contained in the Report, and severally
and jointly accept responsibility.

The Report has been considered and approved at the 33rd meeting of the 10th session of the Board of the Company. All
the Directors attended the 33rd meeting of the 10th session of the Board.

The 2022 interim financial statements and notes thereof (collectively the “Financial Report”) prepared by the Group according
to the China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises have not been audited. The Report has been reviewed by the
audit committee of the Company.

The Company does not intend to pay interim cash dividends, issue bonus shares or transfer any capital reserve to share capital.

Mr. Zhu Baoguo (5<{RE), the person-in-charge of the Company, Ms. Si Yanxia (F1#&), the person-in-charge of the
Company's accounting work, and Ms. Zhuang Jianying (F£fiZ42), the person-in-charge of the accounting department (the
head of the accounting department), declare that they hereby warrant the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
Financial Report contained in the Report.

Possible risks and corresponding strategies in respect of the future development of the Company are analyzed in Section IlI
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Report. Investors are advised to review it.

The Report contains forward-looking statements which involve subjective assumptions and judgments on future policies and
economic conditions, yet do not constitute substantive undertakings of the Company to investors. These statements are
subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The actual outcomes may be substantially different from these statements.
Investors should exercise caution that inappropriate reliance on and usage of such information may lead to investment risks.

The Report is prepared in both Chinese and English. In case of any ambiguity in the understanding of the Chinese and English
texts, the Chinese version shall prevail.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION | IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

DEFINITIONS

In this Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Company”

“Group”

“Board”

“Director(s)"”
“Supervisory Committee”
“Supervisor(s)”
“Shareholder(s)"

“A Share(s)"

"B Share(s)"

“H Share(s)"”

“A Shareholder(s)"”
“H Shareholder(s)"”
“Reporting Period” or “Period”

“Same Period Last Year” or
“Previous Period”

“End of the Previous Year”

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.* (BBHRBEEERHBRAF]), a joint stock
company incorporated under the laws of the PRC with limited liability, whose H Shares
and A Shares are listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
main board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange respectively

the Company and its subsidiaries

the board of directors of the Company

director(s) of the Company

the supervisory committee of the Company

supervisor(s) of the Company

shareholder(s) of the Company

the ordinary shares in the registered capital of the Company with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the main board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange

domestically listed foreign shares originally issued by the Company

the ordinary shares in the registered capital of the Company with a nominal value
of RMB1.00 each, which are listed and traded on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange

holder(s) of A Shares of the Company

holder(s) of H Shares of the Company

the six months from 1 January to 30 June 2022

the six months from 1 January to 30 June 2021

31 December 2021

“Beginning of the Reporting Period”, 1 January 2022

“Beginning of the Period” or
"Beginning of the Year”

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION | IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

“End of the Reporting Period” or
“End of the Period”

“CSRC”

“Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
“csbec”

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”

“China Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises”

“Company Law”
“Securities Law”
“Shenzhen Listing Rules”

“Hong Kong Listing Rules”

“Corporate Governance Code”

“Model Code”

"SEO"

“Articles of Association”

“Joincare”

30 June 2022

China Securities Regulatory Commission

Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Shenzhen Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — Basic Standard and 38 specific
accounting standards, the Application Guidance to Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, Interpretations of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other
related requirements subsequently promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC
on 15 February 2006

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China

the Securities Law of the People's Republic of China

the Stock Listing Rules of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

the Code of Corporate Governance as set out in Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

4

i
Ji]

the Articles of Association of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.* ( { BBIRES &85

B BRABER) )

Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (@ T B ¥ E BN ER A F)
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600380), a joint stock company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and listed on the main board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in 2001 and one of the Company’s controlling shareholders

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION | IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

“Joincare Group” Joincare and its subsidiaries (excluding the Group)

"Baiyeyuan” Shenzhen Baiyeyuan Investment Co., Ltd.* (RIITH B E/RIEEBR Q7))

“Topsino” Topsino Industries Limited (K3 E 5 R A 7))

“Begol” Guangzhou Begol Trading Holdings Limited* (BMTREL NI E S A R])

“Jiaozuo Hecheng” Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (FR{EREZRE AKX
HHBEFRAT)

“Livzon MAB" Livzon MABPharm Inc.* (3k/8 T B IR B I AWM B R A 7))

“Xinbeijiang Pharma” Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc.* (BBEREEE 71T &

ERMHBRATE)

“Fuzhou Fuxing” Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (REER%EE 4@ ) 17 L B8 &k
BRAR])

“Ningxia Pharma” Livzon Group (Ningxia) Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (BHEE(EE)
HBERRTA])

"Pharmaceutical Factory” Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory* (B Bk £= 5] /28 Tk B 4 iR )

“Limin Factory” Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory (B8 ¥k & B F| R &L 52 /&)

“Livzon Diagnostics” Zhuhai Livzon Diagnostics Inc.* (Bk/@BER A B A& D B R A 7))

“Sichuan Guangda” Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (PO)I| ¢ KL EEHR
NS

"Shanghai Livzon” Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* (_E /& BB TR R BE B R A 7))

“Jiaozuo Joincare” Jiaozuo Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd.* (FRfER2FRITEW R MER
NS

“Haibin Pharma” Shenzhen Haibin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (FIIT/EBREEHR A A)

"Blue Treasure Pharma” Guangdong Blue Treasure Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EREEREHRE A 7))

"Sanmed Gene” Zhuhai Sanmed Gene Diagnostics Ltd.* (K& EEZER BB ERAR)
(formerly known as Livzon Gene Diagnostics Inc.* (¥X/8 T BHRER AR A
R A A))

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION |

“Lizhu HK"
“Sanmed Biotech”

“Livzon Biologics”,
“Livzon Cayman”

“Livzon International”
“Joincare BVI"
“Livzon HK"
“LivzonBio”

“PRC" or “China”
“Hong Kong”

“RMB”

“HK$" or “HKD"
“MOP”

"US$" or "USD"
“Japanese Yen”
“Euro”

U

“Cninfo”
“Company's website”
"HKEXnews"

“COVID-19 virus”

“COVID-19 pandemic”, “pandemic”

“COVID-19 vaccines”

IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

Lizhu (Hong Kong) Co., Limited* (BBEK(F )G R A 7))
Zhuhai Sanmed Biotech Inc.* (BR/GEE=E W2 I R T AR A 7))

Livzon Biologics Limited

Livzon International Limited

Joincare Pharmaceutical Group Industry Co., Ltd

Livzon Biologics Hong Kong Limited* (BBERAEWEHE BB FR A 7))
LivzonBio, Inc.* (B8 M BB IR E W E BRI AR A F)

the People’s Republic of China

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau

US dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Euro, the official currency for 19 nations in European Union

European Union

www.cninfo.com.cn (B 81& #148)

the website of the Company (www.livzon.com.cn)

the website of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk)
a new coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2)

the outbreak of the disease caused by a new coronavirus called SARS-CoV-2

vaccines for the new coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2)

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION | IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DEFINITIONS

"R&D"
“CDE"

" g

“IND"
5D

" CEP"
“EHS"
"FDA"
"GMP”"
“GAP"
"c”

“MVR"

*

For identification purpose only

research and development

Feh)

iy

pi

Center for Drug Evaluation (IR & mEEEERHEME
Conformité Européenne (CE), being the certification of the product by European
Union, indicating that the product has met the safety requirements stipulated by the
European Directives. The access condition for a product to enter the EU market are
that the product has passed the corresponding conformity assessment procedures and
the declaration of conformity of a manufacturer, with attachment of CE mark
Investigational New Drug

Business Development

Certification of Suitability to Monograph of European Pharmacopoeia

Environment, Health, Safety

Food and Drug Administration

Good Manufacturing Practice

Good Agriculture Practice

Quality Control

Mechanical Vapor Recompression

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND MAJOR
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

. COMPANY INFORMATION

A Shares H Shares

Stock abbreviation Livzon Group Livzon Pharma™oe ! BB K H 1K Note 2

Stock code 000513 01513Nete T~ 2999 Note 2

Previous stock abbreviation (if any) BREEIRA Not applicable

Stock exchange of listed securities Shenzhen Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited

Chinese name of the Company EBURBEEEROHBRAA

Abbreviation of the Chinese Name BHEE

English name of the Company LIVZON PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP INC.*

Abbreviation of the English name
Legal representative of the Company

Registered address in the PRC

Postal code of registered address in the PRC

Office address in the PRC

Postal code of office address in the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Company's website

E-mail

LIVZON GROUP
Zhu Baoguo (KR E)

Headquarters Building, 38 Chuangye North Road, Jinwan District,
Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

519090

Headquarters Building, 38 Chuangye North Road, Jinwan District,
Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

519090

Unit 1301, 13/F, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

www.livzon.com.cn

LIVZON_GROUP@livzon.com.cn

Note 1: On 16 January 2014, the Company's domestically listed foreign shares (“B Shares”) were converted into overseas listed foreign
shares (“H Shares”) by way of introduction for listing and trading on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The stock
code of the H Shares of the Company is “01513" and the stock abbreviation thereof is “Livzon Pharma”.

Note 2: The abbreviation and the stock code are only used by domestic Shareholders of original B Shares of the Company in respect of
their trading of H Shares of the Company after H Shares of the Company were listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

*

For identification purpose only

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND MAJOR
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

II. CONTACT PERSONS AND CONTACT DETAILS

Secretary to the Board Representative of Securities Affairs
Name Yang Liang (#55%) Ye Delong (EE1E[E)
Address Headquarters Building, 38 Chuangye North Road, Jinwan District, Zhuhai City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

Telephone (86) (0756) 8135990 (86) (0756) 8135992
Fax (86) (0756) 8891070 (86) (0756) 8891070
E-mail yangliang2014@livzon.com.cn yedelong@livzon.com.cn

lll. OTHER INFORMATION
1.  Contact Details of the Company

Whether the registered address, office address and postal code, company website and email
address of the Company changed during the Reporting Period

L] Applicable v Not applicable

There was no change in the registered address, office address and postal code, company website and email address of the
Company during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the 2021 Annual Report for details.

2. Information Disclosure and Places for Inspection

Whether the information disclosure and the places for inspection changed during the Reporting
Period

0] Applicable v Not applicable

There was no change in the place for inspection of interim report of the Company during the Reporting Period. Please refer
to the 2021 Annual Report for details.

3. Other Relevant Information
Whether other relevant information changed during the Reporting Period

L] Applicable v Not applicable

There was no change in other relevant information of the Company during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the 2021
Annual Report for details.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION Il
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

COMPANY PROFILE AND MAJOR

IV. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Whether the Company has made retrospective adjustments or restatements of accounting data

of prior years

[ Yes « No

Items

Operating income

Net profit attributable to Shareholders of the Company

Net profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company after deducting
the extraordinary gains or losses

Net cash flow from operating activities

Total profit

Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)

Diluted eamnings per share (RMB/share)

Basic earnings per share after deducting the extraordinary gains or losses
(RMB/share)

Weighted average return on equity

Return on equity attributable to Shareholders of the Company

Ratio of equity attributable to Shareholders of the Company to total assets

Items

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets attributable to the Shareholders of the Company

Share capital

Shareholders” equity per share attributable to the Shareholders of the Company
(RMB/share)

Period

6,302,565,210.60
1,017,545,790.03
1,046,423,474.50

1,426,385,813.18
1,322,572,532.90
1.09
1.09
1.12

7.63%

7.91%

56.10%

End of
the Period

22,937,729,133.65
8,950,902,250.48

12,866,920,066.87
934,957,557.00
13.76

Unit: RMB

Period-to-period

Previous Period change
6,235,531,036.28 1.08%
1,062,475,917.41 -4.23%
920,069,483.32 13.73%
674,910,992.08 111.34%
1,371,165,998.33 -3.54%
1.14 -4.39%

1.14 -4.39%

0.98 14.29%

8.65%  Decreased by 1.02
percentage points

8.85%  Decreased by 0.94
percentage point

56.99%  Decreased hy 0.89
percentage point

Beginning of Period-to-period

the Period change
22,371,915,590.82 2.53%
8,060,890,797.20 11.04%
13,003,763,631.47 -1.05%
937,865,121.00 -0.31%
13.87 -0.79%

Total share capital of the Company as at the trading day prior to disclosure

Total share capital of the Company as at the trading day prior to disclosure (shares) 934,997,951
Fully diluted earnings per share based on the most updated share capital

Dividends payable to preferred shares -
Interests payable to perpetual bonds -
Fully diluted earnings per share based on the most updated share capital (RMB/share) 1.09

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION I  COMPANY PROFILE AND MAJOR
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

V. DIFFERENCES IN ACCOUNTING DATA UNDER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

1. Differences in Net Profit and Net Assets Between Financial Reports Disclosed
Concurrently Under International Accounting Standards and China Accounting
Standards

L] Applicable v Not applicable

2. Differences in Net Profit and Net Assets Between Financial Reports Disclosed
Concurrently Under Foreign Accounting Standards and China Accounting Standards

[J Applicable v Not applicable

3. Explanation on Reasons for the Differences in Accounting Data Under Domestic
and Foreign Accounting Standards

[J Applicable v Not applicable

VI. ITEMS AND AMOUNTS OF EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: RMB

Items Amounts

Gains and losses on disposal of non-current assets (including the written-off portion of provisions -510,518.91
made for asset impairment)

Government grants included in profit and loss for the Period (except for government grants closely 79,946,913.82

associated with corporate businesses, met national policies and regulations, entitled at fixed
amount or fixed level according to the national unified standards)
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value derived from holding of financial assets held for -89,624,563.81
trading and financial liabilities held for trading, and investment income generated on disposal of
financial assets held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading and available-for-sale financial
assets, except for effective hedging activities related to the ordinary operating business of the
Company

Other non-operating income and expenditure apart from the above items -2,579,278.17
Less: Income tax effect 8,492,311.23

Effect of minority interests (after tax) 7,617,926.17
Total -28,877,684.47

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION I COMPANY PROFILE AND MAJOR
FINANCIAL INDICATORS

VI. ITEMS AND AMOUNTS OF EXTRAORDINARY GAINS AND LOSSES (continued)

Details of other gains or losses items meeting the definition of extraordinary gains or losses

0] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no other gains or losses items that meet the definition of extraordinary gains
or losses.

Explanation on defining items of extraordinary gains or losses as illustrated in the “Notice
on Explanation of Information Disclosure of Companies Publicly Issuing Securities No.1 -
Extraordinary Gains or Losses” as items of recurring gains or losses

L] Applicable v Not applicable
During the Reporting Period, the Company has not defined any items of extraordinary gains or losses as illustrated in the

“Notice on Explanation of Information Disclosure of Companies Publicly Issuing Securities No.1 — Extraordinary Gains or
Losses” as items of recurring gains or losses.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I.  THE INDUSTRY SITUATION IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPERATES DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. Basic information, development stage, cyclical characteristics of the industry in which the
Company operates and the position of the Company within the industry

The industry in which the Company operates is the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry. The pharmaceutical industry is a
national strategic emerging industry and an integral part of the national economy. During the 13th Five-Year Plan period, the
added value of the pharmaceutical industry above designated size increased by 9.5% annually, which is 4.2 percentage points
higher than the overall growth rate of the industry, and the proportion of the total added value of the industry increased from
3.0% to 3.9%. The operating revenue and total profits of enterprises above designated size grew at an average annual rate
of 9.9% and 13.8%, ranking among the fastest among all industrial sectors. In addition, the scale of leading enterprises is
growing, and industrial concentration is improving. In 2022, reforms in the pharmaceutical and health system have deepened
further, the environment for innovation continues to improve, the pharmaceutical industry continues to make progress in the
direction of further transformation and upgrading and high-quality development that encourages innovation. As the aging
population of our nation grows, and the level of urbanization keeps on increasing, the pharmaceutical industry of our nation
as a whole, will present a continuous upward development trend.

The Group is primarily engaged in the R&D, production and sale of pharmaceutical products, which cover drug preparation
products, active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs”) and intermediates, as well as diagnostic reagents and equipment,
covering a wide range of treatment fields such as assisted reproduction, gastroenterology, psychiatry and tumor immunology,
and has formed a relatively complete product portfolio.

In the Group's R&D pipeline, products under research based on platforms such as biologics and microspheres, inject
new vitality into the Company’s business development. The Company regards R&D and innovation as the foundation of
sustainability, focuses on unmet clinical needs, places emphasis on innovative drugs and high-barrier complex preparations,
and further strengthens innovative R&D and business layout of psychiatry and tumor immunology products, on the basis of
original fields of strength such as assisted reproduction and gastroenterology. Meanwhile, while continuously strengthening
independent innovation, the Company also pays attention to cutting-edge technologies, strengthens external cooperation,
actively develops innovative business cooperation models in the global market, and advances its international presence.

2. Significant impact of newly promulgated laws, administrative regulations, departmental
rules and industry policies on the industry in which the Company operates

(M On 30 January 2022, nine departments, including the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Commerce, the National
Health Commission, the Ministry of Emergency Management, the National Healthcare Security Administration, the
National Medical Products Administration and the National Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine, jointly
issued the “14th Five-Year Plan for the Development of the Pharmaceutical Industry” (the “Plan”). The Plan clarifies
the development goals for the next five years: by 2025, major economic indicators will achieve medium-high
growth, innovation achievements in frontier fields will be prominent, innovation driving force will be strengthened,
the modernization level of industrial chain will be significantly improved, the supply and guarantee system of
pharmaceutical devices will be further improved, and internationalization will be advanced in an all-round way. The
Plan puts forward goals for the pharmaceutical industry in terms of scale efficiency, innovation-driven development
transformation, industrial chain and supply chain, drug and equipment supply and international development. The
pharmaceutical industry is expected to enter into a new round of sustainable development.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THE INDUSTRY SITUATION IN WHICH THE COMPANY OPERATES DURING
THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

Significant impact of newly promulgated laws, administrative regulations, departmental
rules and industry policies on the industry in which the Company operates (continued)

On 29 March 2022, the General Office of the State Council issued the “14th Five-Year Plan for the Development of
Traditional Chinese Medicine” (the “Plan for Traditional Chinese Medicine"), which is the first five-year plan for the
development of traditional Chinese medicine issued by the General Office of the State Council since the founding of
new China, and an overall, strategic and supportive plan for the development of traditional Chinese medicine following
the “Outline of the Strategic Plan for the Development of Traditional Chinese Medicine (2016-2030)", the “Opinions
of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council on Promoting the Inheritance, Innovation and Development of
Traditional Chinese Medicine”, and the “Several Policies and Measures for Accelerating the Development of Traditional
Chinese Medicine with Distinctive Features”, as well as a programmatic document for implementing the decisions and
arrangements of the Communist Party of China (the “CPC") Central Committee and the State Council on traditional
Chinese medicine work and promoting the revitalization and development of traditional Chinese medicine during the
14th Five-Year Plan period. The Plan for Traditional Chinese Medicine integrates key areas such as medical treatment,
scientific research, industry, education, culture and international cooperation, gives full play to the diversified value
of traditional Chinese medicine, and sets out new ideas and key tasks for the high-quality development of traditional
Chinese medicine. A series of relevant policies demonstrate the government’s emphasis on the traditional Chinese
medicine industry and its confidence in the future development of the industry, and also bring more development
opportunities to related enterprises of traditional Chinese medicine.

On 25 May 2022, the General Office of the State Council issued the “Key Tasks for Further Reform of the Medical and
Health Care System in 2022" (the "Task"), which has listed 4 aspects and 21 key tasks, so as to speed up fostering
a new and orderly medical service and treatment pattern, further extend the experience gained from the medical
and health care reforms in Sanming city, improve the ability of public health services and promote the high-quality
development of medicine and health care. The overall requirements of the Task are to comprehensively promote the
construction of a healthy China, further promote the experience of medical reform from Sanming City, promote the
expansion and balanced distribution of high-quality medical resources, deepen the interconnected reform of medical
care, medical insurance, and medicine, continue to promote the transformation from focusing on medical treatment
to focusing on people’s health, and strive to address the difficulty and high cost of medical services. Other periodic
development requirements are also raised over the pharmaceutical industry.

In the "Catalogue of Drugs for National Basic Medical Insurance, Work-related Injury Insurance and Maternity
Insurance (2021)" published in December 2021 and coming into effect on 1 January 2022, a total of 74 drugs were
added to the catalogue, 11 drugs were removed from the catalogue, and 67 exclusive drugs not in the medical
insurance catalogue have been successfully negotiated, with an average price reduction of 61.71%. On 13 June
2022, the National Healthcare Security Administration released the “Work Plan for the Adjustment to 2022 Catalogue
of Drugs for National Basic Medical Insurance, Work-related Injury Insurance and Maternity Insurance” and related
documents for public comments, marking the official start of current round of adjustment to the national medical
insurance catalogue. This adjustment to the medical insurance catalogue fully reflects the national concern on
the drugs for rare diseases and children’s drugs, on the basis of continuing to support the drugs for SARS-CoV-2
pneumonia and the innovative drugs.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

During the Reporting Period, there was no material change in the principal businesses of the Group. The Group was
primarily engaged in the R&D, production and sale of pharmaceutical products, which covered drug preparation products,
APIs and intermediates as well as diagnostic reagents and equipment. Major products include drug preparation products
such as llaprazole (llaprazole Enteric-Coated Tablet and laprazole Sodium for Injection) (ZBZ (X LW EEH
NSEgT A EH M ER)), a series of Bismuth Potassium Citrate (BEIR1SL4(FMAELSISF)) products, Rabeprazole
Sodium Enteric-coated Capsules (BBfZ%4(E B WM 4hf5 A2 5E)), Weisanlian (Bismuth Potassium Citrate Tablets/
Tinidazole Tablets/Clarithromycin Tablets (4 =B(fMGEE SRR " BREM eI B EF)), Leuprorelin Acetate
Microspheres for Injection (B #&K(F 57 A BEEL 5o A Im AMREK)), Urofollitropin for Injection (BEERE (5T A RIEINAE
%)), Menotropins for Injection (24815 (57 FAFRIEME X)), Voriconazole for Injection (BEAREE(EET A IKIZEEML)),
Fluvoxamine Maleate Tablets (¥4 %(55 2RBE #UIK D BA ), Perospirone Hydrochloride Tablets (BRER T (28 Ba Uk 4 UC (&
F7)), Shenqi Fuzheng Injection (2 E$KIEJE5T/K), and Anti-viral Granules (FUEE F4L); APls and intermediates such
as Mevastatin (FEfXf5T), Acarbose (P& #E), Colistin Sulfate (Wi E&# B Z), Phenylalanine (KA & E), Vancomycin
Hydrochloride (BSF% & & & %), Daptomycin (ZEFEE %), Milbemycin Oxime (>KEE B f5) and Ceftriaxone Sodium (SE73
HRFA4R); and diagnostic reagents such as Diagnostic Kit for IgM/IgG Antibody to Coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2) (Lateral Flow)
G BY TR 5 2(2019-nCoV) IgM/IgGH B8 4s B S B 2 (B2 88 €)%)), Rapid Test for Mycoplasma Pneumoniae IgM Antibody
(Lateral Flow) (ffi#¢ =7 [ B& IgM 71 B2 142 )8) S5 251 (2 88 %)) and Diagnostic Kit for Human Immunodeficiency Virus Antibody
(ELISA) (AR ERIE RSB 2 B A B 2 (B85 R & X))

In the first half of 2022, under the localized resurgence of COVID-19 pandemic and the stricter requlatory and access policies
over the industry in China, the Group has been adhering to the mission of “prioritizing the quality of life of the patients” and
the vision of “becoming a leader in the pharmaceutical industry”, with a focus on the steady operation and development
layout of its core business of innovating new drugs. In operational management, the Company consistently utilized its
advantages in diversified business structure and operational management, actively responded to industry and market
challenges, further improved the operational management and R&D efficiency, made greater efforts in digital transformation,
and continued to enhance the competitive advantages of its products in the various aspects such as products’ clinical evidence,
quality, costs and market share, thereby realizing the stability and growth in revenue from the principal businesses, while
further consolidating the foundation and capabilities for the sustainability of our enterprise.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded an operating income of RMB6,302.57 million, representing an increase
of 1.08% as compared with RMB6,235.53 million in the Same Period Last Year; a net profit attributable to Shareholders
of the Company of RMB1,017.55 million, representing a decrease of 4.23% as compared with RMB1,062.48 million in the
Same Period Last Year. Excluding extraordinary gains and losses, the Company's net profit attributable to its Shareholders
generated from its principal businesses in the first-half of 2022 was RMB1,046.42 million, representing an increase of 13.73%
as compared with RMB920.07 million in the Same Period Last Year.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the progress of the major tasks in various business segments of the Group was set out as follows:

(1) Chemical drug preparation products

During the Reporting Period, the Group realized sales revenue of RMB3,673.73 million from chemical drug preparation
products, representing a period-to-period decrease of 1.52% and accounting for 58.88% of the Group's income from principal
businesses for the Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's marketing team actively implemented sales arrangements and intensified the
promotion of products and brands: (i) terminal resources were focused, terminal assessment on KA (Key Account) hospitals,
Class 3 hospitals and key Class 2 hospitals was the key assessment direction, and assessment of coverage rate and
accomplishment rate of core products was enhanced. During the Reporting Period, the hospital coverage rate of key products
such as llaprazole series products (3 & H7 M 251 Z &) and Fluvoxamine Maleate Tablets (55 2R E& @ {K > BA /) continued
to increase; (i) evidence-based and academic-driven marketing were insisted, and promotion activities were carried out in
the hospitals which are below accomplishment rate assessment and in benchmark hospitals. Under the pandemic, the online
promotion activities which interconnected offline activities were actively carried out across the country, the digital marketing
was actively promoted, and the clinical and pharmaco-economics research of key products in the post-launch stage were
proceeded in an orderly manner; (iii) the promotion of OTC products was strengthened, the online communication interaction
and the empowerment of chain pharmacies were carried out, which enhanced the Company's corporate brand image, and the
sales of OTC improved in the second quarter of 2022; (iv) followed-up on the national medical reform policies and measures
implemented in various local regions, and core work on market access such as medical insurance and tender invitation was
solidly completed; (v) in terms of international business layout, the access and promotion of products in the fields including
assisted reproduction, antifungal and gastroenterology in countries and regions such as Pakistan, Indonesia, Philippines,
Malaysia and Uzbekistan were strengthened.

The Company continued to pay attention to new molecules and cutting-edge technologies in the field of global new drug R&D,
made layout of innovative drugs and high-barrier complex preparations based on clinical value and differentiated prospect,
and focused on assisted reproduction, gastroenterology, psychiatry and neurology, anti-tumor and other fields. During the
Reporting Period, the key projects of chemical drug preparations under research were effectively advanced and will soon
enter the stage of intensive harvesting. Important progressive developments were as follows:

High-barrier complex preparations including microspheres: Triptorelin Acetate Microspheres for Injection (57 FA B B i
L IHRHFIRER) (1-month sustained release) was in the stage of marketing authorization review; Aripiprazole Microspheres
for Injection (JE 5T AR SZ UK MEAER) (1-month sustained release) has completed the phase | multiple-dose clinical trial
enrollment; Octreotide Acetate Microspheres for Injection (357 FA &S B B8 i AR AEK) (1-month sustained release) and
Leuprorelin Acetate Microspheres for Injection (E57 B Ef B& == PN I MR{HER) (3-month sustained release) have started BE
pre-test.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(1) Chemical drug preparation products (continued)

Polypeptide preparations: Semaglutide Injection (F]ZE4& B AREET/&) was submitted for clinical application, which has
been accepted by CDE and was under review.

Other key projects under research: Cetrorelix Acetate for Injection (7 &F FA Bt B4 75 # 55 72) submitted a reply to the defect
letter for the registration application in the United States; Blonanserin Tablets (i ® @#K ) and Lurasidone Hydrochloride
Tablets (B B4 & 1 FafR /) have applied for production; the new indication of Ilaprazole Sodium for Injection (57X
I M 87) completed the phase Il clinical trial, and submitted application materials.

Key projects for consistency evaluation: Alanyl Glutamine Injection (N & B AR BLAZ EST/K), Clarithromycin Tablets (52
W& 2 Fr) and Valsartan Capsules (#8718 2 €) were approved.

In respect of production and quality management, the Company continued to improve product delivery capabilities and
production efficiency. Meanwhile, the Company has established a quality system and a pharmacovigilance system for the
entire product life cycle (product R&D, product production and product operation) to continuously improve the level of quality
management. During the Reporting Period, the quality supervision of production and scientific research adopted a series
of management models such as reqular follow-up audits, special audits, extended checks and random checks, to expand
the scope and depth of inspections. The MAH (Drug Marketing Authorization Holder) system was running smoothly. The
Company (holder of B certificate) formulated 63 quality management and pharmacovigilance management system documents,
intervening from the product R&D stage, to carry out quality management for the drug life cycle, and gradually revised and
improved the documents during the implementation process. 15 quality management documents and 17 pharmacovigilance
management documents were revised during the Reporting Period. In addition, during the Reporting Period, in order to
strengthen the identification and assessment of drug risks of products under research, the Company established a pre-market
pharmacovigilance headquarters. In general, the quality management system of the Group was further optimized, and the
systematic environmental protection and safety risk management were further improved. The overall quality of production and
operation was good, without the occurrence of any major quality and safety incidents, environmental protection incidents,
safety incidents and occupational health incidents.

During the Reporting Period, in terms of international registration, 2 of the chemical drug preparation products of the Group
were approved for registration in overseas markets (Valacyclovir Hydrochloride Tablet (E&F& % & & & ) and Penciclovir
cream ("E &S EFLE)). As at 30 June 2022, a total of 17 chemical drug preparation products of the Group completed 22
registrations in various overseas countries/regions.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(2) Biologics

In 2022, the global COVID-19 pandemic continued to spread. During the Reporting Period, LivzonBio, a subsidiary of the
Company, focused on promoting the conditional market launch application of Recombinant SARS-CoV-2 Fusion Protein
Vaccine (BEAEFT A TR FESRAEEHARHE) ("V-01"), and completed the phase IIl clinical principal analysis report of the
sequential immunization and primary vaccination and the submission of application materials to CDE in February 2022 and
May 2022, respectively. At the same time, it actively promoted the domestic EUA (Emergency Use Authorization) application.
In respect of overseas registration, the EUA materials for Philippines, Indonesia and Malaysia were submitted, and the
registration materials for export of stock solution to Pakistan were submitted; the EUL (Emergency Use Listing) application
of V-01 was under active communication with WHO. In addition, according to the global trend of COVID-19 pandemic and
the prevalence of COVID-19 variants, LivzonBio has developed a variety of variant vaccines and related bivalent vaccines and
carried out relevant studies on booster/sequential immunization on animals and clinical trials. In order to meet the future
market demand upon the approval of emergency use or the market launch of V-01, LivzonBio has completed the construction
of the third preparation workshop (2-person and 10-person production line) on the basis of the existing 1 stock solution
production line and 2 preparation production lines.

On the other hand, LivzonBio continued to focus on new molecules, new targets and differentiated molecular designs in the
fields of oncology, autoimmune diseases and assisted reproduction. During the Reporting Period, the following projects of
biologics have achieved phase progress in R&D: Recombinant Human Choriogonadotropin alfa for Injection (E5f FBE 4 A
R 2) was approved for market launch in 2021 as the first domestic generic drug and has started sales, and at the same
time, its work related to overseas registration was being promoted, and applications for overseas registration in Uzbekistan,
Tajikistan and Nigeria were submitted; the application for BLA (Biologic License Application) of Tocilizumab Solution for
Injection (FEEREHL)EE1/&K) (i.e. Recombinant Humanized Anti-human IL-6R Monoclonal Antibody Solution for Injection
(B AR AIL-6REE R FE LT 51K)) was filed and was under review by CDE. It has successfully passed the on-
site inspection of drug registration and production and received the registration inspection qualification report. Meanwhile,
its WHO's PQ (Pre-qualification) work was promoted actively; Recombinant Anti-human IL-17A/F Humanized Monoclonal
Antibody Injection (BA4BHTAIL-17A/F AJR{E B 52 EHLEE )£ 517R) has completed the phase Ib clinical interim analysis for
psoriasis indications. The high, medium and low dose groups demonstrated good efficacy and safety. The phase Il clinical
subjects have been enrolled, and the efficacy and safety were under observation. In addition to advancing projects at the
clinical stage, LivzonBio was also conducting R&D in the fields of bispecific antibodies and cell therapy, etc.

With the successive approvals for market launch of its products, LivzonBio has enriched relevant teams such as

pharmacovigilance, production quality and production-sales connection, and continuously improved its overall operational
capabilities and adapted to future commercialization needs.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(3) APIs and intermediates

During the Reporting Period, the API business department of the Company adhered to the guiding philosophy of “safeguarding
product safety and environmental protection, ensuring quality, reducing costs and grabbing the market”, and continued to
strengthen EHS, quality, R&D, production, sales and other efforts. During the Reporting Period, the Group realized sales
revenue of RMB1,729.34 million from APIs and intermediate products, representing a period-to-period increase of 18.26%,
and accounting for 27.72% of the Group's income from principal businesses for the Period.

In respect of marketing, during the Reporting Period, the Group’s API products maintained a good growth momentum in
terms of sales and profit margins, especially the high-end antibiotic products and high-end pet drug products recorded strong
growth in overseas market share. Daptomycin (3£ E 2), Milbemycin Oxime (K& B A7) and Moxidectin (£ & 52 T ) have
prominent advantages in long-term cooperation with major international pharmaceutical companies, and the proportion of
procurement has increased year by year. The Group is also increasingly becoming the preferred strategic partner of leading
enterprises in the global pharmaceutical industry. Meanwhile, the cephalosporin series products also seized the opportunity
of domestic consistency evaluation, bucked the trend, and created the best results in history with both the quantity and
price rising.

In respect of R&D, during the Reporting Period, the Group focused on promoting the R&D of high-end pet drugs and animal
health drugs, and the key tasks completed were as follows: (i) Fluralaner (%25 1. 49) and Afoxolaner (Fi &L RZ4), the high-
end pet drugs, have carried out industrialized production verification and registration application; (ii) continued to carry out
the registration application of 24 animal health products including Moxidectin (& 52 1), a spray preparation for large
animals, and the introduction of external new products; (iii) Milbemycin Oxime (>K 3 B f5) was granted for veterinary drug
approval number in China.

During the Reporting Period, the API business department continued to lay a solid foundation for environmental protection
and safety, improved the quality research of existing products and optimized production processes. While promoting
normalization of GMP, each of our production enterprises were actively promoting international registration certification:
during the Reporting Period, 5 products were registered internationally which mainly include: Daptomycin (ZZ 5 &) was
approved for registration in Taiwan, China; Moxidectin (& 52 T ) was approved for registration in Europe; Tobramycin
(5 B %) was approved for registration in South Korea; Vancomycin Hydrochloride Precipitation Powder (B8 & 5 S =
LB ) was approved for registration in United Kingdom; Acarbose (P <2 #%) was approved for registration in Europe.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's APIs have obtained 4 certificates for international certification, including 1 EU GMP
certificate (Teicoplanin (3% H7 %) and Vancomycin Hydrochloride (B8 & & B X)), 2 CEP certificates (Moxidectin (£ &
%5 7) CEP certificate and Acarbose (FIJ-R)&#&) CEP certificate, respectively) and 1 Japanese site accreditation certificate
for Moxidectin (& 72 T') veterinary drug.

As at 30 June 2022, a total of 62 API products of the Group completed 176 registrations in 61 countries/regions, of which,
a total of 31 API products of the Group completed 125 registrations in 60 overseas countries/regions, and a total of 49 API
products of the Group completed registrations in the domestic market. As at 30 June 2022, 17 of the Group's API varieties
passed on-site inspections for international certification, and the Group's APIs obtained 49 certificates of international
certification within the validity period (of which 9 varieties passed FDA on-site inspections and 14 varieties obtained CEP
certificates) and 2 qualification certificates.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(4) Traditional Chinese medicine preparations

During the Reporting Period, the traditional Chinese medicine preparation products of the Group realized sales revenue of
RMB490.62 million, representing a period-to-period decrease of 19.60%, accounting for 7.86% of the Group's income from
principal businesses for the Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group deeply cultivated end markets such as grade hospitals, primary medical institutions and
retail pharmacies, and continued to strengthen academic support for key products and research on clinical data evidence. The
Group has improved the clinical evidence-based medical research evidence of Shengi Fuzheng Injection (2 E#k IE/E5TK),
strengthened its academic promotion, focused on the field of oncology treatment, and expanded its coverage to county-level
medical institutions, resulting in a significant increase in sales revenue from grassroots level. Anti-viral Granules (J17% 25 %8
#I) was selected into the Expert Consensus on the Prevention and Treatment of New Coronavirus with Proprietary Chinese
Medicines (AP X 24556 ¥ 7Y B AR R S I A B R 2L 34), which is suitable for patients with mild or ordinary COVID-19
pneumonia, helping to prevent and control the pandemic.

In respect of R&D, based on diseases on which traditional Chinese medicines (“TCM") have treatment advantages and clinical
position of exclusive varieties, the Group focused on promoting the R&D progress of new projects such as “class 3.1 compound
new drugs of famous ancient classical TCM (&5 X 4R BR2E 753 148 70 2548 5 37 %%)", "class 3.2 new Chinese medicines with
improved dosage forms (7 2k B 73 28 AR BE37%%)" and “class 1.1 new drugs of in-hospital TCM preparations (Pt A &2
B 221 1 £83%7%%)", and the layout of new products. During the Reporting Period, there were a total of 8 projects under
research for new TCM, among which, SXSHL gel, a new improved TCM, had completed the preclinical experiment research,
and its application materials were under preparation and collation. TGDX granules, a class 1.1 new TCM, had completed

the exploratory clinical trial and was under statistical analysis.

In addition, the Group has also successfully advanced the construction of medicinal materials plantation base of key marketed
products, filing of changes in technical process and research work such as technological advancement.

(5) Diagnostic reagents and equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group's diagnostic reagents and equipment realized sales revenue of RMB346.04 million,
representing a period-to-period decrease of 11.43%, accounting for 5.55% of the Group's income from principal businesses
for the Period.

In the first half of 2022, Livzon Diagnostics will focus on market promotion and establishment of regional benchmarking
customers for product lines including self-immune multiple and nucleic acid test for infectious diseases. During the Reporting
Period, Livzon Diagnostics has successively developed a number of regional benchmarking customers for such products, and
won the bids of multiple provincial and ministerial hospitals with great academic influence, laying a sound foundation for
sales in the second half of 2022. In addition, the sales of Livzon Diagnostic’s respiratory products increased significantly
despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time, Livzon Rapid Test for 2019-nCoV Antigen (Lateral Flow) (
FRE AR EZ(2019-nCoV) L RBBI BB & (FLBIE)) of Livzon Diagnostic was successfully approved for market launch
in April 2022 and gained a certain amount of market sales, contributing the “Power of Livzon” in the fight against the
COVID-19 pandemic.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(5) Diagnostic reagents and equipment (continued)

During the Reporting Period, Livzon Diagnostics continued to focus on the strategic disease areas and the layout of the
departments to deepen its business and carried out parallel development of multi-disease detection reagents based on its
mature product lines. In March 2022, Livzon Diagnostics actively responded to the national pandemic prevention and control
policy and promptly initiated the registration of Livzon Rapid Test for 2019-nCoV Antigen (Lateral Flow) GTEVE AR &
(2019-nCoV)#L R i B B & (FLB X)), which was successfully approved for market launch in April 2022. Diagnostic Kit
for Immunoglobulin G4 (Chemiluminescence Immunoassay) (%5 5k 2 A G4 R FE A B & ({L B35 ¢ %)) and its supporting
calibrators and quality control products obtained registration certificates in June 2022. During the Reporting Period, six
projects, including Livzon Rapid Test for 2019-nCoV Antigen (Lateral Flow) (¥T% & Ak 7% & (2019-nCoV) It R A8 Bl &2
& (3LB%)) and Nucleic Acid Test Kit for Monkeypox Virus (Real-time PCR) (&1 75 25 4% & 46 B 550 ) & (PCR- 28 Y R &1
%)), successively obtained overseas CE certificates.

(6) Commercial development and functional management

While enhancing independent innovation continuously, the Company continued to deepen collaborative development and
licensing introduction, and connected with global advantageous resources and forefront technologies to strengthen the
Company's capabilities in commercialization and integration. During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved phase progress
in BD, striving to realize product iteration and technology platform construction at a fast pace but in a stable manner;
strengthened the collaborative development and licensing introduction of varieties in core areas, and introduced via license
a number of projects in the psychiatry field and gastroenterology field, which have expanded the Group's R&D pipelines;
continued to build innovative technology platforms, and advanced the establishment of the Company's computational
chemistry platform and small molecule innovative drug platform; further collaborated with the R&D team to assist the R&D
team in building a full-cycle differentiated innovative product pipeline from a global perspective, and meanwhile, strengthened
capabilities in overseas clinical trials and drug registration application to expand overseas markets continuously and promote
the internationalization of preparation products actively, including the EUA application and registration, technology transfer
and commercialization plan of V-01 (Recombinant SARS-CoV-2 Fusion Protein Vaccine (BE4EF A TR B SHAEAR
i) project in multiple overseas countries during the Reporting Period.

The key tasks of the functional management of the Company were set out as follows: first, further strengthened the system
construction and implementation of standardized operation and risk control, and formulated the Patent Work Process and
Trademark Management System of Livzon and the Compliance Management Standards for Imported Materials; second, put
forward higher requirements and goals for the sustainability efforts, promulgated the assessment rules for ESG indicators and
actively fulfilled the social responsibilities; third, further improved the organizational structure and institutional settings of the
Company and some of its subsidiaries, resulting in clearer organizational responsibilities and more optimized processes; fourth,
introduced first-class talents from around the world continuously while intensifying the efforts in digging, cultivating and
promoting young talents internally. During the Reporting Period, the Company introduced talents at all levels for departments
of early discovery, pharmaceutical research, clinical medicine, domestic and overseas BD and quality management, and a
young, professional and globalized workforce had been built; fifth, by conscientiously taking normalized prevention and
control measures for COVID-19 pandemic, the Company proactively coordinated the pandemic prevention and control and
production and operation work, and conducted weekly inspections on pandemic prevention and control. At the same time,
the Company actively responded to the government’s anti-pandemic campaign, and organized multiple nucleic acid tests in
the industrial park in Zhuhai, the headquarters of the Company.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

lll. ANALYSIS OF CORE COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

The Group adheres to the direction of three major strategies of “talent strategy, product strategy and market strategy” and
upholds the mission of prioritizing the quality of life of its patients with the goal of becoming a leading pharmaceutical
enterprise within the industry. The Group continuously improved the efficiency of management control and governance
standards, accelerated the steady progress in R&D and enhanced marketing management continuously, thereby achieving
stable growth in the performance results. During the Reporting Period, the Group's core competitive strengths were further
consolidated and enhanced, which were primarily reflected in the following aspects:

(1)  Strong R&D capabilities and global R&D vision

The Group has strong R&D capabilities and global R&D vision in areas such as chemical and traditional Chinese medicine
preparation products, biologics and diagnostic reagents, and has established specialised technology platforms for R&D of
sustained release microspheres and R&D of biologics with core leading R&D talents. By proactively introducing domestic and
foreign experts and innovative talents, constantly increasing R&D investments, developing overseas strategic alliances, and
focusing on areas of assisted reproduction, gastroenterology, psychiatry and neurology and tumor immunity, the Group has
established a clear and diverse R&D pipeline for products, which further enhanced the R&D competitiveness of the Group.

(2) Diversified product mix and business layout

The products of the Group cover a number of pharmaceutical sub-sectors such as drug preparation products, APls and
intermediates, diagnostic reagents and equipment, and the Group has established an advantageous market position in a
number of therapeutic field such as assisted reproduction, gastroenterology, psychiatry, neurology and tumor immunity.
Currently, the Company further focuses on innovative drug and high-barrier complex drug preparation. Under the policy of
the consistency evaluation and minimum procurement commitment, the Group enjoys unique advantage in terms of APIs
and will continue to increase its efforts to integrate API and drug preparation products.

(3) Comprehensive marketing system and professional marketing team

The Group refined its management on marketing activities by improving the establishment of its marketing system, optimizing
its incentive assessment mechanism and continuously strengthening outlet promotion strategies such as evidence marketing
and academic marketing. Through optimization of resources allocation, a professional marketing team specialized in, among
others, drug preparation products (including prescription medicines and non-prescription medicines), diagnostic reagents
and APIs has been gradually established to form a more comprehensive marketing system. The Group has nearly 10,000
staff members serving in its marketing management teams for various business segments and providing professional sales
services to the Group. The Group's marketing network spreads across the PRC and has expanded into relevant overseas
countries and regions, covering end-users such as leading medical institutions, chain drugstores, disease control centres,
health authorities and pharmaceutical enterprises.

(4) Mature quality management system

The Group has established a comprehensive quality management system covering the business processes of production,
scientific research and sales of its products. During the Reporting Period, the Group made continuous efforts to improve its
quality management, while the effective overall management of production and operating quality of the Group and its sound
quality management system has ensured the safety and stability of the Group's products in various fields, further enhancing
the market competitiveness of the Group's products.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES
1. Summary

Whether it is the same as that disclosed in principal businesses of the Company during the
Reporting Period

v Yes [ No

Please refer to the “Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD" in Section Il of the
Report for relevant information.

2. The Future Development and Plans Disclosed in Published Documents Such As
Prospectus, Offering Circular and Asset Restructuring Report Continued Until the
Reporting Period

L] Applicable v Not applicable

None of the future development and plans which continued until the Reporting Period were disclosed in published documents
such as prospectus, offering circular and asset restructuring report.

3. Segment Information

The Group has one single operating segment in the PRC, i.e. pharmaceutical manufacturing. Accordingly, no operating
segment information of the Group is presented.

4. Income and Costs

(1) Composition of income from principal businesses

Unit: RMB
Period Previous Period
Asa As a
percentage percentage
of income of income
from from
principal principal  Period-to-period
Amount  business Amount business change
Total income from principal business 6,239,730,885.56 (LOKORZS  6,193,787,467.88  100.00% 0.74%
By industry
Pharmaceutical manufacturing industry 6,239,730,885.56 RIS  6,193,787,467.88  100.00% 0.74%
By Product
Chemical drug preparation products  Gastroenterology products 1,780,511,747.98 PRIV 1,938,695,952.94 3130% -8.16%
Gonadotropic hormone products ISR EEL T SIETINI LRCP) AT 1,258,194,562.14 20.31% 6.82%
Psychiatry products 263,996,008.51 LWEL) 193,747,491.48 3.13% 36.26%
Anti-infection products 194,652,582.42 3.12% 195,132,592.63 3.15% -0.25%
Other products 90,516,048.17 1.45% 144,763,247.88 2.34% -37.47%
APl and intermediate products 1,729,342,519.18 PRV 146231192398 23.61% 18.26%
Traditional Chinese medicine preparation products 490,619,490.51 7.86% 610,258,117.05 9.85% -19.60%
Diagnostic reagent and equipment products 346,042,443.87 5.55% 390,683,579.78 6.31% -11.43%
By region
Domestic 5,384,558,203.78 CWERN  5,407,801,582.14 87.31% -0.43%
Overseas 855,172,681.78 13.711% 785,985,885.74 12.69% 8.80%
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES (continued)
4, Income and Costs (continued)

(2) Industries, products or regions representing over 10% of operating income or operating
profit of the Company

Unit: RMB
Period-to-period  Period-to-period
Income from Costs of Gross change inincome  change in costs  Period-to-period
principal principal profit from principal of principal  change in gross
businesses businesses margin businesses businesses  profit margin
By industry
Pharmaceutical manufacturing ~ 6,239,730,885.56 2,147,073,871.95 65.59% 0.74% 2.67%  Decreased by 0.65
industry percentage point
By Product
Chemical drug preparation 3,673,726,432.00 768,969,064.16 79.07% -1.52% 0.86%  Decreased by 0.49
products percentage point
APl and intermediate products  1,729,342,519.18 1,076,729,669.00 37.74% 18.26% 6.40%  Increased by 6.94
percentage points
Traditional Chinese medicine 490,619,490.51 137,318,575.64 72.01% -19.60% -14.18%  Decreased by 1.77
preparation products percentage points
Diagnostic reagent and 346,042,443.87 164,056,563.15 52.59% -11.43% 454%  Decreased by 7.24
equipment products percentage points
By region
Domestic 5,384,558,203.78 1,689,043,069.92 68.63% -0.43% 5.73%  Decreased by 1.83
percentage points
Overseas 855,172,681.78 458,030,802.03 46.44% 8.80% -1.25%  Increased by 9.27

percentage points

With adjusted basis of data statistics of the principal businesses of the Company during the
Reporting Period, data of the principal businesses of the Company in the latest period after
adjustment on year-end basis

L] Applicable v Not applicable

(3) Income from principal businesses by region

Unit: RMB

Amount for the Period Amount for the Previous Period
Income from Costs of Income from Costs of
principal principal principal principal
Region businesses businesses businesses businesses
Domestic 5,384,558,203.78 1,689,043,069.92 5,407,801,582.14 1,597,504,695.96
Overseas 855,172,681.78 458,030,802.03 785,985,885.74 493,809,779.51
Total 6,239,730,885.56 2,147,073,871.95 6,193,787,467.88 2,091,314,475.47
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES (continued)
4, Income and Costs (continued)
(4) Major customers and suppliers

During the Reporting Period, sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for 9.42% (Same Period Last Year:
8.72%) of income from principal businesses of the Group, while amount of purchases from the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 27.33% (Same Period Last Year: 27.61%) of the Group's total amount of purchases of
raw materials. The five largest customers have been customers of the Group for 13.2 years on average, and the five largest
suppliers have been suppliers of the Group for 14.8 years on average.

5. Expenses

During the Reporting Period, four types of expenses, including selling expenses, administrative expenses, R&D expenses and
finance expenses, incurred by the Group amounted to RMB2,717.46 million in aggregate, representing a period-to-period
decrease of RMB99.65 million or decreased by 3.54%, the details of which are set out in the following table:

Unit: RMB
Amount for Amount for Period-to-

Item the Period the Previous Period period change Reason for material changes

Selling expenses 1,903,575,926.16 2,045,170,075.55 -6.92%  No material changes.

Administrative 354,872,804.38 290,077,542.12 22.34%  No material changes.

expenses

R&D expenses 554,519,983.73 506,868,876.08 9.40% No material changes.

Finance expenses -95,511,146.51 -25,013,781.78 -281.83% Mainly due to an increase in
interest income from deposits
during the Period as compared
with the Previous Period.

Total 2,717,457,567.76 2,817,102,711.97 -3.54%

During the Reporting Period, the total income tax expenses were RMB205.07 million, representing a period-to-period increase
of RMB13.69 million or of 7.15%, which was mainly due to the increase in provision for income tax expenses according to
the operating results of the Company for the Period.

6. Investment in R&D
v Applicable [ Not applicable
During the Reporting Period, the Group's total expenditure relating to R&D amounted to approximately RMB639.16 million
(Previous Period: RMB545.28 million), representing a period-to-period increase of 17.22%, accounting for approximately

4.97% of the net assets attributable to Shareholders of the Company and approximately 10.14% (Previous Period: 8.74%)
of the Group's total operating income in the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, saved as described above, the details of the Group's R&D efforts in various business areas
were as follows:
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES (continued)
6. Investment in R&D (continued)
(1) Chemical drug preparations

High-barrier complex preparations including microspheres: there were a total of 7 projects under research, among which
1 project was under registration review for marketing authorization, 1 project was under the phase | clinical trial and 2
projects were under the BE trial. Triptorelin Acetate Microspheres for Injection (335 FH i Bk fh 3 3m AR 4K ER) (1-month
sustained release) had applied for marketing and completed the on-site inspection of research and production; Aripiprazole
Microspheres for Injection (7 51 FA P SZ UK M 3 BK) (1-month sustained release) was under the phase | multiple-dose clinical
trial; Octreotide Acetate Microspheres for Injection (33 57 FA B B B3 fh AR ER) (1-month sustained release) and Leuprorelin
Acetate Microspheres for Injection ((E 57 FAB& & 52 R A HXER) (3-month sustained release) had carried out the BE pre-
clinical trial; Alarelin Microspheres for Injection (JE 5T FA R & IHMAEER) (1-month sustained release) completed technological
magnification research and its clinical phase | ethics was under review; and Goserelin Acetate Sustained-release Implant
(BABA X & B AR I2HE ABI) had carried out the bridging test of pilot production.

Polypeptide drug preparations: Semaglutide Injection (R348 B BA)E51&R) submitted a clinical trial application, which was
accepted by CDE and was under review.

Other key projects under research: there were a total of 26 projects under research, among which 5 projects applied for
production and 4 projects were under clinical trials/BE studies. Cetrorelix Acetate for Injection (JE57 F3ESMEL 7o AR Im <)
submitted a reply to the defect letter for the registration application in the United States; Blonanserin Tablets (¥ g 24K
F) and Lurasidone Hydrochloride Tablets (& & % 7 79 R f7) have applied for production; the new indication of llaprazole
Sodium for Injection (JE5T A E R M 4%) completed the phase Il clinical trial, and submitted application materials; the
innovative anti-tumor drug LZ001 project received the notice of approval for clinical trial and was under the phase | clinical
trial; the application for clinical trials of Progesterone Injection (&= #& ) 57 %) was accepted by CDE.

Consistency evaluation: There were a total of 16 projects under research. The relevant materials of Cefodizime Sodium for
Injection (¥ 51 FA B8 f8 b = £/9) was submitted and was under review; the professional review of Bismuth Potassium Citrate
Capsules (M#4E: $ 3% 2 %) was completed, pending review conclusion; and Rabeprazole Sodium Enteric-coated Tablets
(B B M 45748 ) was under BE trial.

(2) Biologics

As at 30 June 2022, there were a total of 7 projects under research, of which 1 project had been marketed, 1 project had
applied for conditional market launch, 1 project had applied for BLA, 2 projects were in the phase Ib/Il clinical trials and 2
projects were in the phase | clinical trial.

Among which, Recombinant Human Choriogonadotropin alfa for Injection (57 E 4B A SR 14E2) was approved for
market launch in China in 2021, and was currently under overseas registration; V-01 had applied to the National COVID-19
Vaccine Special Class (B 2R #1787 1 5 3) for sequential emergency use, and a conditional market launch application was
submitted to the National Medical Products Administration, which were both under review; the BLA application of Tocilizumab
Solution for Injection (FEER B H1/E5T/R) was accepted by CDE and was under CDE review; Recombinant Humanized Anti-
PD-1 Monoclonal Antibody for Injection (¥ &1 F3 ZE 40 AJR{E41PD-128 72 fE #152) and Recombinant Anti-human IL-17A/F
Humanized Monoclonal Antibody Injection (E#HTAIL-17AF AJRIE B2 E AL T ET/R) were under the phase Ib/Il
clinical trials; Recombinant Tumor Enzyme Specific Interferon a-2b Fc Fusion for Injection (51 E/AEEEE 21T
# Z0-2b FcE2 A & H) and Recombinant Human Follitropin Alfa Solution for Injection (B 48 A {2 5088 & 51/&) were
under the phase I clinical trials.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IV. ANALYSIS OF PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES (continued)
6. Investment in R&D (continued)
(3) Diagnostic reagents and equipment

There were a total of 98 projects under research, of which 12 projects (including the projects under review) were in the
stage of clinical trials.

In regard to the R&D platform for reagents, 2 products including Livzon Rapid Test for 2019-nCoV Antigen (Lateral Flow)
FT AT AR EZ(2019-nCoV) LR A A 2 (FLB X)) and Diagnostic Kit for Immunoglobulin G4 (Chemiluminescence
Immunoassay) (&K% A G4BT A B2 (L B3 ¢ )K)) (IgG4) obtained registration certificates in China; 12 projects
including Rapid Test for Influenza A/B Antigen (Lateral Flow) (FF B! Z &Y B R i B A B & (B B2 £7K)), Diagnostic Kit
for Chlamydia Pneumoniae IgM Antibody (Fluorescence Immunochromatography) (Ffi 4 7% [ & IgM?fL SRR (5 e &
FE#T3%)), Passive Particle Agglutination Test for Detection of Antibodies to Treponema Pallidum (1525 42 5 28 971 2% 4% )8 58
B = (k5 %)) and Diagnostic Kit for Measurement of Antibodies to Mycoplasma Pneumonia (Passive Particle Agglutination)
(A& X R AR A Bl 2 (W R &£ 0%)) entered the stage of clinical trials; 9 projects including Diagnostic Kit for
IgM Antibody to Mycoplasma Pneumonia (Chemiluminescence Immunoassay) (7% 7 FREEf B IgMAR Rl A Bl & (L B2 3%
$¢3%)), Livzon Interferon-Gamma Release Assays (IGRA) Test Kit (Chemiluminescence Immunoassay) (4% 4% =% T4 2 I
TE A& (b2 5E%)), Three tests for ABO Blood Types (filtration assay) (ABOIM A =TH(}2 8 %)) and Four Tests for
Diabetes (% PR 7% PYTE) were under registration application, of which Three tests for ABO Blood Types (filtration assay) (ABO
M# =I5(;2 8 %)) and Diagnostic Kit for IgM Antibody to Mycoplasma Pneumonia (Chemiluminescence Immunoassay) (fi
KT REEHLES IgMAR R B & (L 2235 5% %)) were in the process of submitting supplementary materials for registration.
Another batch of projects were under the stage of clinical trials and implementation.

In regard to the equipment R&D platform, second generation model of irradiator (¥& F& /&) completed registration inspection
and entered the registration submission stage; Molecular all-in-one Machine (% F—82#) and Molecular POCT Project
(5 FPOCTIE H) entered the stage of prototype trial production.

V. ANALYSIS OF NON-PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES
v Applicable [J Not applicable

Unit: RMB
As a
percentage
of total
Item Amount profit Reason for occurrence Sustainability
Investment income 36,642,122.86 2.77% Mainly due to changes in profit and loss from No
investments in associates and income generated
from settlement of foreign exchange upon maturity
of forward foreign exchange contracts.
Gains or losses arising from -88,778,045.12 -6.71% Mainly due to fluctuations in the market value of No
changes in fair value subject securities investment held.
Asset impairment -27,233,126.37 -2.06% Mainly due to provision for diminution in value of No
inventories.
Non-operating income 3,398,795.40 0.26% Mainly due to income from disposal of scrap items. No
Non-operating expenditure 5,978,073.57 -0.45% Mainly due to donation expenditure and loss on No
retirement of fixed assets.
Other income 82,440,651.49 6.23% Mainly due to government subsidies received. Yes

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION 1l

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

1. Material Changes in Composition of Assets

Item

Monetary funds

Accounts receivables
Contract assets

Inventories

Investment properties
Long-term equity investments

End of the Reporting Period

Amount

9,232,850,780.02
2,167,129,953.93

1,813,541,411.62

1,082,707,361.85

Fixed assets 3,567,698,487.23
Construction in progress 853,041,996.94
Right-of-use assets 20,006,853.09
Short-term loans 1,607,775,000.02
Contract liabilities 55,383,313.65
Long-term loans 1,663,726,004.58
Leasing liabilities 8,426,983.84
2. Major Foreign Assets

[ Applicable v Not applicable

As a
percentage
of total
assets

40.25%
9.45%

1.91%
4.72%
15.55%
3.72%
0.09%
7.01%
0.24%
1.25%
0.04%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Unit: RMB
End of the Previous Year

Asa

percentage
of total  Changein  Reason for Material

Amount assets  proportion  changes

9,146,373,455.01 40.88% -0.63%  No material changes
1,951,898,111.20 8.72% 0.73%  No material changes
1,663,227,968.17 7.43% 0.48%  No material changes
1,064,968,250.00 4.76% -0.04%  No material changes
3,669,728,093.97 16.40% -0.85%  No material changes
554,575,587.48 2.48% 1.24%  No material changes
14,588,322.60 0.07% 0.02%  No material changes
2,043,048,023.71 9.13% -2.12%  No material changes
167,796,768.82 0.75% -0.51%  No material changes
636,780,252.78 2.85% 4.40%  No material changes
5,274,240.80 0.02% 0.02%  No material changes
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
3. Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: RMB
Gains or losses
arising from  Accumulated Amount

At the changes in changein  Impairment purchased  Amount sold At the
Beginning of fair value fair value provision during the  during the End of
Item the Period  for the Period in equity for the Period Period Period the Period

Financial assets
1. Financial assets held for trading (excluding 177,262,015.99  -77,505,338.13 - - - - 99,75,677.76

derivative financial assets)

2. Derivative financial assets 551133857 -5,461,473.01 - - - - 49,865.56
3. Other debt investments - - - - - - -
4, Other equity instrument investments 629,914544.37 - -1326,939.56 - 407,895.55 - 622,995,500.36
Subtotal of financial assets 81268789893  -82,966,811.24  -7,326,939.56 - 407,895.55 - 722,802,043.68
Investment properties = = = = = = =
Productive biological assets - - - - - - -
Others - - - - - - -
Total 81268789893 -82966,811.4  -7,326,939.56 - 407,895.55 - 72802,043.68
Financial liabilities 14330224 -5811,33.88 - - - - 59545312

Whether there were material changes in the measurement of major assets of the Company during
the Reporting Period

[JYes v No

4. Restrictions on Asset Entitlements as at the End of the Reporting Period

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The thirteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board of the Company considered and approved the “Resolution on
Conducting Bills Pooling Business”, pursuant to which it was agreed that the Company and its subsidiaries should collectively
share the cap for the bills pooling business amount of no more than RMB1.4 billion. The cap may be used on revolving
basis. As at the End of the Reporting Period, the balance of bills receivable pledged to the banks applied by the Group was
RMB264.1189 million. The balance of the actual deposits paid by the Company and its subsidiaries for the businesses such
as letters of guarantee was RMB0.9610 million.
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SECTION 1l

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

5. Material Changes in Consolidated Balance Sheet Items

Item

Financial assets held for trading
Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

Long-term receivables
Construction in progress

Right-of-use assets

Other non-current assets
Financial liabilities held for trading

Contract liabilities

Taxes and surcharge payables
Other current liabilities

Long-term loans
Leasing liabilities
Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

30 June 2022

99,806,543.32
38,498.84
23,372,109.79
82,574.69
853,041,996.94
20,006,853.09
283,041,731.19
5,954,536.12
55,383,313.65
321,942,558.56
3,911,435.31

1,663,726,004.58

8.,426,983.84

78,423,167.40

Reasons for the change of over 30% in the relevant data:

(1) It was mainly due to fluctuations in the market value of securities investment held.

(2) It was mainly due to recovery of financial leasing amount.

(3) It was mainly due to rebate of remaining VAT credit resulting in a reduction in remaining VAT credit.
(4) It was mainly due to recovery of financial leasing amount.

(5) It was mainly due to the investment of construction of new plants and workshops of subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Unit: RMB

31 December 2021 Change
182,773,354.56 -45.39%"
317,381.23 -87.87%%
57,624,626.16 -59.44%)
266,904.13 -69.06%"
554,575,587.48 53.82%"
14,588,322.60 37.14%©
444,352,845.12 -36.30%"7
143,302.24 4,055.23%®
167,796,768.82 -66.99%
160,385,251.99 100.73%"°
13,485,363.41 -70.99%""
636,780,252.78 161.27%"12
5,274,240.80 59.78%""
71,209,491.00 -100.00%"%
46,548,997.70 68.47%""
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Material Changes in Consolidated Balance Sheet Items (continued)

It was mainly due to the increase in lease contracts signed during the Period.

It was mainly due to rebate of remaining VAT credit resulting in a reduction in remaining VAT credit and the reduction
in prepayment amount of project and equipment.

It was mainly due to changes in forward foreign exchange contracts.

It was mainly due to part of the contract prepayment amount fulfilled the conditions for recognition during the Period
and transferred to revenue.

It was mainly due to the increase in enterprise income tax payable and individual income tax payable withheld as a
result of distribution of dividends.

It was mainly due to part of the contract prepayment amount fulfilled the conditions for recognition during the Period
and transferred to revenue, resulting in reduction in tax for items pending for settlement.

It was mainly due to a subsidiary’s adjustment of the debt structure by replacing short-term loans with long-term
loans during the Period.

It was mainly due to the increase in lease contracts signed during the Period and the increase in amount payable
under lease.

It was mainly due to the completion of cancellation of repurchased shares.

It was mainly due to fluctuations of exchange rates resulting in changes in the differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements in foreign currency.

Asset-liability ratio

The asset-liability ratios of the Group as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021 were calculated by dividing total liabilities
by total assets of the Group as at the respective dates. The asset-liability ratio of the Group increased from 36.03% as at
31 December 2021 to 39.02% as at 30 June 2022.
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SECTION 1

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

6. Material Changes in Consolidated Income Statement Items
Unit: RMB
Amount for Amount for Period-to-period
Item the Period the Previous Period change
Finance expenses -95,511,146.51 -25,013,781.78 -281.83%"
Gains from changes in fair value -88,778,045.12 34,795,898.95 -355.14%@
Credit impairment loss -3,438,379.56 -8,579,230.48 59.92%®
Gains from disposal of assets -510,518.91 317,121.46 -260.99%“
Other comprehensive income after taxation 33,075,827.89 -147,548,852.00 122.42%%
Reasons for period-to-period change of over 30% in the relevant data:
) It was mainly due to interest income from deposits during the Period increased when compared with the Previous
Period.
(2) It was mainly due to fluctuations in the market value of securities investment held.

(3) It was mainly due to recovery of receivables with longer age during the Period and reversed the provisions for expected

credit losses made in the Previous Period.

(4) It was mainly due to losses incurred on disposal of fixed assets during the Period.

(5) It was mainly due to the disposal of other equity instrument investments during the Previous Period resulting in the
transfer of other comprehensive income recognized in the previous period to retained earnings.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
7. Material Changes in Consolidated Cash Flow Items
Unit: RMB
Amount for Amount for Period-to-period
Item the Period the Previous Period change
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,426,385,813.18 674,910,992.08 111.34%0
Subtotal of cash inflow from investing 70,579,257.96 178,534,495.83 -60.47%%
activities
Subtotal of cash outflow from investing 633,232,128.79 1,229,752,741.51 -48.51%"
activities
Net cash flow from investing activities -562,652,870.83 -1,051,218,245.68 46.48%"“
Subtotal of cash inflow from 2,543,792,303.35 1,912,145,884.90 33.03%"
financing activities
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on 64,098,771.69 -22,054,962.00 390.63%©
cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 70,402,813.09 -1,368,650,781.52 105.14%7

Reasons for period-to-period change of over 30% in the relevant data:

(M

(7)

It was mainly due to the combined effect of an increase in sales receipts and a decrease in payment of marketing
promotion expenses during the Period.

It was mainly due to the recovery of investment amount in the Previous Period.

It was mainly due to the payment of consideration for acquisition of equity interest in Tianjin Tongrentang Group
Co., Ltd. (KRR EEBE XD AR A7) in the Previous Period.

It was mainly due to the payment of consideration for acquisition of equity interest in Tianjin Tongrentang Group
Co., Ltd. (REZRIZ=HE£E D BBR A F]) in the Previous Period.

It was mainly due to new loans during the Period.

It was mainly due to changes in foreign exchange rates resulting in an increase in exchange gains from foreign
currency funds held.

[t was mainly due to the increase in cash generated from ordinary operating activities of the Company and the
decrease in external investment during the Period when compared with the Previous Period.

Reasons for material differences between the net cash flow from operating activities of the
Company during the Reporting Period and the net profit for the Reporting Period

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

8. Material Changes in the Composition or Sources of Profit of the Company During
the Reporting Period

[J Applicable v Not applicable
There were no material changes in the composition or sources of profit of the Company during the Reporting Period.

9. Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 30 June 2022, the Group's monetary funds amounted to RMB9,232.85 million (31 December 2021: RMB9,146.37
million), which arose primarily from operating income of the Company, which was used primarily for daily operation and
investment activities of the Company as well as distribution of dividends.

Financial policy and objectives: The Group has a comprehensive and prudent financial management system in place with the
objectives to ensure the security of corporate funds, provide support for production operation and business development,
reasonably increase the use rate of the Group's funds and realize the preservation and appreciation of funds.

During the Reporting Period, the credit facilities that may be applied for with approval from the Board and the general
meeting of the Company amounted to RMB25,525.00 million and the actual amount of credit applied to the banks for use
amounted to RMB4,264.00 million.

Unit: RMB
End of the Period (30 June 2022) End of the Previous Year (31 December 2021)
Amount in Amount in
Item foreign currency Translation rate  Amount in RMB foreign currency Translation rate Amount in RMB
Cash on hand: - - 159,141.68 - - 194,319.63
—RMB - - 143,371.34 = = 178,450.45
—=UsD 700.00 6.7114 4,697.98 700.00 6.3757 4,462.99
—Euro 1,579.87 7.0084 11,072.36 1,579.87 1.2197 11,406.19
Bank deposits: - 9,135,908,635.26 S - 9,002,550,448.00
—RMB - 8,251,077,345.23 = - 8,049,009,679.75
—HKD 5,697,147.26 0.85519 4,872,143.36 3,689,174.59 0.8176 3,016,269.14
-UsD 129,702,207.12 6.7114  870,483,392.86 148,446,729.16 6.3757 946,451,811.10
—Japanese Yen 97,062,652.00 0.049136 4,769,270.46 43,429,022.00 0.055415 2,406,619.26
—Euro 75,451.07 7.0084 528,791.28 75,451.09 1.2197 544,734.23
—MoP 5,036,397.92 0.8295 4,177,692.07 1,412,971.92 0.7936 1,121,334.52
Interest receivables on bank - 36,177,013.85 - - 19,969,652.77
deposits

Other monetary funds: - 96,783,003.08 - - 143,628,687.38
RMB - 1,895,157.24 = = 2,134,278.90
HKD 4,410,571.09 0.85519 3,771,876.29 67,295,920.52 0.8176 55,021,144.62
Usb 13,576,298.47 6.7114 91,115,969.55 13,562,944.28 6.3757 86,473,263.86
Total - 9,232,850,780.02 = - 914637345501
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

9. Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As at 30 June 2022, the balance of the Group's borrowings amounted to RMB3,271.50 million (31 December 2021:
RMB2,679.83 million), accounting for 14.26% of total assets (31 December 2021: 11.98%), of which the balance of short-
term loans due within one year amounted to RMB1,607.78 million (31 December 2021: RMB2,043.05 million), accounting
for 7.01% of the total assets (31 December 2021: 9.13%) and the balance of long-term loans due over one year amounted
to RMB1,663.73 million (31 December 2021: RMB636.78 million), accounting for 7.25% of the total assets (31 December
2021: 2.85%). During the Reporting Period, the Group's repayment of bank borrowings amounted to RMB1,933.80 million.
There was no distinct seasonal demand for each of the above borrowings.

10. Capital Structure

The Group's capital comprises Shareholders’ equity and liabilities. As at 30 June 2022, Shareholders’ equity amounted to
RMB13,986.83 million, total liabilities amounted to RMB8,950.90 million and total assets amounted to RMB22,937.73
million. In particular, the Group's current liabilities amounted to RMB6,751.51 million (31 December 2021: RMB6,925.07
million), representing a decrease of 2.51% as compared with that at the End of the Previous Year; total non-current
liabilities amounted to RMB2,199.39 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,135.82 million), representing an increase of
93.64% as compared with that at the End of the Previous Year. During the Reporting Period, repayment of debt amounted
to RMB1,933.80 million (Repayment of debt in the Previous Period was RMB722.58 million).

As at the End of the Reporting Period, equity attributable to Shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB12,866.92
million (31 December 2021: RMB13,003.76 million), representing a decrease of 1.05% as compared with that at the End
of the Previous Year. Minority interests amounted to RMB1,119.91 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,307.26 million),
representing a decrease of 14.33% as compared with that at the End of the Previous Year.

11. Capital Commitments

Unit: RMB

Balance at Balance at

Capital commitments contracted but not recognized in the the End of the Beginning of
financial statements the Period the Period
Commitments for purchase and construction of long-term assets 463,719,335.87 569,039,017.10
Commitments for external investment 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00
Commitments for R&D 264,463,619.59 309,313,880.64
Total 736,182,955.46 886,352,897.74

12. Interest Rate

As at 30 June 2022, the aggregate interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounted to RMB3,263.73 million (31
December 2021: RMB2,677.08 million). The interest rate structure: RMB1,525.87 million bore interest at a floating interest
rate and RMB1,737.86 million bore interest at a fixed annualized interest rate of 3.16% per annum.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
13. Maturity Analysis of Outstanding Liabilities

Unit: RMB in millions
[NV P 0P 31 December 2021

Within one year 2,774.09 3,069.67
1-2 years - =

2-5 years 1,663.73 636.78
Over 5 years - _

Total 4,437.82 3,706.45

14. Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratios as at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021 were calculated by dividing total liabilities by Shareholders’
equity of the Group as at the respective dates. The gearing ratio of the Group increased from 25.90% as at 31 December
2021 to 31.73% as at 30 June 2022.

15. Interest Expenses and Capitalisation

Unit: RMB

Period Previous Period

Interest expensesoe 47,426,938.27 36,051,011.53
Capitalised interest - -
Total interest expenses 47,426,938.27 36,051,011.53

Note: Interest expenses are mainly due to bank borrowings.

16. Foreign Exchange Risks

Details of foreign exchange risks of the Group are set out in “Note VIII. RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”
to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises as set
out in the Report. As RMB is the major functional currency of the Company, in case of sales, purchases and investment/
financing businesses which are not settled in RMB, corresponding foreign exchange exposures may arise. With “prevention
and control of risk and locking in profit” as its management goal, the Company has established the “Management System
for Foreign Exchange Risk”, which requires a certain hedging ratio, to minimize the impact arising from fluctuations of
exchange rates on the business of the Company by monitoring and controlling its foreign exchange risks through the use
of foreign exchange financial derivatives.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
17. Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

18. Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2022, the assets of the Company subject to pledge were as follows:

30 June 2022
(278 Reason for being subject to restriction

Assets pledged:

Bills receivable LR REFEEEREE Pledged bills receivable for the bill pool
business

Other monetary funds CELETRET Deposits for letters of guarantee and other
businesses

Total 265,079,874.85

Note:  On 23 April 2018, the thirteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board of the Company reviewed and passed the “Resolution
on Conducting Bills Pooling Business” and agreed that an amount of up to RMB1.4 billion for conducting bills pooling business
would be shared by the Company and its subsidiaries, such amount may be utilized on rolling basis. As at 30 June 2022, the
amount of bills receivable pledged by the Group to the banks amounted to RMB264.1189 million.

19. Employees, Remuneration, Pension Scheme and Training

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had 8,693 (31 December 2021: 8,580) employees. The remuneration of the employees was
determined by the Group mainly according to the laws and regulations of the PRC, the Company's economic performance
and by reference to remuneration level in the market. During the Reporting Period, total wages, bonuses, allowances,
compensation, welfare, housing funds and social insurance paid to the employees by the Group amounted to RMB844.02
million (Payment in the Previous Period was RMB834.02 million).

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the Group's employee remuneration policy. The employees of the Group
participated in the social basic pension insurance scheme organised and implemented by the local labor and social security
departments. Upon retirement of the employees, the local labor and social security departments are obligated to pay social
basic pension to the retired employees. The Group is required to contribute to the social basic pension insurance scheme
at a certain rate of the employees’ salaries to fund the employee retirement benefits. The sole obligation of the Group with
respect to the social basic pension insurance scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. There was no
change in the details of the retirement benefits.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VI. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
19. Employees, Remuneration, Pension Scheme and Training (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company continued to strengthen its management in talent development and training.
In talent development, we mainly conducted interviews with our employees to effectively understand their needs and
coordinated the improvement of relevant issues reasonably; identified and discovered outstanding talents within the
Company, and promptly provided promotion opportunities to realize their potentials for development together with the
Company. In respect of training, activities were carried out in various forms such as online courses, offline workshops and
team building activities. To enhance the activity of employees, the Company from time to time organized new employees to
participate in team building activities, building a platform for them to fully understand and know each other and enabling
them to experience the corporate culture of “happy life and happy work.” For cultivation of outstanding young talents, we
organized offline leadership courses such as project management, innovative practice, strategic planning and execution,
role positioning of managers and enhancement of skills according to the needs of talents, and provided online courses for
talents, fully reflecting the importance placed by the Company on young talents. Meanwhile, activities such as talent show,
badminton tournament and basketball competition were added to the induction training for fresh graduates; branches of
the business school organized diversified activities, such as Qinglan Class and training camp for management trainees; the
Company also provided on-the-job further studies for employees to obtain master (or doctoral) degree, continuing education
for professional and technical personnel, application of professional titles and organizing the participation in training classes
of various universities in a unified manner. From the perspective of corporate development, comprehensive improvements
were made to the training system and contents to provide employees with a comprehensive, complete and compliant learning
platform, so as to enhance the professionalism and capabilities of the Company’s employees, and build an excellent team
able to fight and win enduring battles for Livzon.

20. Investments
Overall relocation and expansion project of Sichuan Guangda

On 6 March 2019, after review and approval by the Board of the Company, the Company entered into the “Investment
Agreement for the Overall Relocation and Expansion Project of Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical Manufacturing” ( <791
HARR BB BIREEBIREHHEE) ) (the "Investment Agreement”) and the Supplemental Agreement | with
Sichuan Chengdu Pengzhou Municipal People's Government (81|44 B &R i &2 0 T A RREXA). Pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, the Company will inject capital of RMB646.00 million for investment in construction of the overall relocation
and expansion project (the “Project”) of Sichuan Guangda, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
Supplemental Agreement |, Pengzhou Municipal People's Government has agreed to pay a compensation for demolition of
RMB90.00 million and grant total incentive of not more than RMB125.80 million for the construction of new plant to the
Company.

As at 30 June 2022, the total investment of the specific contracts entered into for the Project amounted to RMB477.4202
million, and the sum of subsidies received from government authorities at various levels amounted to RMB137.1799
million, the construction works for the warehousing system and the QC main body were completed, the construction works
for the main body of the extraction workshop and the pre-treatment workshop were implemented, and the foundation
construction works for the granulation workshop, the comprehensive preparation workshop and the packaging workshop
were implemented, and the overall Project was smooth in progress.

Save as disclosed in this Report, during the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any equity acquisition and/or other

significant investments, nor was there any significant change in the investments held by the Group as compared to the
relevant information disclosed in the 2021 Annual Report of the Company.
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SECTION Il

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT

1. Overall Particulars

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Amount of investment for
the Period (RMB)

Amount of investment for
the Previous Period (RMB)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Period-to-period change

30,000,065.77 795,650,000.00 -96.23%
2. Material Equity Investments During the Reporting Period
v Applicable [J Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Percentage  Source Satus as at nvestment Disclosure ~ Disclosure
Investment —~ Investment of of Ivestment ~ Typeof  halancesheet  Expected profitoross  Litigation date index
Name o investee Princpal business method amount  shareholding  funds  Partnerls)  period producs ~ date retum inthePeriod involved (o) ffap)
g Ao Bosenceand—+ Prchal enaged ek Coptl e 3000000000 T8 el A loglem - Ciptel rctin BB o HA 1A
Mametenicl o, [ anddeelopmentof umn nd fnds onpleed
(THATEBENE ey s st el
ERAA) e producs nd il
produc,poduct technlgy
Y techicl comueon
DIt conpeation,
(VION BOLOGIC (NALAYS) Al busessof s, Newesttitment 3l B% Dend A lmgtem - Gt nctn o HA A

SN BH. Drducers,imortrs, epores,
Do, e, dtbution agens
and s o e,
dugs, phamaceuic, s,
nacecl, medche and
Vacneproducs,and gl
bushes of a comnon ed
T, compounds,and sances

It ey,

fnds

10t conpleted

To s . DT

BB - s .

Note:
18 March 2022.

Jiangsu Atom Bioscience and Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (T &k #7702 28 2513 B PR 2 7)) has completed C series of financing in

3. Ongoing Material Non-equity Investments During the Reporting Period

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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SECTION Il

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)

4, Investment in Financial Assets

(1) Investment in securities

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

v Applicable [ Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Carrying - Gains o losses ~ Accumulated
amownt ~ arsngfrom ~ changein ~ Amountof  Amount of Camying
Iifial atthe  changesin  farvalue  purchase disposal amount at
Typesof  Securities  Securtis ivestment ~ Accounting  Beginningof  farvaluefor  incudedin  duwingthe  duringthe  Profitorloss  theEndof  Accounting  Sources
sequrities  code abbreviation st measurement  thePeriod the Period equity Period Period forthe Period the Period item offund
Shae 0% funlnEregy DBATSE Mesidatfe — SB6%00  4TTB0 B30 SHRETT0  Fancalases Selfouned s
Ville nesed a
Fund 206001 Pengh Fnd 15000000 Meagured a far 901609 135583 1351583 PIGRE vluethougn  Selfowned unds
Velle poftorlss o
hare 00983 Hadnglledine 98186 Meswedatfir — B20MDA 18467850 - 0 UM rentperod Selbowned uds
Ville
hare DAV Beam e, N9K6N Meswedathi  DT0UTE TGS - BEUSH  TRUBAND Sufouned funds
I Ville
(i seures et el the o of the Pod -
Tot 368,360 ML 7505380 1188060 QT80T
Disostre e of the ammouncement neliont the el of e vestment by te B N applcele
Diose Gt ofthe annoucement o he el o seurtes nvestment by te sl mestig ()~ Nt applcabe
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)
4, Investment in Financial Assets (continued)
(2) Information on investment in derivatives

v Applicable  [J Not applicable

Unit: RMB0'000

Percentage of
investment
amount at
the End of
the Period to
Intial Investment thengt  Actual
Name of the investment amount ~ Amountof  Amount of Ivestment ~~~assetsof ~ gains or
operator of amount of atthe  purhase  disposal  Impaiment  amountat  the Company  losses
Qerivaie ~ Comected ~ Comected ~ Typeofderivative  derivative  Commencement  Matwity  Begimingof  duwing  duing  provison  theEndof atthefndof  duing
imvestment ~ relationship ~ Transaction  investment investment ~ date date thePeriod  the Period  the Period (ifany) thePeriod the Period  the Period
Firanci insuin Non-elted pary Mo Forvrd freip exchange g8 09 m33 606111 - 5939 - - - By
ontract (e
Firencil inuion Non-elted pary o v fnexchange. 908028 021041 m §16657 - o > e - 1By
confac )
Firanil iuin Non-elted pary o fovad forepexcane 1283139 011 M5 18471 S RN - 1308 00 %
confac )
Franci inuin~ Non-elted pary o v foeipexcange. 1309801 00-12 10430 138171 - 1941% - - -1
ontrec (e
Frencl inuion~ Non-elted pary o fovrd g exchnge 1591830 20215 01 - BB 160806 5 8% 1k ]
confac )
Firani iuin~ Non-elted pary o fovad forepexcange 593088 0110 JUIARL! - 553148 50008 - 17850 03 68
confac )
Franci insuin~ Non-elted pary Mo v foeipexcinge 162848 03 0430 - Thlee 10969.02 - 431478 034 83
(ot sl
Finencl ettion~ Non-eltedpary Mo v foepecinge 107620 00044 1118 S (19 316500 - 50336 0% U8
confac )
Firani iiuin Non-elted pary o fovad forepencange 59600 0254 WA - 5500 3% - 43 031% 18
confac )
Firencl ctton~ Non-elted pary Mo Forvd frip exchange T0%3% 1044 JUIRIRE! - 16%30 - - 815807 048% -
ontrec e
Firencl ettion~— Non<eltedaty Mo v foepecinge. M8 L4 44 - USBB O 130 - 119205 0% Bu
confac )
Firani nuin~ Non-elted pary o Forvard frip exchange 0 50 I > 90 wy > K 4B
confac )
Totdl 18150 - - namno e 8103 - UseR (LT
S0urce o fnds o vestoent 1 e Seltfnancg
Lgaon e {f ol lo applcle
Dicosuredateof the amouncementin elaton o the aporva ofvestment i Gt by te o an 1 Vlch 202
Diclsr it of e announcement i eon o e approelofnesment 1 e by e el meetigf ) lot appcble
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SECTION 1l

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)

4, Investment in Financial Assets (continued)

(2) Information on investment in derivatives (continued)

Percentage of

investment

amount at

the End of

the Period to
Intial Investment thenet  Actual
Name of the investment amount ~ Amountof  Amount of Ivestment ~~~ assetsof  gainsor
operator of amount of atthe  purchase  disposal  Impaiment  amountat  the Company losses
Gerivative ~ Comected ~ Comnected ~ Typeof dervative  derivative ~ Commencement ~ Maturty  Beginning of during duing  provision  the End of  attheEndof  during
investment ~ relationship ~ Transaction  investment investment ~ date date the Period  the Period  the Period (ifany)  thePeriod the Period the Period
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Vel of dervatvesshll e i
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atcountig mestrennt pincles o the Compny'cvates g e Regorig

il
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Specicophion of ndependnt iectors
of e Company

et ndevees and ik contl

Toffectelymaneg he ety ofechan rt ctions nases dnominted i curencyof e Company, o excenge forvrd contrcts herﬁ andldeates e enpoed
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10 e egng nstumen, S v echange e shll ot e e for o g, The pinple o rdence and conseain sl bsemed s st fectiel prevet et
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VII. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)
5. Use of Proceeds

v Applicable [ Not applicable

(1)  Overall use of proceeds

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: RMB0'000

Total
amount of
proceeds Percentage
with Total of total
Total Total  changein accumulated — accumulated Amount of
amountof  accumulated  useduring  amountof  amount of Total proceeds
proceeds  amount of the  proceeds  proceeds  amount of idle for
Yearof  Method of  Total amount used during proceeds  Reporting with change  with change proceeds  Uses and whereabouts of unused  more than
financing  financing  of proceeds  the Period used Period in use in use unused  proceeds 2 years
2016 Nonpublic —~ 142,030.04 1013 133,869.69 - B84 0B00% 2100982 Unused proceeds are st deposted n -

issuance the spectal account forrased funds
or nder cash management, and wil
continue to be used n projects invested
Vith proceeds

Note:  Total amount of proceeds excluded underwriting and sponsorship fees and other related expenses; while funds deposited in the
special account and interest income generated from cash management have been excluded from the total amount of unused
proceeds.

Explanation on overall use of proceeds

With the "Approval in relation to the Non-public Issuance of Shares by Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.” (Zheng Jian Xu
Ke [2016] No. 1524) issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company made a non-public issuance of
29.0982 million ordinary shares (A Shares) denominated in RMB with a nominal value of RMB1 per share at an issue price
of RMB50.10 per share, the total amount of proceeds raised amounted to RMB1,457.8200 million, and after deduction of
issuance expenses of RMB37.5196 million, the amount of RMB1,420.3004 million was transferred into the account of the
Company on 2 September 2016.

The proceeds were mainly used for the “Project for in-depth development and industrialization upgrade of innovative
llaprazole series (3 EH W 51 8IFTE RAEFEREZECFHRIEE)", the “Construction project for research &
development platform for prolonged-action microsphere technologies (& U ER AT A 8% S & X IE B)", the "Relocation
and expansion project of Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc. (first phase) (BB ¥k &= [E#71t T 2L 62 %
MABRA I EBEREIER (—H)", the "Technological transformation project of bag infusion workshop for Livzon Group
Limin Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory (B Ik 5= [ 71| S 84 % iy 42 2 $al /R EE FRI B 0B B )" as well as for replenishment
of working capital and repayment of bank loans, which were consistent with the uses passed by the resolutions of the Board
of the Company. As at 30 June 2022, unused proceeds were still deposited in the special account for raised funds, and which
will continue to be used in projects invested with proceeds.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VII. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)
5. Use of Proceeds (continued)
(2) Particulars of committed projects with proceeds

v Applicable  [J Not applicable

Unit: RMB0'000

Change n Total Totl  Ivested  Comulative  Progress of Benefit

project amountof  amountof  amount invested ~ investment as realized Material
(incluing proceeds  investment  during the amountas  atthefndof Datewhenthe duingthe Expected  changein
partil  committed to after  Reporting  attheEndof  thePeiod projectisready Reporting  benefit feashiltyof

Committed investment projects and the use of excess funds ~ change) investment  adjustment (1)~ Period  thePeriod ()  ()=(IN1) forintendeduse  Period realied  the project

Commmed Iesmentpoecs

rojei indeyhcevloment and idustialzaton gtk of movate Vs 500000 BT 3 0N T665% 31 December 1024 - - llo
i s 1% W? HER AR AR RER A RE)
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L el Mendcrng Fcor (B E B R 28 45
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)
5. Use of Proceeds (continued)

(2) Particulars of committed projects with proceeds (continued)

(hange in Total Total  Invested  Cumulative  Progress of Benefits

project amowntof  amowntof  amount invested ~ investment as realized Materil

(incluing proceeds  investment  during the amowntas  atthefndof Datewhenthe duingthe Expected  changein

partial ~ committed to after  Reporting  attheEndof  thePeiod projectisready Reporting benefit feasibilty of
Committed investment projects and the use of excess funds ~ change) ~ investment  adjustment (1) Peod  thePeriod(2) (3= (1) forintendeduse  Period reaied the project
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BREREREZ AR ol be st fom e 1, P09 Buling Lion s

Y h
38Chuangyeth 1R, inwan i, hureChy, it he conctucon i emaned uncange o oy, e, et he astmentt the constuctinocaon nd the coresponing ospenement
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VII.

(2)

ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)
Use of Proceeds (continued)

Particulars of committed projects with proceeds (continued)

(hange in Total Total  Invested  Cumulative  Progress of Benefits

project amowntof — amountof  amount invested ~ investment as realized Materil
(incuding proceeds  investment  during the amountas  atthefndof Datewhenthe dwingthe Expected  changein
partill  committed to after  Reporting  attheEndof  thePeiod projectisready Reporting benefit feashilty of

Committed investment projects and the use of excess funds ~ change)  investment  adjustment (1) Period  thePeriod()) (3= (1) forintendeduse  Period reaied the project

Prelinry nesmentand et for mesent poect i procees——+ 00 28 Decenber 10 he(hmh
Pt

Tempoay epenitmet of workng e

lea

1 Mheraionto mglementing e of et imested it proceds
On2 st 202, e Resoluon on ARt to the Il Bod o et Pt et ihPrces an g Captl o Whollowmed Sy (852 B3 55 2 OB
SRR A 2) ves contoed and sproved e i meeting of et sionofhe B f e Company, st W it aged e Compary ol e
Oocive s nd el e e of o oges el micosphte pegraion o ot o st Teokey Co, L. B SR OYRIERERR 231 oo ey,
a Wholl-omed susidryof the Company, by vy of G ah Mg, And the impementig ntesofhe " Conscon Pt for Resech & Devlpment o fo PrlongeAcion Miophee
Temolges (R AATE A EWAE&IEE] W chnge o e Company nd ion G o Pramacevicl Facor (555 S 55225 t e Compny and Mg ey,
Theshoemenonedaleaon to imolemnting ey o te mJemnve e it proceds il ot affe te vl \emea 0 of he poject et wih poceds,

3 Afustventtosubpc e the“Consucio Pret o Research & Develoment Pt for ProkoneAcon icoghe Teholges (RN R AT A2 0B
On 30 ey 209 the Popsel o T At eating o ot of et et it e Proceet andChngeof S undr Profcs et vith he Proces (B B2 5 7 6 R
ﬁﬁlﬁ [FEBEERTEE R SREEE T3R5 % has orsred ndaprve at e 2013 annl el et ofthe Compeny, sttt ich s e et o ol e
mate o e bt lepme\mA e st Relse Miospees o ncion 3 o) RGPS A8 e e “Corstucion P for esearch & Delpnet
P forProlongeAcio Wisghr el (AT 0RE ), and noprces would b vt n i i, and s g Bl of poces 30388 illn

woul e s e ed by h"(o tucion et o s WonshopfLionGroup o Pemaceticel oty (B2 BE S BR A RE FERUBE . Ao e, 2ol
amountofR194319 illionfproced s tent tbe et v he Contrucion P o Micosphere Wosho o ionGroup i Phamactic Facor (B3 BB RS
SRR and e remaning et amoummsuhwmkshopmﬂsmmon orfct wodd b sgpleented by el o of e Compy,
Theshovementioned adusment o e estment amount of st vt with prceet wil ot [fe( heovem\l implementton oftheproectinested wihproceds,

4 atonto et of e Pt fr et vlopmentan stz e of vt Lol (CE A 2R R AR RE RE S AIBE) 0 mJe
ifte’ (onu ucin P o Reseach & Develpment P forProlongecton Micosphee endloges 5 AR RERE TR 2R ad Uitonof P o e dior Pemarer
Repenishment of Working Capa
(n 28 ey 2020, te Resoluon on Ao to Cen Pt veste with Prcee nd Austment o vestment Pl and Uizt of Pt ofPrcees frPemanent Relnishment of Woting Captel
BB A e A R AL U HIAREE S KL THE S A5 vasconddored an pyored t he 013l ene meaing of e Company, pustat o whic

ol

Mg
itvasaeed 1) he amountofRNBH0S 619 millo of e wouconv o e et nhe s ool tllet (204 ) d e o onme(mn(&% L]
siop

(It )

5 the poronof e st o tes v profcs i h et ofRBIOR G0 milln o s e s “Costucionof e el g g \hzdpowdenm fon workhg
Mt%iﬁﬁiﬁfﬁ ' the st o Opicel lsomer P (12 tiﬁ’ﬁ%%ﬁq ) o "lararol Compound eparon (S AR 28] woud b temivte
Orer o e e anoneﬁue ofprocees, e emann e ofpoces mtheamounf 3728 nillonwoul e s d{ maﬂenuep\ eismet of woing cagtel, () the et
e 1 !

toig
petle Sistined s Micusphets orecion 14 ) 5T ERAETR ) would eenamdas ol st Mol \mecmn(&%ﬁqiﬂw
A5 withthe vestment amunt remaed unchengd at BED 30 milon, The et Gos (ioeIehnA it Stine-lese Micosgers ot jcin mom)( ETW‘&% iSRRI
) woud b e 1o *Goseln AceteSsaed s ot (8527555 L2 ith he estmen amount e nchnge t RNBBD.0 millo, The s of ‘et
Ssae e Nioers mlmeuon( mont)(E51 R RBREEATAER) “NG Sstined e Miughrs o et (14 dos) CEETNGFRRAENAR) and “Conedoeln
St e Wi o |on(1 nont) (5T A KA R X[H@ﬁ)) Wih et e commencedwoud ettt gl e procet of B 0 illn o e
e prfcs woud e edfor estment i the cortuctinof e e st Consr wnof sanedeese mpans orkho (B NI
rd meetg f t e\hh o0 ofthe Board of the Company orsidered and aprored the Resolion o the Repacment of Sl Funds Py Iested I te P
et with Proces by ds[ffW ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ’t&/\%’% R éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁm%m Conpeny ou e e sl e s of RBA1 571 mllon sy vested
st h dhth proces,On 4wty 2017, the Company h it ot e fncs o fs sl acount forproceeds.
il

fe
by e proceds Not gl

Baince amount o poceds g fom poject imlemenaon and s Nolap il

ndvheeato

Prtlems o

of unsedprocets Unose procedsvere il epose n e seclacountfor e fnds o unde cash management,andwil contue £ s sed i proes et it prcees,

ol s e s and dcoste ofpoceds Nt appicatle
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)

5. Use of Proceeds (continued)

(3) Changes in projects funded with proceeds

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: RMB0'000

Total amount Material
of proceeds Actual thange in
intended to Actual  accumulated  Investment Benefits feasibility
beinvested  investment  investment  progressas  Date when realized of the
inthe amountfor amountas  attheEnd projectis  duringthe  Expected  project
Corresponding originally project after ~ the Reporting atthe End of  of the Period  ready for Reporting  benefit after
Project after change committed project thange (1) Period the Period ()  (3)=(2)/(1) intended use Period  realized  change
Reloction and expanson projectof vaon Group~ Inceased capital necions in Livzon A for 1389 - Y 9930% 30 lune 2001 = & llo
meemang Phamacutica Manfecturng nc (st the construction of“Proect for research &
phese) RSB TRERERATRE deve\o mentand industialzton o heraputic
EEREH) it dus' BIERENAER
L&”Ef RRERNREaEZ(
BRER
Technalogial ransomation prjec of ag infusion~ Increased capitl nectons n Livon MAB for 53178 - 53173 10000% 31 August 2018 BB Mo N
Workshop for Livzon Group Limin Phamaceutcal the construcion o et for esech §
Wanufectuing Facory (B EBFREEHSEE  doelopmentan industialztonof hrapec
/@aﬁ&ﬁﬂéﬁ] anibodhaed ngs” (HETRENEER
SRR RERREENWARERY
guXIEE”)
Construcionprject for resrch & devlopment latform - Increased captl nections n Livon MAB for nux 368 39N 97.16% 31 Decembe - - Nl
for prolonetacionmicoshere echnlages (A the constucionof ‘Pt for esarch m
RRRETARREE) deve\o et andmd talzaionof herapec
sl s’ (HEREREER
&“/éfﬁ TEENTEAER(
«i #5E)
Prject for in-depth development and ndustrigization  Profetfor n-depth development and 15271 A DN T66% 31 December - - N
upyrace of imovetie ezl s (AT ZF]  ndustalation uprede of ovatve przoe 0
ﬁJ HEmRERARERITHER) ses (B LM AR AR RE
%W&EE)
Repleishment of woring capiteland repeyment of -~ Reolenishment of working capite and repayment~~~ 51,685.32 - e 00% - NA A Nl
bark loas of ek loans
Total - 14203004 1My 133898 - - BB - -
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SECTION 1l

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)

5. Use of Proceeds (continued)

3) Changes in projects funded with proceeds (continued)

Total amount Materia
of proceeds Actual thange in
intended to Actual  acumulated  Investment Benefits feasibility
beinvested investment  investment  progressas  Date when realized of the
inthe amountfor amountas  atthefnd projectis  duringthe  Expected project
Corresponding originally project after ~ the Reporting at the End of  of the Period  ready for Reporting  benefit after
Project after change committed project thange (1) Period the Period ()  (3)=(2)/(1) intended use Period  realized  change
Descption n teasonsforchnge, decion mang 1, ceased Captel ctions i Liveon MAB for the Constucton of*Prjectfor Resarch & Development and Icustrizetion of Thrapeuic Anhodyhes Drgs” (ST RE ML AR B 03

proces and nformation discosure fr specic poject|

TTEEATRAEEZEER"): I order to beter mestthe neds of the Company'saperation and development,taking o account the elalve\y\ong imvestment and construcion e of the
0rg ma\ prject invested with proce, L. the ‘Increased Captl Infctions n Lvzon MABforthe(on tuctonof Prjectfor Researh & Development and Industialzation of Thrapeutic Anody s
s (B ERAERERR RBRRESIREE 2 RRERY, an hewgent eet o iest 1 corstucion o the “Relocation and Fapansion Profcof Lion Group Xidefeng
ha[maceu il Manufactuing I (it Phse) (B3 & 23T 2ERAERATRERRER ()’ Techmologcal Tensomation Pt of B fuson Warksop for Lvon Group L
Phamaceutca ufactungFctor (B E IR S8 % 6 RERAUER]" an “Constucion P o Micosphre Workshap ofieon o ivon ramacetca Fctry (B £ 8
SKELETRATRER IR, bengthe newprojcs investedwith prcees, o the pupose ofenhancing th fficincy fthe Compeny's fundsand ensuin the s developmentofthese proects,
afterconsdered and approved at the 2017 frst exwodman/genem\meem 011 e Company, alheatons were made o the *Icreased Captal necons i izon MAB for the Contucion of et for
Resarch & Development and Icusrizaton of Threpeuc Achody-ased Dugs (B EMERR AR e B RMBRATAEEZNRRER), and theorgnal plnned amount o
procees of RIB306,000,0000 ntended o b used n s prject was aHona s follons: () RB143,289.400.00 for the “Relocetion and Expansion rjct of Lizon Group Yinbejeng Pharmaceutca
Wanufactuing . (Fist ) (BFF BT SR R ARG R B ()", 0 MBS, 17,3000 forthe ‘Techndlogicl Tensfomation Prjct of Bag fusion Warkshop o ion
Group i Phemceutice andfcung Facoy (B EF REER A BRERAIER)" O RBI09,593300.00forthe subprofc “Constuction Pt o Wicosphere Worsh o
Lvon Group Livon PhameceuticelFectory (5% S BB SKE R RE B3R under " ContucionPrject o Reserch & Development Pl for ProlongedAcion Micosphere Tehndloge
(RAAIRAIERETARRIZR) . Atthesame tin, the sbpojects of he"Constucion Prjct fo Research & DevelopmentPlatfom forProlongedAcion MicospereTechologie (3R
B 2T RIZE) e arusted: ) the orgnalsubprofct of Renovation Prjet of Plot Workhop (255578 waschanged to " Constuction PrjetforMicoshere Workhop of
Lo Group Livon Phamceutcel Fctory (BT E B B BH OISR AR, and ion Group Lo Phamaceutcal Factory (55 5K 5/2) wasnewlyadded s the implementng
entty & th precnicel projct of*Rispridone Sstand eleaeMmropele s for jecion {1 mont) (51 RFAEE AR ER ) was taminetd,
Fordtal, please rferto the Company's amnauncement i the esinated med [Amouncement o, 2017-065 and 2017-083),
Constracion Pt for Resetch & Devlopment Pt for PrologeacionMicrosphre Tchnlogies (XS5 72 5 2508 2): Gventhat the Company h e the i “Leuproreln
AretteSustned Release Miosphres o necion (3 month) (AT RRE R R MR FEER) toShanghl Livon Phameceutical Menufcturing Co, L. | E SR E/ETR 7 )ond
the e would contince t cay ut relevnt work such s il il and anplication for producto, hece sbsequently the Compny woul o fonger vest in i prject by usg te proceeds Afe
consdered and approve at the 2018 annualgenrel mesting ofthe Company it ws ageed tht the subpojct"Leuproelin Actate Susaned Release Microsghers for jecion 3 mont) (351G
BT EHIRBEA) wder the Constucion Prject for Research & Development Pl for PolongedActonMicospere Techologies (AR TE T AR RAE) would e
afte and proeeds would o longer be used o vest n i et the remaining belence of RMB30.385 milfo of procees woud b asted foruse by the *Comtuctio Pojct or iosphee
Workhop ofLivon GioupLivonPhamceutica ecory (B S R R SZ8BR1 @ R /2R ). e the acustment, an agregateamountof RWBI134 3191 milionof proceeds was ntendedto
beimested i the *Constucion Prject o Micosphte Worshop o ivon Group Lvon Phemaceuicl Factory (B & BB TR R HORBZ38 )" Theremlning investment amount fr te
constucton prject of the workshop woud be firanced by the slrised funds ofthe Company.
Fordtals, plase rfrfo the Company's amnouncement  he esinated med (Amouncement o, 2019-020 and 2016:03),
Acordin t the progressof RAD of ceta subprojcs ofthe *Constucion Pt for Reserch & Development Pl for ProlngedAcion Micosphre Technologies (R R % T 62
0RE), approrte asment was mede to the et the poect Arprazole Stsained ez Micospheres for econ (14 day (&%TWJ SROUERAR) wouldberenemed s
“Niprazol Sustaned-elease Microspheres fo \meuon(&%ﬁﬂﬂ%%iﬁ” 520" wih the inves memamoumremamedunthangd at RMB27.30 millor, the prject “Gosereln Acetate Ststane
el Micospheres fr o 1 i) 47 R X & B ARERRRRTER L) woudbe et "Gosrln Actte Sstaned-lase It (B & AR AT with an estoent
anount remaied unchanged at RMB30.00 milin the subroecs *Octenie Sustaed-elease Micospheres for jecon (3 month) (EATERBASIEATAAR), “NGF Sstned-lese
Micosphees for necion (14 days) 55BN EBAE3F14)" and Gonadoreln Sstne e Micospheres for et (1 mont) (245 AR AREEASHNEA) which hd ot
commenced o e terminte, and the oinal vestment amountfor e e surjet i the amount of AR, 00 il ofprocess would beused o vt i & e suijet"Construction
ofsstaned-elease implans worshop (7218 \ FE R
Fordetal, lese efrt th Company's announcement disclosed n the deignated et [AmnouncementNo. 20101023 and 2020-120),
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SECTION Il

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIl. ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENT (continued)

5. Use of Proceeds (continued)

(3) Changes in projects funded with proceeds (continued)

Total amount Materia

of proceeds Actual thange in
intended to Actual  accumulated  Investment Benefits feasibility

beinvested investment investment  progressas  Date when realized of the

inthe amountfor amountas  atthefnd projectis  duringthe  Expected project

Corresponding originally project after  the Reporting at the End of  of the Period ready for Reporting benefit ~after

Project after change committed project change (1) Period the Period ()  (3)=(2)/(1) intended use Period  realized  change
3 Pojct forin epthdevelopmentand ndustialzatonupgade ofmnvatve ol sees (Y ST 2 FERAR AR &E%WMEE)ACCO rding o the acualiplementation condifons

Particulrs of and reasons for ot meetig scedled
proges o expeced ncome oy speficprofct)

Particulrs of matera change i easofty ofprofecs

after change

l

ofthe lncal st postmarket aunch and ncustialzation evelopment an techoloical eform o theproducts o o suvprjt of vl talet (X E )" and " Maprazole Soum for
njcion (31 E RT3, sine lprazole Soum o o 15 52 F02449) e obtand appova o mrket unch and was icluded i the et ntional medical suancecatdlogue
November 2019, inorder tosatify the needs offutureproductionand ls of eprezoe Sodium ommecmn[&%ﬁi 0047, and thesusension of R for ezl Optical e Preraton (X
A0t EZRELE) and lavezole Compound reparation (S L2445 22 due o changes n he ket evironment,noder to e the izt ffiencyof pceeds, ANBIIS.6790
milonofpoceds woud coninue to b nvested i o subroects of “Napraoe tblet [ 2 ‘ﬂﬂ%)"an 0 ezl Sodum o ncion 47 TSR, the portion of procees v fom
these tvo e 7 he amount o ANB02.6000 millonwouldbe use for the newadionel pject*Consruction ofthe chemicel g hophized poncer necion woksho (f B RE 141 BT
32" and the emaining balane of funds o RMB154 3728 millonfom laprzole Opticalome Preparaton (X571 £ £ f *”””‘J)an laprazoe Compound Prearation (1 SRR 5 7842
Wouldbe sed for permanent releisment of woring captl Moreover, duef the neds o overll busnes developmema e curentstage, fhe Company had adsted the ajout ofte ndustrl k.
Congidring thefas rowth 7 seles mantaned by apazole S fornection (57733 B8, i et tht mare expansonspce wold b e frthe devlopment ofpoducion s
i futue,but the existng P09 uling has certai constins, terefore the Company had decided to hange thecon tucion ocaon o “Constrctionof the chemicaldrg yotlized powde econ
worksho 15 A$TEE:3)" o OO buling to the PO buling i order tosuficeny sefgua the eeds of el Sodum o o (513 ST 048 n prduction and pertion
Mt the adjustment, he constrcton e wouldremln two e, howeer, due o the change in th constucion ocato, the constrction cycle would be postpaned accordingl,and it s expeced o
be aalatl for nended us by 31 Decembr 2012 For detal, lese e o the Company's announcement disclosed i he esinated med (Amouncement o, 202023 and 2000-12)
Pocfor -deth deelopment and ndustelzaton e ofinnovatve ezl e (5 L0 65 678 i 5 .7 08 2):On 25 ey 2020, the 2019 el gnerl mesing
0f the Company corideed and approed the “Resluton on Aeraton o Ceren Project Invested with Procaeds and Adjustment o nvestment Pln and Utization of Pat of Procees for Pemanent
Reperishment o Warking Capitl” (BREF A7 55 & 2 REBARALREHHUATNESEALANBERDERHEE), and ared he he Company mayafer the vetrent
partof the sub-prjects undr the "Projc for ndepth development andmdus \ahzamnugradeomnovaweHa vt sees (LS AU ZHEE u”u/% TR REFAREE) and st
the nvestment plan. Upon completonofthe ateraton and adjustments, it i tl veqied o nvet RMB208.2790 millom ofthe proceeds n this prject, which s expectd to be avallable for ntended use
by 31 December 2024, As the amountofprceeds nvee ddumngZOZOwas RIIB4.2823 millo, beig owerth the expctation, the Bord ofthe Company considered and approedthe “Resouton on
Acustment o vestment Plan fr Prjects vested with Proceeds” on 22 Merch 2021, to aust the estment pln for the Pt for eoth development and incustalzaton wpgde of et
leparole s (S5 20k 27 1572 3 R 528 R 2 4578 ). Upo complein oftheaustment, it il eqired t vt RMB203.0967 il o the roeeds n s poec, hich i
eected 0 e avalldle for intended use by 31 December 2024, The annual ivestment amounts for the next four years are expected to be RMB 1199240 millon, RMBSL.6760 millon, RNB16.00 milion
and RV 13,397 milion,respctivey

TechologcalTranfrmatio Prjct ofBag nusio worshap o ion Group L Phamaceuica Mnfacuin Fctry (B3 /815 L8 AL S RE AR} A et ofhempact
ofplcisincucing austment ofmecicelinsurance ctelogue, st contlandoca et dhgs, the e genreted o Sheng Fuheng ection (34K E£517) (g nfuson) did ot e
the expected income v,

Notapplcatle
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SECTION 1l

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VIll. DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL ASSETS AND EQUITY

1. Disposal of Material Assets

[1 Applicable

v Not applicable

2. Disposal of Material Equity

L] Applicable

v Not applicable

IX. ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CONTROLLED AND INVESTED COMPANIES

1. Major Subsidiaries and Invested Companies Which Contributed More Than 10% of
Net Profit of the Company

v Applicable [ Not applicable
Unit: RMB
Type of Registered Operating Operating
Company name company  Principal business capital  Total assets Net assets income profit Net profit
Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical - Subsidiary Principally engaged in production ~ 450,000,000.00  4,073987,609.92  2415429,60433  2399,380,228.74 82130001173 716,465,988.29
Factory (B EBEHLER) and sale of self-made chemical
drugs, biochemical drugs,
microecological preparations,
biological products etc.
Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical ~ Subsidiary ~ Principally engaged in R&D, 149,00000000 1,385,083 %7.84 111448241777 15055972260 04813377 21,143,999.90
Manufacturing Co,, Lt (51 production and sale of
KARERRAR) proprietary Chinese medicine,
major products include Anti-
viral Granules, Dexaltin Oral
Paste, et.
Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical  Subsidiary Principally engaged in production ~ 61561,014.73 7693228337 35249823152 172,956,20903 3557847360 19668818.13
Manufacturing Factory (B% 5 and operation of Chinese
EHREEH) drug preparations and
phamaceutical raw materials,
etc., major products include
Shengi Fuzheng Injection,
Xueshuantong, etc.
Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical ~ Subsiciary Principally engaged in production ~~ 87,328,900.00  1,554707727.02 85540430077 1,014,986,463.84  356,73442392  305,618770.94
Manufacturing o, Ltd. (8 of biochemical and polypeptide
ERSERRLA) APls, major products include
biochemical APIS such as
Menatrophin and Chorionic
Gonadatropin.
Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Subsidiary  Principally engaged in production ~ 128,280,00000  1,660,737.97277  826,337,383.29  665,858,3%.71  220,001,215.74  185,588,005.57
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing and operation of chemical

(o, Ltd. (R ERTEEHA
HEEERAH)

APIs, major products incluge
Cefuroxime Sodium, Cefodizime
Sodium, Ceftriavone Sodium,
etc.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IX. ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CONTROLLED AND INVESTED COMPANIES (continued)

1. Major Subsidiaries and Invested Companies Which Contributed More Than 10% of
Net Profit of the Company (continued)

Type of Registered Operating Operating
Company name company  Principal business capital  Total assets Net assets income profit Net profit
Livzon Group Xinbeifiang Subsidiary Principally engaged in exportof ~ 239,887,700.00  3815,292945.15  1,655,985,611.28 1 241,943916.72  419,839,085.49  292,110,192.56
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing APIs, intermediate products
he BRETHILE and related technologies, major
RAERAT) products incude Pravastatin,
Mevastatin, Salinomycin, etc.
Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Subsidiary ~ Principally engaged in production ~ USDA1,700,000  1,645,891,175.20 78297755573 58579265321 31439198170 266,880,410.4
Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd. (B3 of antibiotics APIs, intermediate
EERNRERERRLA) and drug preparation poduc
and chemical raw materials
for pharmaceutical production,
major products include
Colistin Sufate, Vancomycin,
Phenylalanine, efc.
Thuhai Livzon Diagnostics Inc. (% Subsidiary Principally engaged in production ~ 400,000,000.00  1,004,786,626.3  701,28640792 34980766200  23466,747.12  15318,756.31
BERAARNERAR) and sle of diagnostic
Teagents, major products
include diagnostic reagent
products such s Diagnostic
Kit for IghlgG Antibody to
Coronavirus (SARS-CoV-2)
(Lateral Flow), Rapid Test
for Mycoplasma Preumonize
IoM Antibody ((ateral Flow)
and Diagostic Kit for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus
Antibody (ELISA), etc
Livzon MABPharm Inc. (/872 Subsidiary  Prncipally engaged in 1,453,330,000.00  1,527,921,659.85 179577710 698543200 -205421620.18  -225,527,639.99

RERLMRIARAR)

research, development
and commercialization of
biopharmaceutical products.

Note:  The data of Xinbeijiang Pharma includes its subsidiaries, namely Ningxia Pharma, Fuzhou Fuxing, and Gutian Fuxing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (& HREEE 25 R QA F]). Livzon MAB is the key biologics R&D enterprise of the Group. Its loss is mainly due to
investment in R&D.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IX. ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CONTROLLED AND INVESTED COMPANIES (continued)
2. Subsidiaries Acquired and Disposed of During the Reporting Period
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Method of acquirement

and disposal of the Effect on the general
subsidiary during the production, operation
Company nhame Reporting Period and results
LIVZON BIOLOGICS (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. New establishment No material impact
3. Description of Major Controlled and Invested Company

v Applicable [ Not applicable

The Shenzhen Stock Exchange suspended the review of listing of Tianjin Tongrentang Group Co., Ltd.* (KERI-_EEH
f& 1D B R 7)) (“Tianjin Tongrentang”) on 26 January 2022, as CSRC has initiated an investigation against ShineWing
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the accountant engaged by Tianjin Tongrentang for the initial
public offering of its shares and listing on the ChiNext Board.

Since ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the engaged accountant, has issued the review
report, the Shenzhen Stock Exchange resumed the review of listing of Tianjin Tongrentang on 30 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, please refer to the 2021 Annual Report of the Company for its investment in Tianjin Tongrentang.

X. STRUCTURAL BODY CONTROLLED BY THE COMPANY
[J Applicable v Not applicable

XIl. DETAILS OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS WITH MATERIAL IMPACT ON THE
GROUP AFTER THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

Since the end of the accounting period, save as disclosed herein, there has been no subsequent event with material impact
on the Group.

Xll. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no significant investment, material acquisition or disposal involving any subsidiary
or associated company, nor other significant event which is required to be disclosed during the Reporting Period.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

55



56

SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Xlll. PROSPECTS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

In the second half of 2022, the Group will always adhere to the mission of “prioritizing the quality of life of the patients”
and the vision of “becoming a leading pharmaceutical enterprise within the industry”. Based on the unmet clinical needs,
the Group will further strengthen its advantages on the innovative drug and high-barrier complex preparation platform,
pay attention to cutting-edge technology, boost technological and management innovations, and enhance capabilities for
promoting corporate sustainability comprehensively through digital and intelligent new technologies and new models, speed
up adaptation to the new trend of changing market and economic environment, and perform social responsibilities actively.
The Group will focus on the following aspects:

(1) Chemical drug preparations

In respect of innovative R&D, the Group will continue to pay attention to innovative drugs with outstanding clinical value
and high-barrier complex drug preparations, establish a differentiated product pipeline layout, continuously strengthen and
improve its independent R&D system, and continue to internally cultivate and externally attract high-end R&D talents. At the
same time, the Group will integrate resources and optimize the R&D platform, continue to strengthen external cooperation,
and optimize team building of the core products on which we have advantages by various forms including introduction of
projects and joint development, and actively promote the internationalization process.

In respect of marketing, the Group will continue to focus on evidence marketing, co-marketing and service marketing. The
key work deployments are as follows: (i) to promote the completion of the four rigid assessment indicators of core varieties,
including indicators such as the development of key hospitals above Class Il; (i) in respect of the key tasks of promotion
on core varieties, to strengthen and refine the expansion of llaprazole (3 EH™) in relevant departments, and improve
the market layout of psychiatry products; (iii) to continue to cultivate, support, plan and expand products with potential,
extend product life cycle, and promote sound development of product; (iv) to continue to build an internet digital marketing
platform, establish platforms such as the special “Expert Talk”, and build a private traffic pool; (v) to follow up relevant
policies such as national medical reform in real time, strengthen the clinical and pharmaco-economics research of products
in the post-launch stage, and respond actively to the adjustment of medical insurance in 2022.

In respect of production, the Group will continue to promote the digitization and intelligence of equipment and production,
and optimize the production process; continue to strengthen the quality management of the entire life cycle, optimize the
quality management system, ensure the effective operation of the quality system and prevent the occurrence of material
incidents of quality safety; through comprehensive and systematic risk control with refined management, guarantee the
supply, stabilize the quality and consolidate the competitiveness of the products.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XIll. PROSPECTS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT (continued)
(2) Biologics

In the second half of 2022, the key mission in the field of biologics of the Group will still be making rapid progress in R&D
projects, and as more projects are entering the stage of applying for production, the enhancement of LivzonBio's quality
system and the process of commercialization of products will be accelerated.

The key tasks of R&D projects comprise the following aspects: firstly, to focus on advancement of V-01's conditional market
launch in the PRC, EUA (Emergency Use Authorization)/market launch at home and abroad and WHO EUL (Emergency Use
Listing), and supply after market launch; secondly, to advance the preparatory work in relation to pre-launch approval such
as on-site inspection of clinical trials of Tocilizumab Solution for Injection (FEZKBE#1)% 5 /R); thirdly, to continue to promote
the clinical trials of core varieties such as Recombinant Anti-human IL-17A/F Humanized Monoclonal Antibody Injection (2
I AIL-1TAF ATR/E B 52 B2 47182 53 577%) and Recombinant Human Follitropin Alfa Solution for Injection (E#8 A {250
YA ZE )T 8TK); fourthly, to promote the preclinical research of projects in pipeline and NKT cell therapy projects, focusing
on the development of bispecific antibody technology platform and preclinical research; fifthly, in addition to continuously
strengthening our own R&D, to introduce projects through licensed introduction or cooperative development in a timely
manner, so as to further enrich the preclinical and clinical R&D pipelines in fields of vaccines, tumors and other fields with
key features and to enhance the core competitiveness of the biopharmaceutical platform of the Group.

In respect of product marketing, the Group will prepare for the market promotions of Recombinant Human Choriogonadotropin
alfa for Injection (F 57 A EA A BRI ), a marketed product, and improve the post-launch adverse reaction monitoring
and pharmacovigilance system.

In respect of production quality establishment, the Group will continue to reinforce the establishment of quality system for
therapeutic biological products and vaccine workshop, with a focus on the production quality management, supply and
compliance management guarantee of V-01.

(3) APIs and intermediates

In the second half of 2022, in respect of marketing of APIs, the Group will continue to put more efforts to explore the
markets of high-end antibiotic APIs, high-end pet APIs and other products on which we have advantages, and seize the
exchange rate opportunity to focus on the overall increase in overseas markets, striving to achieve a double harvest of annual
sales volume and profit margin. Meanwhile, the pet preparation products of the Company are expected to be approved for
launch in domestic market in the second half of 2022. With the continuous expansion of the professional sales team, the
pet preparation products are expected to provide new increments for the Group in the future.

In the second half of 2022, the API business department of the Company will continue to adhere to the guiding philosophy
of “safeguarding product safety and environmental protection, ensuring quality, reducing costs and grabbing the market”,
and continue to improve safety, environmental protection, quality standards and requirements, keep on strengthening energy
conservation and consumption reduction, production quality and marketing management, and focus on promoting the R&D of
polypeptide products, high-end veterinary drugs and new fermentation products as well as the improvement of our existing
products. We will further improve the overall profitability and industrial competitiveness of our APIs, and establish a high-
end APl industry platform with comprehensive competitiveness.
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Xlll. PROSPECTS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT (continued)

(4) Traditional Chinese medicine preparations

The traditional Chinese medicine (“TCM") business will adhere to the guiding philosophy of “exploring the potential,
improving quality and enhancing efficiency”, to achieve industrialization, modernization and digitization in the field of TCM.

The Group will continue to increase its academic marketing efforts in the field of TCM. On top of tumor, respiratory, pediatrics
and other segments on which we have advantages, we will strengthen marketing efforts for disease categories on which
TCM have treatment advantages, including urology, kidney, cardio cerebral vascular and Fuzheng (benefiting vital energy
and strengthening physique), and will promote technological transformation and production resumption of varieties with
potential, and accelerate the cultivation of large varieties and product portfolio.

In addition, the Group will continue to vigorously carry out the academic support and clinical data evidence research work
of TCM products, and further strengthen the R&D planning and investment on new TCM with unique features and classic
prescriptions. At the same time, we will speed up the establishment of a technical standard system and a grade evaluation
system for production of high-class traditional Chinese medicinal materials, promote the research on key medicinal materials
for core products and the construction of green ecological planting bases, and deploy the entire TCM industry chain from
the multiple dimensions of planting, production and sales.

(5) Diagnostic reagents and equipment

In the second half of 2022, Livzon Diagnostics will continue to focus on advantageous areas including autoimmune diseases,
respiratory diseases and infectious diseases, relying on key platforms including multiple, chemiluminescence and molecules,
and will improve the number of customers and the customers’ recognition of products by point-to-face marketing based on
key benchmarking customers, which in turn will promote the sales of the Group’s reagents.

In respect of R&D, Livzon Diagnostics will continue to focus on strategic directions including autoimmune diseases, respiratory
diseases, fully automatic integrated platforms for molecular diagnosis, tuberculosis prevention and control, combined with
continuous efforts on comprehensive deployment which covers upstream raw materials, automated equipment and diagnostic
reagents. Livzon Diagnostics will strengthen capabilities of self-dependent innovation, secure product quality and stable
supply from the origin, and reduce procurement risks.

In respect of production, Livzon Diagnostics will meet sales demand and ensure stable supply. Ensuring the supply and
quality of the new products, it will continuously promote cost analysis and control, as well as upgrade of system, process and
standardization. The technological standards of production process and quality control system will be enhanced persistently,
and existing industrialized capabilities will be further developed and the product quality standard will be enhanced.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XIV. RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES
1. Risk of Changes in Industrial Policies

The pharmaceutical industry is significantly affected by changes in industrial policies. As China has been deepening
reforms of the pharmaceutical and health systems, the relevant systems of policies and regulations are further amended
and improved. For example, measures such as the enforcement and adjustment of the medical insurance catalogue, the
continuous implementation of centralized bulk-buying and new guiding principles for R&D may have deep and lasting impact
on the future development of the pharmaceutical industry, and may also have different levels of impact on the Group's R&D,
production and sales. In early December 2021, the National Healthcare Security Administration ("NHSA") and the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security issued the Catalogue of Drugs for National Basic Medical Insurance, Work-related Injury
Insurance and Maternity Insurance (2021) (the “National Medical Insurance Catalogue (2021)" or the “Medical Insurance
Catalogue”). Through this adjustment to the catalogue, the total number of drugs in the National Medical Insurance Catalogue
(2021) is 2,860, including 1,486 western drugs, 1,374 Chinese patent drugs, and 892 traditional Chinese medicine tablets.
On 13 June 2022, the NHSA issued the “2022 Work Plan of the Adjustment to the Catalogue of Drugs for National Basic
Medical Insurance, Work-related Injury Insurance and Maternity Insurance” (the “Work Plan”) and related documents for
public comments, marking commencement of a new round of adjustment work for the National Medical Insurance Catalogue.

Response measures: In respect of adjustments to the Medical Insurance Catalogue, till now, a total of 187 products of the
Group are included in the National Medical Insurance Catalogue (2021), including 92 drugs in the class A list and 95 drugs
in the class B list. After the adjustments to the Medical Insurance Catalogue in 2021, the Group's product llaprazole Sodium
for Injection (&1 FA 3 & 7 M §7) continued to be included into the negotiation catalogue. After the product is included in
the Medical Insurance Catalogue, the clinical value of the product would be increased, and more patients would be benefitted.
As the coverage of this drug in hospitals with levels was low, a lower price would benefit more patients. The Company will
continue to expand the hospital coverage and product sales and realize “lower the price in exchange for more quantity”, so
as to mitigate the impact of adjustments to prices of the medical insurance payment on the stable growth of the Company's
results. In recent years, the adjustment work for the Medical Insurance Catalogue has been continuously improved and has
entered the era of dynamic adjustment. On basis of continuing to support COVID-19 treatment drugs and innovative drugs,
the new medical adjustment plan issued in June 2022 fully reflects the attention to treatment drugs for rare disease and
drugs for children, and continues to “fill shortcomings, optimize structure, encourage innovation”. The Company will pay
close attention to changes in industrial policies and strengthen its capability in responding to environmental changes such as
national policy orientations and industrial policies. In addition, the Company will continue to increase R&D investment and
strive to improve R&D innovation capabilities to further promote the healthy and sustainable development of the enterprise.
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XIV. RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES (continued)
2. Risk of Decline in the Prices of Products

After pharmaceutical products are approved and launched in the market, in addition to market competition, they are also
affected by many factors in various aspects, including medical insurance, tenders, in particular industry policy of minimum
procurement commitment, which have made pharmaceutical enterprises face pressure of price decline. Centralized bulk-
buying refers to the process of tender or price negotiation in centralized purchase of drugs where the exact quantity to
be purchased shall be specified, so that bidding price for specific amounts of drugs may be provided by enterprises. On
20 June 2022, the Shanghai Sunshine Medical Procurement All-In-One website issued the announcement on the National
Centralized Drug Procurement Document (GY-YD2022-1). The seventh round of centralized drug purchase organized by the
State was officially launched, with a total of 61 varieties. Price reduction was also realized in the national medical insurance
negotiations. In 2021, NHSA conducted negotiations and successfully negotiated the inclusion of 67 exclusive drugs not in
the Medical Insurance Catalogue, with an average price reduction of 61.71%. According to the work plan recently issued
by the NHSA, a new round of medical insurance negotiations will be launched in China.

Response measures: For centralized bulk-buying, since most of the potential enterprises are willing to lower their prices in
exchange for more quantity, therefore the price of drugs of the winning bidders may decrease significantly. However, since a
certain procurement volume shall be specified to facilitate arrangements for production and sales, the unit production cost of
drugs will be lowered through economies of scale, and less cross-regional marketing promotions will save selling expenses for
enterprises. Therefore, if larger sales volume is awarded, the impact of lower price may be offset, which will have significant
implications on strengthening the market position of the enterprise in the industry. Since the fifth round of centralized drug
procurement, the focus of the varieties involved in the national centralized purchase has shifted from oral chemical drugs to
the field of injections. The Company pays close attention to the dynamic progress of centralized bulk-buying. In this purchase
varieties category, the Company’s Omeprazole Sodium for Injection (E 51 FA B8 37 M 8) has participated in this centralized
procurement bidding, whereas it has not been selected when results were announced in July 2022. The drug passed the
consistency evaluation in June 2021. The sales revenue in 2021 was RMB2.2890 million, accounting for 0.014% of the
Company's operating revenue in 2021, which was relatively small and was not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company'’s operations. The Company will also continue to innovate, research and develop innovative drugs and high-barrier
complex drug preparations required urgently in clinical application and with a certain amount of high added-value. Deeper
exploration will be made on existing products with market potential and technical barriers. Reassessment of key drugs after
their market launch and consistency evaluation of the relevant drugs will be promoted actively. Product composition will be
continuously optimized, while active efforts will be made to explore and expand into the overseas markets. For adjustments
to the Medical Insurance Catalogue, as llaprazole Sodium for Injection (JE&TA X Ehime4R), the patented new drug
developed by the Company, continued to be included to the 2021 national medical insurance negotiation catalogue, its price
drops from RMB156 per unit to RMB71 per unit. As the payment limit of Ilaprazole Sodium for Injection () &1 B X &+
M #79) was cancelled in 2021 national medical insurance negotiation, more patients were benefitted as the suffix remarks
of the Medical Insurance Catalogue were changed from “limited to patients diagnosed with diseases indicated in the insert
sheets and subject to fasting or have dysphagia” to “Peptic Ulcer and Bleeding” as set out in the insert sheets. According
to the official documents of NHSA, further negotiations on prices of drugs admitted to the hospitals shall not be allowed.
Negotiation drugs shall not be subject to proportion and average costs, and physician shall give priority to use these drugs
in their practices. Accordingly, despite its lower price, llaprazole Sodium for Injection (S 57 Fi 3 &R 47), based on its
outstanding competitiveness, will continue to play an important role in clinical value. Following the inclusion into the Medical
Insurance Catalogue, the hospital coverage of this drug is expected to be further expanded, which will benefit more patients.
In response to the upcoming 2022 medical insurance negotiations, the Company will follow up the relevant policies of the
national medical insurance in real time, strengthen the clinical and pharmaco-economics research of its products in the post-
launch stage, and actively respond to the adjustment to the 2022 medical insurance catalogue.
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XIV. RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES (continued)
3. Risk of R&D for New Drugs

In general, pharmaceutical products (including vaccines) are required to go through many processes and stages from R&D to
market launch, including pre-clinical research, application for clinical registration, approval for clinical trials, clinical trials,
filing for production registration, on-site inspection, and approval for production, with a long cycle involving many segments,
and the R&D result is subject to uncertainty, hence risk of R&D exists. Also, after the product is successfully researched and
produced, the scale of market sales may also be affected by numerous factors. On 30 March 2020, the State Administration for
Market Regulation announced that the Administration Measures for Drug Registration ( { ZZ5asE & R ##)%) ) has come
into effect on 1 July 2020, which has encouraged R&D and innovation in pharmaceutical products to enhance their availability:
(i) by combining the development of pharmaceutical industry and the actual needs for clinical treatment in the PRC, and by
making reference to international experience, a new chapter on accelerating the market registration procedure for drugs has
been added and four accelerated channels including breakthrough treatment drugs, conditional approval, priority in evaluation
and approval, and special approval have been established; (i) drugs in shortage for urgent clinical use, drugs for children,
drugs for rare diseases, drugs for material infectious diseases, and other drugs listed in the Pharmaceutical Administration
Law and State Council documents are clearly included in the scope of accelerated market registration. The Administration
Measures for Drug Registration emphasizes on the orientation of clinical value, encourages research and invention of new
drugs, which have further enhanced the efficiency in drug registration, in particular registration for innovative drugs.

Response measures: The Company will focus on innovative drugs and high-barrier complex drug preparations, pay attention to
unfulfilled clinical needs and invest in innovative R&D as we have always pursued in the past. Meanwhile, the Company will
further improve the R&D and innovation systems, introduce and develop high-end talents, proactively carry out cooperation
and introduction of overseas innovative drugs, strengthen market research and evaluation of varieties, reinforce the process
regulation and risk management of the initiation of R&D projects, and concentrate efforts and make key breakthroughs in
the R&D of core products. At the same time, the Group's advantages in APIs will be fully utilized to reinforce the integration
of APl and drug preparations to ensure the long-term sustainability of the Company.
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XIV. RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES (continued)
4, Effect of the Normalization of COVID-19 Pandemic

The COVID-19 pandemic significantly affected the operation of the overall economy. During the aggravation of the pandemic,
as efforts of medical professionals were more focused on frontline work to prevent and control the pandemic, the consultation
rate of patients with other diseases had declined and the standard prescriptions issued by hospitals had dropped in number.
The production and operation of the Company was also affected to a certain extent. In March 2022, the outbreak of the
pandemic occurred in Shanghai. In addition, some cities in Guangdong Province and Macau, which is adjacent to Zhuhai,
also experienced sporadic pandemic. As at 30 June 2022, the overall pandemic situation in China remained stable. In the
first half of 2022, the country has promoted the COVID-19 vaccination in an orderly manner. According to data from the
official website of the National Health Commission, as at 30 June 2022, 31 provinces (including autonomous regions and
municipalities) and the Xinjiang Production and Construction Corps throughout the country have reported that a total of
3,402.622 million doses of the COVID-19 vaccines have been administered.

Response measures: In response to sporadic outhreaks of the pandemic, the Company immediately responded to government
needs, actively carried out the pandemic prevention and control work, strictly implemented relevant measures, coordinated
pandemic prevention and control, production and operation work, and actively organized nucleic acid tests for employees.
During the pandemic in Shanghai, as Shanghai Livzon, a subsidiary of the Company, made adequate preparations in advance
and formulated a contingency plan for the prevention and control of the COVID-19 pandemic, made preparations for logistics
distribution and channel reserve, and also launched the mechanism including “on-site + remote” working and employees
in key production positions and other core positions staying at the company, therefore, the Company's overall operations
were not significantly affected. Currently, Shanghai Livzon has fully resumed work and production, and its production has
returned to normal. In the beginning of 2021, Recombinant SARS-CoV-2 Fusion Protein Vaccine (EEFT A BB Z @A
EH&H) ("V-01") developed by LivzonBio was approved by the National Medical Products Administration for clinical trials.
The R&D cycle of COVID-19 vaccines is expected to be affected by a number of uncertainties, including the development of
COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in particular, in countries where the clinical trials are conducting or will conduct.
In addition, in light of the potential high investment in R&D of COVID-19 vaccines, as at the End of the Reporting Period,
the R&D investment of the Group increased by 17.22% as compared to the Previous Year. In general, the Company was
under normal operation during the Reporting Period, and the overall impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its business was
relatively slight The extent of its subsequent impact will depend on the prevention and control of the pandemic on a global
scale, the time of continuation, the prevention and control of the pandemic, and the responsive measures of enterprises.
The Company will continue to pay attention to the development of the pandemic and any possible impact on the financial
conditions and operating results of the Company, while adopting various measures at the same time to mitigate the adverse
effect of the pandemic on corporate operations, to ensure that the production and operation activities are performed in a
steady and orderly manner. Such measures include enhancing the operational management standard, controlling various
types of operational risks, and promoting innovation and synergy. Facing the new changes in the global market layout
brought by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company will reinforce our export advantages in special APIs, establish an internet
operation center to enhance the online promotions of some drug preparation products. Meanwhile, we will speed up the
overseas clinical progress of COVID-19 vaccines, give full play to the global supply of the COVID-19 vaccines, and actively
perform social responsibilities.
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XIV. RISKS AND RESPONSE MEASURES (continued)
5. Risk of Fluctuations in the Supply and Prices of Raw Materials

Raw materials such as traditional Chinese medicinal materials, APIs, supplementary materials, and packaging materials
have been affected by a number of factors including macroeconomic factors, monetary policy, environmental protection
management, natural disasters, etc. Instances of limited supply or volatile fluctuations in prices may be resulted, which may
have certain impact on the profitability of the Company.

Response measures: Firstly, the Company has already built its own GAP production base for some of the key categories
of the raw materials of traditional Chinese medicinal materials. Secondly, the Company will strengthen market supervision
and control and analysis, make rational arrangement for inventory and purchasing cycle to reduce risk. Furthermore, the
Company will refine production subject to guarantee on quality and implement effective cost control measures. Facing the
threat of COVID-19 pandemic, in view of the fact that raw materials for Ilaprazole series (3 & 71 Z 1)) products, Shengi
Fuzheng Injection (R EHKIE)E577R), Bismuth Potassium Citrate series (542 £ %) products, reproduction series products,
endocrine products and psychiatric products, which are the Group's key drug preparation products, were either self-produced
or supported by the entire industry chain within the Group, these raw materials were less affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Despite the relatively significant increase in the price of certain raw materials for Anti-viral Granules (195 & B841), the
impact on the cost of Anti-viral Granules (715552 22 £1) is under control since the Group has made strategic reserves of such
raw materials and directly purchased such raw materials from suppliers of GAP bases. In addition, prices of raw materials
for the Group's API segment has certain fluctuations as a result of the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and trading policies.
However, with its strategic reserve procurement and futures hedging activities, the Company was able to control the cost of
raw and auxiliary materials, our production operation was not affected much by the COVID-19 pandemic.

6. Risk of Environmental Protection

During the production of APIs, a certain amount of wastewater, waste gas and waste residue may be produced. As
national and local environmental protection authorities step up their efforts in the supervision and control of environmental
protection and increasing social awareness on environmental protection, the requirements on production enterprises of APIs
on environmental protection are becoming more stringent, and expenses of environmental protection have been increasing.
Some pharmaceutical enterprises are even faced with the troubles of production suspension and restricted production.

Response measures: The Company will strictly comply with the national environmental protection policies and legal
requirements, further increase investments and efforts in environmental protection, and continue reforming and upgrading
environmental equipment. Meanwhile, training and education on safety will be conducted in a timely manner, and strict
enterprise internal control standards will be set up, surveillance on major waste discharge units will be stepped up to attain
the discharge and emission standards and strictly monitor the risks of environmental protection.
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XV. REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
Repurchase of A Shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company had not repurchased A Shares.

Repurchase of H Shares

The grant of general mandate to the Board to repurchase H Shares of the Company (the “Second H Share Repurchase
Mandate") was considered and approved by the Board of the Company on 15 April 2021 and by the 2020 annual general
meeting, the 2021 first class meeting of A Shareholders and the 2021 first class meeting of H Shareholders of the Company
on 20 May 2021, respectively. The maximum number of H Shares proposed to be repurchased shall not exceed 31,323,561
H Shares, representing 10% of the total number of issued and unrepurchased H Shares on the date when the resolution
on the Second H Share Repurchase Mandate was approved, and other requirements are consistent with that of the First H
Share Repurchase Mandate.

As at 9 May 2022, the Company made a total repurchase of 3,404,400 H Shares of the Company (the “Repurchased H
Shares”) under the Second H Share Repurchase Mandate, accounting for 0.36% of the total issued share capital and 1.09%
of the total issued H Shares of the Company as at 9 May 2022. The highest purchase price was HKD27.00 per share,
while the lowest purchase price was HKD24.70 per share. The aggregate amount of funds used for the repurchase was
HKD87,004,410.00 (excluding the transaction costs). The cancellation of the Repurchased H Shares was completed on 10
May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, throughout the period from 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.

XVI. NON-PUBLIC ISSUANCE OF A SHARES

To achieve the long-term strategic development goals of the Company that adhere to innovative R&D and improved product
layout, and to supplement liquidity, repay bank loans and optimize the asset and liability structure as well as financial status
of the Company, the plan of non-public issuance of A Shares of the Company (the “Issuance”) was considered and approved
at the 2015 third extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 21 December 2015, while the adjustments to the
number of issuance, pricing methods and issue price for the Issuance were considered and approved at the 2016 second
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2016.

The Issuance was completed as approved by the CSRC on 19 September 2016. The number of shares under the Issuance
was 29,098,203 A Shares. The gross proceeds from the Issuance amounted to RMB1,457,819,970.30, and after deducting
issuance expenses of RMB37,519,603.53 in aggregate, the net proceeds were RMB1,420,300,366.77. On 20 September
2017, 37,827,664 restricted A Shares under the Issuance were issued and listed (after the 2016 profit distribution plan of
the Company was completed, the number of restricted shares under the Issuance increased from 29,098,203 A Shares to
37,827,664 A Shares).
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVI. NON-PUBLIC ISSUANCE OF A SHARES (continued)
Historical events

On 24 March 2017, the Company convened the thirty-fifth meeting of the eighth session of the Board and, after full inspection
of the progress of projects invested with the proceeds from the Issuance in 2016, considered and approved the adjustments
to projects invested with the proceeds of which the difference between the originally planned use of proceeds and the actual
use of proceeds exceeds 30%. Adjusted projects include the major investment plan of the “Project for in-depth development
and industrialization upgrade of innovative llaprazole series (3 EH MW 251 BI¥TE R E M B REZEARIER)"
and the major investment plan of increased capital injections in Livzon MAB for the construction of “Project for research &
development and industrialization of therapeutic antibody-based drugs (Y& 72 FE 71 B2 Z& 4 A 25 BREE 3£ (L 2R IB B )" (the
“Adjustments”). The Adjustments were made by the Company on the basis of the actual progress of the projects invested
with the proceeds. Adjustments were made only to the plans for use of proceeds in each of the subsequent years of the
relevant projects invested with the proceeds and the industrialization investment construction period of projects invested
with the proceeds, without changing the investment directions with the proceeds. The Adjustments were considered and
approved at the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company on 23 June 2017.

On 2 August 2017, to enhance the efficient use of raised funds and ensure the normal implementation of projects, the
Company convened the second meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve the proposed changes
of and adjustments to the projects invested with proceeds from the Issuance (the “Changes and Adjustments”) as follows:
(i) proposal to make changes to “Increased capital injections in Livzon MAB for the construction of ‘Project for research &
development and industrialization of therapeutic antibody-based drugs’ (¥ EEA B IL BN E R R AR AN B EY)
TrEr s E L ERIE R ")"; and (i) proposal to make adjustments to the sub-project under the “Construction project for
research & development platform for prolonged-action microsphere technologies (FAUMERB AT 2% F & B :RIER)".
Upon completion of the Changes and Adjustments, the Company will use its own funds to invest in the “Construction project
for research & development and industrialization of therapeutic antibody-based drugs (& &% F #7182 %5 fiff 35 £ 22 %11
3ZRIEH)". The Changes and Adjustments were considered and approved at the 2017 first extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 19 September 2017.

On 23 March 2018, the Company convened the eleventh meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve
the adjustment to the plans for the use of proceeds of projects invested with proceeds from the Issuance, including the plan
for the use of proceeds of “Project for in-depth development and industrialization upgrade of innovative llaprazole series (3
T ZONRIEE MR E M REZE(EFRIEE)" and the plan for the use of proceeds of “Relocation and expansion
project of Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc. (first phase) (BB ¥k B #T1b T RLBER D B IR A
AYRBIEEIE B (—HI))". The adjustments were made by the Company on the basis of the actual progress of the projects
invested with the proceeds. The adjustments were made only to the plans for use of proceeds in each of the subsequent
years of the projects invested with proceeds, without changing the investment directions with the proceeds. The adjustments

were considered and approved at the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company on 21 May 2018.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVI. NON-PUBLIC ISSUANCE OF A SHARES (continued)
Historical events (continued)

On 17 August 2018, the Company convened the eighteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve
the “Resolution on Reassessment and Continuation of the Project Invested with the Proceeds from Non-public Issuance ( <[
REFBELEBEERIEAFZTESESREEBMZEE) )", pursuant to which, the “Relocation and expansion
project of Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc. (first phase) (BB ¥k S B #TL T RLBERS (5 R A A
WBIEETE B (—HR))", a project invested with the proceeds that was postponed for over one year, was reassessed and
was determined to be continued after making adjustments to its construction period.

On 27 March 2019, the Company convened the twenty-fifth meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve
the “Resolution on Transferring Assets Relating to Part of Projects Invested with the Proceeds and Change of Sub-projects
under Projects Invested with the Proceeds ( (BAREZ M B0 EEESREBBNBEEEL T EEESRER
B-FIEEAEZ) )". Pursuant to which, the Board agreed (i) to transfer to Shanghai Livzon the ownership of the product
and technologies of the sub-project “Leuprorelin Acetate Sustained Release Microspheres for Injection (3 months) (E57 F
B BA so R B MR AR RE IR (3ME A))” (the "Project”) under the " Construction project for research & development platform for
prolonged-action microsphere technologies (& XM ER E I A 8 F & 2R IEE)"; (ii) the Company would subsequently no
longer invest in the Project by using the proceeds from the Issuance; (iii) to adjust the total planned investment of the proceeds
in the sub-project “Construction project for microsphere workshop of Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory (BB Ek 5=

BETR R BL IR M Bk BB 52 2% 7B B )" under the "Construction project for research & development platform for prolonged-
action microsphere technologies (=R T iff 37 & 2232 E H)" from RMB163.9333 million to RMB198.455 million.
Such resolution was considered and approved at the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company on 30 May 2019.

On 25 March 2020, the Company convened the thirty-seventh meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and
approve the “Resolution on Alteration to Certain Projects Invested with Proceeds and Adjustment to Investment Plan and
Utilisation of Part of Proceeds for Permanent Replenishment of Working Capital ( (B EE LHLEEE SR EHE K&
TG EFTEU B D EEE S KABTREESHEERZ) )", Pursuant to which, the Board approved (i) alteration
to the sub-projects under the “Project for in-depth development and industrialization upgrade of innovative Ilaprazole series
(ERm P BIFTE RFRERE REZ(EARIAER)" (the "llaprazole Project”) and adjustment to the investment plan;
(ii) alteration of use of proceeds of the sub-projects “llaprazole Optical Isomer Preparation (32 &z M ¢ 22 2 F5 88 RU 7))
and “llaprazole Compound Preparation (3 47148 75 £47)" under the Ilaprazole Project to permanent replenishment of
working capital; (iii) alteration to the sub-projects of “Construction project for research & development platform for prolonged-
action microsphere technologies (F R ER XMy ff 35 & 3R TEH)" (the "Prolonged-action Microsphere Project”) and
adjustment to the investment plan; (iv) inclusion of a new sub-project of “Construction of the chemical drug lyophilized
powder injection workshop ({b Z& R &2 i £ B B2 %)" under the llaprazole Project; and (v) inclusion of a new sub-project
of "Construction of sustained-release implants workshop (4218 A I & f&325%)" under the Prolonged-action Microsphere
Project. Such resolution was considered and approved at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company on 25 May 2020.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVI. NON-PUBLIC ISSUANCE OF A SHARES (continued)
Historical events (continued)

On 25 August 2020, the Company convened the third meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider and approve
the “Resolution on Alteration to the Implementing Body for Certain Projects Invested with Proceeds and Increasing Capital
to a Wholly-owned Subsidiary ( (R EEHLHEEESKREHEEHREIBERNEZEFAREENZER) )", and
agreed to (i) alter the implementing body of the Prolonged-action Microsphere Project from the Company and Pharmaceutical
Factory, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to the Company and Zhuhai Livzon Microsphere Technology Co., Ltd.
(FRETEBIRMEREHE AR A A]) (“Microsphere Technology”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). After the
change, the sub-projects of “Construction project for microsphere workshop” and “Construction of implants workshop” will
be implemented by Microsphere Technology; (ii) inject capital increase of RMB208.79211 million in cash to Microsphere
Technology by the Company with its own funds and inject capital increase of RMB139.19474 million to Microsphere
Technology by Pharmaceutical Factory in the form of its own production assets related to microsphere preparations (including
fixed assets formed by using the proceeds) which have been evaluated by a qualified evaluation agency, resulting in a total of
capital increase of RMB347.98685 million to Microsphere Technology by these two parties. After completion of such capital
increase, the registered capital of Microsphere Technology will be RMB353.48685 million; and (iii) adjust the organizational
structure, platform cooperation and staffing of business of the prolonged-action sustained-release microsphere preparation.
Such alteration did not result in a substantive change in the total investment, implementation location and construction
content of the Prolonged-action Microsphere Project. The total investment is still RMB411.4133 million. The Prolonged-action
Microsphere Project will be jointly implemented by the Company and Microsphere Technology.

On 16 November 2020, the Company convened the fifth meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider and approve
the “Resolution on Adjustment to the Implementation Site and Investment Plan of a Sub-project under Certain Project Invested
with Proceeds ( (AR AR B L ESEE SR ETHE FIHE B3 R EFTEIMZEZR) )", and agreed to adjust the
implementation site and investment plan of “Construction of the chemical drug lyophilized power injection workshop (1t %
REZHDETE R ZER)" (the "Sub-project”), a sub-project under the llaprazole Project. The construction period shall remain
two years, and the implementing bodies shall remain unchanged. The production equipment originally purchased with the
proceeds will continue to remain in the original construction site for use by other projects of the Company. To ensure the
use of proceeds for designated purpose, the Company will apply its own funds in replacement of the proceeds of RMB7.4793
million used for cleaning and decorating the workshop and purchasing equipment. After the adjustment, the total investment
in the llaprazole Project will remain to be RMB295.6272 million, and the investment amount in the Sub-project will remain
to be RMB102.6000 million. Such resolution was considered and approved at the 2020 fifth extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 11 December 2020.

On 22 March 2021, in view of the fact that the investment progress of the proceeds from the “Project for in-depth
development and industrialization upgrade of innovative llaprazole series (3 % H7 W 2 51| Bl E R S 2% R E 1L
FH4RIEE)" (the "Project”) in 2020 did not meet expectations, the Company convened the fourteenth meeting of the tenth
session of the Board to consider and approve the “Resolution on Adjustment to the Investment Plan of Certain Project Invested
with Proceeds ( (BN AR HEEE SR EEBIREFTEIAZES) )", which intended to adjust the investment plan
of the Project. The adjustments were made only to the plans for use of proceeds in each of the subsequent years of the
Project, without changing the investment directions with the proceeds. Such resolution was considered and approved at the
2020 annual general meeting of the Company on 20 May 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the Company made no adjustments to the investment plan with proceeds.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme

On 17 July 2018, the Company convened the sixteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve
the “2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company (Draft) ( €20184F AR ZEEAE M BT 2I(E %)) )" and its
summary (the “2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme”), pursuant to which, it was proposed to grant to incentive participants
19,500,000 share options which involved a total of 19,500,000 ordinary A Shares. In particular, there would be 17,550,000
shares options under the first grant (the “First Grant”), representing 90.00% of the total number under the 2018 Share
Options Incentive Scheme, and 1,950,000 shares options under the reserved grant (the “Reserved Grant"), representing
10.00% of the total number under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme.

Pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme constitutes a share option
scheme. On 26 July 2018, the Company was exempted from strict compliance with Note (1) to Rule 17.03 (9) of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules with respect to the exercise price of share options that may be granted under the 2018 Share Options
Incentive Scheme.

Purpose of the scheme

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme has been formulated to further establish and improve the Company’s long-term
incentive mechanism, attract and retain outstanding talents, maximize the motivation of Directors, senior management, mid-
level management and relevant core personnel of the Company and effectively align Shareholders’ interests, the Company's
interests and individual interests of the core team members so that the parties would make joint efforts for the Company's
long-term development.

Incentive participants, maximum entitlement, validity period of the scheme

The incentive participants of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme include the Directors, senior management, mid-level
management and relevant core personnel of the Company. The number of A Shares to be granted to any of the incentive
participants under the fully effective 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme shall not exceed 1% (i.e. 7,190,502.40 shares)
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme by
the shareholders’ general meeting. The validity period of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme shall not be longer than
60 months commencing on the registration date of grant of the share options and ending on the date on which all the share
options granted to the incentive participants have been exercised or otherwise cancelled.

Vesting period, exercise period and exercise date

The vesting period of the share options to be granted under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme is 12 months from
the registration date of grant. The incentive participants shall exercise their share options granted under the First Grant by
three tranches within the next 36 months following the expiry of the vesting period. The incentive participants shall exercise
their share options granted under the Reserved Grant by two tranches within the next 24 months following the expiry of
the vesting period.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)
Vesting period, exercise period and exercise date (continued)

The following table sets forth the exercise period under the First Grant and the exercise schedule for each tranche:

Exercise
Exercise arrangement Exercise period proportion
First exercise period for share ~ Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 12-month 40%

options under the First Grant ~ period from the registration completion date of the First Grant and
ending on the last trading day of the 24-month period from the
registration completion date of the First Grant
Second exercise period for share Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 24-month 30%
options under the First Grant  period from the registration completion date of the First Grant and
ending on the last trading day of the 36-month period from the
registration completion date of the First Grant
Third exercise period for share  Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 36-month 30%
options under the First Grant ~ period from the registration completion date of the First Grant and
ending on the last trading day of the 48-month period from the
registration completion date of the First Grant

The following table sets forth the exercise period under the Reserved Grant and the exercise schedule for each tranche:

Exercise
Exercise arrangement Exercise period proportion
First exercise period for share ~ Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 12-month 50%
options under the Reserved period from the registration completion date of the Reserved Grant
Grant and ending on the last trading day of the 24-month period from the
registration completion date of the Reserved Grant
Second exercise period for share Commencing on the first trading day after expiry of the 24-month 50%
options under the Reserved period from the registration completion date of the Reserved Grant
Grant and ending on the last trading day of the 36-month period from the

registration completion date of the Reserved Grant
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

Basis for determining exercise price

The exercise price of the share options under the First Grant shall not be lower than the par value of the A Shares, and shall
be the higher of the following:

(1

the average trading price of the A Shares of the Company for the last trading day preceding the date of announcement
of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (i.e. 17 July 2018) (the total transaction value of the A Shares for the
last trading day/the total trading volume of the A Shares for the last trading day), being RMB47.01 per share;

the average trading price of the A Shares of the Company for the last 20 trading days preceding the date of
announcement of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (the total transaction value of the A Shares for the last
20 trading days/the total trading volume of the A Shares for the last 20 trading days), being RMB45.54 per share.

The exercise price of the share options under the Reserved Grant shall not be lower than the par value of the A Shares, and
shall be the higher of the following:

(1

the average trading price of the A Shares of the Company for the last trading day preceding the date of announcement
of the Board resolution on the grant of share options under the Reserved Grant (i.e. 28 August 2019) (the total
transaction value of the A Shares for the last trading day/the total trading volume of the A Shares for the last trading
day), being RMB28.87 per share;

the average trading price of the A Shares of the Company for the last 20 trading days preceding the date of
announcement of the Board resolution on the grant of the share options under the Reserved Grant (the total
transaction value of the A Shares for the last 20 trading days/the total trading volume of the A Shares for the last
20 trading days), being RMB27.44 per share.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

Fair value and accounting policies of the share options

(1
(i)

Fair value
First Grant

The Company selected the Black-Scholes Model to calculate the fair value of share options under the First Grant, the
specific calculating methods and results of fair value of each share option are as follows:

Parameters Explanation for parameters

Price of underlying share RMB36.67 per share (the price on the date of grant)

Exercise price RMB47.01 per share option

Validity period of share The validity periods of the three exercise periods of share options are 1 year, 2
options years and 3 years, respectively

Risk-free interest rate Risk-free interest rates of the three exercise periods of share options are 1.50%,

2.10% and 2.75%, respectively (listed based on one-year, two-year, three-year time
deposit rate)

Volatility of underlying share  The volatility of the three exercise periods of share options are 19.85%, 17.40%
and 24.84%, respectively (listed based on the historic volatility rate of the SZSE
Composite Index in the latest one year, two years and three years)

Dividend yield of underlying ~ The dividend yields for the three exercise periods of share options are 3.0670%,

share 1.9084% and 1.6662%, respectively (listed based on the average dividend rate of

the Company in the latest one year, two years and three years)

Note 1: The expected dividend is calculated according to the historical dividend distributions of the Company.

Note 2: The risk-free interest rate is based on the interest rate of time deposits in the corresponding exercise period of share
options.

Note 3: The calculation results of the value of the share options are subject to a number of assumptions of the parameters used in
this section and the limitation of the model adopted, therefore the estimated value of the share options may be subjective
and uncertain.

The aforesaid parameters are substituted into the Black-Scholes Model to calculate the fair value of each share option.
The costs for the corresponding period are calculated based on the assumptions: exercise amount of each tranche
= total amount granted x exercise percentage of the period (exercise in tranches with the exercise percentage of
40%, 30% and 30%).

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
Fair value of the share options (RMB/share option) 0.34 0.82 3.26
Exercise amount (0’000 share options) 699.02 524.27 524.27
Total cost for the period (RMB0'000) 237.67 429.90 1,709.10
Total cost (RMBO0'000) 2,376.67

According to the aforesaid calculation, on 11 September 2018, the date of grant, the Group granted 17,475,500
share options to the incentive participants under the First Grant with the total fair value of RMB23.7667 million which
would be recognised by phrases during the implementation process of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme as
the incentive cost incurred thereunder.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)
Fair value and accounting policies of the share options (continued)
(1) Fair value (continued)

(if) Reserved Grant

The Company selected the Black-Scholes Model to calculate the fair value of share options under the Reserved Grant,
the specific calculating methods and results of fair value of each share option are as follows:

Parameters Explanation for parameters

Price of underlying share RMB28.72 per share (the price on the date of grant)

Exercise price RMB28.87 per share option

Validity period of share The validity periods of the two exercise periods of share options are 1 year and 2
options years, respectively

Risk-free interest rate Risk-free interest rates of the two exercise periods of share options are 1.50% and

2.10%, respectively (listed based on one-year and two-year time deposit rate)
Volatility of underlying share  The volatility of the two exercise periods of share options are 25.90% and
22.99%, respectively (listed based on the historical volatility rate of the SZSE
Composite Index in the latest one year and two years)
Dividend yield of underlying ~ The dividend yields for the two exercise periods of share options are 3.4642%
share and 3.2656%, respectively (listed based on the average dividend rate of the
Company in the latest one year and two years)

Note 1: The expected dividend is calculated according to the historical dividend distributions of the Company.

Note 2: The risk-free interest rate is based on the interest rate of time deposits in the corresponding exercise period of share
options.

Note 3: The calculation results of the value of the share options are subject to a number of assumptions of the parameters used in
this section and the limitation of the model adopted, therefore the estimated value of the share options may be subjective
and uncertain.

The aforesaid parameters are substituted into the Black-Scholes Model to calculate the fair value of each share option.
The costs for the corresponding period are calculated based on the assumptions: exercise amount of each tranche
= total amount granted x exercise percentage of the period (exercise in tranches with the exercise percentage of
50% and 50%).

Tranche 1 Tranche 2
Fair value of the share options (RMB/share option) 2.5585 3.1490
Exercise amount (0’000 share options) 126.225 126.225
Total cost for the period (RMB0'000) 322.95 397.48
Total cost (RMB0'000) 720.43

According to the aforesaid calculation, on 28 August 2019, the date of grant, the Group granted 2,524,500 share
options to the incentive participants under the Reserved Grant with the total fair value of RMB7.2043 million which
would be recognised by phrases during the implementation process of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme as
the incentive cost incurred thereunder.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)
Fair value and accounting policies of the share options (continued)
(2) Accounting policies

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of “Enterprise Accounting Standard No. 11 — Share-based Payments”, the
Company will update the expected amount of share options exercisable on each balance sheet date during the vesting
period based on latest available subsequent information such as the change in the number of incentive participants
who are entitled to exercise and the completion status of performance targets. Services received during the period
will be accounted in relevant costs or fees and capital reserve based on the fair value of the share options on the
date of grant.

Revision of the scheme

On 17 August 2018, the Company convened the eighteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider and approve,
pursuant to the communication between the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the amendment to the terms of
the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (the contents of amendment: there shall be no adjustment to the exercise price
of the share options in the event of declaration of dividend, apart from this, the rest of the 2018 Share Options Incentive
Scheme shall remain unchanged), and approved the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised Draft) and its summary
(the “2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised)”).

On 5 September 2018, the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised) was considered and approved at the 2018
third extraordinary general meeting, the 2018 third class meeting of A Shareholders and the 2018 third class meeting of H
Shareholders.

First Grant

(1) On 11 September 2018, the Company convened the nineteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider
and approve:

(i) the adjustment to the list of incentive participants and number of share options under the First Grant of the 2018
Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised): the adjustment to the number of incentive participants under the First
Grant from 1,116 to 1,050 and the adjustment to the number of share options under the First Grant from 17,550,000
to 17,475,500. Incentive participants under the First Grant included the Directors and the President of the Company
and their close associates;

(if) with 11 September 2018 as the date of the First Grant, granting 17,475,500 share options to 1,050 incentive
participants (incentive participants were not required to pay any consideration to the Company when accepting the
share options) with the exercise price of RMB47.01 per A Share. Registration of the First Grant was completed on
28 September 2018. The abbreviation of the share options: Livzon JLC1. The code of the share options: 037067.

(2) On 28 August 2019, the Company convened the thirty-first meeting of the ninth session of the Board, which considered
and approved the adjustment to the exercise price of share options under the First Grant from RMB47.01 per A
Share to RMB36.16 per A Share and the adjustment to the number of share options granted under the First Grant
from 17.4755 million to 22.71815 million, given that the Company had completed the issuance of 3 bonus shares
for every 10 shares to shareholders by conversion of capital reserve into share capital on 26 July 2019.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

First Grant (continued)

(3)

(ii)

(ii)

On 18 September 2019, the Company convened the thirty-second meeting of the ninth session of the Board to
consider and approve:

the cancellation of 254,995 share options held by 17 incentive participants which have been granted but not yet
exercised (the cancellation was completed on 16 October 2019, and the exercise price of the cancelled share options
was RMB36.16 per A share), since such 17 incentive participants under the First Grant no longer satisfied the incentive
conditions due to resignation on personal reasons. After the cancellation, the number of incentive participants under
the First Grant was adjusted from 1,050 to 1,033, and the number of share options under the First Grant was adjusted
from 22,718,150 to 22,463,155;

that the 1,033 incentive participants who have met the exercise conditions may exercise 8,985,262 share options
in the first exercise period at the exercise price of RMB36.16 per A Share, given that the exercise conditions for the
first exercise period under the First Grant have been fulfilled.

On 20 November 2019, after examination by Shenzhen Stock Exchange and CSDCC, the first exercise period of share
options granted under the First Grant took effect from 22 November 2019 to 27 September 2020. The incentive
participants must exercise during the exercise period, and the granted but outstanding share options shall not
be exercised after the expiry of the exercise period. The exercisable share options shall be exercised by incentive
participants on voluntary basis.

On 23 October 2020, the Company convened the fourth meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider and
approve:

since the first exercise period under the First Grant has expired on 27 September 2020, as at the expiry date, there
were a total of 162,912 share options held by 55 incentive participants have not been exercised in the first exercise
period under the First Grant, that the said 162,912 share options should be cancelled; since 129 incentive participants
under the First Grant no longer satisfied the incentive conditions due to resignation on personal reasons, that the
1,535,765 share options held by the said 129 incentive participants which were granted but no longer satisfied the
exercise conditions should be cancelled (the aforesaid cancellation was completed on 2 November 2020, the exercise
price of such cancelled shares options was RMB36.16 per A Share). After the cancellation, the number of share options
under the First Grant was adjusted from 22,463,155 to 20,764,478, and the number of incentive participants under
the First Grant was adjusted from 1,033 to 904;

that the 904 incentive participants who have met the exercise conditions may exercise 5,970,557 share options in
the second exercise period at the exercise price of RMB36.16 per A Share, given that the exercise conditions for the
second exercise period of the First Grant have been fulfilled.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

First Grant (continued)

(6)

On 9 November 2020, after examination by Shenzhen Stock Exchange and CSDCC, the exercise period of share
options of the second exercise period under the First Grant was from 11 November 2020 to 27 September 2021.
The incentive participants must exercise during the exercise period, the granted but outstanding share options shall
not be exercised after the expiry of the exercise period. The exercisable share options shall be exercised by incentive
participants on voluntary basis.

On 10 November 2021, the Company convened the twenty-fifth meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider
and approve:

since the second exercise period under the First Grant has expired on 27 September 2021, as at the expiry date,
there were a total of 323,274 share options held by 77 incentive participants have not been exercised in the second
exercise period under the First Grant, that the said 323,274 share options should be cancelled; since 107 incentive
participants under the First Grant no longer satisfied the incentive conditions due to resignation on personal reasons,
that the 673,422 share options held by the said 107 incentive participants which were granted but no longer satisfied
the exercise conditions should be cancelled (the aforesaid cancellation was completed on 19 November 2021, the
exercise price of such cancelled shares options was RMB36.16 per A Share). After the cancellation, the number of
share options under the First Grant was adjusted from 20,764,478 to 19,767,782, and the number of incentive
participants under the First Grant was adjusted from 904 to 797,

that the 797 incentive participants who have met the exercise conditions may exercise 5,297,236 share options in
the third exercise period at the exercise price of RMB36.16 per A Share, given that the exercise conditions for the
third exercise period of the First Grant have been fulfilled.

On 26 November 2021, after examination by Shenzhen Stock Exchange and CSDCC, the exercise period of share
options of the third exercise period under the First Grant was from 30 November 2021 to 27 September 2022. The
incentive participants must exercise during the exercise period, the granted but outstanding share options shall not
be exercised after the expiry of the exercise period. The exercisable share options shall be exercised by incentive
participants on voluntary basis.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)
First Grant (continued)

Details of the allocation and exercise of the First Grant are set out in the table below:

Number of ~ Number of Number of  Number of
share options share options ~ Number of share options share options
held as at exercised share options cancelled lapsed

1 January during held as at during during

2022 the Period 30 June 2022 the Period the Period
(0000 share (0000 share (0000 share (0000 share (0000 share

Incentive participant Position options)""’) options) options) options) options)

Mr. Tang Yanggang Executive Director and President 6.0840 - 6.0840 = =

Mr. Tao Desheng Vice Chairman and Non-Executive 7.6050 - 7.6050 - -
Director

Mr. Xu Guoxiang Vice Chairman, Executive Director 7.6050 - 7.6050 - -
and Vice President

Mr. Yang Daihong Vice President 6.0840 = 6.0840 = =

Ms. Si Yanxia Vice President, Chief Financial 6.0840 - 6.0840 - -
Officer

Mr. Zhou Peng Vice President 4,0560 - 40560 - -

Ms. Huang Yuxuan Vice President 3.5490 = 3.5490 = =

Mr. Xu Peng Vice President 3.0420 = 3.0420 = =

Mr. Yang Liang Vice President, Secretary to the 3.5490 - 3.5490 - -
Board and Company Secretary

Ms. Hou Xuemei Mid-level management 3.0420 - 3.0420 - -

Mid-level management and relevant core personnel 466.1509 28.3479 437.8030 - -

of the Company (1,023 persons)

Notes:

(1) The grant date of the aforesaid share options is 11 September 2018, and the exercise price is RMB47.01 per A Share (the exercise
price was adjusted to RMB36.16 per A Share on 28 August 2019). For details of the validity period and exercise period of the
aforesaid share options, please refer to the relevant contents of “Incentive participants, maximum entitlement, validity period of
the scheme” and "Vesting period, exercise period and exercise date” as set out above.

(2) On 10 September 2018 (one day before the grant date), the closing price of the A Shares of the Company was RMB36.66 per
share.

(3) During the Reporting Period, the weighted average closing price of the A Share of the Company for all incentive participants in
aggregate immediately preceding the exercise date under the First Grant was RMB37.61 per share.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

Reserved Grant

(M

(ii)

On 28 August 2019, the Company convened the thirty-first meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider
and approve:

The adjustment of the number of share options under the Reserved Grant from 1.95 million to 2.5350 million, given
that the Company has completed the issuance of 3 bonus shares for every 10 shares to shareholders by way of
conversion of capital reserve into share capital on 26 July 2019;

With 28 August 2019 as the grant date of the Reserved Grant, granting 145 incentive participants a total of 2.5350
million share options (incentive participants are not required to pay any consideration to the Company when accepting
the share options) with the exercise price of RMB28.87 per A share.

On 18 September 2019, the Company convened the thirty-second meeting of the ninth session of the Board to consider
and approve the adjustment to the list of incentive participants under the Reserved Grant. The number of incentive
participants under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 145 to 170, with the total number of share options under
the Reserved Grant remained unchanged, and a total of 2.5350 million share options were granted to 170 incentive
participants;

On 28 October 2019, registration of the Reserved Grant was completed. The abbreviation of the share option: Livzon
JLC2. The code of the share option: 037083. During the registration process of share options, one incentive participant
no longer has the incentive qualification due to resignation, and two incentive participants voluntarily gave up the
share options to be granted by the Company due to personal reasons. Therefore, the actual number of incentive
participants under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 170 to 167, and the actual number of share options under
the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 2.5350 million to 2.5245 million.

On 23 October 2020, the Company convened the fourth meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider and
approve:

Since 10 incentive participants under the Reserved Grant no longer satisfied the incentive conditions due to resignation
on personal reasons, that the 309,900 share options held by the said 10 incentive participants which were granted
but no longer satisfied the exercise conditions should be cancelled (the aforesaid cancellation was completed on
2 November 2020, the exercise price of such cancelled shares options was RMB28.87 per A Share). After the
cancellation, the number of share options under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 2,524,500 share options to
2,214,600 share options, and the number of incentive participants under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 167
to 157.

That the 157 incentive participants who have met the exercise conditions may exercise 1,107,300 share options in

the first exercise period at the exercise price of RMB28.87 per A Share, given that the exercise conditions for the
first exercise period of the Reserved Grant have been fulfilled.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)

1.

The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)

Reserved Grant (continued)

(5)

On 9 November 2020, after examination by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and CSDCC, the exercise period of the
share options of the first exercise period under the Reserved Grant was from 12 November 2020 to 27 October 2021.
The incentive participants must exercise during the exercise period, the granted but outstanding share options shall
not be exercised after the expiry of the exercise period. The exercisable share options shall be exercised by incentive
participants on voluntary basis.

On 10 November 2021, the Company convened the twenty-fifth meeting of the tenth session of the Board to consider
and approve:

Since the first exercise period under the Reserved Grant has expired on 27 October 2021, as at the expiry date,
there were a total of 31,150 share options held by 7 incentive participants have not been exercised in the first
exercise period under the Reserved Grant, that the said 31,150 share options should be cancelled; since 18 incentive
participants under the Reserved Grant no longer satisfied the incentive conditions due to resignation on personal
reasons, that the 129,400 share options held by the said 18 incentive participants which were granted but no longer
satisfied the exercise conditions should be cancelled (the aforesaid cancellation was completed on 19 November
2021, the exercise price of such cancelled shares options was RMB28.87 per A Share). After the cancellation, the
number of share options under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 2,214,600 to 2,054,050, and the number of
incentive participants under the Reserved Grant was adjusted from 157 to 139;

That the 139 incentive participants who have met the exercise conditions may exercise 977,900 share options in
the second exercise period at the exercise price of RMB28.87 per A Share, given that the exercise conditions for the
second exercise period of the Reserved Grant have been fulfilled.

On 26 November 2021, after examination by Shenzhen Stock Exchange and CSDCC, the exercise period of share
options of the second exercise period under the Reserved Grant was from 30 November 2021 to 27 October 2022.
The incentive participants must exercise during the exercise period, the granted but outstanding share options shall
not be exercised after the expiry of the exercise period. The exercisable share options shall be exercised by incentive
participants on voluntary basis.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVII.SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES (continued)
1. The 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (continued)
Reserved Grant (continued)

Details of the allocation and exercise of the Reserved Grant are set out in the table below:

Number of Number of Number of

Number of share options Number of share options share options
share options exercised share options cancelled lapsed
held as at during held as at during during

1 January 2022 the Period 30 June 2022 the Period the Period

(0000 share (0000 share (0000 share (0°000 share (0000 share

Incentive participant options)"? options) options) options) options)

Mid-level management and core personnel 82.7556 21.3357 61.4199 - -
of the Company (157 persons)

Notes:

(1 The grant date of the aforesaid share options was 28 August 2019, and the exercise price was RMB28.87 per share. For details of
the validity period and exercise period of the aforesaid share options, please refer to the relevant contents in “Incentive participants,
maximum entitlement, validity period of the scheme” and “Vesting period, exercise period and exercise date” as set out above.

(2) On 27 August 2019 (one day before the grant date), the closing price of A Shares of the Company was RMB29.39 per share.

(3) During the Reporting Period, the weighted average closing price of the A Share of the Company for all incentive participants in
aggregate immediately preceding the exercise date under the Reserved Grant was RMB36.08 per share.

As at the End of the Reporting Period, the total number of ordinary A Shares of the Company that may be issued under the
2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised) was 5,499,229 shares, including 4,885,030 share options under the First
Grant and 614,199 share options under the Reserved Grant, which in aggregate represented 0.59% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the End of the Period.

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed above, all share options granted under the First Grant and the Reserved Grant
have not been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

/9



80

SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVIlIl. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

The Medium to Long-term Business Partner Share Ownership Scheme (Draft) and its summary (the “Ownership Scheme”)
was considered and approved by the 2020 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 11 February 2020. In
order to further improve the Ownership Scheme, on 11 December 2020, the Company’s 2020 fifth extraordinary general
meeting considered and approved the revision of some provisions under the Ownership Scheme. On 6 May 2021, the 2021
second extraordinary general meeting of the Company considered and approved the First Phase Ownership Scheme under
the Ownership Scheme (the “First Phase Ownership Scheme”) and its administrative measures.

On 18 May 2021, the First Phase Ownership Scheme has completed the opening of a securities account (the “Account”)
in the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited. On 26 May 2021, the First Phase
Ownership Scheme purchased a total of 2,348,960 A Shares of the Company (the “Shares”) through the Account by means
of centralized bidding transactions. The average transaction price was RMB49.92 per share, and the transaction amount
was RMB117,268,338.21. As at 26 May 2021, the First Phase Ownership Scheme has completed the share purchase, and
the Shares would be locked up for 36 months as required (from 27 May 2021 to 26 May 2024).

On 20 May 2022, the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company considered and approved the Second Phase Ownership
Scheme under the Ownership Scheme (the "Second Phase Ownership Scheme”) and its administrative measures (the
“Administrative Measures”).

The holders of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme (the “Holders”) include connected persons of the Company (the
“Connected Holders”). The maximum share of subscription held by the Connected Holders (the “Maximum Share of
Subscription”) are 27,123,084 units, and the corresponding maximum subscription amount is RMB27,123,084. Pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Second Phase Ownership Scheme does not constitute a share option scheme,
and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The grant of share of subscription by the Company to the Connected Holders constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio of the Maximum
Share of Subscription is higher than 0.1% but lower than 5%, such grant of share of subscription by the Company to the
Connected Holders is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempted from the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

On 27 May 2022, the first Holders' meeting under the Second Phase Ownership Scheme considered and approved (i)
the establishment of the management committee of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme as the daily supervision and
management agency for the Second Phase Ownership Scheme; and (ii) the election of Mr. Tang Yanggang, Ms. Si Yanxia
and Mr. Yang Liang as members of the management committee of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme.

On 8 July 2022, in order to ensure the smooth implementation of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme, having comprehensively
considered external factors and the actual conditions of the Company, the 2022 first extraordinary general meeting of the
Company considered and approved the amendment to the Second Phase Ownership Scheme and its administrative measures,
which would change from being managed by commissioning the asset management agency to being managed by the Company
itself. As at the disclosure date of the Report, no shares have been purchased under the Second Phase Ownership Scheme.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVIIl. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(continued)

The summary of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme is as follows:

Purpose and benefits of the scheme

The Second Phase Ownership Scheme has been formulated to establish an innovative long-term incentive stock ownership
mechanism for senior management and core technical teams. By attaching rights and obligations to the Holders and
establishing the business partnership mechanism of “enjoying the benefits and assuming the risk together”, it is expected
to effectively advance and promote the change from “managers” to “partners” in the Company. The Ownership Scheme will
help to optimise the compensation structure of the Company, promote the long-term stable development of the Company
and enhance the overall value of the Company.

Participation principles and target participants

The Second Phase Ownership Scheme follows the principles of independent decision by the Company and voluntary
participation of employees. There will not be any such situation of forcing employees to participate in the Second Phase
Ownership Scheme by way of apportionment or forced distribution.

The scope of the Holders of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall include senior management of the Company, key
R&D and sales personnel who have made outstanding contribution to the performance in the assessment period or will have
important impact on the future performance of the Company, general managers of the business divisions of the Company,
key management personnel including general managers of the subsidiaries and heads of level 1 functional departments at the
headquarter of the Company. The total number of participants under the Second Phase Ownership Scheme is 78, of which 9
are Directors (excluding independent non-executive Directors), Supervisors and senior management. Shareholders holding more
than 5% of the shares of the Company and de facto controllers shall not participate in the Second Phase Ownership Scheme.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVIlIl. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(continued)
Source of funds

Funds for participation of the Company’s employees in the Second Phase Ownership Scheme come from the special fund
(the “Special Fund”) of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme set aside by the Company. There is no circumstance where the
Company provides financial assistance to employees or provide guarantees for their loans, or where third parties provide
incentives, grants and subsidies, and make up the balance to target participants. The total amount of funds to be held by
the Second Phase Ownership Scheme is RMB64,965,470, all of which are the Special Fund set aside by the Company.

The Special Fund shall be extracted with net profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company after deducting the
extraordinary gains or losses in 2018 (RMB947.2163 million) as the base. During the period of assessment (2019-2028),
the Company will use the compound growth rate of net profit achieved in each year as the assessment indicator to calculate
and set aside a progressive Special Fund for each period. The ratios are set out in details as below:

Compound growth rate of net profit achieved Percentage of progressive Special Fund with a

in each year of assessment (X) compound growth rate of over 15%
X<15% 0
15% <X<20% 25%
20% <X 35%

If the amount of Special Fund to be set aside exceeds 8% of the audited net profit attributable to the Shareholders of the
Company after deducting the extraordinary gains or losses in that year, the Special Fund shall be set aside in the amount of
8% of the audited net profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company after deducting the extraordinary gains or losses.

If the audited net profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company after deducting the extraordinary gains or losses
in the current year increases less than 5% year-on-year comparing to that in the previous year due to the provision of the
Special Fund, no Special Fund shall be set aside for the year.

Source of shares

Underlying shares (the “Underlying Shares”) purchased through means as permitted by the laws and regulations, including
purchases through the secondary market (including but not limited to auction transactions and block trades). Under the
Second Phase Ownership Scheme, where the Underlying Shares are purchased through the secondary market, it shall be
completed within six months after the resolution on the Second Phase Ownership Scheme is reviewed and approved by the
general meeting.

Number of shares

The aggregate number of shares to be held in the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total
current share capital of the Company, and the aggregate number of shares corresponding to the share of the Second Phase
Ownership Scheme to be held by a single employee shall not exceed 1% of the total current share capital of the Company.

The aggregate number of the Underlying Shares shall not include shares obtained by the Holders prior to the initial public

offering of shares by the Company, shares purchased through the secondary market and shares obtained through equity
incentives.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XVIIl. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(continued)
Duration and lock-up period

The duration of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall be 48 months, which is calculated from the time when the Company
makes an announcement on the transfer of the last tranche of the Underlying Shares in the Second Phase Ownership Scheme
to the account in the name of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme.

Lock-up periods of the Underlying Shares obtained by the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall be 36 months, which is
calculated from the time when the Company makes an announcement on the transfer of the last tranche of the Underlying
Shares in the Second Phase Ownership Scheme to the account in the name of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme.

Management model

The highest organ of authority responsible for the internal management of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall be the
Holders' meeting (the “Holders’ Meeting”). The Holders' Meeting under the Second Phase Ownership Scheme shall elect a
management committee (the “Management Committee”). The Management Committee shall perform the daily management
of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme in accordance with the provisions of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme. The
Second Phase Ownership Scheme will be managed by the Company.

Disposal of interests

(1) After the expiration of the duration of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme, (i) the Holders' Meeting shall authorize
the Management Committee to complete clearance within 15 working days from the expiration of the duration or
termination of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme. After deducting relevant taxes and fees according to the law, the
allocation of interests shall be carried out in accordance with relevant regulations under the Administrative Measures;
(i) if any of the Underlying Shares is still included in the assets which are held by the Second Phase Ownership
Scheme, the Management Committee shall determine a specific way of disposal.

(2) After the lock-up period of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme expires, interests may be disposed of according to
one of the following ways:

(i) continue to hold the Underlying Shares during the duration;
(ii) sell the Underlying Shares that are purchased by the Second Phase Ownership Scheme within the duration;

(i) transfer the ownership of the Underlying Shares to the personal accounts of Holders of the Second Phase Ownership
Scheme;

(iv)  other ways as permitted by the laws, administrative regulations, rules or normative documents.

After the lock-up period of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme expires, the Management Committee may seek to sell the
Underlying Shares at its option during the duration of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme. Where there is distributable
income after the lock-up period of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme expires, the Management Committee shall allocate
the distributable income. The Management Committee shall, after deducting relevant taxes and fees according to law, allocate
the aforementioned distributable income according to the number of shares that are held by the Holders.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XIX. PROPOSED SPIN-OFF AND PROPOSED A SHARE LISTING OF LIVZON
DIAGNOSTICS ON THE CHINEXT BOARD OF THE SHENZHEN STOCK
EXCHANGE

Reference is hereby made to the announcements dated 9 August 2020 and 10 August 2020, 16 October 2020 and 17 October
2020, 23 October 2020 and 24 October 2020 and the circular dated 4 November 2020 (the “Circular”) of the Company
published on the Company’s website, HKEXnews and Cninfo.

On 7 August 2020, in order to strengthen the overall dominant position of the Group in diagnostic reagents and equipment
through the capital market, improve financing efficiency and leverage the advantages of the listing platform of subsidiary,
the Board of the Company considered and approved the resolutions on the proposed spin-off and A share listing of Livzon
Diagnostics. As at the same date, the Company held 39.425% of the shares of Livzon Diagnostics, which is a controlling
subsidiary of the Company.

On 16 October 2020, the Company was notified by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange that the Listing Committee had agreed
that the Company may proceed with the proposed spin-off pursuant to Practice Note 15 under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules, and had agreed to grant a waiver from strict compliance with the applicable requirements in relation to the assured
entitlement under paragraph 3(f) of Practice Note 15 under the Hong Kong Listing Rules in connection with the proposed
spin-off and the proposed A share listing.

On 23 October 2020, the Board of the Company considered and approved the proposed spin-off of Livzon Diagnostics for
listing on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Subject to approvals by the Shareholders and the relevant
PRC regulators, Livzon Diagnostics currently proposes to issue and list A shares on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange by way of offline placing and online subscription by the public in the PRC market or other issuance methods as may
be acknowledged by CSRC or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. It is anticipated that the Company shall maintain not less than
29.57% of the total issued share capital of Livzon Diagnostics upon and after completion of the proposed A share listing.

The new shares proposed to be issued by Livzon Diagnostics will result in a dilution of the Company's equity interest in Livzon
Diagnostics, and if materialises, the proposed spin-off and the proposed A share listing will constitute a deemed disposal
of the Company's equity interest in Livzon Diagnostics. According to the data available to the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date of the Circular, all of applicable percentage ratios in relation to the proposed spin-off and the proposed A
share listing were less than 5%. Therefore, according to Chapter 14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the proposed spin-off
and the proposed A share listing does not constitute a notifiable transaction of the Company. However, the proposed spin-
off is required to obtain approval at the general meeting of the Company in order to comply with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations.

On 20 November 2020, the proposed spin-off was considered and approved at the 2020 fourth extraordinary general meeting
of the Company. Livzon Diagnostics completed the filing for registration of tutoring at the Guangdong CSRC Bureau in
November 2020 and had submitted seven tutoring progress reports as at the disclosure date of the Report. Save as disclosed
herein, as at the disclosure date of the Report, Livzon Diagnostics has not submitted any other application or filing to the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the relevant regulatory authorities of the PRC.
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SECTION Il MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

XX. LIST OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

As at the disclosure date of the Report, the Board of the Company is comprised of eleven Directors, including two executive
Directors, four non-executive Directors and five independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Yanggang (EFZ I 4 4E) (President)
Mr. Xu Guoxiang (R BI%£ %5 &) (Vice Chairman and Vice President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Baoguo (5&ARE 5t 4E) (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Desheng (K2 % %t ) (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Qiu Qingfeng (Ef B & 5t &)

Mr. Yu Xiong (817 55 &)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Hua (E1 £ %5 &)

Mr. Tian Qiusheng (FH XA 55 4E)
Mr. Wong Kam Wa (& $82£ 5 &)
Mr. Luo Huiyuan (ZB &= St 4)
Ms. Cui Lijie (EERBfEZZ L)

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is comprised of three Supervisors. As at the disclosure date of the Report, the
Supervisors of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Wang Maolin (ZEIP#RSE £E) (Chief Supervisor)

Mr. Huang Huamin (8% &)
Mr. Tang Yin (58l E 4)
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

I.  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
CONVENED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. General Meetings During the Reporting Period

Participation
Type of percentage Date of Disclosure
Meeting sessions meeting of investors meeting date Meeting resolutions

2021 Annual General Meeting Annual General 50.4765% 20 May 2022 21 May 2022 Consideration and approval of 12
Meeting resolutions including the Work
Report of the Board for the
Year 2021, the Work Report
of the Supervisory Committee
for the Year 2021, the 2021
Annual Report of Livzon
Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (full
text and summary), the 2021
Annual Profit Distribution Plan,
the Grant of General Mandate
to the Board to Repurchase H
Shares of the Company and
the Draft and Summary of
the Second Phase Ownership
Scheme under the Medium to
Long-term Business Partner
Share Ownership Scheme of
the Company
2022 First Class Meeting of A Class Meeting 42.9719% Consideration and approval of
Shareholders the Grant of General Mandate
to the Board to Repurchase H
Shares of the Company
2022 First Class Meeting of H Class Meeting 65.6144% Consideration and approval of
Shareholders the Grant of General Mandate
to the Board to Repurchase H
Shares of the Company

2. Holders of Preferred Shares with Resumed Voting Rights Requesting to Hold
Extraordinary General Meeting

O] Applicable v Not applicable
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Il. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Overview

During the Reporting Period, the Company constantly enhanced the corporate governance structure and strengthened the
internal control systems of the Company strictly in accordance with the Company Law, the Securities Law, the Guidelines for
Corporate Governance of Listed Companies, the Shenzhen Listing Rules, the Guideline No.1 on Self-Discipline Supervision
of Companies Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange — Standardized Operation of Main Board Listed Companies, the
Guidelines for Standardised Operation of Companies Listed on the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and other
requirements of normative documents relating to the governance of listed companies announced by the CSRC, the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, to achieve higher corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that the actual conditions of corporate governance of the Company are in compliance with the rules
and requirements of normative documents including the Guidelines for Corporate Governance of Listed Companies without
deviation. During the Reporting Period, the decision-making and supervisory organs of the Company, including the general
meetings, the Board and the Supervisory Committee, have all carried out management, decision-making and supervision
strictly pursuant to the requirements of normative operation rules and internal control, with standardized and effective
operation. The special committees of the Board have all performed their corresponding duties.

2. Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Company confirmed that during the period from 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022, the Company has strictly complied
with the principles and the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

3. Compliance with the Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules as its own Model
Code regarding the securities transactions in the H Shares of the Company by the Company’s Directors, Supervisors and the
“Relevant Employees” as defined in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. After making due and specific enquiries to all of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company, the Company was not
aware of any information which has reasonably revealed that each of the Directors and Supervisors has not complied with
the standards required by the above-mentioned code regarding securities transactions during the period from 1 January 2022
to 30 June 2022. All Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the standards as set out in the
above-mentioned code during the period from 1 January 2022 to 30 June 2022. The Company has also made specific enquiries
to all relevant employees in respect of compliance with the standards set out in the above-mentioned code by the employees,
and noted that there has been no incident of non-compliance with the standards as set out in the above-mentioned code.
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

II. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
4. Special Committees of the Board

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, three committees are set up under the Board, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration and Assessment Committee, and the Nomination Committee, so as to oversee specific scopes concerning the
state of affairs of the Company. Each of the Board committees has specific term of reference in writing. The written term of
reference for each of the Board committees are published on websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.
Apart from the requirements under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code, the Company has also
established (i) the Strategy Committee in order to monitor the Company's long-term development strategic plan, conduct
research and give recommendations thereon; and (i) the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Committee (the
“ESG Committee”) in order to promote the development and implementation of ESG affairs of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee under the tenth session of the Board is comprised of three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Bai Hua and other committee members are Mr. Luo Huiyuan and Mr. Tian
Qiusheng. Mr. Bai Hua possesses appropriate accounting and financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules. The key responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's financial reports;
review the Company's financial control system, risk management system and internal control system; study the Company’s
relationships with external auditors and consider the annual audit plans submitted by external auditors; and review the
arrangement in the Company for submission of reports in confidence by relevant employees of the Company in relation to
concern of possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other aspects.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's unaudited interim results and interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2022 and agreed to submit the same to the Board for consideration.

Remuneration and Assessment Committee

The Remuneration and Assessment Committee under the tenth session of the Board is comprised of three independent non-
executive Directors. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Tian Qiusheng and other committee members are Mr. Bai Hua
and Ms. Cui Lijie, the member composition is in compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.25 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. The key responsibilities of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee are to assess, review and give advice to/advise
the Board on the remuneration packages for the chairman of the Board, executive Directors and senior management of the
Company, and to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management's
remuneration and the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy, so as to
ensure that any Director or any of their associates shall not be involved in fixing their remuneration and related matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee under the tenth session of the Board is comprised of three Directors. The chairman of the
committee is Mr. Luo Huiyuan (independent non-executive Director) and other committee members include Mr. Tian Qiusheng
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Tao Desheng (non-executive Director). The member composition is in compliance
with the requirements under code provision B.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, number of members
and composition of the Board (in respect of various areas including gender, age, cultural and educational background, skills,
knowledge and experience); to study the criteria and procedures for selection and appointment of Directors and senior
management, and to make recommendations thereon to the Board; to advise the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of Directors and succession plan for Directors (particularly the chairman and the president); and to evaluate the independence
of independent non-executive Directors.
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

II. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
4. Special Committees of the Board (continued)
Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee under the tenth session of the Board is comprised of three Directors. The chairman of the committee
is Mr. Zhu Baoguo (non-executive Director) and other committee members include Mr. Tao Desheng (non-executive Director)
and Mr. Tang Yanggang (executive Director). The key responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are to conduct research on
the Company's long-term development strategies and major investment decisions, and to give recommendations thereon.

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee

The ESG Committee under the tenth session of the Board is comprised of five Directors. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Zhu Baoguo (non-executive Director), and other committee members are Mr. Tang Yanggang (executive Director), Mr.
Bai Hua, Mr. Tian Qiusheng and Mr. Wong Kam Wa (independent non-executive Directors). The key responsibilities of the
ESG Committee are to review the ESG affairs of the Group and report to the Board on such matters, and to perform other
responsibilities prescribed from time to time by the Shenzhen Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

lll. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF
THE COMPANY

O] Applicable v Not applicable

IV. CHANGES IN THE BRIEF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report, changes in the brief biographies of Directors, Supervisors and senior management during their
term of office required to be disclosed according to Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B of the Hong Kong Listing Rules are set out
below:

Mr. Tang Yanggang has been a member of Zhuhai Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since June
2022. He ceased to be a member of Qingyuan Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in June 2022.

Mr. Tian Qiusheng has been an independent director of Audiowell Electronics (Guangdong) Co., Ltd. (/&5 B8 it g {5 %}
R AD B R A7) (Beijing Stock Exchange: 832491) since December 2019.

Mr. Luo Huiyuan has been an independent director of China TX 110T Corporation Limited (£ B X{= %5 6E B A% 15 B IR
/X 7)) since December 2021. He ceased to be an independent director of Tibet Tianlu Co., Ltd. (FR#EL KB I (D BBR A R))
(600326.SH) in January 2022.

Mr. Huang Huamin has been an arbitrator of Zhuhai Court of International Arbitration (¥k/& BIFR £k F) since January 2022.
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SECTION IV CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

V. PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND CONVERSION OF CAPITAL RESERVE INTO
SHARE CAPITAL FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD

L] Applicable v Not applicable

VI. IMPLEMENTATION OF EQUITY INCENTIVE SCHEME, EMPLOYEE SHARE
OWNERSHIP SCHEME OR OTHER EMPLOYEE INCENTIVES OF THE
COMPANY

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Please refer to the relevant contents of “XVII. SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES" and “XVIII. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM
BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME" in Section Il of the Report for details.
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

. UNDERTAKINGS FULFILLED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD OR NOT
YET FULFILLED AS AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD BY THE
PARTIES TO THE UNDERTAKINGS SUCH AS THE DE FACTO CONTROLLER,
SHAREHOLDERS, RELATED PARTIES, PURCHASERS OF THE COMPANY AND
THE COMPANY

O] Applicable v Not applicable

Il. LITIGATION MATTERS
Material litigation and arbitration matters

[ Applicable v Not applicable
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not have any material litigation or arbitration matters.

Other litigation matters

v Applicable [ Not applicable

As at the End of the Reporting Period, other litigation cases of the Company that have not reached the standard for disclosure
as material litigation involved a total amount of RMB4.6472 million.

lll. MATTERS RELATED TO BANKRUPTCY REORGANISATION
L] Applicable v Not applicable
IV. INFORMATION ON NON-OPERATING USE OF FUNDS OF THE LISTED

COMPANY BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER RELATED
PARTIES

[J Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-operating use of funds of the listed company by the controlling shareholders
of the Company and other related parties.

V. EXPLANATION ON CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION IN
COMPARISON WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PREVIOUS
ACCOUNTING PERIOD

v Applicable [ Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the scope of consolidated financial statements of the Company increased by one controlling
subsidiary, with details as follows:

Livzon HK, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, established LIVZON BIOLOGICS (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. in Malaysia on
12 January 2022 with a registered capital of 100 MYR, of which 100% was held by Livzon HK.
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

VI. APPOINTMENT AND DISMISSAL OF ACCOUNTING FIRM

The 2021 Annual General Meeting of the Company considered and approved the re-appointment of Grant Thornton (Special
General Partnership) as the auditor of the Company for the year 2022.

Whether the interim financial report has been audited

L] Yes v No

The interim report of the Company has not been audited.

VIl. PUNISHMENT AND RECTIFICATION
L] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not subject to any punishment or rectification.

VIII. INTEGRITY OF THE COMPANY AND ITS CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND
DE FACTO CONTROLLER
L] Applicable v Not applicable

Neither the Company nor its controlling shareholder or de facto controller has failed to comply with any effective court rulings
or has failed to repay any substantial debts when they fall due.

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES

1. Connected Transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business
v Applicable [J Not applicable

Proportionto ~ Whether

Amountof transaction the Settlement
Description Pricing principle ~ connected ~ amount of  approved  method of
Relationship with Type of connected  of connected of connected transaction the same  amountis  connected
Connected party connected party transaction transaction transaction (R0 00Y) category  exceeded transaction
Shenzhen Haibin Phamaceutical Co, Lt Subsiiary of the contralling ~ Purchase of goods— Raw mateials Determined by 831,59 06% Mo Settled through
(AT EREERA) shareholder neqotiaton based on banks
market pice
Jiaozuo Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Co, L.~ Subsidry of the contolling ~ Purchase of qoods e materal Determined by 179280 519% o Setfled through
(EfEETANERERAT) sharehlder negotaton based on banks
market prce
Joincare Phamaceutical Industry Group Co, Ltd.  Controlling shareholder Purchase of qoods ~~ Finished products~~ Determined by 148 001%  No Setted through
[RETEXEERNERAT) neqotiaton based on banks
market pice
Guangdong Blue Treasure Phamaceutical Company inwhich a Director ~ Purchase of goods~~ Raw materials Determined by 159 011%  No Settld through
(o, Ltd of the Company serves as negotiaton based on banks
(EREEHERRLR) adirectr matket rce
liangsu Yiyingja Medical Technology Co, td. ~~ Companycontrolled bya — Puchaseofqoods  Finshed producs~ Determined by 11 002% N Setfled through
(TH-RFERHEERAT) Diecorof the Company neqatiaton based on banks
market pice
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES (continued)

1. Connected Transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business (continued)
Proportionto ~ Whether
Amountof transaction  the Settlement
Description Pricing principle ~ connected ~ amountof  approved  method of
Relationship with Type of connected ~ of connected of connected transaction the same  amountis  connected
Connected party connected party transaction transaction transaction (R0 009) category  exceeded transaction
Jiaozuo Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Co,, Ltd. ~ Subsiciaryof the controing ~ Receiptof semices Water, electictyand ~ Determined by 1,504.88 100% N Settled through
(EERETENERERAT) shareolde pover negotaton based on banks
maket pice
Shanghai Fangyu Health Phamaceutica Subsidary ofthe contralling ~ Recetofsenvices RO senices Determined by 328 025% Mo Setfed through
Technology Co, Lid sharefolder negofiation based on banks
(HEH FRERENERAT) maketprice
Shenzhen Haibin Pharmaceutical o, Ltd. Subsidary o the controlling ~ Receipt of senvices~~ Modern senices Determined by 165 001% Mo Settld through
(R RREERAR) shareholder negotiaton based on banks
market pice
Shenzhen Youbao Technology Co, Lid. Company nwhich a Director ~ Receiptofsenvices~~ Business promotion~~ Determined by 8118 05% Mo Setfled through
(RITEERRARAA) of the (ompany Senes 25 negatiaton basd on banks
adirecto market pice
Jiangsu Yiyingjia Medical Technology (o . Company (ontoHed bya  Receiptofsenices  Businesspromotion  Detemined by 11 005% Mo Settled through
(TH-RFBRHAERAT Diecor o the Company negotaton based on banks
market pice
Thufai Sanmed Biotech I Company nwhich a Director ~ Recept of senvices~~ Testing Determined by 534 004% Mo Setfed through
(RREXEND Eﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx@ﬂ) ofthe Company serves as negotaton based on banks
a director market prce
Guzngzhou oincare Respiratory Drugs Subsidary ofthe contralling  Recept of senvices RBD senices Determined by 1811 03% Mo Settled through
Engineering Technology Co, Lid. shareolder negatiaton based on banks
(RMRETARENIRRERAR) maketprice
Shenzhen Haibin Phamaceutical Co, Lt Subsidiary of the controlling ~ Sele of goods Fnished products~~~ Determined by 1828 000% Mo Settled through
(RImEBRERRA) sharelde negotaton based on banks
maket pice
Joicare Pharmaceutical Industry Group Co, Ltd.  Controling shareholder Sale of goods Finished products~~~ Determined by 681 000% Mo Setfed through
(RETEFEERNERAR) negatiaton based on banks
market price
(Guangdong Blue Treasure Pharmaceutical Company in which a Director ~ Sale of goods Finished products~~~ Determined by 1,067.84 017% Mo Settld through
(o, Ltd of the Company serves as negotiation based on banks
(EREEHERRLR) adiectr matket price
Thufai Sanmed Gene Diagnostcs Lt Subsiary of a company ~~~ Sale of oo Finished products~~~ Determined by 405 000% Mo Setfed through
(FamEXERRANEARAT) i which a Dirctor of negotaton based on banks
{he Company serves as market prce
a director
Subsidares of Sichuan Healthy Deer Hospital ~~ Subsidiares of a company ~~ Sale of qoods Finished products~~~ Determined by 1955 003% Mo Settld through
Management Co, L. in which a Director of negotiation based on banks
BIIEEREERERERAR) the Company sees as matket price
a direcor
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO

THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES (continued)

1. Connected Transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business (continued)
Proportionto ~ Whether
Amountof transaction the Settlement
Description Pricing principle ~ connected ~ amount of  approved  method of
Relationship with Type of connected  of connected of connected transaction the same  amountis  connected
Connected party connected party transaction transaction transaction (R0 000) category  exceeded transaction
Jiaozuo Joincare PharmaceuticalIndustry Co,, td.  Subsidiary of the controlling ~ Sale of goods Finished products~~~ Determined by 1989 000% Mo Settld through
(EERETENZRARLR) sharholder negotation based on banks
maket pice
Thufai Sanme Biotech Ic. Company in which a Director ~ Sale of goods Fiished producs~~~ Determined by 040 000% Mo Setfled through
(REEXANDERIERAR) ofthe Company semes & negatiaton based on banks
a director market pice
Joincare Phamaceutical Industry Group Co, Ltd.  Controlling shareholder Provison of services~ Processing, testing ~ Determined by 109 010% Mo Settld through
(RETEXEERNERAR) negotiaton based on banks
maket pice
Shenzhen Haibin Phamaceutical Co, Lt Subsidiary of the contralling  Provison ofsenices Processig Determined by 035 301% Mo Setfled through
(R EEREERA) sharehlder negotaton based on banks
market price
Joincare (Guangdong) Food for Special Medical -~ Subsidiary of the controling  Provision ofsenvices— Mode services Determined by 131 0% No Settld through
Purposes (o, Lid. sharcholder negotiation based on banks
[ERTERFERRARLT) market rce
Henan Province Joincare Biophamaceutica Subsidiary of the controling ~ Provison of senices Processig, tesing ~~ Determined by 3197 % Mo Setfed through
Research Insitute Co,, L1d. fareholder negotiaton based on hanks
(THERETENBERTRARLR) matket pice
Guangdong Blue Trezsure Phamaceutica Company nwhich a Director ~ Provison of senices~ Water, elecrictyend ~ Detemined by 460.36 W% Mo Setted through
(o, Ltd. of the Company seres s power negotiaton based on banks
(RREZREERATA) adirectr market ice
Zhufai Sanmed Biotech Inc. Company inwhich a Director ~ Provsion of senices ~ Water, eletrictyand ~ Determined by 19.3 185% Mo Settld through
(RREXEIDMRIERAR) ofthe Company ses & power, teting negotiaton bsed on banks
a director maket pice
Thuhai Sanmed Gene Diagnostics Lt Subsidery of a company ~~ Provison of senices  Water, electrictyand  Detemined by B4 2% Mo Setfed through
(FEmEEERRANKARAR) i whicha Dirctor of power, popery ~~ negotation based on banks
the Company serves as services market prce
a director
Thuhai Sanmed Biotech Inc. Company in which a Director ~ Leasing of assetsas~~ Buldngs Determined by 1131 B No Settld through
(RRERENDHRERAR) of the Company senes s~ alessor negatiaton bsed on banks
a director maket pice
Thuhai Sanmed Gene Diagnostics Lt Stbsidary of acompany ~ Leasing of assetsas~ Bulldings Determined by 1200 3% Mo Setfed through
(REmEXERRANFARAT) i whicha Dirctr of a s negotaton based on banks
the Company seves as market price
a directr
Health Pharmaceutical (Ching] Co,, Lt Subsidary o the controlling ~ Leasing of asets as~ Buldings Determined by 19 058% Mo Settld through
[EREZEERA) shareholder alessr negoiaion based on banks

maket pice
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES (continued)

1. Connected Transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business (continued)

Proportionto ~ Whether

Amountof transaction  the Settlement
Description Pricing principle ~ connected ~ amountof  approved  method of
Relationship with Type of connected ~ of connected of connected transaction the same  amountis  connected
Connected party connected party transaction transaction transaction (R0 009) category  exceeded transaction
Joicare (Guangdong) Food for Special Medical - Subsidiary of the controling ~ Leasing of assets s~ Bulldngs Determined by 1265 380%  No Settld through
Purposes Co, Lid. shareolder a lessr negotiaton based on banks
(RETERFBRRARAA) market pice
Topsino Industries Liited Subsidiary of the contraling ~ Leasing of assetsas~ Builings Determined by 15 038% Mo Setfled through
(RAEZERLT) shareholder 3 lessor negotiaton based on anks
market pice
Joincare Phamaceutical Industry Group Co, Ltd.  Controlling shareholder leasing of assets as~ Bulldings Determined by 3% 5% No Settld through
(RETEXEERNERAT) alssee negotaton based on banks
market pice
Jiaozuo Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Co, L.~ Subsidry of the contolling ~ Leasing of assets e~ Buldings, equipment Determined by 1317 6% Mo Setfled through
(EfEETENERERAT) sharehlder alssee negotaton based on banks
market price
Totd 13,098.00 - - -

Detals of retum of sales in large amount
Estimated tofal amount of connected transactions
inthe ordinary course of business during the
current perod by type and actual peformance ¢

during the Reporting Peiod {fany)

Reason for the signficant iffeence between the
fransaction price and the reference market
price i applicatle]

Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of connected transactions conducted by the Company in the ordnry course of business was RMB130.9900 millon, Among which, the comneced
transactions conducted n the ordinary course of busness with Joincare, the controling shareholder, and s subsidiaies amounted to approsimately RMB109.2489 million, representing 17.53% of
the projected amount (RAB623 3000 millon) approved by the general meeting of the Company and the Boarc: the connected transactions conducted In the ordinary course of business with Blue
Treasture Pharma amounted to approximately RMB16.7410 million, representing 17.03% of the projected amount (RVBY8 3000 millon) approved by the Board of the Company; the connected
transactons conducted n the orcnary cours ofbusiness with Sanmed Botech and Sanmed Gene amounte to RMB1,8060 millon,represening 38.67% of the pojected amount (RMB4.6700 millon)
anproved by the Board of the Company; the connected transactions conducted i the ordnary cours of businss it Schuan Healy Deer Hosptal Management Co, Lt [P BRI B2 &
SERIR2) and s subsidiaris in aggregate amounted to AMB.9556 millon,represening 19.48% of the projected amaunt (RMB10.0400 millon) approed by the Board of the Company; the
comneted transactons conducted n the orinary course of business withShenzhen Ciy Youbao Technology Co, Ltd. (7817575 ik 25 ) amounted to RMBO.8718 millon, representing
13,595 of the projected amount (RMIB2.0000 million) approved by the operating management of the Company; and the comnected transactions conducted in the ordinary course of busness with
Jangsu Yingjia Medical Technology o., L, (T8~ 4527818 ) amounted to RMBO.3687 milion, representing 46.09% o the projected amount (RMBO.8000 miion) approved
by the operating management of the Company. The above comnected ransactions have not exceedd the projeced amount approved.

Not applicable

Note:  For details on the above transactions, please refer to the Announcement on Signing Framework Agreement on Continuing Connected
Transactions for Three Years from 2020 to 2022 between Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry
Group Co., Ltd. (B TEREEBERMH AR A F]) (Announcement No.: 2019-052), Announcement on Resolutions of 2019
Third Extraordinary General Meeting of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (Announcement No.: 2019-073) and Announcement on
Projected Daily Connected Transactions for 2022 of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (Announcement No.: 2021-104) dated 17
August 2019, 16 October 2019 and 31 December 2021, respectively.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

95



96

SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES (continued)

2. Connected Transactions Relating to Acquisition and Disposal of Assets or Equity

[ Applicable v Not applicable

3. Connected Transactions on Joint External Investment

(] Applicable v Not applicable

4, Credits and Debts with Connected Parties
v Applicable  [J Not applicable

Non-operating credits and debts with connected parties

[JYes v No

Credits due from connected parties

Balance Amount Amount

Use of atthe  increased  recovered Balance
non- Beginning during during Interest for ~ at the End
Relationship with Reasonfor  operating ofthePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  Interest  the Period of the Period
Connected party connected party occurrence  funds (RB000G)  (RUBODCY)  (RUBOOLY) ate  (RIBO00O)  (RIBODOY)
Guan dongB\ueTreasuePh maceutical Co, Lid. A company inwhich a Diector ~ Saleof finished o 156540 172687 3,601.56 - - 890.71
(BREERERRAT ofthe Company semesas~~~ goods, prvision
3 dector of senices
Shenzhen Taita Pharmaceutical Co, Lt Subsidary ofthe controling ~~ Saleof fiished o B350 - B350 - - -
(FIRREZRRAT) shareholder goots
Thuhai Sanmed Biotech Inc. A company inwhich aDirector ~ Sale of inished Mo 1 130.75 12485 - - nn
(REEXENDERIARAR) of the Company semes s~~~ goods,lasing
3 dector of asets a5 3
lessor, tc
Shenzhen Haibin Phamaceut i(a\ (o, L1, Subsidary ofthe controling ~~ Saleof fiished o 145,61 455,66 14957 - - 45100
(RImEEREERAT shareholder goods, proison
of svices
Thufai Sanmed Gene Diagnostcs Lid Subsidary of a company Se offirished o 0% 910 6154 - - 1049
FETEEERRANEAERAA) i which a Diecor of goods, proison
the Company senes as of senices
a director
Subsidares of Sichuan Healthy Deer Hospital Subsidaries of a company ~~ Prepaymentof o 3N 084 17939 - - 518
Wanagement Co, Lid. in which a Director of producs
(BIIEFREERERARAR) the Company serves as
a director
Shenzhen Youbao Technology Co,, Ltd. A company inwhich aDirector ~ Prepaymentof Mo 15.45 117.19 86.68 - - 465
(RIMEERAERAT) of the Company senesas~~ senices
adirector
Joicare (Guangdong) Food for Special Medical Subsidary ofthe controling~~ Leasing of assets Mo 847 10 310 - - 2565
Purposes Co,, Lt sharcholder 3 a lesar

(EETEREERGARDA)

Effect of crdlts ue fiom connected partes on the  These credits mainy arose from the ordinary course of business of the Company. There s no sgnifcant ffect o the operating resufs and finandial positon of the Company.
aperating results and financil postion of the
Company
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES (continued)
4, Credits and Debts with Connected Parties (continued)

Debts payable to connected parties

Balance Amount
at the increased Amount Balance
Beginning during  repaid during Interest for ~at the End
Relationship with of thePeriod  thePeriod the Period Interest  the Period ~of the Period
Connected party connected party  Reason for occurrence (R0 000) (RIB0000) (R0 000) rate  (RUBOOOD)  (RMBDUNY)
Shenzhen Haibin Phamaceutical Co, Lid. Subsidary of the Purchase of raw materials 246548 971,24 289504 - - 541,68
(RImEERERRAT) contoling sharehlde
Jiaozuo Joicare Phamaceutical Industry Co, Ltd.— Subsidiary of the Purchase of raw materials 17938.04 880587 1086451 - - 15,879.40
(EfERTENZRARAT) contoling shareholde
Jiaozuo Joincare PharmaceuticalIndustry Co, Ltd.— Subsidiary of the Water, electicity and power 989.98 18491 160434 - - 1,348
(EfRETENERARAR) contoling sharehlder
Xindang Haibin Pharmaceutical o, Lt Subsiary of the Purchase of raw materils 400 - 400 - - -
(MEaERZARAT) contoling shreholdr
Guangdong Blue Treasure Phamaceutical Co, Ltd. A companyinwhicha — Purchase of raw materal 3800 16486 20086 - - -
(EREZZEERAA) Diector of the Company
serves s a drectr
Subsidares of Sichuan Healthy Deer Hospital Subsidaries of & company ~ Receipt of senvices 089 47 - - - 561
Management Co, Ltd. inwhich a Director of
(BIIERNE ERERARAR) the Company envesas
a director
Topsino Industries Limited Subsidiary of the Dividends payatle - JAREIRY 1912564 - - JANIN

(RAEZARA)

contrlling shareholder

Effect of debs payable to comnected parties on the
operating resuls and finandil poston of the
Company

These debts mainy arase from the ordinary course of busness ofthe Company. There s no Significan efect n the operating resuls and fnancial poston of the Company.

5. Other Major Connected Transactions

v Applicable

[J Not applicable

For details of other major connected transactions, please refer to “X. Connected Transactions Defined Pursuant to the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” in the Section V of the Report. Save for the above, the Group had no other major connected transactions

during the Reporting Period.

6. Transactions with Related Finance Companies and Transactions Between Finance
Companies Controlled by the Company and Related Parties

L1 Applicable

v Not applicable
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

X. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DEFINED PURSUANT TO THE HONG KONG
LISTING RULES

1. One-off Connected Transactions

Connected transactions in relation to reorganization of shareholding structures of controlling
subsidiaries

Reference is made to the announcements (the “Announcements”) dated 4 December 2020 and 5 December 2020 and the
circular (the "Circular”) dated 16 December 2020 of the Company published on the Company's website, HKEXnews and
Cninfo.

On 4 December 2020, in order to optimize the shareholding structures of the controlling subsidiary of the Company, Livzon
Cayman, and its subsidiaries and to facilitate onshore and offshore financing for these companies, after consideration and
approval by the Board, the Company, Livzon International, Joincare, Joincare BVI, YF Pharmab Limited and Livzon Cayman,
LivzonBio, Livzon HK, Livzon MAB, Zhuhai Kadi Medical Biotechnology Inc. (BR/& ™ R W EBEARR A F)) ("Kadi”)
have jointly entered into the reorganization framework agreement, pursuant to which, each party has conditionally agreed to
enter into a series of transactions to streamline and optimize the capital and shareholding structure (the “Reorganization”)
of the Reorganization Group. The Reorganization comprises a number of transactions and arrangements, please refer to the
Announcements and the Circular for details.

As of the End of the Reporting Period, the equity transfer of Kadi under the Reorganization has not been completed. Please
refer to the 2021 Annual Report of the Company for other related details.

The grant of share of subscription of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme to the Connected
Holders

Please refer to the relevant contents of “XVIIl. MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM BUSINESS PARTNER SHARE OWNERSHIP SCHEME"
in Section Il of the Report for details of the grant of share of subscription of the Second Phase Ownership Scheme to the
Connected Holders.

2. Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, for the transactions actually conducted between the Group and Joincare (the controlling
shareholder) and its subsidiaries which constituted “continuing connected transactions” as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules, please refer to “IX. SUBSTANTIAL CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
THE SHENZHEN LISTING RULES — 1. Connected Transactions in the Ordinary Course of Business” in the Section V of the
Report for relevant information.
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT
1. Custody, Contracting and Leasing

Custody

L] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no custody items generating gain or loss amounting to 10% or above of
total profit of the Company.

Contracting

L] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no contracting items generating gain or loss amounting to 10% or above
of total profit of the Company.

Leasing

0 Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no leasing items generating gain or loss amounting to 10% or above of
total profit of the Company.

2. Major Guarantees

v Applicable [ Not applicable

(1) Guarantees
Credit facility guarantees

Unit: RMB0'000
External Guarantees of the Company and its Subsidiaries (Excluding Guarantees to its Subsidiaries)

Disclosure
date of Actual date
announcement of event
relating to (signing Actual Related
Name of guaranteed  Guaranteed date of guarantee  Type of Security  Counter  Periodof  Performance  party
guaranteed party amount amount ~ agreement) amount  guarantee  (ifany)  guarantee guarantee completed guarantee
Total amount of extemal quarantees aporoved during the Reporting Period (A1) - Total amount of extemal quarantees actuall occurred during the Reporting Period -
(k)
Total amount of extemnal quarantees aporoved at the End of the Reporting Peiod (A3) - Total amount of extemal quarantees actuall occurred at the End of the Reportng -
Period (Ad)
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

XIl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT (continued)

2. Major Guarantees (continued)

(1) Guarantees (continued)

Credit facility guarantees (continued)

Company's Guarantees to its Subsidiaries

Disclosure

date of Actual date

announcement of event

relating to (signing Actual Related
guaranteed  Guaranteed  date of guarantee  Type of Security  Counter Period of  Performance  party

Name of guaranteed party amount amount  agreement)  amount  guarantee  (ifany)  guarantee guarantee  completed  guarantee
Livzon MABPharm Inc. 20011026 235,00000 2021930 13847260 Joint iabily il Other shareholders—— 2021.930- Mo No
(RETERERMRIARAR) Quaantee of e quaanteed ~ 2005.06.19

farget have provided
counter guaranee

Livzon Group Livzon Phamaceuticl Factory -~ 2022.3.29 1700000 200331 08 lointliabiiy N Ni 00331 Mo o
[EREEERLER) Quaranee 3.2
Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory ~ 2022.3.29 3000000 202184 1135 Joint bty il Ni 000804 No o
(ERERERLER) Quarantee 1462
Livaon Group Livzon Phamaceuticl Factory ~ 2022.3.29 2000000 2021728 108615 Joint bty i Nil 01728 Mo No
EHETEGRER) uaraee B

Thufai FTZ Lvzon Hecheng Phamaceutil ~ 2022.3.29 2000000 2020330 361935 Jointliabily N Nil 000330- Mo No
Manufacturing Co, Lt Quarantee 0320
(RERHEERARFERRAR)

Thuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Phamaceutical 2022329 2000000 2020610 1459917 Jointiabilty N Nil 00782 Mo No
Manufacturing Co, Ltd Quarantee 200561
(RERHEERARFERRAT)

Thufai FTZ Lvzon Hecheng Phamaceutil ~ 2022.3.09 00000 20017.8 17500 Joint liabity N Ni 01018 Mo No
Manufacturing Co,, Lid Quaraniee 2002.07.8
(RERHEERRRHERRAR)

Thuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical 2022329 1000000 202261 63145 Jointliabilty N Nil Mmoo No
Manufacturing Co,, Lid Quarantee 041231
(RERHEERARFERRAR)

Livaon Group Xinbeiang Pharmaceutical ~ 2022.3.29 6,50000  20208.10 191478 Jointliabiiy N Other shareholders ~—~~ 2017.8.2- o No
Manufacturing I, Quarantee ofthe quaranteed 20561
ERE BT IEERNERAR) taget have provided

counter quarantee

Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Phammaceuticsl ~~ 2022.3.29 1000000 202214 10735 Jointliablty N 001 No No
Manufacturing Inc, Quarantee 0331231
BREBNIRERHARLT)

Livaon Group (Ningsia) Phamaceutical 023 15,0000 2000630 30200 Jointliabily N 00830 Mo No
Manufacturing Co, Lid. Quaraniee 083228

[BrEEERRERRLA)
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT (continued)
2. Major Guarantees (continued)
(1) Guarantees (continued)

Credit facility guarantees (continued)

Company's Guarantees to its Subsidiaries

Disclosure
date of Actual date
announcement of event
relating to (signing Actual Related
guaranteed  Guaranteed  date of guarantee  Type of Security  Counter Period of  Performance  party
Name of guaranteed party amount amount  agreement)  amount  guarantee  (ifany)  guarantee guarantee  completed  guarantee
Livzon Group (Ningya) Phamaceutica 0238 2000000 2020610 1289701 Joint bty N W82 Mo i
Manufactuing Co, L. quarantee 0256.1
(BHEEEEHEERLT)
Livzon Group F uzhou Furing Phamaceutical ~ 20223.09 1000000 2020610 6,10995  Jaint liabily il 0782 Mo No
(o, td Quarantee 20056.1
EXEIRNRRRERRAA)
Sichuan Guzngda Phamaceutical 00239 500000 2020610 148538 Jointliabiity N Nil 0782 Mo No
Manufacturing Co, L. Quarantee 0256.1
BIEARERRAT)
Jigozuo Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical 002309 1500000 2020610 124933 Jointisbilty N Nil 0782 Mo No
Manufacturing Co, Lt Quarantee 20056,
(EEBREREERRAT)
Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng Phamaceuticl 200239 1500000 2001014 254280 loitlabily N Nil 0000 Mo No
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. QUarantee 0320
(EfERANEERRAT)
Thuhai Lvzon Pharmaceutcal Trading 002309 2000000 2001.7.28 959995 Joint liabily Nl Nil M8 Mo No
(o, L. QUarantee 00218
(RATERBERAERAT)
Thuha Livzon Pharmaceutical Trading 00239 500000 20206.10 179500 Joit iabiity N i 007822 Mo No
(o, Ltd Quarantee 20056.1
(REnEGESEHERAR)
Ttal amount of quarantees to fs subsdiaries approved durng the Reporting Perod (31) 152000000 Total amount of quarantees o fs subsicres actualy occurred dur mgthe Reporting Period (B2) 221,947
Total amount of quarantees to it Subsicries approved t the End of the Reporting Period (3] 152000000 Total amount of guarantees o is sbsidiaies actually occured at the End of the Reporting 1N 478.75

Period (B4)
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT (continued)
2. Major Guarantees (continued)
(1) Guarantees (continued)

Credit facility guarantees (continued)

Subsidiaries’ Guarantees to Subsidiaries

Disclosure

date of Actual date

announcement of event

relating to (signing Actual Related

guaranteed  Guaranteed date of guarantee  Type of Security  Counter Period of  Performance party
Name of guaranteed party amount amount ~ agreement) amount  guarantee  (ifany)  guarantee guarantee  completed  guarantee
Total amount of quarantees to Subsidiaries approved during the Reporting Perod (C1) - Total amount of quarantees to subsidares actually occured during the Reporting Period (C2) -
Total amount of quarantees to Subsidiaris approved at the End of the Reporting Perid (C3) - Total amount of quarantees to subsidares actually occurred at the End of the Reporting -

Period (C4)
Total Guaranteed Amount of the Company (Total of the Above Three Items)
Total amount of quarantees approved during the Reporting Period (A1+B1+C1) 152000000 Total amount of guarantees actually occurred during the Reporting Perod (A2+82+(2) Myis
Tt amount of guarantees approved at the End of the Reporting Perod (A3+B3+C3) 152000000 Total amount of quarantees actually occurred atthe End of the Reportng Perid (Ad4Bd+C4) 21147875
Total amount of quarantees actally occurted 1. Ad+Bd+C4) as a percentage of net assets of 16.44%
the Company
nduding;
Amount of guarantee provided to Shareholders, de acto conrollers and their related partes (0) -
Amount of debt quarantee diectly or inirectly provided to a guaranteed party with a gearing ratio 18087939
exceeding 70% [E)

Portion o total quaranteed amount exceeding 50% of net assets (F =
Total quaranteed amount o the above tree fems (D+£+F) 18087939
Statement on the contingent joint iabiliy in connection with outstanding quarantee contracts where Not applicable

qQuarantee liabilites have occured during the Reporting Period or there was evidence indicatng the
possbility of ncurring joint repayment fiabilis (f any)
Statement on llegal extemnal quarantees ff any) Not applicable
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT (continued)
2. Major Guarantees (continued)

(1) Guarantees (continued)

Pledge and guarantee of bills

The thirteenth meeting of the ninth session of the Board of the Company considered and approved the “Resolution on
Conducting Bills Pooling Business” and agreed that an amount of up to RMB1.4 billion for conducting bills pooling business
would be shared by the Company and its subsidiaries, such amount may be utilized on rolling basis. As at 30 June 2022,
the pledge and guarantee of hills were as follows:

Unit: RMB0'000

Pledged
amount of
bills Guaranteed
Guarantor Pledgee receivable  Name of guaranteed party Description of guarantee amount  Period of guarantee
The Company (China Merchants Bank 20,8232 Gutian Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd, Opening bank acceptance bils 250764 Until 13 December 2022
(ERRREEARAT) jont iabilty quarantee
Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Phamaceutical Opening bank acceptance bil, 446092 Until 13 December 2022
(o, Ltd. joint liabiliy quarantee
EBREERNRRBEERAA)
Livzon Group (Ningyia) Pharmaceutical Opening bank acceptance bils, 16509 Until 14 March 2023
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. joint liabiliy quarantee
EARBERRERRAR)
Livzn Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory Opening bank acceptance bk, 483081 Until 24 December 2022
EREEEGEER) jont iabilty quarantee
Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical Opening bank acceptance bill, 689.20  Unti 9 December 2022
Manufacturing Factory joint liabilty quaranteg
EREENREER)
Sichuan Guangda Phamaceutical Manufacturing  Opening bank acceptance bl 165426 Until 20 December 2022
Co, L (RN ARERRA) joint ity quarantee
Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutica Opening bank acceptance bil, 83065 Until 21 December 2022
Manufacturing Co, Ltd. joint liabiliy quarantee
(RERHRBRANEERRAR)
Zhuhai Livzon Microsphere Technology Co, Ltd. - Opening bank acceptance b 8580 Unil 17 November 2022
(REMERITIRRARAT) jont iabilty quarantee
Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Phamaceutical Opening bank acceptance bk, 64644 Until 23 November 2022
Manufacturing Inc. joint liabiity quaranteg
BREEL T RERDERAA)
Zhuhai Livzon Pharmaceuticals Import and Export  Opening bank acceptance bils, 9960 Until 24 August 2022
Trading Co, Ltd. joint liabilty quaranteg
(RETERESELNEAERAT)
Zhuhai Livzon Phamaceutical Trading Co, Ltd. Opening bank acceptance bil, 249500 Until 22 December 2022
RETEREEEHERAT) jont iabilty quarantee
Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng ~ China Citic Bank 412957 Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical Manufacturing  Opening bank acceptance bill 290762 Until 21 September 2022

Phamaceutical
Manufacturing Co, Ltd.
(RERHEERAH
RHEERLT)

(o, L (RN ARERRAF)
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

Xl. MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND THEIR ENFORCEMENT (continued)
2. Major Guarantees (continued)

(1) Guarantees (continued)

Guarantees provided to the Company by related parties

Joincare, the other shareholder of Livzon MAB, has provided a “Letter of Undertaking for Counter Guarantee”, pursuant
to which it has undertaken to provide a joint liability guarantee for 33.07% of the obligation of the Company under the
guarantee provided to Livzon MAB and the guarantee period of which will be expired on the expiry date of the Company's
obligation thereunder.

Zhuhai Zhong Hui Yuan Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (k/& 7 [EJRIZE A B ¥ (GBR A ), the other
shareholder of Xinbeijiang Pharma, has provided a “Letter of Undertaking for Counter Guarantee”, pursuant to which it has
undertaken to provide a joint liability guarantee for 8.44% of the obligation of the Company under the guarantee provided
to Xinbeijiang Pharma and the guarantee period of which will be expired on the expiry date of the Company's obligation

thereunder.

(2) Information on illegal external guarantees

0] Applicable v Not applicable
During the Reporting Period, the Company had no illegal external guarantee.

3. Entrusted Wealth Management
L] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no entrusted wealth management.

4. Major Contracts for Daily Operation
0] Applicable v Not applicable

5. Other Material Contracts
0] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no other material contracts.

6. Other Material Transactions

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed herein, the Company did not enter into other material transactions.
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

XIl. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
v Applicable [ Not applicable

Proposed spin-off and proposed A share listing of Livzon Diagnostics on the ChiNext Board of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange

For details of proposed spin-off and proposed A share listing of Livzon Diagnostics on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, please refer to “XIX. PROPOSED SPIN-OFF AND PROPOSED A SHARE LISTING OF LIVZON DIAGNOSTICS ON
THE CHINEXT BOARD OF THE SHENZHEN STOCK EXCHANGE" in Section Ill of the Report for relevant information.

Connected transactions in relation to reorganization of shareholding structures of controlling
subsidiaries

For details of the connected transactions in relation to reorganization of shareholding structures of controlling subsidiaries,
please refer to “X. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS DEFINED PURSUANT TO THE HONG KONG LISTING RULES — 1. One-off
Connected Transactions” in Section V of the Report for relevant information.

Launch of futures hedging activities by controlling subsidiaries

On 28 March 2022, the Board of the Company considered and approved the Resolution on the Launch of Futures Hedging
Activities by Controlling Subsidiaries, and agreed that the controlling subsidiaries of the Company, namely, Xinbeijiang
Pharma, Fuzhou Fuxing, Ningxia Pharma and Sichuan Guangda, may continue to carry out commodity futures hedging activities
(the "Futures Hedging Activities”). The total deposit planned to be invested in the Futures Hedging Activities shall not exceed
RMB20.0000 million. The subsidiaries of the Company shall carry out the Futures Hedging Activities in a hedging principle of
avoiding the risk of fluctuation in raw material price and stabilizing purchase costs, and no speculative transaction is allowed.

The Group carries out the Futures Hedging Activities for a purpose of avoiding the risks arising from the fluctuation in the
prices of principal raw materials used in production and operation. The transaction relating to standardized futures contracts
listed on domestic futures exchanges shall be carried out in combination with plans of sales and production procurement to
hedge the price fluctuation risks in the transactions in the spot market, thereby stabilizing procurement costs and guaranteeing
the steady business development of the Group.
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SECTION V MAJOR EVENTS

XIll. PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
L] Applicable v Not applicable

XIV. DIVIDENDS AND BONUS SHARES

On 20 May 2022, the Company held the 2021 annual general meeting to consider and approve the distribution of cash
dividend of RMB13.00 (tax inclusive) for every 10 shares to all Shareholders of the Company, based on the Company's total
share capital (excluding the shares of the Company which were repurchased but not yet cancelled) as at the registration
date of shareholding as determined by implementation of the 2021 annual profit distribution plan. There will be no bonus
shares, nor will the capital reserves be capitalized.

The distribution of the cash dividends for the Company’s A Shares was completed on 31 May 2022, and the distribution of
the cash dividends for the Company’s H Shares was completed on 24 June 2022.

The Company has proposed to distribute neither interim dividends, nor bonus shares, for the six months ended 30 June 2022.
During the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Company did not distribute any interim dividends.

XV. EXPLANATION GIVEN BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ON THE ISSUANCE OF A “NON-STANDARD
AUDIT REPORT” BY THE ACCOUNTING FIRM

O] Applicable v Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, no explanations are required to be given by the Supervisory Committee and the independent
Directors as no “Non-standard Audit Report” has been issued by the accounting firm.

XVI. EXPLANATION GIVEN BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE “NON-
STANDARD AUDIT REPORT"” FOR THE PREVIOUS YEAR

L] Applicable v Not applicable
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department

v Yes [ No

During the Reporting Period, there were 10 subsidiaries of the Company being identified as key pollutant discharging units
announced by the Environmental Protection Department, with details as follows:

(1)  Fuzhou Fuxing

Pollutant Total

Name of discharge Total amount of
Name of  major pollutants Number of Discharge standards amount of discharge
company or and specific ~ Mode of  discharge  Distribution of ~ concentration  implemented discharge approved  Excessive
subsidiary  pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mgll) (mgll) ) (t3)  discharge
Fuzhou Fuxing ~ Chemical oxygen  Intermittent 1 The northwest side of 14.53 100 120 1245 N

demand (COD) the factory

Ammonia nitrogen 0.3 15 0.12 187 N

Note:  The discharge concentration represents the actual discharge concentration, and the standards implemented represent the standards
for discharge to the environment by Jiangyin sewage treatment plant (T & )5 7K E2 32 &) (i.e. COD < 100 mg/L, ammonia nitrogen
< 15 mg/L), and the agreed standard for discharge of COD and ammonia nitrogen from the company to Jiangyin sewage treatment
plant shall be < 500 mg/L and < 60 mg/L respectively. The data was obtained from Fuging Environmental Protection Bureau.

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment facilities:

The company strictly complies with the “Three-Simultaneous” system of environmental protection by collecting and treating
“Three Wastes (waste water, exhaust gas and solid waste)” according to requirements, and employs an advanced wastewater
treatment process known as “Regulating pool + Hydrolysis acidification tank + Sequencing Batch Reactor Activated Sludge
Process (SBR) + Air float”. After the wastewater from production has gone through the above treatment process, all indicators
are stable and satisfy the discharge standard. After meeting the discharge standards, the wastewater is discharged to Jiangyin
sewage treatment plant operated by Fujian Huadong Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (& Z % /KB BR A A)) via sewage pipe
network at the industrial park area for further treatment. In 2022, the waste gas treatment facilities for Fenton pool and
regulating pool have been added, and the waste gas was treated by secondary spraying.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The "Environmental Impact Report on the Phase Il High-end Antibiotics Project of Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd." was approved on 23 August 2021. The company strictly implements the “Three Simultaneous” system and takes
environmental protection measures required for environmental assessment, with the environmental protection facilities under
normal operation. Approval was granted for the application of a new national pollutant discharge license on 27 December
2017 and the renewal of the national pollutant discharge license was completed in December 2020. The company has been
discharging pollutants in strict compliance with the licensing and administrative requirements. During the Reporting Period,
the Environmental Impact Report for Phase IV High-end Antibiotic Project of Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (BEZR & B 1@ )N 42 L B8 225 R /2 7)) was being prepared.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

107



108

SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(1) Fuzhou Fuxing (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Pursuant to relevant regulations and requirements, the “Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Livzon Group Fuzhou
Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ( (EBIREER /12 BB H B R A R REBRIBEMHESTAZR) )" was prepared based
on the principles of “Focusing on Prevention, Aiming at Self-help, Centralized Command, Division of Responsibility”, for
which filing application was accepted on 15 April 2022 (File No.: 350181-2022-024-M).

After environmental emergency incidents occur, immediate, quick, effective and orderly emergency rescue actions will be
taken to control and prevent accidents and the spread of contamination, protect the surrounding environment effectively
and ensure the personal life and property safety of all employees, the company and the nearby communities. In accordance
with the contents and requirements of such plan, the company provides trainings and drills for its employees to get them
well-prepared for environmental emergency incidents, so that rescue actions could be taken in a timely manner and incidents
could be controlled effectively in a short period of time in case of any environmental emergency incidents. In May 2022, a
comprehensive emergency drill for leakage accident in workshop 4 of the second phase was conducted.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

According to the relevant requirements of the “Measures for Self-Monitoring and Information Disclosure by Enterprises
subject to Intensive Monitoring and Control of the State (Trial Implementation) ( { IR EBEESE ¥ B ITEEBI MEE R
F#EAETT)) )" and the "Technical Guidelines for Self-Monitoring by Pollution Discharge Enterprises in the Fermentation
Pharmaceutical Industry (HJ882-2017) ( <HE)5 B B7TESRIFiT3E R B2 AR 2 T 3£(HJ882-2017)) )", the company
has completed the establishment of the self-monitoring program based on its own situation in a timely manner and made the
program available to the public after being examined by and filed with Fuging Environment Protection Bureau and Fuzhou
Environment Protection Bureau. The analysis methods of the monitoring program comply with the national environmental
monitoring technical standards and methods; the monitoring and analysis instruments have been examined and calibrated
in strict compliance with the relevant national requirements; the automated monitoring equipment has been installed
in accordance with the requirement of environmental assessment technical standards, which are connected to relevant
environmental protection authorities and have passed the inspection and acceptance of the relevant environmental protection
authorities. The automated monitoring equipment has been functioning properly and the monitoring information is accurate,
valid and authentic. In June 2022, the work on leakage detection and repair (LDAR) of volatile organic compounds (VOCs)
for the first half of the year was completed. Information publicity website: http://wryfb.fiemc.org.cn
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(2) Xinbeijiang Pharma

Pollutant Total

Name of discharge Total  amount of
Name of  major pollutants Number of Discharge standards amount of discharge
company or and specific ~ Mode of discharge Distribution of  concentration  implemented discharge approved  Excessive
subsidiary  pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mg/l) (ma/l) {t (t3)  discharge
Xinbeifiang ~ Chemical oxygen ~ Intermittent 1 Sewage treatment 785 10 3N Nl Nl
Pharma demand workshop

Ammonia nitrogen 2] 10 1.10 Nil il

e =

Note:  The discharge concentration represents the concentration of discharge into Qingyuan Henghe Sewage Treatment Plant (& i f& fa7
57K EZ 32 J#R), while the standard adopted for discharge represents the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of
the company, i.e. COD < 240 mg/L, ammonia nitrogen < 70 mg/L. The data was obtained from Qingyuan Environmental Protection
Bureau.

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Wastes” were collected and treated effectively in strict compliance with the “Three Simultaneous” system.
The sewage treatment facilities with an investment amount of over RMB30 million have a designed processing capacity
of 3,000t/d and adopt the treatment process of “Pre-treatment + Aerobic pool + Hydrolysis acidification tank + SBR +
Catalytic oxidation + Air float”. In the first half of 2022, the third round of environmental protection improvement has been
carried out, including replacing biological deodorization boxes of the sewage station, adding spray towers and reinstalling
pretreatment waste gas collection pipeline to reduce the fugitive emission of waste gas, which has greatly eliminated the
peculiar smell around the sewage station. Mufflers were installed at the air emission outlets of the sewage station and the
second fermentation division to reduce the airflow sound of air emissions. Sound-absorbing cotton panels have been used
to surround the circulating pump and steam compressor of the MVR, which have greatly reduced the noise transmitted by
the MVR. Meanwhile, equipment with loud noises has been surrounded by sound-absorbing cotton panels to reduce noise
and control the generation and transmission of noise from the source.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and status of other environmental protection administrative
licensing:

The “Environmental Impact Report on Current Status of Projects of Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing
Inc. (((BHREBEFILIZERNHBRAFIEBEBRMRRELEREE) )" was approved and filed on 6 December
2016; with strict enforcement of the “Three Simultaneous” system and implementation of the environmental protection
measures required under the environmental impact assessment, the environmental protection facilities have been functioning
properly. On 29 December 2017, approval was granted for the application of a new national pollutant discharge license and
the work for changing and renewing the pollutant discharge license was completed in December 2020. The environment
protection policies were strictly enforced. On 28 April 2022, the application for the sewage discharge permit for the new
plant in Shijiao was completed; on 16 June 2022, the environmental impact assessment of the newly added mixed and
compound veterinary drugs in the new plant was completed, and the environmental impact assessment approval was obtained
(Qingcheng Shen Pi Huan Biao [2022] No. 12).

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

109



110

SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(2) Xinbeijiang Pharma (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Based on the principles of “Focusing on Prevention, On-alert all the time; Management by Classification, Response by
Tiers; Cooperation among Departments, Responsibility by Levels; Scientific Prevention and Efficient Disposal”, Xinbeijiang
Pharma entered into the issued “Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Inc. ( (EEIRE BRI IRER N BR A RIREFEIRIBEHESTAR) )" (File No.: 441802-2021-0162-H)
again on 30 September 2021, which has been verified and filed by the Qingyuan Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau
on 22 October 2021. Xinbeijiang Pharma regularly identifies environmental factors and sources of hazards and conducts
drills on the emergency contingency plan. The environmental emergency contingency drill was conducted in June 2022 to
improve the operability thereof, enhance the performance level of the emergency rescue staff, responsiveness of the rescue
team as well as coordination and collaboration of different tasks.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

According to the relevant requirements of the “Measures for Self-Monitoring and Information Disclosure by Enterprises subject
to Intensive Monitoring and Control of the State (Trial Implementation) ( ISR EBAESIE ¥ B1TERI R B ARPEE
(F17)) )", the company has completed the establishment of the self-monitoring program based on its own situation in a
timely manner and made the program available to the public after being examined by and filed with Qingyuan Environment
Protection Bureau. The analysis methods of the monitoring program comply with the national environmental monitoring
technical standards and methods; the monitoring and analysis instruments have been examined and calibrated in strict
compliance with the relevant national requirements. The automated monitoring equipment for wastewater (COD, ammonia
nitrogen, pH, flow) and waste gas (non-methane hydrocarbons) has been installed in accordance with the requirement of
environmental assessment technical standards, and the connection between online information and national development
platform and Qingyuan municipal platform has been completed. Online monitoring equipment for wastewater has passed the
inspection and acceptance of relevant environmental protection authorities. The automated monitoring equipment has been
functioning properly and the monitoring information is accurate, valid and authentic. In accordance with the requirements
of the specification, a third party is hired to conduct LDAR every six months for workshops that use VOCs. Xinbeijiang
Pharma conducts monitoring of diffusive volatile organic compounds around the workshop of the first refinery division on a
semiannual basis, and the monitoring results for the first half of 2022 met the standards.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

RESPONSIBILITY

l. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)
1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as

Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(3) Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (3SR EBE RS KR

EHRAF)
Pollutant Total
Name of discharge Total ~ amount of
major pollutants Number of Discharge  standards amountof  discharge
Name of company or  and specific ~ Mode of ~ discharge  Distribution of concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets  (mp/){ma/nF)  (mg/img/) {t () discharge
Zhuhai F1Z Livzon Chemical oxygen ~ Intermittent 1 Wastewater treatment 85.585 192 7969 [Nl
Hecheng Pharmaceutical ~ demand station
Manufacturing Co, Ltd.  Ammonia nitrogen 8.128 40 06748 [Nl
(RERKEERAK (W)
RRRRLA) Sulphur dioxide  Organized 3 Boler room 3 50 0.044 [Nl
Nitrogen oxides continuous 3 Boler room 7485 150 1.2078 [ il
Smoke and dust emission 3 Boler room 143 | 0.0187 [ il
Hydrogen chloride 7 Workshop 209 100 0.7063 [Nl
Non-methane 7 Workshop 1.4 60 379 7776 N
hydrocarbons
Non-methane 1 R0 525 60 0.2670 Nil
hydracarbons
Nitrogen oxides 1 RIO 30 200 1.8892 [Nl
Sulphur dioxide 1 RI0 3 200 0.1889 [Nl
Notes: 1. The discharge concentration of pollutants in wastewater represents the average concentration by online monitoring from
the master discharge outlet by the company into South District Sewage Treatment Plant, while the standard adopted for
discharge represents the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of the company, i.e. COD < 192 mg/L,
ammonia nitrogen < 40 mg/L.
2. The discharge concentration of pollutants in the air emission outlets represents the average concentration detected by

a qualified third party engaged, of which the boiler exhaust adopted the Emission Standards for Boiler Air Pollutants in
Guangdong Province (DB 44/765-2019) ( < ER & SHIE AR5 LM PEUIZ%E) ) (DB 44/765-2019), the air emissions
of workshop and wastewater treatment station complied with the Air Pollutant Discharge Standards for Pharmaceutical
Industry ( (BYZET 3 KRS LWBERIZZE) ) (GB 37823-2019).
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(3) Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (3’8 R B EBE RS R E
ZH R D F]) (continued)

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Wastes” were treated in a centralized and effective manner in strict compliance with the “Three Simultaneous”
system and the maintenance and management of pollution preventive facilities were enhanced to ensure that pollutant
discharge was stable and in compliance with the required standard. The treatment process of “pre-treatment of drainage
from the production process + hydrolytic acidification + Upflow Anaerobic Sludge Bed (UASB) + advanced oxidation + Cyclic
Activated Sludge System (CASS) process + air floatation/ozonation advanced treatment” was adopted. Treated sewage was
discharged through the municipal sewage pipeline network into Zhuhai Leaguer Environmental Protection Co., Ltd. (258
NARIREBR A A]) (water purification plant in the South District).

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Current Status of the Product Structure and Production Capacity Adjustment
Project of Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( (EK/BRT R BIRA K ELEGR A 7
EMmGEENERAREERMRIRRZEFTERSE) ) was approved in December 2016. In 2021, the environmental
impact assessment of 14 new products including paliperidone palmitate (KR8 E&BAFYKER), aripiprazole (BiSZURME),
bismuth potassium citrate (F#&B& 5L 3F), i.e. the "Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Technological Renovation
and Expansion Project of Livzon Synthetic Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. in Zhuhai Free Trade Zone” ( {ZR/&RTEBHA
FRBVEEE TR N B H R T B IRIE R 25T B3Rk ) ), passed the expert review and obtained approval. The company
strictly enforced the “Three Simultaneous” system and implemented environmental protection measures as required under
environmental impact assessment with normal operation of the environmental protection facilities. In 2021, it was awarded
the green card enterprise of environmental credit rating by Zhuhai Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau. In March
2022, the revision and filing of the emergency plan for environmental emergencies was completed.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(3) Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (3SR EBE RS KR
ZH R D F]) (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Pursuant to relevant provisions and requirements, the Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Zhuhai FTZ Livzon
Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( (ERERTRBBHR AN B EFR A RRBREEHEZTER) )
was prepared based on the principles of “Focus on Prevention, Aim at Self-rescue, Centralized Command, and Division
of Responsibility (FEPI A% - B AE - #t—1E81E - H» TARF)", which has been approved for filing and formally
announced with file reference number 440462-2019-001-M. Trainings on emergency events and disposal measures were
held regularly for employees to enable implementation of safety measures in a timely, fast, effective and orderly manner to
control and prevent the worsening of condition and pollution when encountering any occurrence of environmental emergency
cases, so as to alleviate or eliminate the consequences effectively and resume orderly production as soon as possible.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

Through self-monitoring, the requirements under the Technical Standards for Application and Issuance of Pollutant Discharge
License for the Pharmaceutical Industry — Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient Manufacturing (HJ858.1-2017) ( <¥E)5FFA]
B E R AL B R AR BB T 3 — R B KU 5(H)858.1-2017)) ) were strictly implemented, and the verification
and calibration of monitoring analyzing devices were carried out in strict compliance with relevant provisions. Automated
monitoring equipment was installed according to the requirements of technical standards for environmental detection, while
online monitoring equipment for COD, ammonia nitrogen and PH level and online monitoring equipment for non-methane
hydrocarbons were installed and connected with the national development platform as required.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(4) Gutian Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (F HEHEZEGR A F)

Pollutant Total

Name of discharge Total ~ amount of

major pollutants Number of Discharge  standards amountof  discharge
Name of company and specific Mode of  discharge Distribution of  concentration implemented discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mg/l) (mg/l) {t () discharge
Gutian Fuxing Pharmaceutical -~ Chemical oxygen ~ Continuous 1 Southeastern part of 4655 120 6.209 108 il
(o, Ltd. demand the factory zone
(HEEEBEAERAE) Anmonia nitogen 993 3 127 315 N

Note:  The discharge concentration represents the concentration of ultimate discharge into the environment, while the standard adopted
for discharge represents the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of the company, i.e. COD < 120 mg/L, ammonia
nitrogen < 35 mg/L.

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

At the same time when the enterprise started production, the “Three Wastes” were collected and treated effectively in
accordance with the requirements of the “Three Simultaneous” system of environmental protection. This involves a designed
sewage treatment capacity of 1,200 t/d, adoption of the advanced “Anarerobic-Oxic activated sludge process (A/O) + SBR
+ nitrogen removal by denitrification + Fenton decolorizing + air flotation” wastewater treatment process, 6,000 m? of
effective reservoir capacity of the treatment system and more than 20 sets of treatment equipment with 350 KW installed
capacity to improve the water treatment process, thus ensuring that all wastewater treatment indicators are stable and satisfy
the discharge standard. Treated sewage that reaches the grade Il discharge standard is directly discharged into Minjiang
River. The hazardous waste of the company are entrusted to qualified companies for compliant disposal according to the
requirements of environmental impact assessment and acceptance inspection opinions.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The company passed the environmental impact assessment on 30 June 1999 and the inspection and acceptance upon
completion of construction carried out by Environmental Protection Bureau of Fujian Province on 5 June 2000. The company
re-prepared its post-environmental impact assessment report in 2019 and passed the inspection and acceptance carried
out by experts on 11 June 2019. The company strictly enforced the “Three Simultaneous” system and implemented the
environmental protection measures as required under environmental impact assessment, with normal operation of the
environmental protection facilities.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(4) Gutian Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (Z HBEEZFR A 7)) (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Pursuant to relevant provisions and requirements, the Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Gutian Fuxing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. ((HAEBMEBEEARAFREFERFEMHEIIEZR) ) (File No.: 352200-2017-005-1)
was prepared based on the principles of “Focus on Prevention, Aim at Self-rescue, Centralized Command and Division
of Responsibility (FEfi&E - B AL - #i—181E - » TAHE)", which was approved in May 2017. The second
amendment of the contingency plan was made in June 2020, which passed expert review and completed filing (File No.:
350922-2020-002-M).

According to the plan, after environmental emergency incidents occur, immediate, quick, effective and orderly emergency
rescue actions will be taken to control and prevent accidents and the spread of contamination, protect the surrounding
environment effectively and ensure the personal life and property safety of all employees, the company and the nearby
communities. In accordance with the contents and requirements of the plan, the company provides trainings for its employees.
The company is well-prepared for environmental emergency incidents, so that rescue actions could be taken in a timely manner
and incidents could be controlled effectively in a short period of time in case of any environmental emergency incidents.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

According to the relevant requirements of the “Measures for Self-Monitoring and Information Disclosure by Enterprises
subject to Intensive Monitoring and Control of the State (Trial Implementation) ( { EIZR EBhEE 2 B 1TEL R M f5
B ARIEEAEITT)) )", the company has completed the establishment of the self-monitoring program based on its own
situation in a timely manner and made the program available to the public after being examined by and filed with Ningde
Bureau of Ecology and Environment and Ningde Gutian Bureau of Ecology and Environment. The analysis methods of the
monitoring program comply with the national environmental monitoring technical standards and methods; the monitoring
and analysis instruments have been examined and calibrated in strict compliance with the relevant national requirements;
the automated monitoring equipment has been installed in accordance with the requirements of environmental assessment
technical standards, connected to the network of competent environmental protection authorities and passed the acceptance
inspection conducted by the competent environmental protection authorities. The automated monitoring equipment was
sound, and the monitoring information was accurate, valid and authentic. In June 2022, a qualified third party was engaged to
complete the leakage detection and repair (LDAR) work of volatile organic compounds and a report was obtained. Information
publicity website: http://wryfb.fiemc.org.cn
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(5) Limin Factory

Pollutant Total

Name of major discharge Total ~ amount of

pollutants Number of Discharge  standards amountof  discharge
Name of company and specific ~ Mode of  discharge Distribution of concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mgll) (mgll) {t () discharge
Limin Factory Chemical oxygen ~ Intermittent 1 Wastewater treatment B35 10 29 Nl Nil
BHREENRZESR  demand station

Ammonia nitrogen 0.3892 15 0.05 Nil- Nl

Note:  The wastewater of Limin Factory was discharged into Shaoguan Second Sewage Treatment Plant (&A% T 55 — /57K BE 32 J&R)
and the standard adopted for pollutant discharge represented the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of the
company, i.e. COD < 110mg/L, ammonia nitrogen < 15mg/L, while the data detected by third party inspection firm was adopted
as the discharge concentration.

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Simultaneous” system was strictly implemented by the company for the treatment of “Three Wastes” by collecting
and treating the “Three Wastes" effectively. The original sewage treatment plant with an investment amount of over RMB13
million has a designed processing capacity of 1,500t/d and adopts the treatment process of “Pre-treatment + Hydrolysis
acidification tank + Facultative tank + Aerobic pool + Secondary sedimentation”, and the sewage after treatment was
discharged through the municipal pipeline network into Shaoguan Second Sewage Treatment Plant (%88 T 8 — )5 /KRR I
JB). In respect of waste gas treatment, biomass boilers were all replaced by gas boilers. The technical transformation project
of the R&D center has installed waste gas treatment facilities such as activated carbon adsorption and acid mist spray tower.
In respect of control of noise pollution, investment was made to construct noise segregation wall to reduce noise pollution.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The Environmental Impact Report on the Technological Reform Project for the R&D Center of Livzon Group Limin
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory ( { BTk & B | R & B af 35 R D B B IRIB 2R E R ) ) was approved
on 6 December 2019. A review expert meeting was held on 24 April 2021, and independent review was completed. The
Environmental Impact Report for Workshop Il of Small-capacity Injection ( (/AT EI —ESMBEHIRBEERSE
7<) ) was approved on 23 November 2020. On 15 September 2021, a review expert meeting was held, and independent
review was completed. The National Sewage Permit was updated on 22 October 2021. The “Three Simultaneous” system was
strictly enforced to implement the environmental protection measures required under the environmental impact assessment,
with normal operation of the environmental protection facilities.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(5) Limin Factory (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

The principles of occupational health and safety and the environment administrative system were followed, including
occupational protection to ensure health, risk control to ensure safety, prevention and control of pollution to protect the
environment, and compliance with discipline and law for continuous improvement. Identification of environmental factors
was performed seriously and preventive measures were adopted for significant environmental factors, while the governance
of the "Three Wastes” was strengthened to enhance the ability of control over the “Three Wastes” and ensure that the
discharge of the “Three Wastes” had reached the discharge standards. The Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of
Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory ( ( BBIAEEF R BB R BIRINEMHESTEAR) ) (File
No.: 440203-2021-009-L) was prepared in accordance with the criteria of the environmental management system and the
occupational health and safety administrative system. The plan was issued in May 2021. According to the contingency plan,
an environmental accident emergency drill was conducted on 24 September 2021, and a specific drill summary was made.
Identification of environmental factors and sources of hazards and drills for emergency were conducted internally in the
company on regular basis to improve the operability of the contingency plan, enhance the performance level of the emergency
rescue staff, responsiveness of the rescue team as well as coordination and collaboration of different tasks.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

An entity with national qualification on inspection was engaged to conduct monitoring strictly in compliance with the relevant
national laws and regulations and standards. By considering its own specific conditions, the company appointed the inspection
party to carry out water pollutant detection monitoring every quarter, boiler waste gas monitoring every month and R&D
Center VOCs waste gas monitoring every six months, each time the monitoring would be conducted strictly in compliance with
the relevant national requirements to ensure the accuracy, validity and authenticity of the monitoring data. The installation
and commissioning of online monitoring equipment for COD and ammonia nitrogen in water passed its review and put into
operation in January 2021, and it will perform monitoring every 2 hours. Data should be completed and filed to the Pollutant
Source Sharing Data Platform of the Shaoguan Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau on a timely basis, and the relevant
data would be announced to the public after being reviewed by the Shaoguan Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(6) Pharmaceutical Factory

Pollutant Total
Name of discharge Total ~ amount of
major pollutants Number of Discharge  standards amountof  discharge
Name of company and specific ~ Mode of discharge Distribution of concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mg/l) (mg/l) () () discharge
Pharmaceutical Factory Chemical oxygen ~ Intermittent 1 Wastewater treatment 18.48 120 1.15 Nil- Nl
demand station
Ammonia nitrogen 1 Wastewater treatment 0.11 2 0.007 Nil Nl
station

Note:  The discharge concentration of pollutants in the wastewater discharge outlet represents the average concentration detected by
a qualified third party engaged, by implementing the strictest of Schedule 2 Water Pollutant Discharge Concentration Limits for
Newly-Built Enterprises (% 2#TZE (> 2 7K55 LW HEHURE FR{E) of the Emission Standard for Pharmaceutical Industrial Water
Pollutants from Mixing and Formulation Category ( JRZERIBIXERIBE T 2K05 Y EEMUSEXE) ) (GB 21908-2008), Schedule 2
Water Pollutant Discharge Concentration Limits for Newly-Built Enterprises (3= 25T 221> 2 7K)5 M EE HUR E PR 18) of Discharge
Standards for Biopharmaceutical Industrial Wastewater ( { &%) T 248525 T 25 2 Y HEGZZE) ) (GB 21907-2008), or
the level 1 of phase Il standard of Guangdong Provincial Capping on Polluted Effluents Discharge ( /&R & /K5 2 HE MR
1) ) (DB 44/26-2001).

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Simultaneous” system was strictly implemented by the company for the treatment of “Three Wastes” by collecting
and treating the “Three Wastes” effectively. For wastewater: an investment of over RMB10 million was made for phase |
and phase Il sewage treatment station with a designed processing capacity of 1,000t/d, which adopted the CASS process
for phase | and the A/Q process for phase Il, and the sewage after treatment was discharged through the municipal pipeline
network into sewage treatment plants. For waste gas: currently, the company uses purchased steam and takes the boilers
as backups, greatly reducing air emissions. The waste gas of the wastewater treatment stations is treated by a combination
of first-level spray towers, Ultra Violet (UV) photoion equipment and second-level spray towers.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Expansion Project for Production Line of Recombinant Human Chorionic
Gonadotropin for Injection of Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory (BB Tk 5= B BE TR 2L ZE47) was approved in March
2018; the Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Expansion Project for Sewage Treatment Stations of Livzon Group
Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory was approved in April 2019; the Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Expansion
Project for Production Line of lyophilized Powder Injection of Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory was approved in
November 2020. The Environmental Impact Report Form for the Newly-added Wet Granulation Line Project P07 of Livzon
Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory was approved on 18 May 2022. The company updated the pollutant discharge permit
in June 2022. The company will strictly enforce the “Three-simultaneous” system to implement the environmental protection
measures as required by environmental assessment.

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Pursuant to relevant requlations and requirements, the Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Livzon Group Livzon
Pharmaceutical Factory ( (IR BB IR B R HIRIFE M ESTEE) ) was updated by the company in 2021, and
has been approved for filing approval and announced, with the filing number 440404-2021-0212-L. The company conducted
a fire emergency evacuation drill in the workshop P10 in April 2022 to enhance emergency response capabilities of staff, so
as to alleviate or eliminate the consequences effectively.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(6) Pharmaceutical Factory (continued)

Environmental self-monitoring program:

Inspection party with national qualification on inspection was engaged to conduct monitoring strictly in compliance with the
relevant national laws and regulations and standards. By considering its own specific conditions, the Company appointed
the inspection party to carry out monitoring on wastewater and waste gas every month, each time the monitoring would be
conducted strictly in compliance with the relevant national requirements to ensure the accuracy, validity and authenticity of
the monitoring data. The installation and commissioning of the online sewage monitoring equipment was completed and it
was put into use at the beginning of 2021.

(7) Ningxia Pharma

Pollutant Total
Name of discharge Total ~ amount of
major pollutants Number of Discharge  standards amountof  discharge
Name of company ~and specific ~ Mode of discharge Distribution of ~ concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets  discharge outlets (mo/Wimag/é) (ma/L /) {t (ti)  discharge
Ningxia Pharma Chemical oxygen ~ Continuous 1 Sewage treatment 1 200 675 Nil Nl
demand workshop on north side
Ammonia nitrogen of factory zone 13 i) 0.74 Nil Nl
Sulphur dioxide 1 Boiler workshop on north 5 200 19.61 156816 Nil
Nitrogen oxides side of factory zone 9 200 N 156816 N
Particulate matter 8 30 29 352 i
Volatile organic 9 Joutlets for fermentation, 27 100 1.5 79535 il
compounds 3 outlts for refinery and
2 outlts for sewage
Notes: (1) The discharge concentration of wastewater represents the concentration of ultimate discharge to the environmental
protection control center of Ningxia Xin'an Technology Co., Ltd. (BFE# LB R A F]) (“Xin'an Company”), the
standard adopted for discharge was the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of the company and the
amount of discharge was calculated by the amount received by Xin'an Company. In respect of the total amount of approved
discharge, since Ningxia Pharma adopted indirect discharge, the local government of Ningxia cancelled the limitation
of total discharge of chemical oxygen demand and ammonia nitrogen of all indirect discharge enterprises, and the total
amount index was directly allocated to sewage treatment plants in the pharmaceutical industrial park established by the
government after the renewal of the pollution discharge license.
(2) The air emission concentration of boilers represents the self-monitoring average concentration throughout the year, the

standard adopted for discharge was the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license of the company and the
amount of discharge was calculated by the amount indicated by online monitoring. The concentration of volatile organic
compounds represents the concentration of ultimate discharge to the environment (self-monitoring concentration),
the adopted standard was the standard limits stipulated in Schedule | of the Air Pollutant Discharge Standards for
Pharmaceutical Industry ( (BIZET R FSLYIBEHRIZAE) ) (GB 37823-2019) and the amount of discharge was
calculated by the amount of waste gas emissions and the discharge concentration recorded by the monitoring report.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(7) Ningxia Pharma (continued)

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

Through strict enforcement of the “Three Simultaneous” system, the “Three Wastes” were collected and treated effectively.
The designed total processing capacity of sewage treatment was 7,500 m*/d (including one plant with capacity of 5,000
m3/d and one plant with capacity of 2,500 m3/d), and the actual total treatment amount was 3,100 m?/d. Treated sewage
that reaches the standard stipulated in the pollutant discharge license is discharged to Xin'an Company through the sewage
pipeline network in the industrial park. In 2021, the installation and use of waste gas collection and treatment facilities
for hazardous waste stations were completed, and doramectin fermentation waste gas of fermentation workshop 101 was
introduced into the specific waste gas treatment facilities for doramectin fermentation waste gas of fermentation workshop
102, and a primary sedimentation tank was added to the sewage treatment station to lead out waste gas for treatment.
Since May 2022, the original waste gas treatment facilities of the fermentation workshop 103-2 have been upgraded and
improved, mainly by adding a set of “sodium hypochlorite spray absorption + water spray absorption + dual-phase super
oxygen water + micro-nano bubbles” process governance facilities. The upgrade and improvement was currently under
construction and was expected to be completed and put into use in July 2022.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The environmental protection inspection for completion of doramectin expansion project was completed in March 2021. In
September 2021, expert review and government filing were completed for the environmental impact evaluation of project
work upon optimized disposal of the company’s solid waste. The company applied to change its pollutant discharge permit
and passed the review of the Pingluo Branch of Shizuishan Municipal Ecology and Environment Bureau in December 2021.
The company strictly enforced the “Three Simultaneous” system to implement the environmental protection measures as
required by environmental assessment, and the environmental protection facilities were in normal operation.

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

The Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Livzon Group (Ningxia) Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( {EBEk
SE(EE)REARARIREIRIFZFEITER) ) was verified, filed and issued in May 2019 (File No.: 640221-2019-
005-11). Identification of environmental factors and sources of hazards and drills for emergency were conducted internally in the
company on regular basis to improve the operability of the contingency plan, enhance the performance level of the emergency
rescue staff, and enhance the integrated coordination and collaboration capabilities in relation to the responsiveness and
coordination of the rescue team. The Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan was amended in May 2021, and was
reviewed by experts and was reviewed by and filed with government environmental department in August 2021.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(7) Ningxia Pharma (continued)

Environmental self-monitoring program:

The company formulated the self-monitoring program for 2021, which was reviewed by and filed with the Ecological
Environment Bureau of Shizuishan City. Monthly and quarterly monitoring was carried out strictly in accordance with the
requirements of the program, which focused primarily on organized air emissions, air emissions from boilers, wastewater,
underground water, soil, diffusive environmental air, noise and recycled water TOC at plant boundary, and the leakage
detection and repair (LDAR) work of volatile organic compounds was carried out. The monitoring results would be announced
to the public through the System of National Pollution Sources Monitoring Information Management and Sharing Platform
((EESRREAEEEBEELZFEAES) ) and the System of Self-monitoring Information Open Platform for
Enterprises in Shizuishan ( (AW LT X BTEAIE E AR T & Z4) ). The automated monitoring equipment was
connected to the network of the competent environmental protection authority and passed the inspection conducted by the
competent environmental protection authority. The automated monitoring equipment was sound, and the monitoring data
was accurate, valid and authentic. In the first half of 2021, the RTO exhaust VOCs online monitoring equipment was installed
and put into use, and passed government inspection in August 2021. In the first half of 2022, monitoring has been carried
out as required according to the monitoring program.

(8) Jiaozuo Hecheng

Pollutant Total

Name of discharge Total ~amount of

major pollutants Number of Discharge ~ standards amountof  discharge
Name of company and specific ~ Mode of  discharge Distribution of concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary pollutants discharge outlets discharge outlets (mg/l) (mg/l) {t () discharge
Jiaozuo Hecheng Chemical oxygen ~ Continuous 1 Master outlet in industrial 94.201 00 397 608 il

demand Wastewater workshop

Ammonia nitrogen 3. 3 0.138 88 il

Note:  The discharge concentration and the total amount of discharge represent the concentration and total amount of ultimate discharge
into the downstream sewage treatment plant, and the source is online monitoring data.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(8) Jiaozuo Hecheng (continued)

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Wastes” were collected and treated effectively in strict compliance with the “Three Simultaneous” system.
The designed sewage treatment capacity was 3,000t/d, the treatment process of “hydrolytic acidification tank + UASB +
aerobic pool + materialized treatment” was adopted, the treated wastewater would be discharged through the municipal
pipeline network into the sewage treatment plant of Xiuwu Branch of Kangda Water Co., Ltd. (FEZE/KIEBR A /ER
72 \]). The sewage treatment facilities were under normal operation with compliant discharge. For waste gas: in 2021,
the three-stage sewage spraying was replaced, and a set of waste gas treatment facilities was added in the UV photolysis
sewage station. Waste gas would be discharged after standard was met. Waste gas generated from technical process in the
production zone would be collected and treated by adopting two sets of processes of “water spray + activated carbon and
-20T condensation + water spray + activated carbon” and then discharged after reaching the required standard. Solid waste
and hazardous waste would be stored in the hazardous waste station constructed in compliance with the requirements of
“Three Protections” (protection against leaks, erosion and rain) according to the requirements under the (Pilot) Guidelines
for Standardized Management of Hazardous Waste in Henan Province ( (GAIFI& B/ BE YR &L E 2 T e/ (H17)) )
for hazardous waste. In January 2022, a self-monitoring and automatic monitoring equipment comparison contract was
signed with Henan Zhongfang Quality Inspection Technology Co., Ltd. (7 7 /5 & 2RI T8 FR 2 7) to monitor the
company's discharge outlets on a regular basis; in January 2022, an operation and maintenance contract in relation to online
continuous monitoring system for water quality was signed with Jiaozuo Lansheng Environmental Technology Service Co., Ltd.
(FEVEM & RIRFHITARTE AR 2 7)) to maintain the water quality by the company's online continuous monitoring system.
In April 2022, the company entered into a hazardous waste disposal agreement with Henan Zhonghuanxin Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (f] @ P IRZERIR B AR A 7)) for disposal of hazardous waste on regular basis. Other general
solid waste would be disposed of in compliance with the relevant requirements.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report on Current Status of Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. ( (EIEBHKAMEBERR A RIRMIRIBRF EFL(HRE) ) was approved and filed on 15 December 2016,
the “Three Simultaneous” system was strictly enforced, the environmental protection measures as required by environmental
assessment were implemented and the environmental protection facilities were in normal operation. The application for the
national pollutant discharge license was completed in December 2020, the environmental protection policies were strictly
enforced and various management measures were implemented. According to the spirit of the Notice of the Office of the
Leading Group of Pollution Prevention and Control Battle in Jiaozuo on Focusing on Air Pollution Prevention and Control
in May 2022 ( (ERVEMISRPARBEEE/ NER A ZENIF202255 A KRS RATa R B EFH TENE
H1) ), the "one enterprise, one policy” plan for Jiaozuo Hecheng, a VOCs discharge enterprise, was formulated in 2022.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(8) Jiaozuo Hecheng (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

The Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( {£&
TEBIRA BB AR A R)ZREBIRIF B EZTER) ) was prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions and
requirements and based on the principles of “Focusing on Prevention, On-alert all the time; Management by Classification,
Response by Tiers, Cooperation among Departments, Responsibility by Levels; Scientific Prevention and Efficient Disposal”.
The contingency plan was approved for announcement and filing in April 2021 (File No.: 4108042018005L). The Hazardous
Waste Environmental Pollution Emergency Contingency Plan of Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. ( (ERIEBRE KR EBR A RIBREYIRIR SR EWESTES) ) was compiled and was approved for filing
in January 2018. Identification of environmental factors and sources of hazards and drills for emergency were conducted
internally in the company on regular basis to improve the operability of the contingency plan, enhance the performance level
of the emergency rescue staff, and enhance the coordination and collaboration capabilities in relation to the responsiveness
and coordination of the rescue team. The company carried out trainings on the Standard Operating Procedure for Acid Mist
Purification Towers ( (B 55 /F{L IS IR XER/EMRFZ ) ) and the Standard Operating Procedure for Hazardous Waste Storage
Pollutants ( fEBREEVIETIE)5 MR VEARFE) ) in April 2021 and June 2021, respectively, according to the relevant
requirements of the Hazardous Waste Environmental Pollution Emergency Contingency Plan of Jiaozuo Livzon Hecheng
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( (EEVEBLRAE KR EER AR EREYRR SAEHEEZTESR) ). In
November 2021, the Operation Regulations for Exhaust Gas UV Photolysis Equipment ( { B RUVIt R R IR 1ERRTE) )
was added and the Spray Towers Operation Regulations ( (M #IEEVEFRIE) ) was amended, and training was carried
out on the Operation Regulations for Exhaust Gas UV Photolysis Equipment and the Spray Towers Operation Regulations
to enhance the environmental protection knowledge of staff. In March 2022, the environmental protection documents such
as the Enterprise Environmental Information Disclosure System ( {{EZIRIBE B AFFIE) ), the Sewage Discharge
Permit System ( {BESSFFAIZEHIE ) ) and the Sewage Treatment Process Operation Regulations ( {J57KEEIE T 214
YE3RF2) ) were revised.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

According to the relevant requirements of the Measures for Self-Monitoring and Information Disclosure by the Enterprises
subject to Intensive Monitoring and Control of the State (Trial Implementation) ( { EIZR EZHEEIE D E B TESAI R fE B
ARPUEEITT)) ), the company implemented and completed the self-monitoring program based on its own situation in
a timely manner and made the program available to the public after being examined by and filed with relevant competent
environmental protection authorities. The analysis methods of the monitoring program comply with the national environmental
monitoring technical standards and methods. The monitoring and analysis instruments have been examined and calibrated
in strict compliance with the relevant national requirements. The leakage detection and repair (LDAR) of volatile organic
compounds was completed in June 2022. The inspection of equipment and facilities such as solvent pipes and flanges in
the workshop was conducted and maintenance and rectification was carried out on the places where there was leakage.
According to the requirements of environmental testing technical specifications, the company has installed online automatic
sewage monitoring equipment, and also installed online monitoring equipment for COD, ammonia nitrogen, PH value, flow
rate and total nitrogen, which were connected to the Guofa platform (BI2% &) as required. The company carried out
monitoring on a monthly and quarterly basis in strict compliance with the requirements of the self-testing scheme, which
focused primarily on organized air emissions, wastewater, diffusive environmental air and noise at plant boundary.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(9) Shanghai Livzon

Pollutant Total
discharge Total  amount of
Name of major Number of  Distribution Discharge standards  amountof discharge
Name of company  pollutants and Modeof discharge  of discharge ~ concentration implemented discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary specific pollutants  discharge outlets  outlets (mglimgh?) — (mgl}img/?) ) (ta)  discharge
Shanghai Livzon Chemical oxygen demand  Intermittent 1 Master outlet in the ] 500 112 Nl Nl
Ammonia nitrogen park 535 0 0.2 NIl N
Particulate matter Organized 2 No.5and 6 outlets on - - - - i
intemittent the roof
Volatile organic compounds ~ discharge 8 Nt 234789 245 60 0.00255 2145 Nl
and 10 outlets on
the roof

Note:  The discharge concentration was the average of monthly third-party monitoring data, and the amount of discharge was the
cumulative sum of monthly discharge. The discharge of VOCs and particulate matter were in accordance with the Air Pollutant
Discharge Standards for Pharmaceutical Industry ( { R 22 T 2 K &5 &Y BERUZZE) ) (GB 37823-2019), and the discharge
of COD and Ammonia nitrogen were implemented in accordance with the comprehensive sewage discharge standard DB 31/199-
2018. Shanghai Livzon was among other key pollutant discharge units, but not among the key pollutant discharge units of water
environment and atmospheric environment.

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The company designed and built a sewage treatment station with a processing capacity of 200 m*d in 2018. The company's
wastewater was treated by such sewage treatment station and then entered the park’s sewage treatment station for secondary
treatment, and finally discharged into the municipal pipeline network. The company had the hazardous waste station in
compliance with the requirements of “Three Preventions” to store hazardous waste and appointed a qualified company for
compliant disposal. The company’s main discharge outlets were treated with activated carbon adsorption and filtration, and
the activated carbon was replaced every half a year to ensure that the air emissions met the standards. In January 2022,
the company demolished the solid preparation workshop on the third floor and transformed it into a microsphere workshop,
and there is no particulate matter emission from the No. 5 and No.6 discharge outlets accordingly.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The company passed the environmental assessment review of the Leuprorelin Acetate Microspheres for Injection
Industrialization Project ( ESTFABRBA S R InMIAFREZE(LIEER ) ) on 11 October 2010, obtained the approval for
the Environmental Impact Report on Supporting Engineering and Laboratory Projects of Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ( { EBBHREEZERAREETELERZTHEARREZERE) ) on 10 January 2020,
and completed the construction and passed the acceptance inspection in September 2020. The Company strictly implements
the “Three Simultaneous” system and take environmental protection measures required for environmental assessment, with
the environmental protection facilities under normal operation.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

9) Shanghai Livzon (continued)

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

In March 2022, the Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
((LBBHREERARIRERIFEEHEZTEER) ) (File No.: 02-310115-2022-108-L) was filed by the company.
The company conducts drills and reviews of the plan every year to improve its emergency response capabilities through
regular training on the plan.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

In accordance with the relevant requirements of the General Rules for the Self-Monitoring Technical Guidelines for Pollutant
Discharge Units ( {BES5 B B 1TESRIELfiT 548 1) ) (H) 819-2017) and the pollutant discharge license, the company
organized self-monitoring and information disclosure of the pollutants it has discharged, and formulated the self-monitoring
program. In 2022, the company monitors main air emission outlets once a month, common discharge outlets once half a year,
noise once every quarter and wastewater once a month. The monitoring items and frequency shall meet the requirements
of the pollutant discharge license.

(10) Livzon MAB

Pollutant Total
discharge Total  amount of
Name of major Number of  Distribution Discharge standards ~ amountof discharge
Name of company pollutants and Modeof  discharge of discharge  concentration implemented  discharge  approved  Excessive
or subsidiary specific pollutants  discharge outlets  outlets (mgll) (mgll) ) (ta)  discharge
Livzon MAB Chemical oxygen demand  Intermittent 1 Sewage treatment 18.48 10 078 Nl N
station
Ammaonia nitrogen 1 Sewage treatment 0.1 2 0.005 Nl Nil
station

Note:  The discharge concentration of pollutants in the wastewater discharge outlet represents the average concentration detected by
a qualified third party engaged, by implementing the strictest of Schedule 2 Water Pollutant Discharge Concentration Limits for
Newly-Built Enterprises (3R 2¥TEE (> 2 7K55 2 HEHUEZ PR1E) of the Emission Standard for Pharmaceutical Industrial Water
Pollutants from Mixing and Formulation Category ( R3S BB ERIEE T 32 7K)5 2 W HEAUEZE) ) (GB 21908-2008), Schedule 2
Water Pollutant Discharge Concentration Limits for Newly-Built Enterprises (38 25 221 % /K75 W EE BUR E FR1E) of Discharge
Standards for Biopharmaceutical Industrial Wastewater ( =% TI2FERI%E T Z/K)5 LM EEHIEZE) ) (GB 21907-2008), or
the level 1 of phase Il standard of Guangdong Provincial Capping on Polluted Effluents Discharge ( /&R & /K5 2 HE MR
18) ) (DB 44/26-2001).
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

1. The Company and Its Subsidiaries Belonging to Key Pollutant Discharging Units as
Announced by the Environmental Protection Department (continued)

(10) Livzon MAB (continued)

Construction and operation of pollution preventive facilities:

The “Three Simultaneous” system was strictly implemented by the company for the treatment of “Three Wastes” by collecting
and treating the “Three Wastes" effectively. For wastewater (relying on the wastewater treatment of Pharmaceutical Factory
in the park): an investment of over RMB10 million was made for phase | and phase Il sewage treatment station with designed
processing capacity of 1,000t/d, which adopted the CASS process for phase | and the A/O process for phase Il, and the
sewage after treatment was discharged through the municipal pipeline network into sewage treatment plants. For waste gas:
currently, the company uses purchased steam and takes the boilers as backups, greatly reducing air emissions. The waste
gas of the wastewater treatment stations is treated by a combination of first-level spray towers, Ultra Violet (UV) photoion
equipment and second-level spray towers.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and other environmental protection administrative licensing:

The Environmental Impact Assessment Report on the V01 Industrialization Project of Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical
Factory was approved in April 2021; the Environmental Impact Report Form for the Expansion Preparation Line 3 of the
Large-scale Production Capacity Building Project of Recombinant SARS-CoV-2 Fusion Protein Vaccine (2B TR Bk R S
B A= E &) (V-01) was approved in March 2022. The company updated the pollutant discharge permit in March 2022.
The company strictly enforced the “Three Simultaneous” system to implement the environmental protection measures as
required by environmental assessment.

Environmental emergency contingency plan:

Pursuant to relevant regulations and requirements, the Environmental Emergency Contingency Plan of Livzon MAB ( {BBEREE
MREIRIBHFEZTEZ) ) was prepared by the company in 2022. In June 2022, the company conducted an emergency
drill for hazardous chemicals leakage in the hazardous goods warehouse to enhance emergency response capabilities of staff,
so as to alleviate or eliminate the impact of the consequences.

Environmental self-monitoring program:

The company entrusted an agency with national testing qualifications to carry out monitoring in strict compliance with relevant
national laws, requlations and standards. By considering its own specific conditions, the company entrusted the inspection
party to carry out monitoring on wastewater and waste gas on a reqular basis in accordance with the requirements of the
implementation plan of the pollutant discharge permit, and each time the monitoring was conducted strictly in compliance
with the relevant national requirements to ensure the accuracy, validity and authenticity of the monitoring data.

In addition to the above disclosures, please refer to the periodic reports disclosed by the Company in previous years for
relevant information.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

2. Administrative Penalties Imposed on the Company and Their Subsidiaries for
Environmental Issues During the Reporting Period

O] Applicable v Not applicable

3. Measures Taken and Effects on Reducing Carbon Emissions During the Reporting
Period

v Applicable [J Not applicable

Measures taken and effects on reducing carbon emissions during the
Company name Reporting Period by key pollutant discharge enterprises of the Group

Fuzhou Fuxing Used photovoltaic power generation to reduce power consumption; renovated high-energy-
consuming pumps for energy conservation to effectively reduce energy consumption;
replaced with high-efficiency motor water pumps to save energy consumption; vigorously
promoted energy conservation and consumption reduction, and called on employees to
realize the concept of “turning off lights, air conditioners and computers before leaving
office” during their daily work.

Xinbeijiang Pharma Introduced photovoltaic power generation to reduce power consumption; used water
kinetic energy instead of electric motors to drive the cooling tower fans to reduce the
electric energy consumption while ensuring the cooling effect; pre-heated the soft water
of the boiler by the heat generated from the operation of the air compressor to raise
the temperature of the inlet water of the boiler and effectively reduce the consumption
of natural gas; regularly cleaned the inner wall of the MVR equipment to increase the
evaporation rate of sugar water of the MVR equipment by about 40%, hence effectively
reducing the running time of the MVR equipment and greatly reducing electricity
consumption; replaced old boilers of high energy consumption and high maintenance cost
with new boilers. Accordingly, the average natural gas consumption reduced by 1.06 m?
per tonne of steam generated.

Livzon Hecheng Maintained and updated chiller units to make more rational use of energy and saved
electricity consumption for production through more reasonable production scheduling
by the production department; used natural gas as fuel for canteens and boilers; replaced
sewage treatment Roots blowers in the environmental protection center with magnetic
levitation blowers with an energy saving rate of about 30%, saving about 107,000 kWh
of electricity consumption per year; called on all employees of the factory to respond
to electricity conservation, turn off lights and air conditioners before leaving office, and
limited the minimum temperature of air conditioners; promoted green travel, encouraged
the use of public transportation when going out to work, and set up shuttle buses to
transport employees to and from work.
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SECTION VI ENVI
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRON

RONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

MENTAL ISSUES (continued)

3. Measures Taken and Effects on Reducing Carbon Emissions During the Reporting

Period (continued)

Measures taken and effects on reducing carbon emissions during the

Company name Re

porting Period by key pollutant discharge enterprises of the Group

Gutian Fuxing Installed 4 air compressors with a capacity of 130m*min to replace the original air

compressor with high power consumption to reduce power consumption; replaced one
chiller unit to reduce electricity consumption; called on all employees to “save every drop
of water, save every kilowatt of electricity”, so that the lights are turned off and the
equipment is powered off before leaving office.

Limin Factory Appropriately adjusted the temperature and humidity settings of the air conditioning system

(within the standard range) in the solid workshop to keep it as close to the outside
temperature and humidity as possible, thus reducing steam consumption; reduced energy
consumption by controlling the number of running compressors in the air conditioning
units and setting parameters by the Quality Control Department, and by implementing
intermittent use mode for the bioassay lab; used hot tailwater from the water distiller in
the production workshop to heat the boiler soft water, thus reducing the consumption
of natural gas; renovated the air-conditioning ventilation system at the R&D Centre to
save electricity.

Pharmaceutical Factory Reduced electricity consumption by replacing incandescent lamps with LED lamps; refurbished

photovoltaic inverter cabinets and roof-mounted photovoltaic modules, improving the
photovoltaic power generation efficiency after refurbishment, saving about 600,000
kWh of electricity per year; introduced purchased steam to reduce boiler combustion and
save energy; further strengthened the energy conservation management of functional
departments, turned off lights during the lunch break, encouraged employees to turn
off lights and computers to save electricity before leaving seats or office; set up shuttle
buses to transport employees to and from work.

Ningxia Pharma Renovated the phenylalanine concentration system and adopted MVR concentration to

replace the original triple-effect concentration system, thus reducing energy consumption
by about 50%. Regularly overhauled and maintained the boiler system to ensure the
efficient operation of the boiler body and the desulfurization and dust removal facilities.
Increased the consumption of steam from external supply to cut the use of coal and
reduce carbon emissions.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

. MAJOR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)

3. Measures Taken and Effects on Reducing Carbon Emissions During the Reporting
Period (continued)

Measures taken and effects on reducing carbon emissions during the
Company name Reporting Period by key pollutant discharge enterprises of the Group

Jiaozuo Hecheng Collected and reused steam condense to reduce steam consumption, so as to reduce
carbon emissions; changed the packaging equipment to automatic packaging to improve
production efficiency; vigorously promoted energy saving and consumption reduction
internally, called on all employees to “save every drop of water, save every kilowatt
of electricity”, and uniformly managed the paint in the workshop to eliminate waste;
installed additional mirrors behind the steam pipeline drainage valves to observe whether
there is steam loss; led the steam condense to the production auxiliary system of the hot
water tank and the crystallization tank to reduce the use of steam; changed the lighting in
the common areas of the workshop, corridors, etc. to sound- or light-controlled switches
and gradually replaced the workshop lighting with LED lights; gradually replaced high
energy consuming equipment and facilities in workshops with low energy consuming or
automated interlocking devices.

Shanghai Livzon Further strengthened the daily energy-saving management according to the established
energy-saving plan, effectively improved the energy-saving awareness of employees
through inspection, publicity and other means, and cultivated good habit of saving water
and electricity among employees; optimized the peptide splicing process, increased the
peptide splicing yield by more than 10%, thus reducing the power consumption per unit of
product; transformed the solid preparation workshop into the powder injection workshop
which produces less waste and conserves electricity; while comfortable air conditioning
unit (cooling) utilized the chilled water unit in the power room, the multi-expansion air
conditioning unit was placed outdoors to use air cooling, saving cooling capacity and
reducing energy consumption.

Livzon MAB Introduced purchased steam to save energy. Effectively improved the energy-saving
awareness of employees through inspection, publicity and other means, and cultivated
good habit of saving water and electricity among employees; used LED lights to reduce
electricity consumption, and encouraged employees to turn off lights and computers to
save electricity before leaving office. Set up shuttle buses to transport employees to and
from work.
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SECTION VI ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

II. CONSOLIDATE AND EXPAND THE ACHIEVEMENTS OF POVERTY
ALLEVIATION AND RURAL REVITALIZATION

1. Industrial Revitalization

The Group fully implements the spirit of the important instructions put forward by the CPC Central Committee and the General
Secretary. In accordance with the relevant requirements, we have established and implemented the plan of “Astragalus Root
(=€) Industry Revitalization” and adopt the model of “Company + Base” and “Company + Professional Cooperative”,
encouraging locals to cultivate and process astragalus root and develop the astragalus root industry with reference to the
local conditions to make it a pillar industry for poverty relief in the long-term. The Group will explore the development of
the featured astragalus root industry to achieve poverty elimination and promote the construction of the “Chinese Medicine
Ecological Base”.

"Astragalus Root (R2£€) Industry Revitalization” has been in place since 2017. Datong Livzon Qiyuan Medicine Co., Ltd.
(KRB EIREM B PR A 7)) ("Datong Livzon"), a subsidiary of the Company, has established its own planting bases in
Hunyuan County of Datong City in Shanxi Province and Zizhou County of Yulin City in Shaanxi Province, respectively, and built
astragalus root planting bases together with 12 cooperatives and 3 individuals in Tianzhen County of Datong City and Ying
County of Shuozhou City in Shanxi Province and Yulin City of Shaanxi Province, covering an area of approximately 33,000
mu and supporting a total of 265 people, thereby effectively promoting the economic development of the corresponding
areas in Datong, Shanxi and Yulin, Shaanxi.

During the Reporting Period, the self-built base in Hunyuan County of Datong City in Shanxi Province increased the planting
area by 300 mu and employed 55 additional local workers. In addition, Datong Livzon launched the “Joint Construction
by Village and Enterprise” project and built a new primary processing plant for astragalus root in Mazhuang Village in
cooperation with the village committee of Mazhuang Village in Guan'er Township, Hunyuan County of Datong City in Shanxi
Province.

2.  Access to Public Welfare Program for Prevention and Treatment of Chronic Diseases

In order to respond positively to the call of national policy, the Group and the Joincare Group have cooperated and launched
the “Public Welfare Program for Prevention and Treatment of Chronic Diseases (21277428 B)" by combining
their own industrial advantages. The program mainly targets at common chronic diseases such as hypertension, hyperlipidemia,
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular diseases, and donates treatment drugs to remote areas, including Pravastatin Capsules (&
X4t T MR TE), Amlodipine Besylate Capsules (R TE B4 & 51 7 BB 5€), Valsartan Capsules (48738 2 %8), and Isosorbide
Bononitrate Tablets (BERE AL 2 1LIFLER F7), etc. These drugs can really help families in remote areas, make it convenient for
patients in the regions to take drugs nearby, help the families with patients to alleviate medical pressures, and provide timely
assistance. Based on actual conditions, assistance was provided for families with patients in remote regions. The project also
helps to promote local development of rural revitalization and contributes to the state strategic goal of common prosperity.

Since late 2018 onwards, with the support from local governments and the relevant competent authorities, the “Public
Welfare Program for Prevention and Treatment of Chronic Diseases” was smoothly implemented successively in the areas
including Chaotian District of Guangyuan City in Sichuan Province, Songpan County of Ngawa Tibetan and Qiang Autonomous
Prefecture in Sichuan Province, Jiange County and Pingwu County in Sichuan Province, Hunyuan County, Guangling County
and Linggiu County of Datong City in Shanxi Province, Dongxiang County, Tianzhu County, Linze County and Shandan County
in Gansu Province, Xianghai national nature reservation in lilin Province, Chayu County in Tibet Autonomous Region, Macun
District of Jiaozuo City in Henan Province, Huangshan District of Huangshan City in Anhui Province, Suining County in Hunan
Province and Fenyi County in Jiangxi Province. As at the End of the Reporting Period, the Company has donated drugs worth
RMB1 million to low-income chronic patients in each of the abovementioned regions for the treatment of chronic diseases.

As at 30 June 2022, there were a total of 18 agreements in relation to the Public Welfare Program for Prevention and
Treatment of Chronic Diseases, among which 16 were remote areas in need of help and 1 was national nature reservation,
which helped more than 6,000 low-income chronic patients. In the second half of 2022, it is expected to donate drugs to
areas including Gansu, Sichuan, Guizhou, Anhui and Jilin.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

. CHANGES IN SHARES

1. Changes in Shares

As at 30 June 2022, the share capital structure of the Company was as follows:

Before the current change

Number Percentage

Increase/decrease (+, -) due to
the current change
Issuance of
new shares Others Subtotal

Unit: share(s)
After the current change

Number Percentage

I, Shares subject to selling restrictions 19,861,101 2.12%
1. Shares held by state government
2. Shares held by state-owned entities 17,306,329 1.85%
3. Shares held by other domestic holders 2,501,537 0.27%
Including: Shares held by domestic
entities
Shares held by domestic 2,501,537 0.27%
natural persons
4. Shares held by foreign holders 53,235 0.01%
Including: Shares held by foreign entities
Shares held by foreign natural 53,35 0.01%
persons
Il Shares not subject to selling restrictions 918,004,020 97.88%

1. Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 604,768,403 64.48%
2. Domestically listed foreign shares

3. Overseas listed foreign shares 313,235,617 33.40%
4. Others
Il Total number of shares 937,865,121 100.00%

+496,836 -3,404,400 -2,907,564
+496,836 S +496,836

S -3,404,400 -3,404,400

+496,836 -3,404,400 -2,907,564

19,861,101 2.12%
17,306,329 1.85%
2,501,537 0.27%
2,501,537 0.27%
53,235 0.01%
53,235 0.01%

915,096,456 97.88%
605,265,239 04.74%

309,831,217 33.14%

934,957,557 100.00%

Note:  The number of shares subject to selling restrictions are listed in accordance with the data in the “Detailed Data Sheet of Restricted
Shares (Information Disclosure Statement) ( (R &%) BAMEIE R (S W EHREK)) )" provided by CSDCC.

Reasons for changes in shares

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Since the First Grant of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company was in the third exercise period, and the
Reserved Grant thereof was under the second exercise period, during the Reporting Period, a total of 496,836 share options
were exercised by the incentive participants (including the Directors and senior management of the Company), 496,836 A
Shares of the Company increased accordingly. In addition, during the Reporting Period, the Company has repurchased and
cancelled 3,404,400 H Shares. The total number of shares of the Company decreased by 2,907,564 shares accordingly.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

l. CHANGES IN SHARES (continued)
1. Changes in Shares (continued)
Approval of changes in shares

v Applicable [ Not applicable

On 10 November 2021, the Resolution on Fulfillment of Exercise Conditions for the Third Exercise Period of the First Grant
under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company and the Resolution on Fulfillment of Exercise Conditions
for the Second Exercise Period of the Reserved Grant under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company were
considered and approved at the twenty-fifth meeting of the tenth session of the Board, which resolved that the exercise
conditions for the third exercise period of the First Grant under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company had
been achieved, and agreed that the 797 incentive participants who had fulfilled the exercise conditions might exercise their
5,297,236 share options in the third exercise period at the exercise price of RMB36.16 per A Share. The exercise conditions
for the second exercise period of the Reserved Grant under the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company had
been achieved, and it was agreed that the 139 incentive participants who had fulfilled the exercise conditions might exercise
their 977,900 share options in the second exercise period at the exercise price of RMB28.87 per A Share. For details of the
approval of share repurchase, please refer to the relevant information in “XV. REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES” in Section Il of the Report.

Transfer of changes in shares

O] Applicable v Not applicable

Progress of the implementation of share repurchase

v Applicable [ Not applicable

For details of the share repurchase, please refer to the relevant information in “XV. REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF SECURITIES" in Section IIl of the Report.

Progress of the implementation of repurchased shares reduction through centralized bidding

O] Applicable v Not applicable

Impact of changes in shares on the financial indicators of the latest year and the latest period,
such as basic and diluted earnings per share, net assets per share attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of the Company

[J Applicable v/ Not applicable

Other information considered necessary by the Company or required by securities regulators to
be disclosed

O] Applicable v Not applicable
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

. CHANGES IN SHARES (continued)

2. Changes in Shares with Selling Restrictions

v Applicable [ Not applicable

Increase in the

Unit: share(s)

Number Number of number Number of
of shares  shares released of shares shares
withselling ~ fromselling ~ withselling  with selling
restrictions at restrictions restrictions restrictions Date of release
the Beginning during the during the at the End of from selling
Name of Shareholder of the Period Period Period the Period  Reasons for selling restrictions restrictions
Begol 17,306,329 - - 17,306,329 Shares pledged, shares locked up and shares Not confirmed
subject to selling restriction before initial offering
r. Tao Desheng (/2R 7 5) 550,350 5 = 550,350 Locked shaes held by the senior management NIA
r. Xu Guoxiang (R BTRE 72 2F) 587,850 - - 587,850 Locked shares held by the senior management N/A
Mr. Tang Yanggang 2158722 - - 258,722 Locked shares held by the senior management N/A
(ERELS)
Mr. Yang Daihong (1R %) 351,734 - - 351,734 Locked shares held by the senior management NIA
r. Xu Peng (£ B3 ) 53,35 - - 53,35 Locked shares held by the senior management NIA
Ms. Si Yandia (A B2 L) 303317 - - 303317 Locked shares held by the senior management N/A
Wr. Zhou Peng (B 7 2) 195,903 - - 195903 Locked shares held by the senior management N/A
Ms. Huang Yuruan (BRITEZ L) 101,488 = = 101,488 Locked shares held by the senior management NIA
M. Yang Liang (1552 26 5) 152,173 - - 152,173 Locked shares held by the senior management N/A
Tota 19,861,101 - : 19.861,101 - -

Notes: Locked shares held by the senior management are to be released by a certain percentage in each year pursuant to the requirements
of the Securities Law of the PRC and other relevant laws and regulations. The number of shares with selling restrictions in this table
is listed according to the data in the “Detailed Data Sheet of Shares with Selling Restrictions (Information Disclosure Statement)
((PREMMPBASIERISEHERRK)) )" provided by CSDCC. The increase in the number of shares with selling restrictions
for some senior management was due to the pro-rata adjustment made to the locked shares as a result of an increase in the

number of shares held after exercising their share options.

3. Sufficient Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Hong Kong Listing Rules as at the disclosure date

of the Report.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

Il.  ISSUE AND LISTING OF SECURITIES

Issue of securities (excluding preferred shares) during the Reporting Period

[ Applicable v Not applicable

lll. NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

Total number of ordinary shareholders 60,560 (including 60,536 A Shareholders) ~ Total number of preferred shareholders 0
at the End of the Reporting Period with resumed voting rights at the
End of the Reporting Period (if any)

Ordinary Shareholders Holding more than 5% or Shareholdings of the Top 10 Ordinary Shareholders

Number
Number of Number of  of ordinary
ordinary ordinary  shares held

sharesheld ~ Change sharesheld  without
at the End during  with selling selling

Nature of Class of ~ Shareholding of the Period  the Period restrictions restrictions Pledge or lock-up

Name of shareholder shareholder ~ shares percentage (shares) (shares) (shares) (shares) ~ Share status ~ Number

HKSCC Nominees Limiteq Foreiqn entity H Share B.1% 309,545,175 3,463,142 - 309,545,175 - -

Joincare Domestic non-state A Share 23.68% 101,376,189 - - 11376,789 - -
owned entity

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ~ Foreign entity A Share 280% 263%,645 10,246,172 - 16,3%,645 - -

Begol State-owned entity A Share 1.85% 17,306,329 - 17306329 - Pledgedand 17,306,329

locked up

Haibin Pharma Domestic non-state A Share 1.80% 16,830,835 - - 16,830,835 - -
owned entity

CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. - Social Security Fund ~ Others A Share 0.57% 5,313,492 +991.417 - 531349 - -

1106 Portfolio

(PETFRAERAT-FES

1106 44)

Shanghai Lingren Private Equity Fund Others A Share 0.54% 5,094,949 - - 5,094,949 - -

Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)

- Lingren Excellence Evergreen Phase I Private

Equity Securities Investment Fund

(LRRCLEESERARORER

a¥)-ACFEREZBLEESR

£ES)

Rizhao Steel Co, Ltd. Domestic non-state A Share 0.34% 3,160,000 +1,800,000 - 3,160,000 - -

(RRAEERAR) owned entity

Norges Bank - Intemal Funds Foreign entity A Share 031% 18%,962  -1.852,3% - 289,92 - -

(WEPAHT-BFEL)

HeSh\'jm(ﬁﬁ%ﬁ) Domestic natural A Share 0.29% 2,704,000 +443,200 - 704,000 - -
person
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

lll. NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

(continued)
Ordinary Shareholders Holding more than 5% or Shareholdings of the Top 10 Ordinary Shareholders
Number
Number of Number of  of ordinary
ordinary ordinary  shares held
sharesheld ~ Change sharesheld  without
at the End during  with selling selling
Nature of Class of ~ Shareholding of the Period  the Period restrictions ~restrictions Pledge or lock-up
Name of shareholder shareholder  shares percentage (shares) (shares) (shares) [shares)  Share status  Number
Description of strategic investors or generel Hot applicable

legal persans who became Top 10 ordinary
shareholders through placement of new shares
Description of connection or acting-in-concert (1) On 2 January 2004, Joincare and Begol entered into a Share Transfer and Custody Agreement and a Share Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which the 6,059,428 shares of
relationship of the above shareholders the Company held by Begol as domestic entity (the number of shares was increased to 7,877,256 shares afer the Company's implementation of 2014 Equiy Distibution, the
number of shares was increased to 10,240,432 shares after the Company's implementation of 2016 Equity Disrbution, the number of shares was increased to 13,312,561
shares fter the Company's implementation of 2017 Equity Distribution and the number of shares was increased to 17,306,329 shares afte the Company's implementation
of 2018 Equity Distrbution) were directly transferred, entrusted and pledged to Joincare; (2) Haibin Pharma was a subsidiary directy and indirectly owned by Joincare as to
100% equity interest; (3) the Company was not aware whether the other Shareholders mentioned above are related parties or persons acting-in-concert as defined in the
Administrative Measures for the Takeover of Listed Companies | { FTTRAIMEEE ) ).
Description of the above shareholders involved in ~ Not applicable
entrustment/entrusted voting right and waiver
of voting riht
Special notes on the special repurchase account Mot applicable
among the top 10 shareholders (if any)

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

135



136

SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

lll. NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

(continued)
Shareholdings of Top 10 Ordinary Shareholders Without Selling Restrictions
Number of ordinary shares
held without selling
restrictions at the End of Class of shares

Name of shareholder the Reporting Period  Class of shares Number
HKSCC Nominees Limited 309,545,175 Qverseas listed foreign shares 309,545,175
Joincare 221,376,789 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 221,376,789
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 26,396,645 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 26,396,645
Haibin Pharma 16,830,835 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 16,830,835
(CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. - Social Security Fund 1106 Portfolio 5313492 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 5,313,492

(PEEFROARAT-HRFRES1106 £5)
Shanghai Lingren Private Equity Fund Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) - 5094949 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 5,094,949

Lingren Excellence Evergreen Phase Il Private Equity Securities Investment Fund

(LERCAEESERANLR(BRAY) - AL ERE_MIEES

REES)
Rizhao Steel Co., Ltd. (EBSIEERA) 3,160,000 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 3,160,000
Norges Bank - Intemal Funds (BIE R £33 (71— BHE2) 2896962 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 2,896,962
He Shijin (B 2) 2,704,000 Ordinary shares denominated in RMB 2,704,000
Basic Pension Insurance Fund 310 Portfolio (EAEZRBES=-TH4) 2,545,562 Ordinary shares denominated in RVB 2,545,562

Description of connection or acting-in-concert relationship among the top 10 ordinary
shareholders without selling restrictions and between the top 10 ordinary
shareholders without selling restrictions and the top 10 ordinary shareholders

Description of the top 10 ordinary shareholders involved in margin financing and
securities lending business

(1) On 2 January 2004, Joincare and Begol entered into a Share Transfer and Custody Agreement and a Share Pledge
Agreement, pursuant to which the 6,059,428 original domestic legal person shares of the Company held by Begol {the
number of shares was increased to 7,877,256 sheres after the Company's implementation of 2014 Equity Distrbution,
the number of shares was increased to 10,240,432 shares after the Company's implementation of 2016 Equity
Distrbution, the number of shares was increased to 13,312,561 shares after the Company's implementation of 2017
Equity Distribution and the number of shares was increased to 17,306,329 shares after the Company's implementation
of 2018 Equity Distribution) were directly transferred, entrusted and pledged to Joincare; (2) Haibin Pharma was a
contralling subsiciary directly and indirectly owned by Joincare as to 100% equity interest; (3) the Company was not
aware whether the other shareholders mentioned above are related parties or persons acting-in-concert as defined
in the Adminisirative Measures for the Takeover of Listed Companies ( { ETTAFIMGRE BHE) ).

Not applicable

Notes:

1. The shareholdings of the above top 10 shareholders are listed in accordance with the data in the register of members as at 30
June 2022 provided by the CSDCC and Tricor Investor Services Limited in Hong Kong.

2. HKSCC Nominees Limited is a nominee holder of H Shares of the Company, and the Company cannot ascertain whether such H
Shares are subject to any pledge or lock-up, and such shareholdings held by HKSCC Nominees Limited on behalf of others included
163,364,672 H Shares held by Topsino, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Joincare, the controlling shareholder of the

Company.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

lll. NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

(continued)

Whether any of the top 10 ordinary shareholders and the top 10 ordinary shareholders without
selling restrictions of the Company conducted any transactions on agreed repurchases during
the Reporting Period

] Yes v No

The top 10 ordinary shareholders and the top 10 ordinary shareholders without selling restrictions of the Company did not
conduct any transactions on agreed repurchases during the Reporting Period.

IV. CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

[J Applicable v Not applicable

V. AS AT 30 JUNE 2022, THE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (WITHIN THE MEANING OF PART
XV OF SFO) AS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER REQUIRED TO BE KEPT
UNDER SECTION 352 OF THE SFO, OR AS OTHERWISE NOTIFIED TO THE
COMPANY AND THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE PURSUANT TO THE
MODEL CODE, WERE AS FOLLOWS:

Interest in shares/underlying shares of the Company

As a percentage

Number of shares/ of the specific As a percentage
underlying class of issued of the total
shares interested shares of the issued shares of
Name of director Capacity (long position) Company the Company
Mr. Zhu Baoguo (AKIREH) Interest of controlled corporation 255,513,953 A Shares”? 40.87% 27.33%
163,364,672 H Shares”@ 52.73% 17.47%

Mr. Tao Desheng (1% k%) Beneficial owner 809,850 A Shares®

Interest of spouse 177,226 A Shares® @)

987,076 A Shares 0.16% 0.11%
Mr. Xu Guoxiang (1 E1%f) Beneficial owner 859,850 A Shares” @V 0.14% 0.09%
Mr. Tang Yanggang (EP50I)  Beneficial owner 405,803 A Shares/® ! 0.06% 0.04%
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

V. AS AT 30 JUNE 2022, THE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (WITHIN THE MEANING OF PART
XV OF SFO) AS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER REQUIRED TO BE KEPT
UNDER SECTION 352 OF THE SFO, OR AS OTHERWISE NOTIFIED TO THE
COMPANY AND THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE PURSUANT TO THE
MODEL CODE, WERE AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

Interest in shares/underlying shares of associated corporations of the Company

As a percentage
of the equity

Equity interest/ interest of
Name of Name of associated number of shares associated
director corporation Capacity (long position) corporation
Mr. Zhu Baoguo Baiyeyuan Beneficial owner 72,000,000 (RMB)™ 90.00%""
(RARE) Joincare Interest of controlled corporations 895,653,653 shares” @ 46.83%1
LivzonBio/” Interest of controlled corporations 294,000,000 (RMB) (12 33.07% "
Livzon HK™ Interest of controlled corporations 4,000 shares” 100.00%”
Livzon MAB(" Interest of controlled corporations 1,453,330,000 (RMB)™ (4 100.00%""
Mr. Tang Yanggang ~ Xinbeijiang Pharma/™” Interest of controlled corporations 20,238,780 shares"? 8.44%
L) Livzon Diagnostics'”” Interest of controlled corporations 36,099,971 shares”® 9.03%
Mr. Qiu Qingfeng Joincare Beneficial owner 717,409 shares 0.04%
(FEL)
Mr. Xu Guoxiang Livzon Diagnostics’”” Others 2,153,399 shares("” 0.54%
(RBIH)
Mr. Yu Xiong Joincare Beneficial owner 800,000 shares
(BU7) Interest of spouse 3,720 shares/™®
803,720 shares 0.04%
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

Notes:

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022, THE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (WITHIN THE MEANING OF PART
XV OF SFO) AS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER REQUIRED TO BE KEPT
UNDER SECTION 352 OF THE SFO, OR AS OTHERWISE NOTIFIED TO THE
COMPANY AND THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE PURSUANT TO THE
MODEL CODE, WERE AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

Joincare was 46.83% held by Baiyeyuan which was in turn 90% held by Mr. Zhu Baoguo. Mr. Zhu Baoguo was deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company and the equity interest of its associated corporations in which Joincare was or was deemed
to be interested by virtue of the SFO.

Among these shares, 238,683,118 shares (in which 17,306,329 shares were directly transferred, entrusted and pledged by Begol in
favor of Joincare in accordance with the Share Transfer, Custody and Pledge Agreement entered into among three parties, namely
Begol, Joincare and Zhuhai Lishi Investment Co., Ltd. (Zx/& T EE LR E AR A 7)), on 2 January 2004, and the Share Transfer
and Custody Agreement and the Share Pledge Agreement entered into between Begol and Joincare) were directly held or controlled
by Joincare and 16,830,835 shares were held directly by Joincare’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Haibin Pharma, respectively.

These shares were held directly by Topsino, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Joincare.

These shares included 76,050 share options, which were able to exercise options to subscribe for 76,050 A Shares of the Company
pursuant to the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company.

These shares included 30,420 share options, which were able to exercise options to subscribe for 30,420 A Shares of the Company
pursuant to the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company.

As these shares and underlying shares were held directly by Ms. Hou Xuemei, the spouse of Mr. Tao Desheng, Mr. Tao Desheng
was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying shares.

These shares included 76,050 share options, which were able to exercise options to subscribe for 76,050 A Shares of the Company
pursuant to the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company.

These shares included 60,840 share options, which were able to exercise options to subscribe for 60,840 A Shares of the Company
pursuant to the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company.

Baiyeyuan held 895,653,653 shares of Joincare.

The total issued share capital of Joincare was 1,912,540,667 shares. Therefore, Baiyeyuan held 46.83% equity interest in Joincare.
LivzonBio was directly held as to 33.07% by Joincare. Livzon HK and Livzon MAB were directly held as to 100% by LivzonBio.
These equity interests were held by Joincare.

These shares were held by LivzonBio.

These equity interests were held by LivzonBio.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

139



140

SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

V. AS AT 30 JUNE 2022, THE INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (WITHIN THE MEANING OF PART
XV OF SFO) AS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER REQUIRED TO BE KEPT
UNDER SECTION 352 OF THE SFO, OR AS OTHERWISE NOTIFIED TO THE
COMPANY AND THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE PURSUANT TO THE

MODEL CODE, WERE AS FOLLOWS: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(15)  Xinbeijiang Pharma was directly held as to 87.14% by the Company, and directly held as to 8.44% (i.e. 20,238,780 shares) by
Zhuhai Zhong Hui Yuan Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (28 # (BRI E & B % (AR A %)), which was in turn

directly held as to 45.50% by Mr. Tang Yanggang.

(16)  Livzon Diagnostics was directly held as to 39.425% by the Company, and as to 9.025% (i.e. 36,099,971 shares) by Zhuhai Liying
Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (X8 BRIEEE R A BT E(BRER)) ("Liying"), and Mr. Tang
Yanggang was the general partner of Liying who directly held 19.9234% equity interest in Liying and had sole discretion to decide
all matters of Liying. On 9 September 2021, Livzon Diagnostics issued new shares by way of conversion into share capital to all of
its shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings pursuant to its 2020 profit distribution plan. After the conversion, the share
capital of Livzon Diagnostics increased from 92,876,771 shares to 400,000,000 shares. The number of shares of Livzon Diagnostics
held by Liying changed from 8,382,100 shares to 36,099,971 shares, and the shareholding percentage remained unchanged.

(17)  Mr. Xu Guoxiang directly held 5.9651% equity interest in Liying, and therefore Livzon Diagnostics was indirectly held as to 0.54% by
Mr. Xu Guoxiang. On 9 September 2021, the share capital of Livzon Diagnostics increased from 92,876,771 shares to 400,000,000
shares. Therefore, the number of shares of Livzon Diagnostics indirectly held by Mr. Xu Guoxiang changed from 500,000 shares

to 2,153,399 shares.

(18)  As these shares were held directly by Ms. Qian Lingyun (#3522 1), the spouse of Mr. Yu Xiong, hence Mr. Yu Xiong was

deemed to be interested in these shares.

(19)  For details of the aforesaid 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of the Company, please refer to the relevant information of the

“XVII. SHARE OPTIONS INCENTIVE SCHEMES" in Section IIl of the Report.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

VI. CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OR DE FACTO CONTROLLER

Change of controlling shareholder during the Reporting Period

O] Applicable v Not applicable
There was no change in the controlling shareholder of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Change of de facto controller during the Reporting Period

0] Applicable v Not applicable
There was no change in the de facto controller of the Company during the Reporting Period.

Structure chart on ownership and controlling relationship between the Company and its de facto
controller as at the End of the Reporting Period

Liv Guangxia Zhu Baoguo

10% 90%

Shenzhen Baiyeyuan Investment Co., Ltd. Others

46.83% 53.17%

Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Group Co., Ltd.

100% 100%

Holding: 23.68%
Pledge and in custody:1.85%

Shenzhen Haibin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Topsino Industries Limited

1.80% 17.47%

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

Notes:
1. Mr. Zhu Baoguo (A 4REL % 4E) is the spouse of Ms. Liu Guangxia (2 E 82 2 t).
2. The third exercise period under the first grant of the 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme of Joincare was from 21 December 2021

to 20 December 2022, while the second exercise period under the reserved grant was from 23 September 2021 to 22 September
2022, the share capital of Joincare changed to 1,912,540,667 shares as at 30 June 2022. Baiyeyuan held 895,653,653 shares of
Joincare. Therefore, the shareholding in Joincare held by Baiyeyuan reduced from 46.95% to 46.83%.
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SECTION VII CHANGES IN EQUITY AND SHAREHOLDERS

Vil. AS AT 30 JUNE 2022, THE FOLLOWING MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS, OTHER THAN THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (AS DEFINED IN THE SFO), HAD INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
WHICH WERE REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED IN THE REGISTER REQUIRED

TO BE KEPT BY THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO:

As a percentage of As a percentage
the specific class of  of the total issued
Name of Number of shares issued shares of the shares of the
shareholder  Capacity interested  Position Company Company
Substantial Shareholders
Baiyeyuan Interest of controlled corporations 255,513,953 A Shares”  Long position 40.87% 27.33%
Interest of controlled corporations 163,364,672 H Shares? Long position 52.73% 17.47%
Ms. Liu Guangxia Interest of spouse 255,513,953 A Shares®  Long position 40.87% 27.33%
(BIEE) 163,364,672 H Shares® Long position 52.73% 17.47%
Joincare Beneficial owner 221,376,789 A Shares  Long position
Interest of controlled corporations 16,830,835 A Shares”  Long position
Holder of security interest in shares 17,306,329 A Shares”  Long position
255,513,953 A Shares 40.87% 27.33%
Interest of controlled corporations 163,364,672 H Shares? Long position 52.73% 17.47%
Topsino Beneficial owner 163,364,672 H Shares  Long position 52.73% 17.47%
Notes:

(1) Among these shares, 238,683,118 shares and 16,830,835 shares were directly held by Joincare and its wholly-owned subsidiary,

Haibin Pharma, respectively.

(2) These shares were directly held by Topsino, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Joincare.

(3) As Ms. Liu Guangxia is the spouse of Mr. Zhu Baoguo, she is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Zhu Baoguo is

deemed to be interested.

(4) These shares were directly held by Haibin Pharma, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Joincare.

(5) These shares were directly transferred, entrusted and pledged by Begol in favor of Joincare in accordance with the Share Transfer,
Custody and Pledge Agreement entered into among three parties, namely Begol, Joincare and Zhuhai Lishi Investment Co., Ltd.
FREMELTIEE BB AT, on 2 January 2004 and the Share Transfer and Custody Agreement and the Share Pledge Agreement

entered into between Begol and Joincare.
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SECTION VIII INFORMATION ON PREFERRED SHARES

(] Applicable v Not applicable

The Company had no preferred shares during the Reporting Period.
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SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

. AUDIT REPORT

Whether the interim report has been audited
[1Yes v No

The interim financial report of the Company is unaudited.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

Item

Notes

Current assets:

Monetary funds

Financial assets held for trading

Bills receivable

Accounts receivables

Receivables financing

Prepayments

Other receivables

Of which: Interest receivable
Dividends receivable

[nventories

Contract assets

Held-for-sale assets

Non-current assets due within one year

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:

Debt investments

Other debt investments
Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments
Other equity instrument investments
Other non-current financial assets
Investment properties

Fixed assets

Construction in progress
Productive biological assets

0il and gas assets

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Development expenditure
Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses
Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

V.1
V.2
V.3
V.4

V.5
V.6

V.7

V.8
V.9

V.10
V.1
V.12

V.13
V.14

V.15
V.16
V.17
V.18
V.19
V.20
V.21

Amount at the End of the Period
Company

Consolidated

9,232,850,780.02

99,806,543.32
1,378,128,801.25
2,167,129,953.93

257,455,756.66
40,910,640.73

215,678.92
1,813,541,411.62

38,498.84
23,372,109.79
15,013,234,496.16

82,574.69
1,082,707,361.85
622,995,500.36

3,567,698,487.23
853,041,996.94

20,006,853.09
307,846,671.42
633,402,577.67
103,040,497.85
135,431,849.83
315,198,535.37
283,041,731.19
7,924,494,637.49
22,937,729,133.65
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7,552,666,674.34
14,885,277.92
869,748,347.91
882,832,923.45

22,604,510.41
1,538,720,836.94

735,403,888.07
837,637,929.82

7,790,780.34
11,726,887,281.13

3,804,443,920.76
179,441,783.34

88,989,704.64

1,540,810.48
32,691,210.94
14,257,436.03

6,429,480.86
107,401,974.12
72,907,351.70
4,308,103,678.87
16,034,990,960.00

Unit: RMB

Amount at the Beginning of the Year

Consolidated

Company

9,146,373,455.01

182,773,354.56
1,342,029,380.44
1,951,898,111.20

281,083,347.36
47,768,970.54

1,603,227,968.17

317,381.23
57,624,626.16
14,673,096,594.67

266,904.13
1,064,968,250.00
629,914,544.37

3,669,728,093.97
554,575,587.48

14,588,322.60
260,279,167.34
574,499,574.42
103,040,497.85
129,910,521.60
252,694,687.27
444,352,845.12
7,698,818,9%.15
22,371,915,590.82

1,571,121,240.98
13,250,402.40
892,715,893.48
905,682,483.41

17,548,790.19
1,198,183,164.60

340,100,088.07
495,944,039.54

5,465,630.24
11,106,511,644.84

3,785,447,205.34
176,366,200.00

92,968,672.60

870,120.32
29,857,473.53
13,244,598.15

6,458,038.53
94,308,174.28
78,030,099.24
4,277,550,581.99
15,384,062,226.83



CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Unit: RMB

Amount at the End of the Period Amount at the Beginning of the Year

Share capital

Other equity instruments

Of which: Preferred shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserve

Less: treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

Special reserve

Surplus reserve

Undistributed profits

Total equity attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Minority interests

Total shareholders’ (or owners’) equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’
(or owners') equity

V.36

V.37
V.38
V.39

V.40
V.41

Chairman of the Board and Legal Representative:

Zhu Baoguo

934,957,557.00

1,590,144,625.41

78,423,167.40

744,801,154.15
9,518,593,562.91
12,866,920,066.87

1,119,906,816.30
13,986,826,883.17
22,937,729,133.65

Executive Director and President:
Tang Yanggang

934,957,557.00

1,739,031,856.95
98,166,366.75
539,838,100.57

3,817,313,212.00
7,129,307,093.27

7,129,307,093.27
16,034,990,960.00

Chief Financial Officer:

Si Yanxia

937,865,121.00

1,629,356,574.34
71,209,491.00
46,548,997.70

744,801,154.15
9,716,401,275.28
13,003,763,631.47

1,307,261,162.15
14,311,024,793.62
22,371,915,590.82

Item Notes Consolidated Company Consolidated Company
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans ¥ 1,607,775,000.02 2,043,048,023.71 440,818,819.44
Financial liabilities held for trading V.23 5,954,536.12 143,302.24
Bills payables I3 1,166,319,640.57 1,870,533,252.26 1,026,619,858.93 834,184,045.06
Accounts payables V.25 742,460,259.61 729,486,246.45 790,679,701.29 494,765,644.69
Receipts in advance
Contract liabilities V.26 55,383,313.65 12,724,246.99 167,796,768.82 91,125,189.51
Employee benefits payables V.27 246,495,450.31 111,545,476.71 296,784,492.89 112,547,780.95
Taxes and surcharge payables V.28 321,942,558.56 21,783,049.56 160,385,251.99 34,312,525.72
Other payables (I 2,589,324,588.70  5,793,592,154.69 2,416,840,968.10 5,355,253,454.58
Of which: Interest payable
Dividends payable 45,749,661.79 PAREYE WL 6,951,984.46 20,174.46
Held-for-sale liabilities
Non-current liabilities due within one year V.30 11,940,736.85 1,430,318.16 9,284,335.86 763,367.86
Other current liabilities V.31 3,911,435.31 1,640,752.82 13,485,363.41 9,440,130.86
Total current liabilities 6,751,507,519.70  8,542,735,497.64 6,925,068,067.24 7,373,210,958.67
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans [XYAN 1,663,726,004.58 279,000,000.00 636,780,252.78 636,780,252.78
Bonds payables
Leasing liabilities V.33 8,426,983.84 124,185.66 5,274,240.80 130,316.74
Long-term payables
Long-term employee benefits payables
Provisions
Deferred gains V.34 289,785,489.43 55,935,000.00 258,882,992.46 70,110,800.00
Deferred income tax liabilities V.20 153,456,252.93 27,889,183.43 156,885,243.92 27,959,990.31
Other non-current liabilities V.35 84,000,000.00 78,000,000.00
Total non-current liabilities 2,199,394,730.78 362,948,369.09 1,135,822,729.96 734,981,359.83
Total liabilities 8,950,902,250.48  8,905,683,866.73 8,060,890,797.20 8,108,192,318.50

937,865,121.00

1,785,950,573.90
71,209,491.00
95,689,368.89

539,838,100.57
3,987,736,234.97
7,275,869,908.33

7,275,869,908.33
15,384,062,226.83

Head of Accounting Department:
Zhuang Jianying
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

Item

Notes

Operating income
Less: Operating costs

Tax and surcharge
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
R&D expenses

Finance expenses

Of which: Interest expenses

Int
Add: Other income

erest income

Investment income
("-" represents losses)

Of which: Income from investments

in associates and
joint ventures

Derecognition of income from

financial assets at amortized

cost ("-" represents losses)

Gains from hedging net exposure

("-" represents losses)

Gains from changes in fair value

("-" represents losses)
Credit impairment loss

("-" represents losses)
Asset impairment loss

("-" represents losses)

Gains from disposal of assets

non
("-" represents losses)

Il. Operating profit
("-" represents losses)
Add: Non-operating income

Less: Non-operatin
IIl. Total profit

g expenditure

(“-" represents net losses)
Less: Income tax expenses

IV. Net profit

("-" represents net losses)
(I) Classified by continuing operations:

Of which: Net profit from continuing

operations

("-" represents net losses)
Net profit from discontinued

opera

("-" represents net losses)
() Classified by attribution to ownership:

tions

Of which: Net profit attributable to

shareholders of the parent

company

("-" represents net losses)
Profit and loss attributable to

minority interests

("-" represents net losses)

V.42
V.42
V.43
V.44
V.45
V.46
V.47

V.48
V.49

V.50

V.51

V.52

V.53

V.54
V.55

V.56

Amount for the Period

Consolidated

6,302,565,210.60
2,191,804,060.15
67,274,476.01
1,903,575,926.16
354,872,804.38
554,519,983.73
-95,511,146.51
47,426,938.27
99,742,075.90
82,440,651.49
36,642,122.86

37,182,113.99

-88,778,045.12
-3,438,379.56
-27,233,126.37

-510,518.91

1,325,151,811.07

3,398,795.40
5,978,073.57
1,322,572,532.90

205,070,064.67
1,117,502,468.23

1,117,502,468.23

1,017,545,790.03

99,956,678.20

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

Company
3,053,737,993.53
2,101,897,298.32

9,672,019.59
718,243,227.70
116,867,392.52
186,561,675.82
-68,046,683.12
37,854,812.25
101,367,716.80
32,555,268.30
1,014,746,605.04

35,439,717.56

1,634,875.52
-1,179,213.27
-2,411,715.02
-66,897.41
1,033,821,985.86
1,540,032.81
1,032,281,953.05
-12,648,526.38

1,044,930,479.43

1,044,930,479.43

1,044,930,479.43

Unit: RMB

Amount for the Previous Period

Consolidated Company
6,235,531,036.28 3,204,163,965.06
2,125,112,700.49 2,149,775,629.79

70,968,408.44 17,883,021.25
2,045,170,075.55 699,013,005.74
290,077,542.12 108,746,908.19
506,868,876.08 143,610,432.33
-25,013,781.78 -20,211,086.36
36,051,011.53 38,328,782.85
65,140,139.66 57,429,707.36
116,722,053.14 83,897,281.20
35,103,261.85 945,583,772.51
5,963,636.97 2,671,761.75
34,795,898.95 6,410,953.40
-8,579,230.48 -2,413,392.31
-28,613,112.79 -13,043,624.08
317,121.46 64,434.24

1,372,093,207.51
3,794,776.11
4,721,985.89
1,371,165,998.33
191,384,563.50
1,179,781,434.83

1,179,781,434.83

1,062,475,917 .41

117,305,517.42

1,125,845,479.08
2,030,277.87
1,123,815,201.21
9,888,976.64

1,113,926,224.57

1,113,926,224.57

1,113,926,224.57



CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

[tem

V. Other comprehensive income

after taxation
Other comprehensive income after

taxation attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

(I) Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified into profit or loss

1. Changes in remeasurement of defined
benefit plans

2. Other comprehensive income not to
be reclassified into profit or loss
under equity method

3. Changes in fair value of other equity
Instrument investments

4. Changes in fair value of enterprise’s
own credit risk

5. Others

(Il) Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss under
equity method

2. Changes in fair value of other debt
investments

3. Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

4. Credit impairment provision for other
debt investments

5. Reserve for cash flow hedging (effective

portion of profit or loss from cash
flow hedging)

6. Translation difference of financial
statements denominated
in foreign currency

7. Others

Other comprehensive income after

taxation attributable to minority
interests

VI. Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable
to shareholders of the parent company
Total comprehensive income attributable

to minority interests
VIl.Earnings per share
(I) Basic earnings per share
() Diluted earnings per share

Chairman of the Board and Legal Representative:

Zhu Baoguo

Amount for the Period

Consolidated
33,075,827.89

31,874,169.70

-3,223,853.13

2,476,997.86

-5,700,850.99

35,098,022.83

35,098,022.83

1,201,658.19

1,150,578,296.12
1,049,419,959.73

101,158,336.39

1.09
1.09

Executive Director and President:
Tang Yanggang

Unit: RMB

Amount for the Previous Period

Company Consolidated Company

2,476,997.86 -147,548,852.00

2,476,997.86 -146,888,584.48

2,476,997.86 -135,902,397.80
2,476,997.86

-135,902,397.80

-10,986,186.68

-10,986,186.68

-660,267.52

1,047,407,477.29
1,047,407,477.29

1,032,232,582.83
915,587,332.93

1,113,926,224.57
1,113,926,224.57

116,645,249.90

1.14
1.14

Chief Financial Officer: Head of Accounting Department:
Si Yanxia Zhuang Jianyin
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

Item

Notes

Cash flow from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods and services
rendered
Refund of taxes and levies
Cash received relating to other operating V.58
activities
Subtotal of cash inflow from
operating activities
Cash paid for purchase of goods
and services rendered
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Payments for various taxes and levies
Cash paid relating to other operating activities V.58
Subtotal of cash outflow from
operating activities
Net cash flow from operating
activities

. Cash flow from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments
Cash received on investment income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries
and other operating units
Cash received relating to other investing V.58
activities
Subtotal of cash inflow from
investing activities
Cash payments for acquisition of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash payments for investments
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries
and other operating units
(ash paid relating to other investing activities V.58
Subtotal of cash outflow from
investing activities
Net cash flow from investing
activities

Amount for the Period
Company

Consolidated

6,340,319,306.53

150,062,082.47
244,476,371.13

6,734,857,760.13
1,541,154,491.67
839,157,956.62
612,782,042.67
2,315,377,455.99
5,308,471,946.95

1,426,385,813.18

63,808,704.46
580,553.50

6,190,000.00

70,579,257.96

592,477,259.73

30,338,557.45

10,416,311.61

633,232,128.79

-562,652,870.83

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

3,387,386,405.00

6,270,253.75
109,841,773.27

3,503,498,432.02
1,471,163,050.52
251,933,118.06
108,583,517.57
679,538,732.33
2,511,218,418.48

992,280,013.54

635,923,087.48
48,100.00

635,971,187.48

9,927,510.12

33,000,000.00

42,927,510.12

593,043,677.36

Unit: RMB

Amount for the Previous Period

Consolidated

Company

5,989,539,829.18

56,845,213.59
218,720,541.78

6,265,105,584.55
1,362,682,898.81
829,109,592.85
717,133,954.08
2,681,268,146.73
5,590,194,592.47
674,910,992.08
110,302,936.39
63,858,785.91
938,953.00
3,311,220.53
122,600.00
178,534,495.83
484,186,495.42
744,000,000.00
1,566,246.09

1,229,752,741.51

-1,051,218,245.68

3,277,321,735.07

168,550,395.45
3,445,872,130.52
2,850,009,849.42
326,039,339.30
128,471,016.09
747,545,161.11
4,052,065,365.92
-606,193,235.40
210,365,906.70

1,078,229,204.72
3,052,239.07

1,291,647,350.49

31,514,564.09

1,671,650,503.58

1,163,800.00

1,704,328,867.67

-412,681,517.18



CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Prepared by: Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.

[tem Notes

IIl. Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash received from investments
Of which: Cash received by subsidiaries from
investments of minority interests
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received relating to other financing V.58
activities
Subtotal of cash inflow from
financing activities
Cash paid on repayment of debts
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profit
or interests
Of which: Dividends and profits paid to
minority interests by subsidiaries
Cash paid relating to other financing activities V.58
Subtotal of cash outflow from
financing activities
Net cash flow from financing
activities
IV.Effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents
V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period
VI.Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the period

Chairman of the Board and Legal Representative:
Zhu Baoguo

Amount for the Period
Company

Consolidated

22,444,271.37

2,520,437,809.48

910,216.50

2,543,792,303.35

1,933,795,608.09
1,454,878,627.93

229,760,000.00

12,546,968.28
3,401,221,204.30

-857,428,900.95

64,098,771.69

70,402,813.09

9,125,309,968.12

9,195,712,781.21

Executive Director and President:
Tang Yanggang

Unit: RMB

Amount for the Previous Period

22,444,271.37

200,000,000.00

350,923,068.22

573,367,345.59

997,500,000.00

1,196,384,306.96

3,026,909.36

2,196,911,216.32

-1,623,543,870.73

1,861,560.76

-36,358,619.07

7,557,686,224.00

1,521,327,604.93

Consolidated Company
699,719,196.52 104,009,715.52
595,709,481.00

1,211,215,105.43 770,000,000.00
1,211,582.95 176,534,700.66

1,912,145,884.90

722,584,146.53
1,372,407,480.39

197,466,606.04

787,442,823.90
2,882,434,450.82

-970,288,565.92

-22,054,962.00

-1,368,650,781.52

9,952,049,990.08

8,583,399,208.56

1,050,544,416.18

1,700,000.00
1,170,233,887.34

169,010,035.99
1,340,943,923.33

-290,399,507.15

1,322,421.82

-1,307,951,837.91

8,293,938,909.86

6,985,987,071.95

Chief Financial Officer:
Si Yanxia

Head of Accounting Department:
Zhuang Jianyin

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

SHAREHOLDERS™ EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Overview

In March 1992, Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (BEERE8 Z &£ B AR {5 AR 2 R) (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company") was transformed into a company limited by shares by directed placement, with seven companies namely,
Macau Nam Yue (Group) Co., Ltd. (RF9RI & (££E) HBR/AR]), Zhuhai Credit Cooperative Union (38T {5
FA& {E#i4L), Guangdong Medicine Group Co., Ltd. (BHR & &% T %2 7)), Zhuhai Medicine Corporation (¥&
ygTh BB 48 /) 7)), Guangzhou Medicines & Health Products Imp. & Exp. Corp. (& /188 BE(R {2 3 H O A 7)),
Zhuhai branch of Bank of China (ISR 7T¥k/& ™ % 77) and Zhuhai Guihua Employees Mutual Aid Association (
TR HETERE T 5 Bh®) as its promoters to make share contribution by converting their net assets in their original
sino-foreign joint ventures with limited liability into consideration, and by directed placement from other domestic
legal persons and internal staff pursuant to the approval document [1992] No. 29 issued by Zhuhai Economic System
Reform Commission (BR84SR HILLEZ B ®) and the approval document [1992] No. 45 jointly issued by
Joint Examination Group for Pilot Joint Stock Enterprise in Guangdong Province (/& 54 10 3 %17 I s BB 25 /)N
#8) and Guangdong Economic System Reform Committee (ER & & ERBFINELE ).

In 1993, pursuant to Yue Zheng Jian Fa Zi [1993] No. 001 document (EFEE53F[1993] 00157 ) issued by
Guangdong Securities Regulatory Commission (R & & 7 B B B2 Z 8'9), Shen Ren Yin Fu Zi [1993] No. 239
document (% A SR 37 ([1993]55 2395% ) issued by Special Economic Zone branch of the People's Bank of China
(P AREBRITIHFYIASE SR 5 7T) and Zheng Jian Fa Shen Zi [1993] No. 19 document (75 5253 5°[1993] 19
8% 32) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company was listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

In 1998, the promoters of the Company, namely Zhuhai Credit Cooperative Union (Ek/8TH1Z 4 1EE#4L),
Guangdong Medicine Group Co., Ltd. (SR & 2% T % /2 7)), Zhuhai Guihua Employees Mutual Aid Association (
BRSHETER T 5 B)®) and Zhuhai branch of Bank of China (fF BIR 1T Ex/8 T 5 7T) entered into an equity transfer
agreement with China Everbright (Group) Corporation (B¢ K (££E) 4B /2 7)), respectively, and transferred all
their shares to China Everbright (Group) Corporation (IR (5£E) 422 7]). Upon completion of the transfer,
China Everbright (Group) Corporation (FEI¥ K (5B ) 422 F]) held 38,917,518 domestic legal person shares
of the Company. Macau Nam Yue (Group) Co., Ltd. CERPIFEgE (% E) BBR A F]), the foreign promoter of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with China Everbright Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (7 Bl ¢ K B8 %%
BBR2AR]), and transferred all of the 18,893,448 foreign-invested legal person shares held by it to China Everbright
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (FFEI Yt KREEZEAF R A 7).

On 12 April 2002, China Everbright (Group) Corporation (Bl Y A (5£E) #8727 entered into an equity custody
agreement with Xi" an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd. (FE% BR BX £= [ & PR /2 7)), and assigned the 38,917,518 domestic
legal person shares of the Company held by it in the custody of Xi" an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd. (P& R
E B[R /2 7). On 21 December 2004, Xi' an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd. (78 % B 2% & E B[R /A 7)) accepted the
transfer of 38,917,518 domestic legal person shares of the Company held by China Everbright (Group) Corporation
(FFEIYE R (5E) #/72F]). As at 31 December 2004, China Everbright (Group) Corporation (FREI Yt K (&
@) #2/2 7)) did not hold any share in the Company, and Xi'an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd. (FAZZ X =B A
R 2 7)) directly held 38,917,518 domestic legal person shares of the Company, representing 12.72% of the total
share capital of the Company.

On 4 February 2005, Joincare Pharmaceutical Industry Group Co., Ltd. (&5 7T 2235 52 B i 15 B BR 2 &)) (hereinafter
referred to as the “Joincare Group”) entered into an equity transfer agreement and an equity pledge agreement with
Xi" an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd. (A% B % 5 B B R /2 7]), pursuant to which, Xi'an Dongsheng Group Co., Ltd.
(FARZ RSB BRAF) directly transferred and pledged the 38,917,518 domestic legal person shares of the
Company (representing 12.72% of the total share capital in the Company) to Joincare Group. On 3 August 2006,
the procedures for the transfer of the 38,917,518 domestic legal person shares to Joincare Group were completed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

l. BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
1. Overview (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, Joincare Group and its subsidiaries held a total of 140,122,590 shares of the Company
through transfer agreements and direct purchase from the secondary market, representing 47.3832% of the total
share capital of the Company, therefore it became the largest shareholder of the Company and had de facto control
in the Company. Of which, 6,059,428 legal person shares held in the name of Guangzhou Begol Trading Holdings
Limited (BN TR %L /I E 572 &) did not complete the procedures for the transfer to Joincare Group.

At the 2008 First Extraordinary General Meeting, the Company considered and approved the “Resolution on
Repurchase of Domestically Listed Foreign Shares (B Shares) of the Company”. As at 2 December 2009 (the expiry
date of implementing the repurchase), the Company accumulatively repurchased 10,313,630 B Shares. On 4 December
2009, the Company completed the cancellation of the repurchased shares with the Shenzhen Branch of China
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited (FBFEAFELEEBREMT R FEIID A F]). The
total share capital of the Company was reduced by 10,313,630 shares, and the registered capital of the Company
was reduced from RMB306,035,482 to RMB295,721,852. The Company completed the changes of the industrial
and commercial registration on 20 April 2010.

Pursuant to the “Restricted Shares Incentive Scheme of Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (Revised Draft)” and its
summary considered and approved by the 2015 First Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company and the resolution
of the 8th Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on 27 March 2015, 458 restricted shares incentive participants
exercised the share options and the actual number of exercised share options was 8,660,400. Capital verification
for this exercise was completed on 27 March 2015 and the approval registration was completed by the Shenzhen
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited. The registered capital following the exercise
changed to RMB304,382,252. This capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report
(Ruihua Yan Zi [2015] No. 40030004) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants. The Company completed the
changes of the industrial and commercial registration on 22 May 2015.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the 2014 Annual General Meeting, the 2015 Second Class Meeting of A Shareholders
and the 2015 Second Class Meeting of H Shareholders, it was agreed that the Company issued 91,314,675 bonus
shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the proportion of 3 shares for every 10 shares to all shareholders by
way of conversion of capital reserve based on the total share capital of the Company of 304,382,252 shares. Upon
the bonus issue, the registered capital of the Company changed to RMB395,696,927. This capital increase was
validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report (Ruihua Yan Zi [2015] No. 40030017) issued by Ruihua
Certified Public Accountants. The Company completed the changes of the industrial and commercial registration on
21 January 2016 with the unified social credit code 914404006174883094.

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Repurchase and Cancellation of Restricted Shares Granted But Not Yet Unlocked
Held by Incentive Participants Without Satisfying Incentive Conditions” considered and approved by the 16th Meeting
of the 8th Session of the Board on 27 October 2015, 93,080 shares were repurchased. After the repurchase, the
Company's share capital changed to RMB395,603,847. This capital reduction was validated and confirmed by the
Capital Verification Report (Ruihua Yan Zi [2015] No. 40030020) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Granting the Reserved Restricted Shares to Incentive Participants” considered and
approved by the 18th Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on 12 November 2015, 177 restricted shares incentive
participants exercised the share options and the actual number of exercised share options was 1,285,700. Capital
verification of this exercise was completed on 18 December 2015 and the approval registration was completed by
the Shenzhen Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited. The Company's share capital
following the exercise changed to RMB396,889,547. This capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital
Verification Report (Ruihua Yan Zi [2015] No. 40030023) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Overview (continued)

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Repurchase and Cancellation of Restricted Shares Granted But Not Yet Unlocked Held
by Incentive Participants Without Satisfying Incentive Conditions” considered and approved by the 23rd Meeting of the
8th Session of the Board on 28 March 2016 and the 26th Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on 16 May 2016,
257,624 shares were repurchased. After the repurchase, the Company’s share capital changed to RMB396,631,923.
This capital reduction was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report (Ruihua Yan Zi [2016] No.
40030011) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the 17th Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on 2 November 2015, the 2015
Third Extraordinary General Meeting on 21 December 2015, the 21st Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on
8 March 2016, the 2016 Second Extraordinary General Meeting on 25 April 2016, as approved by China Securities
Regulatory Commission (1 B78 A5 BE BB 12 £ 8 ) with the "Approval in Relation to the Non-public Issuance of
Shares by Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc.” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2016] No. 1524) on 1 August 2016, 29,098,203
ordinary shares denominated in Renminbi (A Shares) of the Company were issued through non-public issuance with a
nominal value of RMB1.00 each. After the issuance, the Company's share capital changed to RMB425,730,126. This
capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report (Ruihua Yan Zi [2016] No. 40030019)
issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Repurchase and Cancellation of Restricted Shares Granted But Not Yet Unlocked Held
by Incentive Participants Without Satisfying Incentive Conditions” considered and approved by the 32nd Meeting
of the 8th Session of the Board on 30 November 2016 and the 36th Meeting of the 8th Session of the Board on
28 March 2017, 167,534 shares were repurchased. After the repurchase, the Company's share capital changed to
RMB425,562,592. This capital reduction was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Reports (Ruihua
Yan Zi [2017] No. 40030001 and [2017] No. 40030007) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the 2016 Annual General Meeting, the 2017 First Class Meeting of A Shareholders
and the 2017 First Class Meeting of H Shareholders and the revised Articles of Association, it was agreed that the
Company issued 127,668,777 bonus shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the proportion of 3 shares for
every 10 shares to all shareholders by way of conversion of capital reserve based on the total share capital of the
Company of 425,562,592 shares. Upon completion of the bonus issue, the registered capital of the Company changed
to RMB553,231,369. This capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report (Ruihua
Yan Zi [2017] No. 40030010) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares” and the “Resolution on
Repurchase and Cancellation of Restricted Shares Granted But Not Yet Unlocked Held by Incentive Participants
Without Satisfying Incentive Conditions” considered and approved at the 6th Meeting of 9th Session of the Board
on 15 December 2017 and the 12th Meeting of 9th Session of the Board on 29 March 2018, respectively, 115,799
shares were repurchased. After the repurchase, the share capital of the Company changed to RMB553,115,570.
This capital reduction was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Reports (Ruihua Yan Zi [2018] No.
40030006 and [2018] No. 40030008) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the 2017 Annual General Meeting, the 2018 Second Class Meeting of A Shareholders
and the 2018 Second Class Meeting of H Shareholders and the revised Articles of Association, it was agreed that
the Company issued 165,934,670 bonus shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the proportion of 3 shares
for every 10 shares to all shareholders by way of conversion of capital reserve based on the total share capital of
the Company of 553,115,570 shares. Upon completion of the bonus issue, the registered capital of the Company
changed to RMB719,050,240. This capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report
(Ruihua Yan Zi [2018] No. 40030013) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

l. BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
1. Overview (continued)

Pursuant to the “Resolution on Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares” considered and approved
by the 22nd Meeting of the 9th Session of the Board on 18 December 2018, 2,028 shares were repurchased at a
price of RMB12.43 per share, and then cancelled. After the repurchase and cancellation, the Company's share capital
has changed to RMB719,048,212.00. This capital decrease was validated by the Capital Verification Report (Ruihua
Yan Zi [2019] No. 40020003) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants (LLP).

Pursuant to the resolutions of the 2018 Annual General Meeting, the 2019 Second Class Meeting of A Shareholders
and the 2019 Second Class Meeting of H Shareholders and the revised Articles of Association, it was agreed that
the Company issued 215,714,463 bonus shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the proportion of 3 shares
for every 10 shares to all shareholders by way of conversion of capital reserve based on the total share capital of
the Company of 719,048,212 shares. Upon completion of the bonus issue, the registered capital of the Company
changed to RMB934,762,675. This capital increase was validated and confirmed by the Capital Verification Report
(Ruihua Yan Zi [2019] N0.40020008) issued by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants.

Pursuant to the “Resolution on 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme (Revised Draft) and Its Summary” considered
and approved by the 2018 Third Extraordinary General Meeting, the 2018 Third Class Meeting of A Shareholders and
the 2018 Third Class Meeting of H Shareholders and the “Resolution on the Related Matters of the Reserved Grant
of 2018 Share Options Incentive Scheme” considered and approved at the 31st Meeting of the 9th Session of the
Board, the number of share options exercised was 16,321,690 as at 30 June 2022, the total number of repurchased
shares cancelled was 16,126,808 shares as at 30 June 2022, and the total share capital of the Company was changed
to 934,957,557 shares.

The Company is engaged in the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry.

The nature of business and principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries: primarily engaged in the R&D,
production and sale of pharmaceutical products, which covered drug preparation products, active pharmaceutical
ingredients ("APIs") and intermediates as well as diagnostic reagents and equipment.

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the principal activities of the Company.

The financial statements and notes to the financial statements of the Company were approved at the 33rd Meeting
of the 10th Session of the Board on 9 August 2022.

2.  Scope of consolidated financial statements

Please refer to Note VII “Equity in other entities” for names of subsidiaries included in the consolidation from January
to June 2022. One subsidiary was included in the consolidation during the Period when compared with the previous
year while no subsidiary was excluded. Please refer to Note VI “Changes in the scope of consolidation” for details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

BASIS OF PREPARATION FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the MOF and its application guidance, interpretations and the other related provisions (collectively,
the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”). In addition, the Company also discloses relevant financial
information in accordance with the Information Disclosure and Presentation Rules for Companies Offering Securities
to the Public No. 15 — General Provisions on Financial Reporting (2014 Revision) issued by the CSRC.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis.

The Company’s accounting is measured on an accrual basis. Except for certain financial instruments, these financial
statements are generally measured at historical cost. In case of asset impairment, the Group shall make provisions
for impairment in accordance with applicable provisions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company determines capitalization condition of R&D expenses and revenue recognition policies on the basis of
its production and operation characteristics. Details of accounting policies are set out in Note [11.21 and Note 11.28.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, which gave a true and
complete view of the consolidated and the Company's financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the consolidated and
the Company's operating results and the consolidated and the Company's cash flow and other relevant information
from January to June 2022.

Accounting period

The accounting period of the Company is classified into an accounting year and an interim accounting period. An
interim accounting period refers to a reporting period shorter than an accounting year. The accounting year of the
Company is from 1 January to 31 December in each calendar year.

Business cycle

A business cycle of the Company consists of 12 months, which is the classification standard for the liquidity of assets
and liabilities.

Functional currency

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries use RMB as their functional currency according to the primary economic
environment in which they operate. The functional currency of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries is RMB.
Overseas subsidiaries of the Company usually recognise HK dollar, Macau dollar and US dollar as their functional
currencies according to the primary economic environment in which these subsidiaries operate. The Company prepares
its financial statements in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Accounting treatment for business combinations

Business combination refers to a transaction or an event under which two or more separate enterprises combine
into one reporting body. Business combinations are classified into business combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations involving enterprises not under common control.

Business combinations involving enterprises under common control

For the business combination involving entities under common control, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are measured based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party as at the combination date, except the adjustment made due to different accounting policies. The difference
between the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination and the net assets acquired is adjusted
against share premium under the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.

Business combination involving enterprises under common control and achieved in a number of transactions

In the separate financial statements, the initial investment cost will be recognised at the carrying amount of the
Company’s share in the combined party’s net assets in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party on the date of combination. The difference between the initial investment cost and the sum of the carrying
amount of the investment held and the carrying amount of consideration paid for the combination at the combination
date is adjusted against share premium under the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against retained earnings.

In the consolidated financial statements, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured based on their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party as at the combination
date, except the adjustment made due to different accounting policies. The difference between sum of the carrying
amount of the investment held and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination and the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired is adjusted against share premium under the capital reserve, with any
excess adjusted against retained earnings. For long-term equity investment held before the control over the combined
party is obtained, profit or loss, other comprehensive income and other changes to equity interest attributable to the
owners recognised from the later of the acquisition of the original equity interest and the date when the combining
party and the combined party are placed under common control until the date of combination shall be offset against
retained profit at the beginning of the period of the comparative financial statements or profit or loss of the current
period respectively.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under common control

For the business combinations involving enterprises not under common control, the combination cost shall be the
fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer for
acquisition of control in the acquiree on the acquisition date. The assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
or assumed on the date of acquisition are recognised at fair value.

Where the combination cost exceeds the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets in the business combination,
the difference is recognised as goodwill and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment provisions.
Where the combination cost is less than the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets in the business
combination, the difference shall be included in profit or loss for the current period after review.
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(2)

(3)

(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Accounting treatment for business combinations (continved)
Business combinations involving enterprises not under common control (continued)

Business combination involving enterprises not under common control and achieved in a number of transactions.

In the separate financial statements, the initial cost of the investment is the sum of the carrying amount of the
acquiree’s equity investment held before the acquisition date and the additional investment cost on the acquisition
date. In respect of the equity investment held prior to the acquisition date, other comprehensive income will not
be recognised using equity method on the acquisition date, and such investment will be accounted for on the same
accounting treatment as direct disposal of relevant asset or liability by the investee at the time of disposal. Owners’
equity recognised due to the changes of other owners’ equity other than the changes of net loss and profit, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution shall be transferred to profit or loss for the current period when
disposed. If the equity investment held prior to the acquisition date is measured at fair value, the cumulative changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income shall be transferred to retained earnings for the current period
when accounted for using cost method.

In the consolidated financial statements, the combination cost is the sum of consideration paid on the acquisition
date and fair value of the acquiree’s equity held prior to the acquisition date. The equity of the acquirees held
before the acquisition date is re-measured at the fair value of the equity on the acquisition date and the differences
between the fair value and the carrying amount are recognised in the income for the current period; in respect of any
other comprehensive income attributable to the equity interest in the acquiree held prior to the acquisition date and
any changes of other owners' equity shall be transferred to investment profit or loss for the current period on the
acquisition date, except for the other comprehensive income incurred due to the changes arising from remeasuring
net assets or net liabilities of defined benefit plan attributable to the investee.

Transaction fees attribution during the combination

The intermediary and other relevant administrative expenses such as audit, legal service and valuation advisory for
business combinations are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. Transaction costs of equity or debt securities
issued as the considerations of business combination are included in the initial recognition amounts of equity or
debt securities.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidated financial statements is determined based on control. Control means the Company has
exposures or rights to variable returns from its involvement with an investee and the ability to affect those returns
through power over such investee. Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company, including enterprises, a
dividable part of investees and structured entities.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Preparation of consolidated financial statements (continuved)
Method for preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
are prepared by the Company in accordance with other relevant information. In preparing the consolidation financial
statements, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to apply consistent accounting policy and accounting
period, intra-group transactions and balances shall be offset.

A subsidiary or a business acquired through a business combination involving entities under common control in
the reporting period shall be included in the scope of the consolidation of the Company from the date when it is
under control of the ultimate controlling party, and then its operating results and cash flows will be included in the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated cash flow statement, respectively.

For a subsidiary or a business acquired through a business combination involving entities not under common control in
the reporting period, its income, expenses and profits are included in the consolidated income statement, and its cash
flows are included in the consolidated cash flow statement from the acquisition date to the end of the reporting date.

The shareholders’ equity of the subsidiaries that are not attributable to the Company shall be presented under
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheet as minority interests. The portion of net profit or loss of
subsidiaries for the current period attributable to minority interests is presented in the consolidated income statement
under the “profit or loss of minority interest”. When the amount of loss attributable to the minority shareholders of
a subsidiary exceeds the minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of owners' equity of the subsidiary,
the excess amount shall be allocated against minority interests.

Purchase of minority interests in the subsidiaries

The difference between the long-term equity investments costs acquired by the purchase of minority interests
and the share of the net assets that the subsidiaries continue to calculate from the date of purchase or the date
of consolidation in proportion to the new shareholding ratio, and the difference between the disposal of some
equity investment without losing control over its subsidiaries and the disposal of the long-term equity investment
corresponding to the share of the net assets of the subsidiaries from the date of purchase or the date of consolidation,
shall be adjusted against share premium under the capital reserve in the consolidated balance sheet, with any excess
adjusted against retained earnings.

Treatment of loss of control of subsidiaries

Where the Company loses its control over the original subsidiary due to the disposal of some equity investment or
other reasons, the remaining equity is re-measured at its fair value on the date when the Company loses its control.
The difference between the sum of the consideration acquired due to the disposal of the equity and the fair value of
the remaining equity, and the Company's share in the sum of carrying value of net assets of the original subsidiary
and goodwill calculated on an on-going basis from the acquisition date based on the original shareholding proportion
is recognised in the investment income for the current period when the control is lost.

Other comprehensive income in relation to the original subsidiary’s equity investment are transferred to profit or loss

for the current period when control ceases, except for those arising from re-measuring net assets or net liabilities
of defined benefit plan by the investee.
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(5)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Preparation of consolidated financial statements (continuea)
Treatment of disposal through several transactions until the loss of control of subsidiaries

Where the Company disposes of the equity interests in the subsidiary through several transactions until it loses control,
and the transaction terms, conditions and economic effects satisfy one or several of the following circumstances, such
several transactions shall be deemed as a basket of transactions in accounting treatment:

@ Such transactions are entered into simultaneously or upon the consideration of the mutual impacts;
@ No complete commercial result will be realised without such transactions as a whole;
® The occurrence of one transaction depends on the occurrence of at least another transaction;

The result of an individual transaction is not economical, but it would be economical after taken into account
of other transactions in the series.

In the separate financial statements, where the Company disposes of the equity investment in the subsidiary through
several transactions until the loss of control, and such transactions are not regarded as “a basket of transactions”,
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment involving each disposal will be carried forward, with the
difference between the proceeds from the disposal and the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
involving the disposal being accounted into the investment incomes for the current period; where the transactions
constitute “a basket of transactions”, the difference between the consideration of each disposal and the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment involving the disposal before the loss of the control, is recognised as
the other comprehensive income and will be carried forward to the profit or loss for the current period when the
control is lost.

In the consolidated financial statements, where the Company disposes of the equity investment in the subsidiary
through several transactions until the loss of control, the measurement of the remaining equity interest and the
accounting treatment of the losses and gains of the disposal will be made with reference to the “Treatment of loss
of control of subsidiaries” as described above. For the difference between the consideration of each disposal before
the loss of the control and the carrying amount of the Company’s share in the net assets involving the disposal of
such subsidiary calculated on an on-going basis from the acquisition date, the treatment will be made as follows:

@ In case the transactions are “a basket of transactions”, such difference is recognised as the other
comprehensive income and will be carried forward to the profit or loss for the current period when the control
is lost.

@ In case the transactions are not “a basket of transactions”, such difference is accounted into share premium

under the capital reserve as equity, and shall not be carried forward to the profit or loss for the current period
when the control is lost.
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(1)

(2)

(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Classification of joint arrangement and accounting treatment for joint operation

A joint arrangement is an arrangement jointly controlled by two or more parties. The Company's joint arrangement
is classified into the joint operation and the joint venture.

Joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the Company have rights and obligations to the relevant assets
and liabilities.

The Company recognizes the following items in relation to its interest in a joint operation, and makes corresponding
accounting treatment in accordance with relevant accounting standards:

A The solely-held assets, and the share of any assets held jointly;

B. The solely-assumed liabilities, and its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

C. Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
D. Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation;

E. The solely-incurred expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Company only entitled to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Company’s investment in joint ventures is accounted for using the equity method according to the rules of the
long-term equity investment.

Standards for determination of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Company include cash on hand, bank deposit readily available for payment and
those investments held by the Company that are short-term (normally due in three months since the acquisition date),
highly liquid, readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency business and translation of financial statements in foreign
currency

Foreign currency business

Foreign currency transactions incurred by the Company are translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rates on the date of the transactions upon initial recognition, which is normally the median exchange rate quoted by
the People’s Bank of China on that day with the same below; provided that the foreign currency exchange business
or the transactions involving foreign currency exchange incurred by the Company are translated to the functional
currency at the actual exchange rates.
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(1

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Foreign currency transactions and translation of financial statements in foreign
currency (continued)

Foreign currency transactions (continued)

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to functional currency at the spot exchange rate on
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the differences between the spot exchange rate prevailing
at the balance sheet date and those spot rates used on initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date are
recognised in profit or loss for the current period; non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate on the transaction date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate on
the date the fair value is determined; the resulting exchange differences between the amounts in functional currency
upon translation and in original functional currency are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
for the current period based on the nature of non-monetary items.

Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

At the balance sheet date, when translating the foreign currency financial statements of overseas subsidiaries, the
assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are translated at the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date; all
items except for “undistributed profits” of the shareholders’ equity are translated at the spot exchange rate on the
transaction date.

The revenue and expenses in the income statement are translated at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date.

All items in the statement of cash flows are translated at the spot exchange rate on the transaction date. The effect
of exchange difference on cash is adjusted and separately presented as “Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
on cash and cash equivalents” in the cash flow statement.

The exchange differences arising from translation of the financial statements are presented as the “other
comprehensive income” in the shareholders’ equity of the balance sheet.

When the Group disposes of the overseas operation and loses control, the differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements in foreign currency that have been presented under the shareholders’ equity in the balance
sheet and involving such overseas operation are carried forward to the profit or loss for the current period in whole
or in the proportion of the disposal of the overseas operation.
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10.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts creating financial assets of a party and financial liabilities or equity instruments
of other parties.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised when the Company becomes one of the parties under a financial
instrument contract.

The financial assets will be derecognised if any of the following conditions is satisfied:
@D The contractual right to receive the cash flow of the financial assets is terminated;

@) The financial asset has been transferred and the transferred financial asset satisfies the following conditions
of derecognition.

If the current obligation of a financial liability (or a part thereof) has been discharged, the financial liability (or that
part of the financial liability) will be derecognised. When the Company (as the debtor) and the lender have signed
an agreement which uses a new financial liability to replace the existing financial liability, and the contract terms of
the new financial liability are substantially different with the original financial liability, the original financial liability
shall be de-recognised, and the new financial liability shall be recognised at the same time.

The regular transactions of the financial assets are recognised and derecognised at the transaction date.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Company classifies financial assets into three categories: financial assets at amortised cost; financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income; and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
for the current period based on the business model for managing financial assets and their contractual cash flow
characteristics upon initial recognition.

@) Financial assets at amortised cost

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the following conditions and are not designated as
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss for the current period as financial assets measured
at amortized cost:

A. The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets is to collect contractual cash flow;

B. The terms of the financial asset contract stipulate that the cash flow generated on a specific date is
only the payment for principal and interest accrued on the outstanding principal.

After initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains or losses arising from financial assets which are measured at amortised cost and not part
of any hedging relationship are included in the profit and loss of the current period upon derecognition,
amortization using the effective interest method, or impairments recognition.
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10.

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continuead)

@

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Company shall classify financial assets that meet the following conditions and are not designated as
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss for the current period as financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A. The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets is both to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets;

B. The terms of the financial asset contract stipulate that the cash flow generated on a specific date is
only the payment for principal and interest accrued on the outstanding principal.

After initial recognition, these financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest, impairment
losses or gains and exchange losses and gains calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss for the current period, while other gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. The cumulative profit or loss previously included in other comprehensive income will be transferred
to the profit or loss for the current period upon derecognition of the financial assets.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss for the current period

In addition to the above financial assets which are measured at amortized cost or at fair value a through
other comprehensive income, the Company classifies all other financial assets as financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss for the current period. When initial recognition, in order to eliminate or
significantly reduce accounting mismatches, the Company irrevocably designates some financial assets that
should have been measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss for the current period.

After initial recognition, these financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, and the profits or
losses (including interest and dividend income) generated from which are recognised in profit or loss for the
current period, unless the financial assets are part of the hedging relationship.

However, with respect to non-trading equity instrument investments, the Company may irrevocably designate
them as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income at initial recognition.
The designation is made on the basis of individual investment, and the relevant investment conforms to the
definition of equity instruments from the issuer’s point of view.

After initial recognition, financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividend income that meets
the requirements is recognised in profit and loss, and other gains or losses and changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When derecognised, the accumulated gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred from other comprehensive income to retained
earnings.
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10.

(2)

(3)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)

®

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss for the current period (continued)

The business model of managing financial assets refers to how the Company manages financial assets to
generate cash flow. The business model decides whether the source of cash flow of financial assets managed
by the Company is to collect contractual cash flow, sell financial assets or both of them. Based on objective
facts and the specific business objectives of financial assets management decided by key management, the
Company determines the business model of financial assets management.

The Company evaluates the characteristics of the contractual cash flow of financial assets to determine
whether the contractual cash flow generated by the relevant financial assets on a specific date is only to pay
principal and interest based on the amount of unpaid principal. Among them, principal refers to the fair value
of financial assets at the time of initial recognition; interest includes the consideration of time value of money,
credit risk related to the amount of unpaid principal in a specific period, and other basic borrowing risks,
costs and profits. In addition, the Company evaluates the terms of the contracts that may lead to changes in
the time distribution or amount of contractual cash flow of financial assets to determine whether they meet
the requirements of the above contractual cash flow characteristics.

Only when the Company changes its business model of managing financial assets, all the financial assets
affected shall be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period after the business model changes,
otherwise, financial assets shall not be reclassified after initial recognition.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition. The relevant transaction cost of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is directly recognised in profit or loss for the current period, and that
of other types of financial assets is included in the initially recognised amount. Accounts receivables arising
from sales of goods or rendering services, without significant financing component, are initially recognised
based on the transaction price expected to be entitled by the Company.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

On initial recognition, the Company's financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised cost. For financial liabilities not classified as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, the relevant transaction costs are included in the initially recognised amount.

@

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Such financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, all gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and dividend and
interest expenses relating to the financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method;
gains and losses arising from derecognition or amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

10. Financial instruments (continued)

(3) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities (continuea)

© Distinction between financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liability refers to a liability that meets one of following criteria:

A.

Contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another entity.

Under any potential adverse condition, contractual obligation to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with other parties.

A non-derivative contract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments for which
the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

A derivative contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments, except for
derivative instrument contracts that exchange a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.

If the Company cannot unconditionally avoid fulfilling a contractual obligation by delivering cash or other
financial assets, the contractual obligation meets the definition of financial liability.

If a financial instrument must or are able to be settled by the Company’s own equity instrument, the Company
should consider whether the Company’s equity instrument used for settling such instrument is a substitute of
cash or other financial assets or the residual interest in the issuer’s assets that the instrument holder enjoys
after deducting all of its liabilities. If the former, the instrument is the financial liability of the Company; if
the latter, the instrument is the equity instrument of the Company.

(4) Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives

The Company’s derivative financial instruments include forward foreign exchange contracts and are initially measured
at fair value on the date of the derivative contract signed and are subsequently measured at fair value. A derivative
with positive fair value shall be recognised as an asset, and a derivative with negative fair value shall be recognized
as a liability. Any profit or loss arising from changes of fair value and not compliance with the accounting provision
of hedging shall be recognised as profit or loss for current period.
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10.

(4)

(5)

(6)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and embedded derivatives (continuea)

For the hybrid instrument which includes embedded derivatives, where the host contract is a financial asset,
requirements in relation to the classification of financial assets shall apply to the hybrid instrument as a whole. Where
the host contract is not a financial asset, and the hybrid instrument is not measured at fair value through the profit
and loss for accounting purposes, there is no close relation between the embedded derivatives and the host contract
in terms of economic features and risks, and if the instrument is subject to the same conditions as the embedded
derivatives, exists independently and meets the definition of derivatives, the embedded derivatives shall be separated
from the hybrid instrument and treated as separate derivative financial instruments. If it is unable to separately
measure the embedded derivatives upon acquisition or on the subsequent balance sheet date, the hybrid instrument
shall be entirely designated as a financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss.

Fair value of the financial instrument

The methods for determining the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities are set out in Note Ill.11.

Impairment of financial assets

The following items are subject to impairment accounting and recognition of loss allowances based on expected
credit losses:

A. Financial assets at amortised cost;

B. Receivables and debt investments that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

C. Contract assets as defined in the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Revenue;

D. Lease receivables;

E. Financial guarantee contracts, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss, for those the

transfer the transfer of financial assets does not satisfy the derecognition condition or those formed as a
result of continued involvement of the transferred financial assets.

Measurement of expected credit loss (ECL)

The ECL is a weighted average of credit losses on financial instruments weighted at the risk of default. Credit loss
is the difference between all receivable contractual cash flows according to the contract and all cash flows expected
to be received by the Company discounted to present value at the original effective interest rate, i.e. the present
value of all cash shortfalls.

The Company takes into account reasonable and valid information on past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, with the risk of default as the weight, to calculate the probabilistic weighted amount
of the present value of the difference between the cash flow receivable from contract and the expected cash flow to
be received and recognise the expected credit loss.
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10.

(6)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) (continued)

The Company separately measures the expected credit losses of financial instruments at different stages. If the credit
risk of a financial instrument does not increase significantly since the initial recognition, it would be classified in Stage 1,
the Company would measure loss allowance based on the future 12-month expected credit losses. If the credit risk of
a financial instrument has significantly increased since the initial recognition but not yet credit-impaired, it would be
classified in Stage 2, the Company would measure loss allowance based on the lifetime expected credit losses of that
instrument. If a financial instrument has credit-impaired since the initial recognition, it would be classified in Stage 3,
and the Company would measure loss allowance base on the lifetime expected credit losses of that instrument.

For a financial instrument with lower credit risk on the balance sheet date, the Company assumes that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since the initial recognition, and measures loss allowance based on the 12-month
expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. Future 12-month expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events on a financial instrument within the 12 months after the balance sheet date (or
the expected life of the instrument, if it is less than 12 months), and is a portion of lifetime expected credit losses.

The maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company are exposed to credit risk (including the option to renew).

For the financial instruments classified in Stage 1 and Stage 2 and those with lower credit risk, the Company would
measure the interest income by the book balance (that is, without deduction for impairment allowance) and the
effective interest rate. For financial instruments classified in Stage 3, the Company would measure the interest income
by the amortised cost (that is, book balance less impairment allowance) and the effective interest rate.

For bills receivable, accounts receivables and contract assets, regardless whether it has significant financing
components or not, the Company has always measured its loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

If the expected credit losses of one individual financial asset cannot be estimated at a reasonable cost, the Company
classifies bills receivable and accounts receivables into portfolios based on credit risk characteristics, and measures
expected credit losses on portfolios basis to determine portfolios by the following basis:

A Bills receivable
o Bills receivable portfolio 1: Bank acceptance bills
] Bills receivable portfolio 2: Commercial acceptance bills
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10.

(6)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) (continued)

B. Accounts receivables
o Accounts receivables portfolio 1: Amount due from domestic customers
o Accounts receivables portfolio 2: Amount due from overseas customers
o Accounts receivables portfolio 3: Receivables of consolidated companies

Contract assets
o Contract assets portfolio: Sale of products

For bills receivable classified into portfolios, the Company measures expected credit losses based on the risk exposures
of default and lifetime expected credit losses rate with reference to the historical credit loss experience, current
situation and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For accounts receivables classified into portfolios, the Company measures expected credit losses through preparing a
table of concordance between the aging of accounts receivables and lifetime expected credit losses rate with reference
to the historical credit loss experience, current situation and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Other receivables

The Company classifies other receivables into certain portfolios based on credit risk characteristics, and measures
expected credit losses on portfolios basis to determine portfolios by the following basis:

o Other receivables portfolio 1: Receivables of export tax refund

o Other receivables portfolio 2: Receivables of deposits under guarantee and security deposits and lease expenses
o Other receivables portfolio 3: Other receivables

o Other receivables portfolio 4: Other receivables of consolidated companies

For other receivables classified into portfolios, the Company measures expected credit losses based on the risk
exposures of default and future 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses rate.
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10.

(6)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continuead)

Long-term receivables

The Company's long-term receivables include finance lease receivables and equity transfer receivables.

The Company classifies finance lease receivables and equity transfer receivables into certain portfolios based on

credit risk characteristics, and measures expected credit losses on portfolios basis to determine portfolios by the
following basis:

A. Finance lease receivables
o Portfolio of finance lease receivables: other receivables
B. Other long-term receivables
o Portfolio of other long-term receivables: equity transfer receivables

For finance lease receivables and equity transfer receivables, the Company measures expected credit losses based
on the risk exposures of default and lifetime expected credit losses rate with reference to the historical credit loss
experience, current situation and forecasts of future economic conditions.

For other receivables and long-term receivables other than finance lease receivables and equity transfer receivables
that are classified into portfolios, the Company measures expected credit losses based on the risk exposures of default
and future 12-month or lifetime expected credit losses rate.

Debt investments and other debt investments

For debt investments and other debt investments, the Company measures expected credit losses based on the nature
of investments, counterparties and various types of risk exposures and the risk exposures of default and future
12-month or lifetime expected credit losses rate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

By comparing the risk of default of financial instruments occurring on the balance sheet date and on the initial
recognition date, the Company determines the relative changes in risk of default over the expected life of financial
instruments and assesses whether the credit risk of financial instruments have increased significantly since the initial
recognition.

When determine whether credit risks have significantly increased since the initial recognition, the Company considers
information that is reasonable and supportable, including forward-looking information, that is available without
undue cost or effort. The information considered by the Company includes:

o Failure to make payments of principal or interest on debtors’ contractually due dates;

o An actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
any);

o An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of debtors;

o Existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have a significant

adverse effect on the debtors’ abilities to repay to the Company.
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10.

(6)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continuea)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the Company assesses whether credit risks have significantly
increased on either an individual financial instrument basis or a collective financial instrument basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective financial instrument basis, the Company can classify the financial instruments
based on the shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due information and credit risk ratings.

The Company determines that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly if it is more than
30 days past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

The Company assesses whether financial assets at amortised cost and debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are credit-impaired on balance sheet date. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have an adverse impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable information:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
o a breach of contract by debtor, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
o for economic or contractual reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, the Company having granted

to the debtor a concession that would not otherwise consider;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties of the issuer
or debtor.

Presentation of allowance for ECL

The Company remeasures the ECLs on each balance sheet date to reflect changes in the financial instruments’ credit
risk since initial recognition, and the increase or reversal of the loss allowance resulted therefrom is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. For financial assets at amortized cost, the loss allowance is offset against
their carrying amounts in the balance sheet. For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Company recognises the loss allowance in other comprehensive income and does not deduct the carrying amount
of the financial assets.

Write-off

The book balance of the carrying amount of a financial asset will be written off to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery of contractual cash flows of the financial asset by the Company (either partially or in full). A
write-off constitutes a derecognition of the relevant financial asset. This is generally the case the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Subsequent recovery of an asset that was previously written off is recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit
or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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10.

(7)

(8)

11.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Transfer of financial assets

Transfer of financial assets refers to the transfer or delivery of financial assets to the other party (the transferee)
other than the issuer of financial assets.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset to the transferee; the Company should not derecognise a financial asset if it retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset,
it shall be treated as follows: if the Company has forgone control over the financial asset, it should derecognise the
financial asset and recognise the assets and liabilities generated; if the Company retains its control over the financial
asset, it should recognise the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred financial
asset and recognise the relevant liability accordingly.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

When the Company has the legal right to offset recognised financial assets and financial liabilities, and the legal
right can be executed at present, and the Company has a plan to settle by net amount or to realize the financial
assets and repay the financial liabilities at the same time, the financial assets and financial liabilities will be offset
and the net amount will be presented in the balance sheet. Otherwise, the financial assets and financial liabilities
shall be presented separately in the balance sheet and cannot be offset.

Fair value measurement

The fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company measures the relevant asset or liability at fair value assuming the orderly transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place in the principal market for the asset or liability. In the absence of such a principal
market, the Company assumes that the transaction takes place at the most advantageous market for the relevant
asset or liability. A principal market (or the most advantageous market) is the transaction market that the Company
can enter into at the measurement date. The Company adopts the same hypothesis which would be used by the
market participants in asset or liability pricing to maximize their economic benefit.

If there exists an active market for the financial asset or financial liability, the Company uses the quotation on
the active market as its fair value. For financial instrument without an active market, the Company uses valuation
technique to recognise its fair value. However, under limited circumstances, the Company may use all information
about the results and operation of the investee obtained after the date of initial recognition to determine whether
the cost represents its fair value. Cost may represent the best estimate of fair value of the relevant financial asset
within the scope of distribution, and such cost represents the appropriate estimate of fair value within the scope of
distribution.

For non-financial assets measured at fair value, the Company takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its best use.
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11.

12.

(1)

(2)

(3)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Company uses the valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
and other information available, and maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs, while unobservable inputs will
be used only when the observable inputs cannot or impracticable to be obtained.

For the assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, fair value hierarchies are
categorized into three levels based on the lowest level inputs that are significant to the entire fair value measurement:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities at the measurement
date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses the assets and liabilities measured at fair value on continuing
basis recognised in the financial statements to determine whether any transfer occurs between fair value hierarchies.

Inventories
Classification of inventories

The Company's inventories include, among others, raw materials, packaging materials, work in progress, finished
goods, subcontracting materials and low-value consumables.

Method of costing for inventory acquisition and distribution

Inventories are measured at actual cost on acquisition. Cost of inventories comprises actual costs of purchase and
which incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of distribution of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Low-value consumables and packaging materials are amortised
in full upon the use.

The underlying factors in the determination and the basis of provision for diminution in
net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion, selling expenses
and related taxes. The net realizable value of inventories is determined based on objective evidence, and consideration
will be given to the purpose of holding the inventories and the effects of the events after balance sheet date.

On the balance sheet date, the inventories are calculated at the lower of cost and the net realizable value. When
the net realizable value is lower than the cost, the provision for diminution in value of inventories is made on an
item-by-item basis at the excess of the cost of the inventory over its net realizable value. For large volume inventories
with low unit price, the provision for diminution in value of inventories is made by categories.

When the provision for diminution in value of inventories is made, if the factors that previously give rise to the
write-down of inventories are no longer exist, which result in a net realizable value of the inventory higher than its
carrying amount, the amount of the provision for diminution in value of inventories that has been made should be
reversed and recognised in the profit or loss for the current period.
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12.

(4)

(5)

13.

(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Inventories (continued)
Inventory system

The Company maintains a perpetual inventory system.

Amortisation methods for low-value consumables

Low-value consumables of the Company are amortised in full when used.

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Classification and measurement of non-current assets or the disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if the Company recovers its book value mainly by
selling (including the exchange of non-monetary assets with commercial substance) rather than continuing to use it.

The aforesaid non-current assets do not include investment property measured with the basis of fair value; the
biological assets measured with the basis of fair value less selling costs; the assets formed by employee benefits;
financial assets and deferred income tax assets and the right arising from insurance contracts.

A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed through sale or other means as a whole in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that will be transferred in the transaction. In certain circumstance,
disposal groups include the goodwill obtained through business combination.

Non-current assets and disposal groups that meet the following conditions are classified as held for sale: according
to the practice of disposing of this type of assets or disposal groups in a similar transaction, a non-current asset or
disposal group is available for immediate sale at its present condition; the sale is likely to occur, that is, a decision has
been made on a sale plan and a determined purchase commitment is made, and the sale is expected to be completed
within one year. Where the loss of control over the subsidiaries is due to the sales of investment in subsidiaries, no
matter whether the Company retains part of the equity investment after selling or not, the investment in subsidiaries
shall be classified as held for sale in the separate financial statements when it satisfies the conditions for category of
held for sale; all assets and liabilities of subsidiaries shall be classified as held for sale in the consolidated financial
statements.

The difference between carrying amount of non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale and the
net amount of fair value less selling costs shall be recognised as impairment loss on assets upon initial measurement
or when such non-current assets or disposal groups are remeasured at the balance sheet date. For the amount of
impairment loss on assets recognised in disposal groups, the carrying amount of disposal groups’ goodwill shall be
offset against first, and then offset against the carrying amount of non-current assets according to the proportion of
carrying amount of the individual non-current assets in the disposal groups.

If on a subsequent balance sheet date, the net amount of the fair value of a held-for-sale non-current asset or
disposal group less its selling costs increases, the amount reduced previously shall be recovered, and reversed in the
asset impairment loss recognised on the non-current asset after the non-current asset is classified into held-for-sale
category. The reversed amount is recognised in current profit or loss. The carrying value of goodwill which has been
offset cannot be reversed.
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13.

(1)

(2)

(3)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Assets held for sale and discontinued operations (continued)

Classification and measurement of non-current assets or the disposal group held for sale
(continued)

No depreciation or amortisation is provided for the non-current assets in the held-for-sale and the assets in the
disposal group held for sale. The interest on the liabilities and other costs in the disposal group held for sale is
recognised continuously. As far as all or part of investment in the associates and joint ventures is concerned, for
the part classified into the held-for-sale category, the accounting with equity method shall be ceased, while the
remaining part (which is not classified into the held-for-sale category) shall still be accounted for using the equity
method. When the Company loses the significant influence on the associates and joint venture due to the sale, the
use of equity method shall be ceased.

When certain non-current asset or disposal group classified into the held-for-sale category no longer meets the
classification criteria for held-for-sale category, the Company shall stop classifying it into the held-for-sale category
and measure it according to the lower of the following two amounts:

) The carrying amount of the asset of disposal group before it was classified into the held-for-sale category
after being adjusted with the depreciation, amortization or impairment that could have been be recognized
if it was not classified into the held-for-sale category;

@) The recoverable amount.

Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to the component meeting one of the following conditions that has been disposed of
by the Company or classified by the Company into the held-for-sale type and can be identified separately:

) The component represents an independent principal business or a separate principal business place.

@ The component is a part of the related plan for the contemplated disposal of an independent principal business
or a separate principal business place.

® The component is a subsidiary acquired exclusively for the purpose of resale.

Presentation

The Company presents the non-current assets held for sale and the assets in the disposal group held for sale under
“assets classified as held for sale”, and the liabilities in the disposal group held for sale under “liabilities classified
as held for sale” in the balance sheet.

The Company presents the profit and loss for continuing operation and profit and loss for discontinued operation
in the income statement, respectively. The impairment loss and reversal amount and disposal profit and loss of
the non-current assets held for sale or disposal group not meeting the definition of discontinued operation will be
presented as the profit and loss of continuing operation. The operating profit and loss (such as impairment loss and
reversal amount) and disposal profit and loss of the discontinued operation will be presented as the profit and loss
of the discontinued operation.
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13.

(3)

14.

(1

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Assets held for sale and discontinued operations (continued)
Presentation (continued)

The disposal group proposed for retirement rather than sale and meeting the condition about the relevant component
in the definition of the discontinued operation will be presented as discontinued operation from the date of retirement.

For the discontinued operation reported in the current period, the information formerly presented as profit and
loss of continuing operation will be presented as the profit and loss of discontinued operation for the comparable
accounting period in the financial statement of the current period. If the discontinued operation no longer meets the
classification criteria for held-for-sale category, the information formerly presented as profit and loss of discontinued
operation will be presented as the profit and loss of continuing operation for the comparable accounting period in
the financial statement of the current period.

Long-term equity investment

The long-term equity investment includes the equity investment in the subsidiary, joint ventures and associates. The
investee over which the Company has significant influence is the associates of the Company.

Determination of initial investment cost

The long-term equity investment resulting from corporate merger: For the long-term equity investment resulting
from merger of companies under the same control, the carrying amount of the ownership equity of the merged party
obtained on the merger date presented in the consolidated financial statement of the final controlling party will be
used as the investment cost. For the long-term equity investment resulting from merger of companies under different
controls, the merger cost will be used as the investment cost of the long-term equity investment.

The long-term equity investment obtained by other means: For the long-term equity investment obtained by paying
cash, the actually paid purchase price will be used as the initial investment cost. For the long-term equity investment
obtained by issuing equity securities, the fair value of the issued equity securities will be used as the initial investment
cost.

Subsequent measurement and recognition method of profit or loss

The investment in subsidiary will be accounted for using cost method, unless the investment meets the criteria of
held-for-sale category. The investment in associates and joint venture will be accounted with equity method.

For the long-term equity investment accounted for using cost method, except for the price actually paid upon the
investment or the cash dividend or profit in the consideration that has been declared but not released, the cash
dividend or profit declared and distributed by the investee is recognised as the investment income and recorded into
the profit and loss for the current period.

For the long-term equity investment accounted for using equity method, the investment cost of the long-term equity
investment shall not be adjusted if the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is higher than
the Company's share in the fair value of the identifiable net value of the investee at the time of investment; if the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is lower than the Company's share in the fair value of
the identifiable net value of the investee at the time of investment, the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment will be adjusted, with the difference recorded into the profit and loss for the current period of investment.
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14.

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Long-term equity investment (continued)
Subsequent measurement and recognition method of profit or loss (continuea)

When accounted for using the equity method, return on investment and other comprehensive income are recognized
according to the share in the investee’s realised net profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively, and
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment is adjusted. The carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment will be deducted according to the profit distribution declared by the investee or cash dividend attributable
to the Company. The carrying amount of long-term equity investment will be adjusted for changes to equity interest
attributable to the owners of the investee other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, and recorded into capital reserve (other capital reserve). The Company’s share of the net profit or loss of
the investees will be recognised after adjustment of the net profit of the investees according to the accounting policy
and accounting period of the Company on the basis of fair value of all identifiable assets of the investee on acquisition.

If the Company is able to exert significant influence or implement joint control (which does not constitute control)
on the investee through additional investment or other reason, the sum of the fair value of the original equity plus
the additional investment cost will be used as the initial investment cost, which will be accounted for with equity
method, on the conversion date. If the original equity has been classified as non-trading equity instrument investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the related accumulated change of fair value originally
recorded into other comprehensive income will be transferred into the retained earnings when accounted for using
equity method.

If an entity loses joint control or has no significant influence over investees due to the elimination of parts of the
equity investment, the surplus equity after disposal shall be recognised in accordance with “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments”, and the difference between
fair value and carrying amount should be recognised as profit or loss for current period. Other comprehensive income
of original equity investment recognised under equity method shall be recognised in accordance with the same
foundation used by the investees when dispose the relevant assets or liabilities directly in the termination of equity
method. Other changes of owners’ equity related to the original equity investment shall be transferred into profit or
loss for current period.

If an entity loses control over investees due to the elimination of parts of the equity investment, the surplus owners’
equity that is able to implement joint control or have significant influence over investees shall be measured at equity
method and are deemed to be recognised under equity method since the acquisition date. The surplus owners’
equity that are unable to implement joint control or have no significant influence over investees shall be processed
in accordance with “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments”, and the difference between fair value and carrying amount at the day of loss of control shall
be recognised as profit or loss for current period.

If the shareholding ratio of the Company is reduced due to the increase of capital of other investors, and thus the
control is lost, but the joint control or significant influence can be exerted on the invested entity, the Company should
recognise net asset according to the new shareholding ratio. The difference between the original book value of the
long-term equity investment corresponding to the decrease in the shareholding ratio should be included in the current
profit and loss; then, according to the new shareholding ratio, the investment shall be deemed to be recognised
under equity method since the acquisition date.

The Company recognises the unrealized profit or loss of intra-transaction between the joint ventures or associates
that belongs to itself according to the proportion of the shares and recognises the investment income or loss after
offset. However, the loss arising from the unrealized intra-transaction between the Company and investees, which
belongs to the impairment loss of assets transferred, cannot be offset.
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14.
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(4)

(5)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Long-term equity investment (continued)
Basis of determining common control and significant influence on the investee

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an arrangement under which the decisions relating
to any activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. In determining whether there is a joint
control, the first judge is to determine whether the relevant arrangement is controlled collectively by all the parties
involved or the group of the parties involved and then determine whether the decisions of the relevant activities
related to the arrangement should require the unanimous consent of the parties involved. If the parties involved or
the group of the parties involved must act consistently to determine the relevant arrangement, it is considered that
the parties involved or the group of the parties involved control the arrangement. If two or more parties involve in
the collective control of certain arrangement, it shall not be considered as joint control. Protection of rights shall not
be considered in determining whether there is joint control.

Significant influence refers to the power to participate in the decision-making process for financial and operational
policies of the investees without control or common control over the formulation of such policies. When determining
whether it has significant influence over the investee, the influence of the voting shares of the investee held by
the investor directly and indirectly and the potential voting rights held by the investor and other parties which are
exercisable in the current period and converted to the equity of the investee, including the warrants, stock options
and convertible bonds that are issued by the investee and can be converted in the current period, shall be taken
into account.

Held-for-sale equity investment

Refer to Note Ill. 13 for the relevant accounting treatment of the equity investment to associates or joint ventures
all or partially classified as assets held for sale.

The surplus equity investments that are not classified as assets held for sale shall be accounted for using equity
method.

The equity investment to associates or joint ventures already classified as held for sale, if no longer meets the
conditions of assets held for sale, shall be adjusted retroactively using equity method from the date of being classified
as assets held for sale.

Impairment test and impairment provision

Refer to Note IIl. 22 for investment to subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and the impairment provision of
assets.
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15.

16.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental or capital appreciation or both. The investment properties of
the Company include land use rights that have already been leased out, land use rights that are held for the purpose
of sale after capital appreciation, and buildings that have already been leased out, etc.

Investment properties of the Company are measured initially at cost upon acquisition, and subject to depreciation or
amortization in the relevant periods according to the relevant provisions on fixed assets or intangible assets.

The Company adopts the cost model for subsequent measurement of the investment properties. The method for asset
impairment provision is set out in Note IlI. 22.

The balance after the disposal income from the disposal, transfer, retirement or damage of the investment properties
deducting the book value and the relevant taxes shall be recorded into the profit and loss for the current period.

Fixed assets
Conditions for recognition of fixed assets

The Company's fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Company for using in the production of goods,
rendering of services, leasing out or for operation and administrative purposes with useful life over one accounting
year.

The fixed asset can be recognised only when it is probable that the related economic benefits will flow to the entity
and the cost of the fixed asset can be reliably measured.

The Company'’s fixed assets are initially measured at the actual cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost of the fixed asset when it is probable
that the related economic benefits will flow to the Company and the related cost can be reliably measured. The
daily repair costs of fixed assets that do not meet the recognition criteria of subsequent expenditures of fixed assets
are recorded in the profit or loss for the current period or included in the cost of the relevant assets according to
beneficiaries when incurred. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the equal annual instalment method. Fixed assets start to be depreciated when
the assets are ready for their intended use and stop to be depreciated when the assets are derecognised or classified
as held-for-sale non-current assets. For those fixed assets without considering impairment provision, the Company's
annual depreciation rates are shown as follows according to the category, expected useful lives and estimated net
residual values rates:

Annual

depreciation

Category Useful life (year) Residual rate % rate %
Properties and buildings 20 5-10 4.5-4.75
Machine and equipment 10 5-10 9-9.5
Transportation equipment 5 5-10 18-19
Electric equipment and others 5 5-10 18-19
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

17.

18.

(1)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Fixed assets (continuead)
Depreciation methods of fixed assets (continuead)

Where, for the fixed assets for which depreciation provision is made, to determine the depreciation rate, the
accumulated amount of the fixed asset depreciation provision that has been made shall be deducted.

Refer to Note lll. 22 for the impairment testing and the impairment provision of fixed assets.

The Company reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of fixed asset and
the depreciation method applied annually at each of the year end.

The useful lives of fixed asset are adjusted if their expected useful lives are different from the original estimates; the
estimated net residual values are adjusted if they are different from the original estimates.

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
The amount of proceeds from disposal on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at actual cost. Actual cost comprises necessary project expenditure incurred
during construction, borrowing cost that are eligible for capitalization and other necessary cost incurred to bring the
fixed assets ready for their intended use.

Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the assets are ready for their intended use.
For provision for impairment of construction in progress, refer to Note IlI. 22.

Borrowing costs
Recognition principle of capitalization of borrowing costs

For borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset, they shall be capitalized and included in the cost of related assets; other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenses and included in profit or loss for the current period when incurred. Capitalization of such borrowing costs
can commence only when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

® Expenditures for the asset incurred, capital expenditure includes the expenditure in the form of cash payment,
transfer of non-cash assets or the interest-bearing liabilities for the purpose of acquiring or constructing assets
eligible for capitalization;

Borrowing costs incurred;

Activities relating to the acquisition, construction or production of the asset that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale have commenced.
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19.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)
Capitalization period of borrowing costs

Capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying assets being acquired, constructed or produced
become ready for their intended use or sale. The borrowing cost incurred after that is recognised as an expense to
the extent that occurred and included in profit or loss for the current period.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is interrupted abnormally and when the interruption is for a continuous period of more than 3
months; the borrowing costs in the normally interrupted period continue to be capitalized.

Calculation of the capitalization rate and amount of borrowing costs

The interest expense of the specific borrowings incurred at the current period, deducting any interest income earned
from depositing the unused specific borrowings in bank or the investment income arising from temporary investment,
shall be capitalized. The capitalization amount is determined by multiplying the weighted average of the excess
amount of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amount specific borrowings by the capitalization rate of the
general borrowings used. The capitalization rate of the general borrowing is determined on the basis of the weighted
average effective interest rate of general borrowings.

During the capitalization period, the exchange differences on foreign currency special borrowings shall be capitalized;
the exchange differences on foreign currency general borrowings shall be recognised as current profits or losses.

Biological assets
Determination of biological assets

Biological assets refer to assets comprising living animals and plants. No biological asset shall be recognised unless
it meets the conditions as follows simultaneously:

® An enterprise possesses or controls the biological asset as a result of past transaction or event;
@ The economic benefits or service potential concerning this biological asset are likely to flow into the enterprise;
® The cost of this biological asset can be measured reliably.

Classification of biological assets

The Company's biological assets are consumable biological assets which include traditional Chinese medical herbal
plant species.

The consumable biological assets refer to the biological assets held for sale, or biological assets to be harvested
as agricultural products in the future, consisting of growing traditional Chinese medical herbal plant species. The
consumable biological asset is initially measured at cost. The cost of any consumable biological asset by way of
self-planting, cultivating, propagating or breeding is the necessary cost directly attributable to this asset prior to
the harvest, consisting of borrowing costs that meet the conditions of capitalization. The subsequent expenses for
the maintenance, protection and raising of a consumable biological asset after the harvest shall be included in the
profits or loss for the current period.

The cost of a consumable biological asset shall, at the time of harvest or sale, be carried forward at its book value
by the weighted average method.
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19.

(3)

20.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Biological assets (continued)
Impairment of biological assets

If the net realizable value of a consumable biological asset is lower than its carrying amount, provision of impairment
loss is made and recognised in the profit or loss for the current period as the excess of the carrying amount over the
net realizable value. If the factors affecting the impairment of the consumable biological asset no longer exist, the
amount of write-down shall be resumed and shall be reversed from the original provision for the impairment loss
before being recognised in the profit or loss for the current period.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance owned or controlled by the
enterprise. An intangible asset is recognised only when all of the following conditions are satisfied:

@ It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the intangible assets will flow to the enterprise;
@ The cost of the intangible asset can be reliably measured.
Intangible assets are initially measured at actual cost.

@ Where the payment for acquisition of an intangible asset is postponed beyond the normal credit terms, which
substantially constitutes a financing transaction, the present value of the purchase price will be recognized
as the cost of intangible assets.

@ The intangible assets acquired from debtor under debt restructuring are stated at the fair value, and the
difference between the carrying amount of the restructured debt and the fair value of the intangible assets
acquired from debtor under debt restructuring is recognised in the profit or loss for the current period. For
non-monetary assets exchange with commercial substance, if the fair value of the assets received or transferred
can be reliably measured, the intangible assets received in the exchange of non-monetary assets shall normally
be stated at the fair value of the assets transferred, unless there is objective evidence indicating that the fair
value of the assets received is more reliable; for the exchange of non-monetary assets that does not meet the
above conditions, the cost of intangible assets received is recognised at the carrying amount of the assets
transferred with the relevant taxes, hence no gains or losses shall be recognised.

© The intangible assets acquired in the business combinations under common control are stated at the carrying
amount of the intangible assets of the acquiree. The intangible assets acquired in the business combinations
not under common control are recognised at its fair value.
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20.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

The Company shall make judgement to determine the useful life of intangible assets upon acquisition based on its
analysis. For intangible assets with finite useful life, the useful life shall be estimated from its length of service, its
output in the future or other similar factors involved. When there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which an
intangible asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the enterprise, it is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life.

Amortisation of intangible assets: intangible assets with finite useful life are amortised in the profit or loss using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life. An intangible asset with indefinite useful life is not amortised.
The useful life for an intangible asset with a finite useful life and the method of amortisation are reviewed by the
Company at least once at the end of each financial year. If the useful life and amortisation method for the intangible
assets are different from the previous estimate, the change of amortisation is recognised prospectively.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful life is as follows:

Category Useful life Amortisation Notes
Land use rights 50 years Equal annual instalment method
Patent and technical know-how 2-10 years Equal annual instalment method
Software 2-5 years Equal annual instalment method
Trademark rights 5 years Equal annual instalment method
Others 10 years Equal annual instalment method

When it is estimated that an intangible asset can no longer bring future economic benefits to the enterprise on
the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of the intangible asset should be reversed to the profit or loss for the
current period.

Please refer to Note Ill. 22 for the provision of impairment of intangible assets.
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21.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditures on an internal research and development project are classified into expenditures on the research phase
and expenditures on the development phase.

Expenditures on the research phase refer to the costs incurred for original, exploratory and planned researches with
the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding to collect date and prepare for further
development activities. There is great uncertainty as to whether research in progress can move onto development
phase and whether intangible assets can be created at the end of the development phase. Expenditures on the
research phase shall be recognised in the profit or loss for the current period when incurred.

Expenditures on the development phase refer to the cost incurred for applying research findings or other knowledge
to a plan or design to produce new materials, devices, products or processes or make substantial improvement
thereof before the commercial production or use. In the development phase, facilitating by the works conducted
during the research phase, the Company shall be capable to demonstrate the feasibility of creating new products
or new technologies. Expenditures on the development phase will be capitalized only when all of the following
conditions are satisfied: it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale; the Company intends to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it; it can be demonstrated how
the intangible asset will generate economic benefits, including proving that the intangible assets or the products
produced by it will have markets, or the intangible assets for internal use will be useful; there are adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the development and the Company is able to use or sell the intangible
assets; and expenditures on the development phase attributable to the intangible assets can be reliably measured.
The development expenditures that do not satisfy the above conditions shall be recognised in the profit or loss for
the current period.

Capitalised expenditures on the development phase are shown as development expenditures in the balance sheet
and reclassified as intangible assets on the date the project meets the intended purpose.

Capitalisation conditions for specific research and development projects are as follows: upon obtaining relevant
approvals, such as the “Clinical Test Approval (FafR 52 HE14)", "Drug Registration Approval (% T i #L4F)"
obtained in accordance with the Measures for the Administration of Drug Registration ( 225 E IR L) )
promulgated by the State Food and Drug Administration or approvals issued by international drug administration
institutions, or satisfying the conditions of pilot in research and development projects, after considering both the
research and development process of the pharmaceutical industry and the Company’s own research and development
features, the expenses occurred after obtaining such approval or commencing the pilot may be capitalized as research
and development expenses provided that the conditions for development are satisfied according to the Company's
assessment; the remaining research and development expenditures will be charged to research and development
expenses; and the purchase price of any production technology or formulation acquired externally is recognised as
development expenses and any project requiring further research and development is recognised according to the
standards as mentioned above.

Where it is impossible to differentiate the expenditures on the research phase and the expenditures on the development
phase, all the research and development expenditures are recognised in the profit or loss for the current period.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

22.

23.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Impairment of assets

The impairment of the long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, investment
properties subsequently measured at cost, fixed assets, construction in progress, right-of-use assets, intangible assets,
goodwill, etc. (excluding inventories, investment properties measured at fair value, deferred income tax assets and
financial assets) is determined as follows:

On the balance sheet date, the Company determines whether there may be indication of impairment of assets, if there
is any indication of impairment, the Company will estimate the recoverable amount for impairment test. For goodwill
arising from a business combination, intangible assets with indefinite useful life and the intangible assets that have
not yet ready for use are tested for impairment annually regardless of whether such indication exists.

The recoverable amount of an asset is determined by the higher amount of its fair value less disposal costs and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the assets. The Company estimates the recoverable
amount based on individual asset; for an individual asset which is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount, the
Company shall determine the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset belongs. The determination
of an asset group is based on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset group are independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the asset or asset group’s recoverable amount is lower than its carrying amount, the Company reduces its
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, the reduced amount is included in the profit or loss for the current period,
while the provision for impairment of assets is recognised accordingly.

In terms of impairment test of the goodwill, the carrying amount of the goodwill arising from business combination
shall be allocated to the related asset groups on a reasonable basis from acquisition date; where it is difficult to
allocate to the related asset groups, it is allocated to the combination of related asset groups. The related asset
groups or combination of asset groups are those which can benefit from the synergies of the business combination
and are not larger than the reportable segments identified by the Company.

In the impairment test, if there is any indication that an asset group or a combination of asset groups related to
goodwill may be impaired, the Company first tests the asset group or combination of asset groups excluding goodwill
for impairment, calculates the recoverable amount and recognises the corresponding impairment loss. An impairment
test is then carried out on the asset group or combination of asset groups containing goodwill by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised for goodwill.

Once asset impairment loss is recognised, it cannot be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term deferred expenses

The Company's long-term deferred expenses are measured at actual cost and evenly amortized on straight-line basis
over the expected beneficial period. For the long-term deferred expense items that cannot benefit the subsequent
accounting periods, their amortized value shall be entirely included in the profit or loss for the current period.
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24,

(1

(2)

(3)

(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Employee compensation
The scope of employee compensation

Employee compensation refers to all forms of remuneration and compensation given by the Company in exchange
for service rendered by employees or the termination of employment. Employee compensation includes short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, termination benefits and other long-term employee benefits. Employee
compensation also includes benefits provided to employees’ spouses, children, other dependants, survivors of the
deceased employees or to other beneficiaries.

According to liquidity, employee compensation is presented separately as “employee benefits payables” item and
“long-term employee benefits payables” item in the balance sheet.

Short-term employee compensation

During the accounting period in which the employees render the related services, actually incurred wages, bonuses,
social insurance contributions (including medical insurance fees, work-related injury insurance fees, maternity
insurance fees, etc.) and housing provident fund are recognised as liability and included in the profit or loss for the
current period or related asset costs. If the liability cannot be wholly settled within twelve months after the end of
the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service and has significant financial impact,
the liability shall be measured as the discounted amount.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefit plans mainly include defined contribution plans. Defined contribution plans refer to the
post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions. Defined contribution plans include the basic pension
insurance, unemployment insurance, etc.

During the accounting period in which the employees render services, the amount payable calculated according
any defined contribution plan is recognised as a liability and included in the profit or loss for the current period or
related asset costs.

Termination benefits

When the Company provides termination benefits to employees, employee compensation liabilities arising from
termination benefits are recognised and included in the profit or loss for the current period at the earlier of the
following dates: when the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits because of an
employment termination plan or a curtailment proposal; the Company recognises costs or expenses related to the
restructuring that involves the payment of termination benefits.

For the implementation of the internal retirement plan for an employee, the economic compensation before the official
retirement date is a termination benefit. The wage of and social insurance contributions for the internally retired
employee which would have incurred from the date on which the employee ceases rendering services to the Company
to the scheduled retirement date will be included in the profit or loss for the current period. Economic compensation
after the official retirement date (such as normal pension) is accounted for as post-employment benefits.
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24.

(5)

25.

26.

(1)

(2)

(3)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Employee compensation (continued)
Other long-term benefits

When other long-term employee benefits provided to the employees by the Company meet the conditions of a defined
contribution plan, those benefits shall be accounted for in accordance with the relevant provisions of the above
defined contribution plans.

Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as a provision when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
(M The obligation is a present obligation of the Company;
(2) It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits of the Company will be required to settle the obligation;
(3) The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Provisions are initially measured at the best estimate of the payment to settle the associated obligations and consider
the relevant risk, uncertainty and time value of money. If the impact of time value of money is significant, the best
estimate is determined as its present value of future cash outflow. The Company reviews the carrying amount of
provisions on the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount to reflect the best estimate.

If all or some expenses incurred for settlement of recognised provisions are expected to be borne by a third party
or another party, the compensation amount shall, on a recoverable basis, be recognised as asset separately, and
compensation amount recognised shall not be more than the carrying amount of the liability recognised.

Share-based payment and equity instruments
Category of share-based payment

Share-based payment of the Company is classified into equity-settled share-based payment and cash-settled share-
based payment.

Determination of fair value of equity instrument

For options and other equity instruments granted by the Company with active market, the fair value is determined at
the active market quotations. For options and other equity instruments with no active market, option pricing model
shall be used to estimate the fair value of the equity instruments. Factors as follows shall be taken into account using
option pricing models: A. the exercise price of the option; B. the validity period of the option; C. the current market
price of the share; D. the expected volatility of the share price; E. predicted dividend of the share; F. risk-free rate
of the option within the validity period.

Recognition basis for the best estimate of exercisable equity instruments

On each balance sheet date during the pending period, the Company, based on the latest subsequent information
such as the latest update on the change in the number of entitled employees, makes best estimate to adjust the
expected number of equity instruments that can be exercised. As at the exercise date, the final estimated number of
exercisable equity instruments should equal the actual number of exercisable equity instruments.
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26.

(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Share-based payment and equity instruments (continued)

Accounting treatment for implementation, amendment and termination of share-based
payment plans

Equity-settled share-based payment is measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted to employees.
Instruments which are exercisable immediately upon the grant are included in relevant costs or expenses at the
fair value of equity instruments on the date of grant and capital reserves are increased accordingly. If exercising
is conditional upon completion of services in the pending period or fulfillment of performance conditions, on each
balance sheet date during the pending period, based on the best estimate of the number of exercisable equity
instruments, the services received for the period are recognised as the costs or expenses and capital reserves at fair
value of the equity instruments as at the date of grant. After the exercise date, relevant costs or expenses and total
shareholders’ equity have been recognised and will not be adjusted.

Cash-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the liabilities (share-based or other equity
instrument-based) assumed by the Company. Instruments which are exercisable immediately upon the grant are
included in relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of liabilities assumed by the Company on the date of grant
and liabilities are increased accordingly. If exercising is conditional upon completion of services in the pending period
or fulfillment of performance conditions, on each balance sheet date during the pending period, based on the best
estimate of the exercisable situation, the services received for the period are recognised as the costs or expenses and
corresponding liabilities at fair value of the liabilities assumed by the Company. On each balance sheet date before
the relevant liabilities are settled and settlement date, the fair value of liabilities is remeasured and the resulting
changes are included in the profit and loss for the current period.

When the Company modifies the share-based payment plan, and if such modification increases the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, the increase in services received will be recognised accordingly following the increase
in fair value of the equity instruments; if such modification increases the number of equity instruments granted, the
increase in fair value of the equity instruments is recognised as a corresponding increase in services received. The
increase in fair value of the equity instruments refers to the difference in fair values on the date of modification before
and after the modification in respect of the equity instruments. If the modification reduces the total fair value of the
share-based payments or adopts any form that is unfavorable to employees to modify the terms and conditions of
the share-based payment plan, accounting treatment will be continued to be conducted in respect of the services
received and the modification will be deemed to have never occurred, unless the Company had cancelled part or all
of the equity instruments granted.

During the pending period, if the equity instruments granted are cancelled (except for failure to meet the non-market
conditions of the exercising conditions), the Company will undertake an accelerated exercising in respect of the
cancelled equity instruments that have been granted, include the remaining amount that shall be recognised during
the pending period in the profit and loss for the current period immediately and recognise capital reserve accordingly.
Where employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-exercising conditions but have not fulfilled
during the pending period, the Company will treat the granted equity instruments as cancelled.
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26.

(5)

27.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Share-based payment and equity instruments (continued)

Accounting treatment for share-based payment transactions involving the Company and
the shareholders or the actual controller of the Company

For share-based payment transactions involving the Company and the shareholders or the actual controller of the
Company, the settlement enterprise and the enterprise receiving services (one under the Company while the other
external to the Company) shall follow the requirements below to conduct accounting treatment in the Company's
consolidated financial statements:

@ For settlement enterprises settling through their own equity instruments, such share-based payment transaction
will be treated as equity-settled share-based payment; except for this, such share-based payment transaction
will be treated as cash-settled share-based payment.

Where a settlement enterprise is an investor of an enterprise receiving services, the fair value of the equity
instruments on the date of grant or the fair value of the liabilities that shall be assumed are recognised as
long-term equity investment in the enterprise receiving services, at the same time, capital reserve (other
capital reserve) or liabilities are recognised.

@ Where an enterprise receiving services has no settlement obligations or grants its own equity instruments
to employees, such share-based payment transaction will be treated as equity-settled share-based payment;
where an enterprise receiving services has settlement obligations and grants equity instruments (other than
its own) to employees, such share-based payment transaction will be treated as cash-settled share-based
payment.

For a share-based payment transaction occurring among enterprises under the Company where the enterprise
receiving services and the settlement enterprise are not the same enterprise, such share-based payment
transaction shall be recognised and measured in each of the respective financial statements of the enterprise
receiving services and the settlement enterprise by reference to the above principles.

Preferred shares, perpetual bonds and other financial instruments
Distinction between financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Company classifies the financial instrument or its components as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity
instruments at the initial recognition based on the contract terms of the issued financial instruments and the economic
substances they reflect, instead of only in legal form, and combining the definitions of financial assets, financial
liabilities and equity instruments.

Accounting treatment of preferred shares, perpetual bonds and other financial instruments

The financial instruments issued by the Company are initially recognised and measured in accordance with the
financial instrument standards; thereafter, interests or dividends are accrued or distributed on each balance sheet
date and processed in accordance with relevant specific accounting standards for specific enterprises. That is, on
the basis of the classification of a financial instrument issued, the accounting treatment of interest expenses or
dividend distributions of the instrument is determined. For financial instruments classified as equity instruments,
interest expenses or dividend distributions are treated as profit distributions of the Company, and repurchases and
cancellations are treated as changes in equity; for financial instruments classified as financial liahilities, interest
expenses or dividend distributions are in principle treated according to borrowing costs, and gains or losses arising
from repurchases or redemptions are included in the profit or loss for the current period.

The transaction costs such as charges and commissions incurred by the Company when issuing financial instruments,

if classified as debt instruments and measured at amortized cost, are included in the initial measurement amount of
the issued instruments; if classified as equity instruments, are deducted from equity.
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28.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Revenue

The Company shall recognise revenue when the Company satisfies the performance obligation of the contract, that
is, the customer obtains control of relevant goods or services.

When the contract contains two or more performance obligations, on the effective date of the contract, the Company
allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation based on the percentage of respective unit price of a
good or service guaranteed by each performance obligation, and the revenue is measured according to the transaction
price allocated to each performance obligation.

If one of the following conditions is fulfilled, the Company satisfies a performance obligation over time; otherwise,
it satisfies a performance obligation at a point in time:

@ When the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company when the
Company performs its obligations under the contract.

0] When the customer is able to control the commodity in progress in the course of performance by the Company
under the contract.

© The product produced by the Company under the contract is irreplaceable and the Company has the right to
payment for performance completed to date during the term of the contract.

For a performance obligation satisfied over time, the Company shall recognise revenue over time by measuring the
process towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. When the progress of performance cannot
be reasonably determined, if the costs incurred by the Company are expected to be recoverable, the revenue will
be recognised to the extent of the costs incurred until the progress of performance can be reasonably determined.

For a performance obligation satisfied at a point in time, the Company shall recognise revenue when the customer
obtains control of relevant goods or services. When determining whether the customer has obtained control of the

goods or services, the Company will consider the following indications:

@ The Company has the current right to receive payment for the goods or services, which is when the customer
has the current payment obligations for the goods.

@ The Company has transferred the legal title of the goods to the customer, which is when the customer
possesses the legal title of the goods.

© The Company has transferred the physical possession of goods to the customer, which is when the customer
obtains physical possession of the goods.

@ The Company has transferred all of the substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the
customer, which is when the customer obtains all of the substantial risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods.

When the customer has accepted the goods or services.

When other information indicates that the customer has obtained control of the goods.
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28.

29.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Revenue (continved)

A contract asset represents the Company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that it has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on factors other than passage of time, for which the
impairment allowance for expected credit loss is recognised (see Note I11.10(6)). The Company shall present any
unconditional (i.e. if only the passage of time is required) rights to consideration from the customer separately as a
receivable. A contract liability is the Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

The contract assets and liabilities under the same contract shall be shown on a net basis. If the net amount stated in
debit balance, it will be presented under the items of “Contract assets” or “Other non-current assets” according to
its liquidity; If the net amount stated in credit balance, it will be presented under the items of “Contract liabilities”
or "Other non-current liabilities” according to its liquidity.

The Company enters into sales contracts with customers. Revenue from sales is recognised according to the invoiced
amount upon the delivery of goods to the designated carrier or purchaser according to the orders received from
customers; revenue from export sales is recognised mainly by adopting FOB mode according to custom declaration
upon making declaration for goods and completing the export procedures.

Contract costs

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Company incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained, e.g. an incremental sales commission. The
Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if it expects to recover
those costs. Other expenses incurred by the Company for obtaining the contract, except for the incremental costs
expected to be recovered, are recognised in profit or loss for the current period when incurred.

If the costs to fulfil a contract are not within the scope of inventories or other accounting standards, the Company
recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil a contract only if those costs meet all of the following criteria:

@) the costs relate directly to an existing or anticipated contract, including direct labour, direct materials,
manufacturing overheads (or similar costs), costs that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and other

costs that are incurred only because the Company entered into the contract;

@ the costs enhance resources of the Company that will be used in satisfying performance obligations in the
future;

® the costs are expected to be recovered.
Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and assets recognised for the costs to fulfil

a contract (the "assets related to contract costs”) are amortised on a basis that is consistent with the revenue
recognition of the goods or services relating the assets and recognised in profit or loss for the current period.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022

195



196

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

29.

30.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Contract costs (continued)

The Company recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of an asset
related to contract costs exceeds:

@ remaining amount of consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates;

@ The cost estimated to be happened for the transfer of related goods or services.

The costs of contract performance recognised as assets, if the amortisation period is less than one year or a normal
operating cycle upon the initial recognition, are presented as “Inventories” item, and if the amortisation period is
more than one year or a normal operating cycle upon the initial recognition, are presented as “Other non-current
assets” item.

The contract obtaining costs recognised as assets, if the amortisation period is less than one year or a normal
operating cycle upon the initial recognition, are presented as “Other current assets” item, and if the amortization
period is more than one year or a normal operating cycle upon the initial recognition, are presented as “Other
non-current assets” item.

Government grants

A government grant shall be recognised only when the enterprise can comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant and the enterprise can receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item is measured at the amount received.
If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, the item is measured at fair value, when
fair value is not reliably determinable, the item is measured at a nominal amount of RMB1.

Government grant related to assets represents the government grant received for acquisition and construction of long
term assets, or forming long term assets in other ways. Except for these, all are government grant related to income.

Regarding to the government grant which is not clearly defined in the official documents and can form long term
assets, the part of government grant which can be referred to the value of the assets is classified as government
grant related to assets and the remaining part is government grant related to income. For the government grant that
is difficult to distinguish, the entire government grant is classified as government grant related to income.

The government grant related to assets is recognised as deferred income and would be transferred to profit or loss in
reasonable and systematic manner within the period of use of the relevant assets. The government grant related to
income which is used to compensate the relevant costs or losses incurred should be recognised in the profit or loss
for the current period; the government grant related to income which is used to compensate the relevant costs or
losses for the subsequent period is recognised as deferred income and shall be recognised in profit or loss during the
period for which the relevant cost or loss is recognised. Government grants measured in nominal terms are directly
included in the profit or loss for the current period. The Company has adopted a consistent approach to the same
or similar government grant business.
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30.

31.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Government grants (continued)

The government grants related to daily activities are recognised as other gains in accordance with the substance
of economic business. Government grants that are not related to daily activities are recognised as non-operating
income and expenses.

If the recognised government grants need to be refunded, adjust the carrying amount of assets when the carrying
amount of assets is offset at the time of initial recognition; the balance of deferred income is offset against the
carrying amount of the balance of deferred income and the excess is recognised in the profit or loss for the current
period. Under other circumstances, it is directly recognised in the profit or loss for the current period.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

Income tax expense comprises current income tax expense and deferred income tax expense. Current income tax
and deferred income tax are included in the profit or loss for the current period as tax expense, except for deferred
income tax related to transactions or events that are directly recognised in shareholders’ equity which are recognised
directly in shareholders’ equity, and deferred income tax arising from a business combination, which is adjusted
against the carrying amount of goodwill.

Temporary differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax
base are recognised as deferred income tax using the balance sheet liability method.

All the taxable temporary differences are recognised as deferred income tax liabilities except for those incurred in
the following transactions:

) The initial recognition of goodwill, and the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is
neither a business combination nor affects accounting profit or taxable profit when the transaction occurs;

(2) The taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
and the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Company recognises a deferred income tax asset for the carry-forward of deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits to subsequent periods, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised,
except for those incurred in the following transactions:

(1) The transaction is neither a business combination nor affects accounting profit or taxable profit when the
transaction occurs;

(2) The deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
the corresponding deferred income tax asset is recognised when both of the following conditions are satisfied:
it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future, and it is probable that
taxable profits will be available in the future, against which the temporary difference can be utilized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

31.

32.

(1)

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities (continuea)

At the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, and their tax effect
is reflected.

At the balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset. If it is probable
that sufficient taxable profits will not be available in future periods to allow the benefit of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised, the carrying amount of the deferred income tax asset is reduced. Any such reduction in amount
is reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Leases
Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company, as a lessee or lessor, assesses if the customer in a contract has the
right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified assets and the right to direct the
use of the identified assets in the period of use. The Company would identify that a contract is a lease or contains
a lease if a party of the contract transfers the right to control the use of one or more identified assets for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as the lessee

At the inception of a lease, the Company recognises all its leases as the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
except for the short-term leases and the leases of low-value assets which are treated with a simplified approach.

For the accounting policies on the right-of-use assets, please refer to Note I11.33.

Lease liabilities are initially measured based on the present value of outstanding lease payment at the inception of a
lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or the incremental borrowing rate in case the interest
rate implicit in the lease cannot be determined. Lease payment include: fixed payments and in-substance fixed
payments, less any lease incentives (if there is a lease incentive); variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate; the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; payments
of penalties for terminating the lease option, if the lease term reflects that the lessee will exercise that option; and
amounts expected to be payable under the guaranteed residual value provided by the lessee. The Company shall
subsequently calculate the interest expenses of lease liabilities over the lease term at the fixed periodic interest rate,
and include it into the profit or loss for the current period. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Short-term lease

Short-term lease refers to the lease that the lease term does not exceed 12 months from the inception of a lease,
and the lease that includes the option of purchase is not a short-term lease.

The Company recognises the amount of lease payments of short-term lease in the cost of the related asset or the
profit or loss for the current period, on a straight-line method over each period of the lease term.
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32.

(2)

(3)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Company as the lessee (continuea)
Leases of low-value assets

For the leases of low-value assets, the Company chooses to adopt the above simplified treatment method in
accordance with the specific conditions of each lease.

The Company recognised the lease payments for the leases of low-value assets in the relevant asset cost or the profit
or loss for the current period on a straight-line basis over each period of the lease term.

Lease modification

When there is a lease modification and the following conditions are simultaneously met, the Company accounts for
the lease modification as a separate lease: @ the lease modification expands the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more leased assets; @ the additional consideration is equal to the separate price of the expanded
scope of the lease as adjusted for the circumstances of the contract.

If the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, on the effective date of the lease modification,
the Company reallocates the consideration of the modified contract, re-determines the lease term, and remeasures
the lease liability based on the present value of the modified lease payment calculated at the revised discount rate.

If the lease modification results in a reduction in the scope of the lease or a shortened lease term, the Company
reduces the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly, and include the gains or losses in relation to
partial or complete termination of the lease in profit or loss for the current period.

If other lease modifications result in the remeasurement of lease liabilities, the Company adjusts the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets accordingly.

The Company as the lessor

When the Company is the lessor, the lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards related to the
ownership of assets is recognised as a finance lease, and leases other than finance leases are recognised as operating
leases.

Finance leases

In a finance lease, the Company uses the net lease investment as the carrying amount of finance lease receivables
at the inception of a lease. The net lease investment is the sum of the unguaranteed residual value and the present
value of the outstanding lease payment at the inception of a lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. The Company, as the lessor, calculates and recognises the interest income over each period of the lease term at
a fixed periodic interest rate. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the net lease investment,
which are obtained by the Company as a lessor, are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The derecognition and impairment of financial lease receivables is accounted for in accordance with the provisions

of "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instrument”
and "Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 23 — Transfer of Financial Assets”.
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From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

32.

(3)

33.

(1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Company as the lessor (continued)
Operating leases

For the rental of operating leases, the Company recognises it in the profit or loss for the current period on a straight-
line basis over each period of the lease term. The initial direct cost incurred in connection with an operating lease
shall be capitalized and amortised on the same basis for recognition of rental income during the lease term, and shall
be included in installments in the profit or loss for the current period. The variable lease payment, which is obtained
in connection with an operating lease and not included in the lease receivables, shall be included in the profit and
loss for the current period when they actually occur.

Lease modification

The Company accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any receipts in advance or lease receivable relating to the original lease as part of the
lease receivable for the new lease.

When there is a modification to a finance lease and the following conditions are simultaneously met, the Company
accounts for the modification as a separate lease: (D the modification expands the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more leased assets; @ the additional consideration is equal to the separate price of the expanded
scope of the lease as adjusted for the circumstances of the contract.

If the modification to finance lease is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Company will deal with the modified
lease under the following circumstances: O If the modification takes effect on the commencement date of the lease
and the lease will be classified as an operating lease, the Company will account for it as a new lease from the effective
date of the lease modification, and take the net lease investment before the effective date of the lease modification
as the carrying amount of the leased assets; @ If the modification takes effect on the commencement date of the
lease and the lease will be classified as a finance lease, the Company will account for it in accordance with the
requirements on modifying or renegotiating a contract under the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
22 — Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instrument”.

Right-of-use assets
Recognition condition of right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Company are defined as the right of underlying assets in the lease term for the Company
as a lessee.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost as at the commencement date of the lease, which consists of: the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities; any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date of the lease less any lease incentives received if any; initial direct expenses incurred by the Company as a lessee;
costs to be incurred by the Company as a lessee in dismantling and removing a leased asset, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the leased assets to the condition required by the terms of the lease. The Company
as a lessee recognises and measures the costs of demolition and restoration according to “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.13 — Contingencies”, and subsequently adjusts for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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33.

(2)

(3)

34.

35.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Right-of-use assets (continved)
Depreciation method of right-of-use assets

The Company calculates depreciation on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets in which the Company as a lessee
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
over the remaining useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
its remaining useful life.

For methods of impairment testing and provision for impairment for right-of-use assets,
please refer to Note Illl. 22.

Repurchase of shares

Prior to cancellation or transfer of shares repurchased, the Company recognises all expenditures arising from share
repurchase as cost of treasury shares in the treasury share account. Considerations and transaction fee incurred from
the repurchase of shares shall lead to the elimination of owners’ equity and does not recognise profit or loss when
shares of the Company are repurchased, transferred or cancelled.

The difference between the actual amount received and the carrying amount of the treasury stock are recognised as
capital reserve when the treasury stocks are transferred, and if the capital reserve is not sufficient to be offset, the
excess amount shall be recognised to offset surplus reserve and undistributed profit. When the treasury stocks are
cancelled, the capital shall be reduced by the number of shares and par value of cancellation shares, the difference
between the actual amount received and the carrying amount of the treasury stock are recognised as capital reserve,
and if the capital reserve is not sufficient to be offset, the excess amount shall be recognised to offset surplus reserve
and undistributed profit.

Restricted shares

If the Company grants the Restricted Shares to incentive participants under the Share Options Incentive Scheme,
the incentive participants subscribe for the shares first. If the unlocking conditions stipulated in the Share Options
Incentive Scheme cannot be fulfilled subsequently, the Company repurchase the shares at the predetermined price. If
the registration and other capital increase procedures for the Restricted Shares issued to employees are completed in
accordance with relevant regulations, the Company recognises share capital and capital reserve (or capital premium)
based on the subscription money received from the employees on the grant date; and recognises treasury shares and
other payables for repurchase obligation.
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36.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Significant accounting estimates and critical assumptions adopted by the Company are continually evaluated based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. The
significant accounting estimates and critical assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next accounting year are set out below:

Classification of financial assets

Significant judgements involved in determining the classification of financial assets include analysis of business model
and characteristics of the contractual cash flows.

Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model of financial assets management for a group
of financial assets include past experience on how financial asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key
management personnel, how risks affecting the performance of financial asset are assessed and managed and how
managers of related businesses are compensated.

When assessing whether the contractual cash flows of financial assets are consistent with basic lending arrangement,
the Company adopts the following significant judgements: whether the time distribution or amounts of the principal
within the duration may change due to early repayment and other reasons; whether the interest includes only the
time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and the consideration for cost and profit. For example,
the amounts of early repayment only reflect outstanding principal, the interest based on outstanding principal and
reasonable compensation paid for early termination of a contract.

Measurement of ECL for account receivables

The Company calculates ECL of account receivables according to their exposure at default and ECL rate, and
determines ECL rate based on probability of default and loss given default. When determining ECL rate, the Company
adopts data like historical credit loss experience in combination with current situation and forward-looking information
to adjust historical data. When considering forward-looking information, the Company uses indicators including the
risk of economic downturn, external market environment, technology environment and changes on customer situation.
The Company periodically monitors and reviews assumptions relevant to the measurement of ECL.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Company evaluates whether goodwill is impaired at least once a year. This requires an estimate of the value
in use of the asset groups to which the goodwill is allocated. In estimating the value in use, the Company needs to
estimate the future cash flows generated from the asset groups and also to choose an appropriate discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of the future cash flows.

Development expenditure

Determining the amounts to be capitalized requires the management to make assumptions regarding the expected
future cash flows generated from assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

Deferred income tax assets

The deferred income tax assets will be recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which the loss is utilised. This requires the management to exert numerous
judgments to estimate the timing and amount of the future taxable profits so as to determine the amount of deferred
income tax assets to be recognised with reference to the tax planning strategy.
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36.

(6)

(7)

37.

(1

(2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)
Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continuead)
Revenue recognition

As stated in Note Ill. 28, the Company makes the following significant accounting judgements and estimates in terms
of revenue recognition: identifying customer contracts; estimating the recoverability of the considerations that are
entitled to be obtained by transferring goods to customers; identifying the performance obligation in the contract;
estimating the variable consideration in the contract and cumulative revenue recognised where it is highly probable
that a significant reversal therein will not occur when the relevant uncertainty is resolved; assessing whether there is
a significant financing component in the contract; estimating the individual selling price of the individual performance
obligation in the contract, etc. The Company makes judgments primarily based on historical experiences and works.
Changes in these significant judgments and estimates may have significant impacts on the operating income, operating
costs, and profit or loss of the current or subsequent periods.

Determination of the fair value of unlisted equity investment

The fair value of unlisted equity investments represents the expected future cash flows discounted at the prevailing
discount rate of items with similar terms and risk characteristics. It requires the Company to estimate the expected
future cash flows and discount rates, and therefore there is uncertainty. Under limited circumstances, if the information
used to determine the fair value is insufficient, or the possible estimated amount of fair value is widely distributed,
and cost represents the best estimate of the fair value within such scope, the cost may represent an appropriate
estimate of the fair value within such distribution scope.

Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting estimates and correction
to accounting errors

Changes in accounting policies

The Ministry of Finance issued Interpretation No. 15 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (Cai Kuai
[2021] No. 35) in December 2021 (hereinafter referred to as “Interpretation No. 15").

Interpretation No. 15 clarifies that “the accounting treatment of the external sales of products or by-products produced
by enterprises before their fixed assets are in their intended usable condition or during research and development
process (hereinafter referred to as ‘Trial Operation Sales’)”. If an enterprise has Trial Operation Sales, it shall comply
with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14 — Income” and the “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 1 — Inventory” and other requlations to account relevant income and costs of Trial Operation Sales
separately and include them in the profit or loss of the current period, and the net amount of the relevant income
from Trial Operation Sales after offsetting relevant costs shall not be written off against the cost of fixed assets or
research and development expenditures. The relevant accounting treatment provisions for “Trial Operation Sales”
have been effective from 1 January 2022, and the comparative financial statements shall be adjusted retrospectively.

Interpretation No. 15 clarifies that “the determination of onerous contracts (hereinafter referred to as ‘Onerous
Contracts’)”. When determining an Onerous Contract, the cost of performing the contract includes the incremental
cost of performing the contract and the apportioned amount of other costs directly related to the performance of the
contract. The relevant accounting treatment provisions for “Onerous Contracts” have been effective from 1 January
2022; as a result, the retained earnings and other related financial statement items at the beginning of the year in
which Interpretation No. 15 is first adopted will be adjusted, and comparative data in financial statements for prior
periods shall not be adjusted.

The adoption of Interpretation No. 15 does not have significant impact on the financial position and operating results
of the Company.

Changes in significant accounting estimates and correction to accounting errors.

None.
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IV. TAXATION

1. The main taxes and tax rates
Types of tax Basis of taxation Statutory tax rate (%)
Value added tax Taxable income 3,13
Urban maintenance and construction tax Turnover tax to be paid 1,57
Education surcharges Turnover tax to be paid 3
Local education surcharges Turnover tax to be paid Note 1
Enterprise income tax Turnover tax to be paid Note 2

Note 1: The Company and its subsidiaries that are incorporated in Zhuhai shall pay local education surcharges that are charged
at 2% on the turnover tax to be paid; other subsidiaries shall pay local education surcharges according to the tax rate as

specified at their places of incorporation on the basis of turnover tax to be paid.

Note 2: The enterprise income tax rate applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries are set out as follows:

Name of taxpayer

Income tax rate (%)

Livzon Pharmaceutical Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (BBEREE B4 MRHE B R A 7)), Llan Hong

Kong Limited %Eﬁg/%ﬁﬁﬁ &) and Livzon Biologics Hong Kong Limited (28
REEBERA

Companhia de Macau Carason Limitada (252 % {5 R 2 7)) and Li Zhu (Macau)

Limitada (BB¥k (CRFY) BRAR)

The Company and Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory (BEEA 5 B
FIERZUELTR), Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory (8 Bk 4 @I B LR BLELT),
Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ffk/ﬂ%ﬁl:

AMELEAR A7), Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (

REIRBIZEA IR A7), Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc (EE
BRI R E A9 A PR 2 7)), Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (P95 K BLEEH R /A 7)), Zhuhai Livzon Diagnostics Inc. (B8 B8 Tk & I %
3B M2 ), Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BEEK 5 B @)
1B BB A IR /2 7]), Shanghai Livzon Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (/S BERE ML
BMAE]), Livzon Group (Ningxia) Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (BB k5 [E
(28) 2EARAF]), Zhuhai Lihe Medical Diagnostic Product Company Limited
BB REEDEEREMRAE]), Zhuhai Livzon Traditional Chinese Medicine

Modernization Technology Co., Ltd. (k8T Bk IR RHEBR A
Livzon MABPharm (US) Inc. (BBZRE AW HM (XE) BRAF

Livzon International Ventures ~ Livzon International Ventures |
Livzon International Ventures ||

Other subsidiaries

al)

16.5

0 or 12 (Tax rate is 12% where the
taxable income is MOP600,000
or more; for those with taxable
income less than MOP600,000,

they are exempted from income taxes.)

15

25 or be entitled to preferential
tax policies for small and
low-profit enterprises
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(1)

(2)

TAXATION (continued)
Tax preference and approvals
Preferential value added tax

In accordance with the Announcement on Value Added Tax on Biological Products Sold by Pharmaceutical Operation
Enterprises (Announcement of State Administration of Taxation 2012 No. 20) and the Notice of the Ministry of
Finance, the General Administration of Customs, the State Administration of Taxation and the National Medical
Products Administration on the Value-Added Tax Policies for Anti-Cancer Drugs (Caishui [2018] No. 47), the biological
products and anti-cancer drugs sold by the Company are subject to value added tax at 3% by the simple approach.

Preferential enterprise income tax

The Company and its subsidiaries, Livzon Group Limin Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Factory (B8 ¥k 5= 8 FI| B2 U %
J&), Livzon Group Livzon Pharmaceutical Factory (BB Tk 5= B B R &L %4Ji%), Zhuhai FTZ Livzon Hecheng Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (BR/ERTRIRBEIRE KR 225 R A 7)), Shanghai Livzon Pharmaceutical Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (E/BBIRRLEEHR 2 7)), Livzon Group Fuzhou Fuxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BB & B 18N 18 H2
BB R /2 7)) and Sichuan Guangda Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (PO)I| 3¢ KB EEHFR A A]) are
entitled to enjoy preferential income tax policies applicable to high and new technology enterprises since 2020 for a
valid period of three years; Livzon Group Xinbeijiang Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Inc. (BB Bk 5 BIET1b)T B BE[%
34 FR 72 A]) and Zhuhai Livzon Diagnostics Inc. (%58 B8 Tk 5 Bl A% 17 /8 IR 22 R]) have re-applied for recognisation
as the high and new technology enterprises for the Period; Shanghai Livzon Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (_E/8BE R4
PIEHZ B BR 72 7)) is entitled to preferential income tax policies applicable to high and new technology enterprises
since 2021 for a valid period of three years; Livzon Group (Ningxia) Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (BEZk
EE(ZEE)R B AR 2 F)) was approved to enjoy the enterprise taxation preference of the Encouraged Industries
in Western China. Such companies were subject to an enterprise income tax rate of 15% for the Period.

In accordance with Article 27 of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and Article 86
of the Regulations for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
business of planting Chinese herbal medicines engaged by the subsidiaries of the Company, Datong Livzon Qiyuan
Medicine Co., Ltd. (KRB IREEJRZE 44 B IR 2 A)) and Longxi Livzon Shenyuan Medicine Co., Ltd. (BEFEEIRZ
JREEM PR A 7)) are exempted from enterprise income tax.

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on the Preferential
Enterprise Income Tax Policies of the Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone of Henggin (Cai Shui [2022] No.
19), qualified industrial enterprises located in the Guangdong-Macao In-depth Cooperation Zone of Henggin will be
subject to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%. Zhuhai Lihe Medical Diagnostic Product Company Limited
(BB ARBEZEEMBRRAF]) and Zhuhai Livzon Traditional Chinese Medicine Modernization Technology
Co., Ltd. (I%,im%@fﬂiqﬂ 38 L BHE A BR 2 B]) met relevant conditions, and were subject to an enterprise
income tax rate of 15% for the Period.

According to the preferential tax policies for small low-profit enterprises, the portion of annual taxable income of a
small low-profit enterprise which does not exceed RMB1 million is subject to enterprise income tax at a tax rate of
2.5%; the portion over RMB1 million but not exceeding RMB3 million is subject to enterprise income tax at a tax
rate of 5%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Unless specified otherwise, “Beginning of the Year” refers to 1 January 2022, “End of the Period” refers to 30 June
2022; "Period” refers to January to June 2022 and "“Previous Period” refers to January to June 2021 in the following
notes (including major notes to the financial statements of the Company).

1. Monetary funds

Balance at the End of the Period Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Amount in Amount in
foreign Translation Amount in foreign Translation Amount in
Items currency rate RMB currengy rate RMB
Cash on hand; 159,141.68 194,319.63
RMB 143,371.34 17845045
Furo 7.0084 11,072.36 1579.87 1.2197 11,406.19
) 6.7114 4,697.98 700.00 6.3757 4462.99
Bank deposits: 9,135,908,635.26 9,002,550,448.00
RIB 8,251,077,345.23 8,049,009,679.75
HKD 5,697,147.26 0.85519 4,872,143.36 3,689,174.59 0.8176 3,016,269.14
Euro 75,451.07 7.0084 528,791.28 75,451.09 7.2197 544,734.23
Usb 129,702,207.12 6.7114  870,483,392.86 148,446,729.16 6.3757 946,451,811.10
MOP 5,036,397.92 0.8295 4,177,692.07 141297192 0.7936 11213345
IPY 97,062,652.00 0.049136 4,769,270.46 43,429,022.00 0.055415 2,406,619.26
Bank deposits: Deposits with 0.00 0.00
financial companies
Bank deposits: Interest receivable 36,177,013.85 19,969,652.77
Other monetary funds: 96,783,003.08 143,628,687.38
RMB 1,895,157.24 213427890
HKD 4,410,571.09 0.85519 3,771,876.29 67,295,920.52 0.8176 55,021,144.62
Usb 13,576,298.47 6.7114  91,115,969.55 13,562,944.28 6.3757 86,473,263.86
Total 9,232,850,780.02 9,146,373,455.01
Of which: Total amount of overseas deposits 838,539,500.16 800,264,898.14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1

(2)

(3)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Monetary funds (continuead)

@) Other monetary funds are mainly deposits for investments, deposits for letters of guarantee and other
businesses.

0) Frozen funds in bank deposits and restricted funds relating to deposits for letters of guarantee and other
businesses in other monetary funds were deducted from cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement.
Other than such funds, there is no other amounts subject to restricted uses under charge, pledge or lock up,
kept outside China and having probable risks in its collection of the balance at the End of the Period. Below
are the details of the use of restricted monetary funds:

Balance at the Balance at the
Item End of the Period Beginning of the Year

Deposits under guarantee 960,984.96 1,093,834.12

Financial assets held for trading

Classification

Balance at the Balance at the

Item End of the Period Beginning of the Year
Financial assets held for trading 99,806,543.32 182,773,354.56
Of which: Debt instrument investments 953,678.89 940,162.94
Equity instrument investments 98,802,998.87 176,321,853.05

Derivative financial assets 49,865.56 5,511,338.57

Total 99,806,543.32 182,773,354.56

@ The Company's investments in equity instruments and debt instruments for financial assets held for trading
at the End of the Period were listed for trading on stock exchanges such as Shenzhen Stock Exchange, The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and NASDAQ in the United States. Their fair value was determined
based on the closing price on the last trading day in the Reporting Period.

@ Derivative financial assets represent foreign currency forward contracts, futures contracts, gains from unexpired
contracts measured at fair value was recognised as financial assets at balance sheet date.

No restrictive financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss was realised in
the balance at the End of the Period.

There was no hedging instruments in the balance at the End of the Period and no hedging
transactions occurred during the Period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1

(2)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Bills receivable

Balance at the End of the Period Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Provision for Provision for
Type of bills Gross amount bad debt  Carrying amount Gross amount bad debt Carrying amount

Bank acceptance bill 1,378,609,801.25 481,000.00  1,378,128,801.25 |EILYRYIRINE 481,000.00  1,342,029,380.44

Pledged bills receivable at the End of the Period

Pledged amount at

the End of
Type the Period
Bank acceptance bills 264,118,889.89

As at 30 June 2022, bills with carrying amount of RMB264,118,889.89 (31 December 2021: RMB274,605,538.20)
were pledged for bank acceptance bills.

Endorsed or discounted bills receivable not yet mature by the date of balance sheet at the
End of the Period

Amount
derecognized Amount not
at the End of derecognized at
Type the Period the End of the Period
Bank acceptance bills not yet mature but already endorsed 180,000,478.63 0.00

Bank acceptance bills not yet mature but already discounted 27,010,984.61 0.00

Total 207,011,463.24 0.00

During the Period, the Company discounted bank acceptance bills of RMB68,836,547.39 (Previous Period: RMB0.00)
to a bank. As the main risks (such as interest rate risks) and rewards related to these bank acceptance bills were
transferred to the bank, the Company derecognised the bank acceptance bills not yet mature but already discounted.
The discounted fee was RMB0.00 (Previous Period: RMB0.00).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Bills receivable (continuea)

(3) There were no bills transferred into account receivables for non-performance by the issuer
at the End of the Period.

(4) Classified according to the method of provision for bad debt

Balance at the End of the Period Balance t the Beginning of the Year
Gross amount Provision for bad debt Gross amount Provision for bad debt
Expected Eipected

Percentage credit loss Carrying Percentage credit oss Carrying
Category Amount (%)  Amount rate(%) value Amount (%) Amount rate (%) value
Provision for bad debt on 481,000.00 0.03  481,000.00 100.00 0.00 481,000.00 004 481,00000 100.00 000

individual basis

Of which:

Bank acceptance bl 481,000.00 I 481,000.00 100.00 0.00 481,000.00 004 481,00000 100.00 000
Provision for bad debt on 1,378,128,801.25 0.00 0.00  1,378,128,801.25 1,342,029,380.44 9.9 000 000 1,342,029,380.44

collective basis
0f which:

Bank acceptance bill 1,378,128,801.25 I 0.00  1,378,128,801.25 134202938044 99.% 000 000 1,342,029,380.44
Total 1,378,609,801.25 100.00  481,000.00 0.03  1,378,128,801.25 1342,510,38044 10000 481,000.00 004 1,342,029,380.44
Provision for bad debt on individual basis:

Balance at the End of the Period Balance &t the Beginning of the Year
Provision Expected  Reason for Provision Brpected  Reason for
Gross forbad creditloss provision Gross forbad ceditloss — provision
Name amount debt rate (%)  made amount debt rate (%) made
Henan Jiuzhoutong Pharmaceutical  [REER VLIV [V RSV EX Il [ 100.00  Not expected 431,000.00 431,000.00 10000 Not expected
(o, Lt (TN BEER to be fobe
RAF) recoverable Tecoverable
Other customers 50,000.00 50,000.00 Not expected 50,000.00 50,000.00 10000 Not expected
to be tobe
recoverable recoverable
Total 481,000.00  481,000.00 481,000.00 481,000.00 10000/
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(5) Provision for bad debt made, recovered or reversed during the Period

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Bills receivable (continuea)

Amount of
provision
for bad debt
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 481,000.00
Provision for the Period 0.00
Recoveries or reversals during the Period 0.00
Write-off during the Period 0.00
Balance at the End of the Period 481,000.00
(6) No bills receivable were actually written-off during the Period
4, Accounts receivables
(1) Disclosed using the aging analysis method
Balance at Balance at
the End of the Beginning of
Aging the Period the Year
Within 1 year
Of which: Within 3 months (including 3 months) 1,918,790,572.04 1,717,858,455.79
4 — 6 months (including 6 months) 240,242,029.40 224,360,216.49
7 — 12 months (including 12 months) 34,064,931.94 32,712,993.46
Subtotal within 1 year: 2,193,097,533.38 1,974,931,665.74
1 =2 years (including 2 years) 10,187,045.28 10,347,942.09
2 — 3 years (including 3 years) 2,102,295.67 3,654,202.11
Over 3 years 7.434,063.88 9,228,360.06
Subtotal 2,212,820,938.21 1,998,162,170.00
Less: Provision for bad debt 45,690,984.28 46,264,058.80
Total 2,167,129,953.93 1,951,898,111.20

According to the credit policies of the Company, the Company usually grants a credit period ranging from 30 to 90

days to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

4, Accounts receivables (continuea)

(2) Classified according to the method of provision for bad debt

Balance at the End of the Period Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Gross amount Provision for bad debt (Gross amount Provision for bad debt
Expected Expected
Percentage credit loss Carrying Percentage credit loss Carmying
Category Amount (%) Amount rate (%) value Amount (%) Amount rate (%) value
Provision for bad debt on 518,861.41 0.02  518,861.41 100.00 0.00 518,861.41 003 51886141 100.00 0.0
individual basis
0f which:
Due from domestic 518,861.41 0.02  518,861.41 0.00 518,861.41 003 51886141 100.00 0.0
Customers
Due from overseas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
customers
Provision for bad debton W AVAREDPAI[RI 99.98 45,172,122.87 PR SVR(YRVEREXERN 1,997,643,308.59 99.97 45,745,197.39 229 1951,89,111.20
collective basis
Of which:
Due from domestic 1,833,870,459.67 82.88 38,827,739.47 212 1,795,042,72020 QESERAIRAINI 79.83 38,744,145 243 1,556,483371.94
customers
Due from overseas 378,431,617.13 1710 6,344,383.40 168 372,087,233.73 |EIORARNEIAY 2014 7,001,052.83 174 395414,739.26
Customers
Total 2,212,820,938.21 100.00 45,690,984.28 PAIWAYRVEREXRERN 1,998,162,170.00 10000 46,264,058.80 231 1951,8%,111.00

Provision for bad debt on individual basis:

Balance at the End of the Period Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Provision  Expected  Reason for Provision Eipected  Reason for
Gross forbad  creditloss making Gross for bad credit loss — making
Name amount debt rate (%) provision amount debt rate (%) provision

Total (other customers) 518,861.41  518,861.41 100.00  Not expected [EEEERIFN 518,861.41 10000 Not expected
to be tobe
recoverable recoverable
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

4, Accounts receivables (continued)

(2) Classified according to the method of provision for bad debt (continuea)

Provision for bad debt on collective basis:

Item with provision on collective basis: Due from domestic customers

Balance at the End of the Period

Expected

Accounts Provision for credit loss

receivables bad debt  rate (%)

Within 3 months 1,603,137,563.77 15,948,651.93 0.99
(including 3 months)

4 - 6 months 177,756,782.87 8,897,140.21 5.01
(including 6 months)

7 - 12 months 33,771,569.61 3,502,870.48 10.37

(including 12 months)
1-2 years 10,187,045.28 2,091,592.50 20.53
2 -3 years 2,102,295.67 1,472,281.88 70.03

Over 3 years 6,915,202.47 6,915,202.47 100.00

Total 1,833,870,459.67 38,827,739.47 2.12

[tem with provision on collective basis: Due from overseas customers

Balance at the End of the Period

Expected

Accounts Provision for credit loss

receivables bad debt  rate (%)

Within 3 months 315,653,008.27 3,205,454.81 1.02
(including 3 months)

4 - 6 months 62,485,246.53 3,109,592.35 4.98
(including 6 months)

7 =12 months 293,362.33 29,336.24 10.00
(including 12 months)

Total 378,431,617.13 6,344,383.40
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Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Expected
Accounts Provision for ~ credit loss
receivables had debt rate (%)
1,387,087,222.99 13,683,895.27 0.99
154,113,975.73 7,684,234.86 4.99
31,314,674.93 4,054,236.59 12.95
10,347,942.09 2,048,961.01 19.80
3,654,202.11 2,563,318.18 70.15
8,709,498.65 8,709,498.65 100.00
1,595,227,516.50 38,744,144.56 243
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Expected
Accounts Provision for ~ credit loss
receivables had debt rate (%)
330,771,232.80 3,348,773.18 1.01
70,246,240.76 3,511,234.20 5.00
1,398,318.53 141,045.45 10.09
402,415,792.09 7,001,052.83 1.74




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Accounts receivables (continuead)
Provision for bad debt made, recovered or reversed during the Period

Amount of provision
for bad debt

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 46,264,058.80
Provision for the Period 1,820,125.05
Recoveries or reversals during the Period 0.00
Write-off during the Period 2,387,075.80
Others -6,123.77
Balance at the End of the Period 45,690,984.28

As at 30 June 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Company had no accounts receivables that were past due but not
impaired.

Accounts receivables that were actually written off during the Period

Item Amount written off
Total (domestic customers) 2,387,075.80
Total (overseas customers) 0.00

Top five balances of accounts receivables by debtors at the End of the Period

The total amount of the top five balances of accounts receivables by debtors at the End of the Period was
RMB216,946,394.36, representing 9.80% of the total balances of accounts receivables at the End of the Period,
and the corresponding aggregate amount of the balances of provision for bad debt at the End of the Period was
RMB3,590,288.67.

No accounts receivables of the Company has been derecognized due to the transfer of
financial assets.

The Company has no assets or liabilities formed by its continuous involvement of
transferring accounts receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1

(2)

(1

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continuea)
Prepayments

Disclosure of prepayments by aging analysis

Balance at the End of

Balance at the Beginning of

the Period the Year

Percentage Percentage
Aging Amount (%) Amount (%)
Within 1 year 242,694,516.33 94.27 269,876,161.63 96.01
1 -2 years 11,167,848.65 4.34 7,066,773.78 2.51
2 — 3 years 2,940,038.53 1.14 3,869,319.78 1.38
Over 3 years 653,353.15 0.25 271,092.17 0.10
Total 257,455,756.66 100.00 281,083,347.36 100.00

Prepayments to units with top five balances at the End of the Period by payees of the

prepayments

The total amount of prepayments with top five balances at the End of the Period by payees of the prepayments was
RMB84,754,321.84, representing 32.92% of the total balance of prepayments at the End of the Period.

Other receivables

Balance at the
End of
the Period

215,678.92
40,694,961.81

Item

Dividends receivable
Other receivables

Total 40,910,640.73

Dividends receivable

Balance at the
End of

Item the Period

215,678.92
0.00

Kunlun Energy Company Limited
Less: Provision for bad debt

Total 215,678.92

@ As at the End of the Period, there was no dividends receivable aged over 1 year.

@ Provision made for bad debts
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Balance at the
Beginning of
the Year

0.00
47,768,970.54

47,768,970.54

Balance at the
Beginning of
the Year

0.00
0.00

0.00




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1

(2)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Other receivables (continuea)

Dividends receivable (continuea)

As at the End of the Period, provision for bad debts at step 1:

Expected
credit loss
rate over
the next Provision
Gross 12 months for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 215,678.92 0.00 0.00 215,678.92
Dividend receivables 215,678.92 0.00 0.00 215,678.92  Recoverable
Provision for bad debt on collective basis 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -
Total 215,678.92 0.00 0.00 215,678.92

Other receivables

@

Disclosed using the aging analysis method

Aging

Balance at the
End of
the Period

Within 1 year
1 =2 years
2 — 3 years
Over 3 years

38,372,135.05
3,150,121.40
2,762,678.13
8,190,300.83

Subtotal

52,475,235.41

Less: Provision for bad debt

11,780,273.60

Total

40,694,961.81

Disclosed by nature

Item

Deposits under quarantee, deposits
and lease expenses

Reserve fund and advances

Balance with associates

Borrowing due from external entities

Tax refund on exports

Amounts of exercised options

Others

Total

Balance at the End of the Period
Provision for
bad debt

2,145,778.53

Gross
amount

6,296,500.69

20,139,333.06
2,341,193.08
5,000,000.00
13,916,376.41
2,429,180.84
2,352,651.33

52,475,235.41

3,296,774.84
40,960.92

280,211.71

1,016,547.60

11,780,273.60

Balance at the
Beginning of
the Year
45,413,296.74
3,642,136.16
803,194.21
8,022,936.65

57,881,563.76

10,112,593.22

47,768,970.54

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Carrying Gross Provision for Camying

amount amount had debt amount

CREIPPRIN 555139452 1,767,93036  3,783,464.16

(RIVRELPPR 1731607603 2,251,004.95  15,065,071.08

PR(WEPR(N 136144197 22,18566  1,339,256.31

5,000,000.00 (OIS 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0.00
(ECEIR(T WO 17,708,111.60 19892769 17,509,183.91

0.00 2,429,180.84 [EEEFIXWIIR 0.00  8463,240.98
EEIRUENEN  2,481,298.66 87254456 1,608,754.10

CONEERT AN 57,881,563.76  10,112,593.22  47,768,970.54
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

6.  Other receivables (continued)
(2) Other receivables (continued)
@  Provision for bad debt
At the End of the Period, the provision for bad debt in Step 1 was as follows:

Expected

credit loss

rate over

the next Provision

Gross 12 months for bad Carrying

Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 2,429,180.84 0.00 000  2429,180.84
Amounts of exercised options 2,429,180.84 0.00 000  2429,180.84  Recoverable
Provision for bad debt on collective hasis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Total 2,429,180.84 0.00 000  2429,180.84

At the End of the Period, the provision for bad debt in Step 2 was as follows:

Expected
credit loss
rate over Provision
Gross the lifetime for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Provision for bad debt on collective basis 44,073,202.66 1318 5.807,421.69  38,265,780.97
Export tax refund receivable 13,916,376.41 201 280,211.71  13,636,164.70
Deposits under quarantee and security deposits and ~ 6,296,500.69 34.08 214577853 4,150,722.16
lease expenses
Other receivables 23,860,325.56 1417 338143145 20,478,894.11
Total 44,073,202.66 1318 5.807,421.69  38,265,780.97
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Other receivables (continued)

(2) Other receivables (continuea)

® Provision for bad debt (continued)

At the End of the Period, the provision for bad debt in Step 3 was as follows:

Expected
credit loss
rate over Provision
Gross  the lifetime for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 5,972,851.91 100.00  5,972,851.91 0.00
QOther receivables 5,972,851.91 100.00  5,972,851.91 0.00  Not expected
to be
recoverable
Provision for bad debt on collective hasis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Total 5,972,851.91 100.00  5,972,851.91 0.00
As at 31 December 2021, the provision for bad debt was as follows:
As at 31 December 2021, the provision for bad debt in Step 1 was as follows:
Expected
credit loss
rate over
the next Provision
Gross 12 months for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 8,463,240.98 0.00 0.00  8,463,240.98
Amounts of exercised options 8,463,240.98 0.00 0.00  8,463,240.98  Recoverable
Provision for bad debt on collective basis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Total 8,463,240.98 0.00 0.00  8463,240.98
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Other receivables (continued)
(2) Other receivables (continuea)
® Provision for bad debt (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the provision for bad debt in Step 2 was as follows:

Expected
credit loss
rate over Provision
Gross  the lifetime for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Provision for bad debt on collective hasis 43,445,470.87 953 4,139,741.31  39,305,729.56
Export tax refund receivable 17,708,111.60 1.12 198,927.69  17,509,183.91
Deposits under guarantee and security deposits and ~ 5,551,394.52 3185 176793036 3,783,464.16
lease expenses
Other receivables 20,185,964.75 1076 2,172,883.26  18,013,081.49
Total 43,445,470.87 953 413974131  39,305,729.56

As at 31 December 2021, the provision for bad debt in Step 3 was as follows:

Expected
credit loss
rate over Provision
Gross the lifetime for bad Carrying
Category amount (%) debt amount  Reason
Provision for bad debt on individual basis 5,972,851.91 100.00  5,972,851.91 0.00
QOther receivables 5,972,851.91 100.00  5,972,851.91 0.00  Not expected
to be
recoverable
Provision for bad debt on collective hasis 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 -
Total 5,972,851.91 100.00 5,972,851.91 0.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Other receivables (continued)
(2) Other receivables (continuea)

@ Provision for bad debt made, recovered or reversed during the Period

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
Expected

credit loss Expected

Expected over the credit loss

credit loss lifetime over the

over the (without lifetime (with

next impairment impairment
Provision for bad debt 12 months of credit) of credit) Total
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 0.00 4,139,741.31 5,972,851.91 10,112,593.22

Balance at the Beginning of the Year
transferred or reversed for the Period

— Transferred to Step 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
— Transferred to Step 3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
— Reversed to Step 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
— Reversed to Step 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Provision for the Period 0.00 1,618,254.51 0.00 1,618,254.51
Reversal during the Period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Settlement during the Period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Write-off during the Period 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other changes 0.00 49,425.87 0.00 49,425.87
Balance at the End of the Period 0.00 5,807,421.69 5,972,851.91 11,780,273.60

® There were no other receivables that were actually written off during the Period
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

V. NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Other receivables (continued)
(2) Other receivables (continuea)

® Top five balances of other receivables by debtors at the End of the Period

Percentage in the

total balance of Balance of
Balance of other other receivables provision for
receivables at the atthe End of  bad debt at the
Name of entity Nature of amount ~ End of the Period  Aging the Period (%) End of the Period
Tax refund on exports Export tax refund 1391637641 Within 1 year 265 28021171
Guangzhou Galaxy Sunshine Biological Products  Borrowings 500000000 Over 5 years 9.53 5.000,000.00
(o, Utd. (BMEABHENRRERAA)
China Securities Depository and Clearing Amount of exercised 2429180.84  Within 1 year 463 0.00
Corporation Limited (Shenzhen Branch) options
(FERFELEZRIA L)
Guangdong Blue Treasure Pha maceutical Co,, Ltd.  Balance with associates 2,280,23768  Within 1 year 435 38,113.37
(BREEHEERAT
Pioneer Time Investment L|m|ted Security deposits 85580153 2-3years 1.63 599,103.07
Tota - U664 - 166 591742815

@ No accounts receivables of the Company has been derecognized due to the transfer of financial assets.

The Company has no assets or liabilities formed by its continuous involvement of transferring other receivables.

Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. Interim Report 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(1)

(2)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Inventories

Inventories by types

[tem

Raw materials

Packaging materials

Work in progress

Finished goods

Sub-contracting materials
Low-value consumables

Goods in transit

Consumable biological assets
Proprietary semi-finished goods

Total

Balance at

Gross amount

427,497,206.90
130,577,831.31
390,823,284.14
761,652,348.90
1,178,080.36
60,932,074.56
0.00
12,645,273.43
83,720,315.58

1,869,026,915.18

the End of the Period
Provision for
diminution
in value
17,422,059.72
6,064,677.58

Carrying amount

410,075,147.18
124,513,153.13
2377,922.65  388,445,361.49
2043247352 732,220,375.38
0.00 1,178,080.36
14,722.25 60,917,352.31
0.00 0.00

0.00 12,645,273.43
173,647.84 83,546,667.74

55485,503.56  1,813,541,411.62

Provision for diminution in value of inventories

Balance at the

Increase during the Period

Balance at the Beginning of the Year

Provision for

diminution
(Gross amount in value Carrying amount
428,091,886.96 11,507,835.53 416,584,051.43
103,247,170.25 5,944,929 97,302,242.29
331,128 522.51 231792265 328,750,599.86
720,783,765.61 25,085,771.1 £95,697,988.40
2,051,074.26 0.00 2,251,074.26
50,310,247.98 67,356.68 50,242,891.30
4419812.79 0.00 4.419812.19
12,342,303.9 0.00 12,342,303.%
55,669,549.18 32,54530 55,637,003.88
1,708,244 333.50 45,016,365.33 1663,227,968.17

Decrease during the Period

Beginning Reversal
Item of the Year Provision Others o write-off Qthers
Raw materials 11,507,835.53 8,244,938.00 0.00 2,330,713.81 0.00
Packaging materials 5,944,927.96 2,917,926.92 0.00 2,198,177.30 0.00
Work in progress 2,3717,922.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Finished goods 25,085,777.21 16,846,294.76 0.00 12,499,598.45 0.00
Low-value consumables 67,356.68 44591 0.00 53,080.34 0.00
Proprietary semi-finished goods 32,545.30 197,665.95 0.00 56,563.41 0.00
Total 45,016,365.33 28,207,271.54 0.00 17,738,133.31 0.00

Balance at
the End of
the Period

17,422,059.72
6,064,677.58
2,377,922.65
29,432,473.52
14,722.25
173,647.84

55,485,503.56
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From January to June 2022 (Unless specified otherwise, all amounts are denominated in RMB)

(2)

(3)

NOTES TO THE COMPONENTS OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Inventories (continued)

Provision for diminution in value of inventories (continued)

Item

Basis for determination

of net realizable value/remaining
consideration and

costs to be incurred

Reason for reversal or
write-off of provision for
diminution in value of
inventories/provision for
impairment in contract
performance cost

for the Period

Raw materials
Packaging materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

Low-value consumables
Proprietary semi-finished goods

The estimated selling price less the estimated costs of
completion, selling expenses and related taxes

The estimated selling price less the estimated costs of
completion, selling expenses and related taxes

The estimated selling price less the estimated costs of
completion, selling expenses and related taxes

The estimated selling price less the estimated selling
expenses and related taxes

The estimated selling price less related taxes

The estimated selling price less the estimated costs of
completion, selling expenses and related ta